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4 C s . INDEX
. (Note An asterisk (*) denotes Note number)

“ Adverse Possession — There are sufficient pleadings in the written
- statement with regard to adverse possession — Further the defendants
have filed revenue records to show their possession — One of the
Defendant’s witnesses has admitted that plaintiff is possessing the suit
property as bataidar — His possession would be for the defendants.
' [Ratan Lal Vs. Kishan Lal] _ ...131

Age of Superannuation — Teachers in technical aided
institutions - State Govt. has accepted the AICTE Regulations
. prescribing the age of retirement for teachers as 65 years and issued

‘the orders —Same is binding on technical institutions receiving grant-
! _ln-a}d from the Govt. [V.P. Singh (Prof.) Vs. State of ML.P.] .64
P

. Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, (45 of 1988), Section 4 —
Benami Transaction — Evidence available on'record shows that both the
parties were having very sweet and cordial relations, however, it can be
inferred from surrounding circumstances that they were living to gether

" like husband and wife - Plaintiff admitted that entire consideration amount
" and cost of construction was borne by defendant although the sale deed
was executed in his name-Defendant is in possession of the suit house
since the time it was constrqctéd— Defendant is the owner of the property.
[Shanta Bai Vs. Pushkar Lal] i wee™9

. Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, (45 of 1988), Section 4
— Prohibition to held property benami — Guidelines to test benami
transaction — discussed. [Shanta Bai Vs. Pushkar Lal] T 9

Central Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules,

1965 — Rule 11(iii) — Personal gain of a Government servant is not the

‘condition precedent for effecting a recovery once it is proved that the
loss i ls attributed to the negllgence [Union of India Vs.. M L. Khare]
~(DB).. 45

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 9__,—- Civil Suit —
Preponderance of Probability — In Civil cases, the preponderance of
probability in the facts and circumstances of that particular case has a

vital and important role in order to arrive a correct decision to the
case. [Shanta Bai Vs. Pushkar Lal] _ .. *9
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Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 105 — Validity of an
order — Legislature has authorized the person aggrieved by the judgment
of the Trial Court to set forth any error;, defect or irregularity in any order,
affectmg the decision of the case, as a ground of objection in the appeal
and therefore, the appellate Court ought to have taken into consideration
the validity of the order by which application for amendment was rejected
by Trial Court. [Shanta Bai Vs. Pushkar Lal] - ees*9

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 4 — Pleadings —

Suit for cancellation of Sale deed — Where it is pleaded by the plaintiff

" that sale deed was executed by way of security for the loan and was .
nominal in nature and was not interided to be acted upon, the Courts

below have not committed any error in decreeing the suit filed by the
plaintiff. [Kulwant Kaur (Smt.) Vs. Sukhraje] .+ «.146

. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 22 — Legal

'~ Representatives — Original plaintiff died during the pendency of civil

suit and his legal heirs were brought on record —Defendant filed appeal
. against decree but ‘A’ one of the L.R. was not made party — —¢A’ also
filed appeal against part dismissal of suit— Held — As “A’ had also filed
cross appeal and other legal representatives were on ‘record, first
appeal and second appeal filed by defendant was maintainable and had
not abated. [Gajendra Rao Vs. Murti Shri Ganpati Ji Maharaj] ...

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Encashment of Bank Guarantee — Bank Guarantee was for mobilization
of advance with a view to secure the said amount — Bank guarantee
has been encashed for non-performance of contract— Trial Court rightly
restrained defendants from invocation and encashment of Bank
Guarantee — Trial Court was also right in directing the defendants to
- deposit the amount as the bank guarantee was ‘encashed after receiving
the notice of the suit. [Devi Shakuntala Thakral Vs. WIG Brother

. (India) Pvt. Ltd] | e¥3

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1& 2— Encashment
of Bank Guarantee — In case of unconditional bank guarantees,
interference by the Court is warranted only when there is established fraud
and irretrievable damage to the promise-Bank guarantee can not be
encashed ifit is conditional and for inconsistent purpose. [Devi Shakuntala )
Thakral Vs. WIG Brother (Indla) Pvt. Ltd.] is*3
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Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule I and 2 — See
— Scheduled Tribes and Other Traditional Forest Dwellers
. (Recognition of Forest Rights) Act, 2006, Section 2(0) [Madhu Vs.
State of M.P.] e ¥5

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908) — Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 —
Temporary Injunction — Temporary Injunction granted in a suit ceases
its effect after the dismissal of the suit — Appellate Court is required
to pass an order of injunction applying the same principle — After remand
by Appellate Court, order of revival of injunction must be passed during
the pendency of the suit otherwise, on dismissal of suit, the said order

_ceases its effect. [State of M.P. Vs. Dinesh Singh] - 136

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908) — Order 39 Rule 2A — Breach
of Injunction —Suit was dismissed by order dated 6-1-1992 refusing
leave to entertain the suit for granting interim injunction under Section..
80(2) - Revisional Court passed an interim order and subsequently
disposed off revision with liberty to file regular suit with further
observation that the interim order passed by revisional court shall
. continue to remain in force till application for temporary injunction is
decided by Trial Court - Suit filed by plaintiff was dismissed by order
dated 11-2-1992 — Appellate Court allowed the appeal and remanded
the case back to decide the suit afresh by order dated 25-3-1992 —
Appellate Court did not pass any order of revival of injunction which

- was ceased on dismissal of suit — Trial Court granted temporary

injunction on 14-10-1998 whereas the wall was demolished on 10-6- .
1997 — As no injunction was on force on 10-6-1997 therefore, appellants -
no. 2 to S have not committed breach of m]unctlon. [State of ML.P. Vs.
Dinesh Singh] ..136

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 41, Rule 3-A, Limitation
Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 — Condonation of delay in filing appeal —
Application on ground that the appellants were rustic village people
and were having no knowledge of the fate of the civil suit in which they
were the defendants — It was contended in the application that the
appellant could know about the passing of the judgment and decree in
the civil suit only when the proceedings were initiated against them in
the Revenue Court — Appellate Court has not accepted such a plea of
the appellants on the ground that they were being represented by the
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10 INDEX

‘Counsel and if they have not verified the fact about the suit from their
counsel, it could not be treated to be sufficient explanation of delay —
Held — Appeal should not be dismissed merely on technical ground of
delay —In a tribal District, a lenient view was possible. [Sallkram Vs.
Keshav] - : ..157

Commercial Tax Act, M.P. 1994 (5 .of 1995), Section 69(2) —
' Penalty — Penalty was imposed by Assessing officer on the ground that
the assessee furnished incorrect return of the sales tax, evaded the
tax — Held — No finding was recorded that there was deliberate
concealment of sale or the assessees were guilty of contumacious or
dishonest conduct, or acted in conscious disregard of its obligation —
Order imposing penalty can not be sustained. [Shri Ram Traders (M/
s.) Vs. The Divisional Dy. Commissioner] (DB)...104 .

) Constitution — Article 14— Article 14 of the Constitution of India
forbids class legislation but do¢s not forbid reasonable classification -
The classification in order to be reasonable must be founded on
intelligible differentia and that differentia must have rational relation
" to the object sought to be achieved. [Sai Kripa Gramin Prathmik .
Sahakri Upbhokta Bhandar Maryadit, Nainpur Vs. State of M.P.]

. (DB) 109

Constzmnon, Article 226, Urban Land (Cedmg ami
Regulation) Act, (33 of 1976), Sections 5(1)(3), 6, 9, 1 0(1)(3)(4)|
Transfer of Land — Transfer of excess land through sale deed after
draft statement and notification is void ab initio and does not create
any right — Any such transfer shall be deemed to be null and void —
Petition dismissed. [M.P. Samdariya Vs. State of M.P.] 70

Constitution — Article 226 — Writ Petition — Alternative Remedy
— Appellant asserted that no notice under Section 13(2) of

-

_ Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement . .

of Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 was issued whereas counsel
for the respondent-Bank has stated that notice under Section 13(2) of
the Act was served by affixture and panchnama was prepared — The
question whether under Section 13(2) of the Act was served on the
appellant or not, is a disputed question of fact which can not be
adjudicated in a writ petition — All the grounds with regard to procedural
irregularity in taking the measures under Section 13(4) of the Act can
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12 INDEX

very well be agitated and adjudicated in the appeal preferred under
Section 17 of the Act — Writ petition on the ground of availability of
alternative remedy, can be dismissed — Writ appeal dismissed. [Basant
Kumar Jain Vs. State Bank of India] : (DB)...25

. Consumer Protection Act (68 of 1986), Section 2(b)(c)(d) (q) (o)

— Consumer — Respondent approached Consumer Forum for execution '

" of lease deed in respect of allotted land — Neither council is a service

provider nor plot owner is a consumer under the Act— Complaint before

_ Consumer Forum not maintainable — Petition allowed. [Nagar Palika
Parishad Vs. Rajesh Kumar Saini] ' ~ (DB)...*7

Custom — Custom is not only reqliir'e(i to be pleaded but also to
be proved by leading evidence ~ Where a caste is admittedly governed
by Hindu law but'it is asserted that there exists a special custom in

derogation of that law, the onus rests upon those who assert the custom .
to make it out. [Ramu Singh Vs. Smt. Bandi Bai) w1210

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 21 — SeiZure

‘of Smack—Smack of light yellow colour was seized whereas colour of -
powder was light grey as per F.S.L. report — Both the colours are -
‘different therefore, it is doubtful that powder which was selzed was

sent for analysis. [Raziya Vs. State of M.P.] o R | ; }

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 27—Setzure
Memo — Contraband was seized and appellant was arrested on spot

* and thereafter F.L.R. was lodged after coming back to Police Station— -

. Seizure Memo_ and Arrest memo bears the crime number — Documents
are tampered. [Raziya Vs. State of M.P.] 2173

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125,

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 — Medical Examination — Applicant
took a defence that wife is having character of Hermaphrodltlsm
(Ubhaylingata) and prayed for her karyotype medical test — Held -
Person can not be insisted contrary to her wish to examine herself for

any medical examination — Such direction would be violative of Article,

21 of Constitution — Revision dismissed. [Pushpendra Smgh Thakur

Vs. Smt. Mamta Thakur] - 2927

Criminal Proceduré Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125 —

Reasonable sum of Maintenance — If the husband like the respondent

a
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is healthy and able bodied person then, on account of less income, he

-

" can not escape from his liability to pay the reasonable sum of -

maintenance to his wife and children — Maintenance awarded by the
trial Court enhanced from Rs. 600/- per month to Rs. 1500/- per month
for wife and from Rs. 200/~ per month to 900/~ per month for child.
[Pushpa Thakur (Smt.) Vs. Bhagwandas Bhavedi] 277

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 125 &
127 — Payment of Maintenance amount — Petitioner was directed to
pay interim maintenance — Application for alteration of interim
maintenance amount on the ground of delay tactics being adopted by
wife filed by husband is pending —Held - Unless the interim order of
maintenance passed earlier is amended/altered or maintained same
~ will be enforceable — Petitioner bound to pay interim maintenance

amount — Revision is dismissed with direction to dispose of the petition

of petitioner within two months from date of order. [Ajay Sharma Vs:
Smt. Archana Sharma] - ' 272

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 154-F.LR. -

_FLR. can not be treated as a part of substantive evidence. [Chalaniya
- Dheemar Vs. State of M.P.] . ...189

4

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 — See
. _ Penal Code 1860, Section 302 [Mangu Singh Vs. State of M.P.]
. (DB)...*6

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 164 —
Statement of a witness cannot be discarded simply because their
statements were recorded by the Magistrate under Section 164.
[Ramdas Kachhi Vs. State of M.P] - (DB)...207

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 217 —
Amendment of Charges — Further Evidence - Accused persons were
being tried for offence punishable under Section 376 of I.P.C. —
Prosecutrix was examined and thereafter the charge was amended to
Section 376(2)(g) of LP.C. —Held- It was obligatory on the part of the
Trial Court to gave an opportunity to the prosecution and also to the
defence to lead such further evidence as they deem proper on the
_ amended charge — Non-grant of such opportunity to the prosecution

by the trial Court amounted to manifest error of law and procedure— . '

td'
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Matter remanded back to the Trial Court permitting the prosecution
to lead such further evidence as it may consider necessary with an

equal opportunity to the accused person to further cross examine the
witnesses. [Anita Kushwah Vs State of M.P.] (DB)...268

Criminal Procedure Code, 1 973 (2 0f 1974), Section 311 — Recall-

of Witness — Doctor who conducted postmortem was examined at earlier
stage — He was sought to be recalled in the light of subsequent evidence
which has come on record — Held — Accused should be extended the
ample opportunity to defend his case and such right should not be
curtailed on account of minor technical grounds and specially in those
cases in which capital punishment has been provided under the law -
Applicants facing trial of Section 302 of IPC in which the maximum
punishment till death is provided — Doctor directed to be recalled —
Revision allowed. [Deepak Raikwar Vs. State of ML.P.] ..285

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 378 —Power ~

of Appellate Court— Law dlscussed [Ramdas Kachhi Vs. State of M.P.]
(DB)...207

Criminal Trial - Amendment in Complaint — Complaint under
Section 138 of NI Act —To provide full and effective opportunity to the
parties, application requestmg for the amendment in the complaint
should be allowed. [Chandra Pal Singh Vs. Ashok Leyland Ltd.]

...302

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 — Related witness — Mere
relationship does not disqualify a witness — Such evidence is required
to be carefully scrutinized and appreciated. [Rakesh Vs. State of MLP.]

(8C)...1
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 — See — Penal Code, 1860,
Section 302 [Rakesh Vs. State of M.P.] (SC)...1

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 — Witness — Minor
discrepancies — Minor discrepancies between narrations of witnesses
when they speak on details, should not be used to discard the evidence
in its entirety, unless such discrepancies are of material dimensions.

[Rakesh Vs. State of M.P.] (8C)...1

Evidence Act (1 of 1872) Section 3 — Witness — Relative — No
impediment to convict a'person on sole testimony of single witness

FaY
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provided he is wholly reliable — Relationship is not a factor to affect

the credibility of a witness — Foundation has to be laid if plea of false
implication is made. [Ramdas Kachhi Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...207

Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 6 — See — Penal Code, 1860,
Section 302 [Barjiya Vs. State of MLP.] (DB)...182

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 27 — Seizure of Weapon —
When there is a direct evidence, non- seizure of weapon is of no
consequence. [Barjiya Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...182

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 — Multiple Dying
Declarations — In case of multiple dying declarations, Court has to
serutinize all the dying declarations — Court must find out whether the
different dying declarations are consistent with each other in material
particulars before aceepting and relying upon the same. [Santosh Rai
Vs. State of MLP.] ~ (DB)...*8

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 — See — Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973, Section 125 [Pushpendra Singh Vs. Smt. Mamta Thakur]
. 292

Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 65 — Secondary Evidence —
Photocopy of a will is neither a primary evidence nor secondary
evidence — Further more, the plaintiff is required to examine the person
who took out the photocopy of the original — As only photocopy of the
will was filed therefore, it is not proved. [Ratanlal Vs, Kishanlal]

...131

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 90 — 30 years old document —
Presumption envisaged under Section 90 is applicable to the document
and not for its photocopy. [Ratanlal Vs, Kishanlal] R &) |

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 90 — Presumption — Period of
30 years has to be calculated from the date on which the document is

- tendered in evidence and not from the date of filing of the suit. [Ramu
Singh Vs. Smt. Bandi Bai] ..121

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 90 — Presumption — Rebuttable
— Presumption under Section 90 is rebuttable — Once, the execution of
- the gift deed was denied by the defendants, then it was obligatory on the
part of the plaintiff to prove the gift deed in accordance with the provisions
of 68/69 of the Act. [Ramu Singh Vs. Smi. Bandi Bai] ..121
. . . : _
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Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 1134 — Presumption under —
There should 2 link and nexus between the act of cruelty and suicide —
Law does rot give any presumption for continuity of crueity — It requires
definite and convincing evidence to prove the cruelty. [Ramraj Singh
Vs. State of M.P.] : «.193

Excise Act, M.P. (2 of 1915), Section 34(2} — Possession of illicit
liguor — Prosecution has to prove that accused was in possession of
illegal liquor exceeding 50 bulk litres — Seized liquor was not measured
either on the spot or during investigation ~ Container in which illicit
- liguor was kept were not produced before Court — Prosecution failed
to prove that liquor which was seized was exceeding prohibited limit —
Revision allowed. [Mukesh Vs. State of M.P.] e 264

Grant-in-Aid Rules, M.P. for Non-Governmental Institutions
(Technical})- Aided institutions are bound to follow the orders and rules
made by the State Govt. — Employees of aided institutions are entitled
to receive similar benefits which are applicable to the employees of
Govt. Institutions. [X.P. Singh (Prof.) Vs. State of ML.P.] ...04

Income Tax Act (43 of 1961), Section 12AA — Procedure for
" Registration of Charitable Trust — While deciding the application for
registration, the authority has te examine whetlier the application has been
made in accordance with the provnslons of Section 12A, Rule 17-A and
“form No. 10A — Commissioner is not required to examine whether the -
income derived by the trust is being spent for charitable purposes or the
trust is earning profit— Activities of the trust must be genuine which should
be in consonance with object of the trust — Commissioner is not required
to examine the application of income — He has to examine whether the
object of the trust are charitable or not. [Commissioner of Income Tax Vs.
M/s. D.P.R. Charitabie Trust, Satna] (DB)...296

Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 1947), Section 33A —~ Scope —
Petitioner, initially appointed as a Clerk (workman) was promoted to
Junior Manager in 2002 — In 2005, he was charge sheeted and
ultimately punished with punishment by compulsory retirement — Held
—The petitioner was not a workman, thus, the Tribunal (C.G.I.T.) was
not justified in entertaining the application under Section 33A at the
- instance of the employee who was not a workman. [S.K. Gaur Vs. Dena
Bank, Bhopal] : . (DB)...39
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Interpretation of Statute — Land Acquisition Act, 1894 is an
expropriatory legislation — —Provisions of the Statute should be strictly
construed as it deprives a person of his land without consent. [Bltan
Devi (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] - . *2

Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Sections 4, 5-A — Acquisition
of Land — Procedure prescribed is mandatory in nature — If property
belongs to economically disadvantaged segment of Society or people
suffering from other handicaps, then the Court is not only entitled but
is duty bound to scrutinize the action/decision of the State with greater
vigilance, care and circumspection keeping in view the fact that the
land owner is likely to become landless and deprived of the only source
of hls livelihood and/or shelter. [Bltan Devi (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.]

. 1- s ¥2

- ‘Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1 894), Section 5-A — Acquisition of
Land — Hearing of Objection — Hearing of objection is not an empty
formality.— Competent Authority has to assign reasons such as the
unsuitability of the alternative land for the said public purpose, the
grave hardship that may be caused to owner by such expropriation,
etc. — Order overruling objection should be pregnant with reasons —
Reasons are heartbeat of conclusion and in_absence of reasons, the
‘decision can not stand. [Bitan Devi (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.]  ...*2

Limitation Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 — See — Civil Procedure

" Code, 1998, Order 41, Rule 3-A [Salikram Vs. Keshav] ..157 |

Limitation Act (36 of 1963) — Article 65 — Suit for possession —
When may be found beyond limitation — Plaintiff failed to prove that
suit land was mortgaged by her with the defendant and the finding of
trial Court was not challenged by her in First Appellate Court— Plaintiff
could not point out from which date the suit land was taken in possession

"by defendant — Defendant claimed that he is in possession of the suit

land right from 1961-62 on basis of unregistered sale deed (Ex. D/4) -
Held —Finding of First Appellate Court that suit was barred by limitation
and that no decree of possession could be granted, do not find any
error — Appeal dlsmlssed. [Lilawati {(Deceased) Through LRs Vs.
Vishram] 151
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Maxim — Falsus in uno falsus in omnibus — False in one thing,
false in everything has no application in India. [Santosh Rai Vs. State
of M.P.] (DB)...*8

Maxim — Falsus in uno, falsus in omnibus — Neither a sound
rule of law nor a rule of practice. [Ramdas Kachhl Vs. State of M.P.]
(DB)...207

Municipal Corporatmn Act, M.P. (23 of 1956), Sectmn 441 —
Election Petition — Nirvachan Niyam, Rule 94 — Nanie of appellant
was deleted from the voter list - Appellant contested the election of
Mayor of Municipal Corporation and was elected under the interim
order of High Court — Election Petition also filed against her also on
the ground of deletion of her name from voter list — Election Petition
pending before Tribunal involves the question of correction and deletion
of her name in the voter list — The Election Tribunal has to record
findings and such findings would supersede the orders passed by |
Registration Officer — Any order passed in W.A. would adversely effect
the proceedings pending before the Election Tribunal — Writ Appeal

- disposed off with direction that matter be finally adjudicated by Election
Tribunal and till that date the order of Registration Officer deleting
the name of the Petiticner shall not be given effect and shall be subject
to the final decision by the Election Tribunal. [Nirmnala Pathak (Smt.) .
Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...10

Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act (61 of 1985),
Section 50 — Search and Seizure — Appellant took out a packet from
her kurti and was in her hand when it was seized — Compliance of Section
50 was mandatory — A separate notice should have been given apprising
her constitutional rights to be searched before Magistrate or Gazetted
Officer or by police. [Raziya Vs. State of ML.P.] ..173

Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act (61 of 1985),
Section 55 — Custody of seized articles — No paging on malkhana register
—No time of deposit of sealed packet in malkhana register —No mention
that impression seal was deposited with articles — No mention that
impression seal was sent along with articles to F.S.L. — Provisions of
Section 55 not complied. [Raziya Vs. State of M.P.] ...173

Penal Code (45 of 1860)— Section 34 — Common Intention —
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Nothing on record that acquitted accused persons had prior knowledge
that ‘A’ was having knife in his pant — Moreover, singie blow was
inflicted by ‘A’ — Difficult to hold that his companions were sharing a
common intention to kill deceased. [Santosh Rai Vs. State of M.P.]
(DB)...*8

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 — Murder — Postmortem report
states that time of death was 136 hours from the date of postmortem —
Postmortem was done after 60 hours of incident — There is delay of 24
hours in lodging the F.LR. — Delay of seven days in sending copy of
F.L.R. to Magistrate — Head was chopped from body by causing single
blow — Weapon used must have been heavy and such injury coulq not
have been caused by.sword which was seized — Sword was also not
produced before Court - Recovery of head and body also net reliable
— Appeilants not gmlty Appeal aliowed. [Mangu SinghVs. State of
M.P.] (DB)...*

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act (1 of 1872),
Section 3 — Related eye witness — Deceased and eye witness ‘A’ were
on same road — There was no obstruction in between them — As accused
were well known to ‘A’ therefore discrepancy with regard to distance
becomes irrelevant — ‘A’ immediately lodged F.I.LR. mentioning the
names and overt acts of accused persons which gives assurance
regarding truth of its version — Witness trustworthy — Appeal dismissed.
[Rakesh Vs. State of M.P.] ’ (SO)...1

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 362, Evidence Act (I of 1872),

" Section 6 — Relevancy of Facts — Hearsay Evidence —Section 6 is exception
to gencral rule where hearsay evidence becomes admissible — It should

be contemporaneous with act and there should not be an interval which
allow fabrication. [Barjiya Vs. State of ML.P.] (DB)...182

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Deceased
was sitting in his ration shop — Appellant came armed with a knife and
dealt blow on his abdomen, back, hand 2nd leg - Four injuries found on
body by sharp edged weapon — Held — From dying deciarations and the
medical evidence establish that deceased repeatediy caused injuries
to deceased by knife —Injuries caused on the lumbar regiom and on the
abdomen were deep up to abdominal cavity — Intention of appellant to
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cause death of deceased established — Appeal dismissed. [Sushil Kumar
Vs. State of MLP.] (DB)...230

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Ocular
Evidence and Medical Evidence — Ocular evidence would have
preference over medical evidence unless it is established that ocular

evidence is totally irreconcilable with medical evidence. [Rakesh Vs.
State of M.P.] . (80)...1

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/304 Part-I — Murder or
Culpable homicide not amounting to murder — Deceased went to 2
shop to eat eggs where appeilant was present — Altercation ensued
between them — While deceased was going back appellants caused _
injuries by means of Gupti and Ballam — Held —Incident eruptéd from
a sudden altercation or quarrel — Cause of such aitercation also not
disclosed by witnesses — Incident of assault-took place just in
continuation of quarrel and not after a long time — Case fall within the
ambit of exception 4 of Section 300 of IPC, but since appellant wielded
deadly weapon and caused injuries which cut the lung and heart of the
deceased, was sufficient in ordinary course of nature to cause his death
— Liable to punished under Section 304-I of the IPC — Appeal partly
allowed. [Bharat Singh Vs. State of ML.F;] . (DB)...237

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 304 Part IT — Appe¢liant caused
single krife injury in abdomen of deceased near umbilicus — None of
Doctors opined that injury was sufficient in the ordinary ¢ourse of
nature to cause death — Death eccurred nearly 19 days after the incident
and was a result of cardio-respiratory failure due to abdominal injury
— Medical evidence was silent as to depth of injury — Appellant was
rightly held guilty of offence of culpable homicide not amounting to
murder. [Santosh Rai Vs. State of ML.P.] (DB)...*8

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 306 — Abetment of Suicide —
Report of Chemical Examiner indicating that on examination at the
F.S.L., no chemical poision was detected in the viscera of the deceased
- Commission ¢f the suicide was net established with reasonable
certainty — Conviction under Section 306 of the TPC could not be
recorded — Conviction set aside. [Radhelal Vs. State of MLP.] ...220

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 306 — Abetment to commit
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suicide — Applicant and co-accused used to demand money from
deceased Sarpanch by making criminal intimation and complaints —
Secretary of Gram Panchayat also withdrew some money by playing
. frand with deceased — Held — Prima facie offence punishable under
Section 306 IPC made out — Charge rightly framed. [Raghuraj Singh
Vs. State of M.P.] ...287

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 363 & 366-A — Kidnapping —
Prosecutrix aged about 16 years and 6 months — Where the minor
Ieaves her father’s protection knowing and having capacity to know
what she is doing voluntarily joins the accused person, no offence under
Section 366-A is made out — As prosecutrix was consenting party
therefore, no offence under Section 363 is made out. [Indal Singh Vs.
 State of M.P.] . ...246

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 — Rape — Appellant alleged
to have taken away the prosecutrix on the false pretext of illness of

her mother and committed rape — Held — Prosecutrix travelled with’

appellant to various places and stayed at Bhopal for 10 days without
making any sort of complaint — Prosecutrix had written letters to
appellant to take her away from her parents or else she would end her
life — Prosecutrix was consenting party — No offence made out. [Indal
Singh Vs, State of M.P.] o ..246

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 — Rape — Consent under
promise te marry —It is not clear whether offer of Nikah was made by
the appellant first and then committed intercourse or intercourse
commitied by first and then as a consolation offer of Nikah was made
—It is difficult to understand that intercourse has been committed under
promise of the Nikah. [Shafat Vs. State of MLP\] 201

. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 — Rape — Proof — Previous
seven statements of prosecutrix, at different point of time make the
story of prosecution less reliable — Statement of the prosecutrix does
not inspire the confidence and she is not a witness worthy of credence

— No conviction can be based on her such testimony — Conviction set
aside. [Shafat Vs, State of M.P.] ...201

: Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 500 — Defamation —
Respondent filed complaint against applicant before State Bar Council

W
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alleging profeséional misconduct which was dismissed — Applicant filed
complaint alleging that respondent has criticized the applicant thereby
adversely affecting his practice — Trial Court took cognizance on the
ground that respondent had stated that “he will get his black coat off” —
Such allegation did not find place in complaint but was stated in evidence
—Revisional Court rightly dismissed the complaint on the ground that
aliegation of taking off the black coat was not alleged in complaint —

Application dismissed. [Suresh ChandraVs. N.C. Jain] ..282 ¥
Police Regulations, M.F., Regulation 70-A — Out of Turn

Promotion — Such promotion is not a matter of legal right —1t is within s

the discretion of the competent authority to grant or not to grant out of

turn premotion. [Suresh Pal Singh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...30

Prevention of Corruption Act (49 of 1988), Sections 7, 13(1-d),
" 13{2) — Illegal gratification — Appellant as Head Constable demanded -
bribe for release of seized tractor — Currency notes given in bribe were
not treated with Phenolphthalein powder — Appellant alleged to have
taken out money from the back pocket of pant — Pant which was seized
and produced before Court did not have back pocket — Giving and
recovery of money not reliable —Evidence shows that spot map was
" prepared on the spot and FIR was lodged after returning to Police
Station, hewever both the documents bear same time — Evidence also
disclosed that documents were tampered by 1.0. — Appellant acquitted
—~ Appeal allowed. [Shivram Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...166

Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.F. 2009 — Clause
(4) of the Annexure—II — It has a reasonable nexus with the object
sought to be achieved i.e. timely distribution of essential commodities K}
to the card holders — Clause (4) can mot be said to be either arbitrary
or discriminatory — It appears to have been enacted in the interest of
public in general. [Sai Kripa Gramin Prathmik Sahakri Upbhokta *
Bhandar Maryadit, Nainpur Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...109

Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.P. 2009 — Clause
 5(3) and clause 2(j) — Considering the nature of work to be performed
by the lead society — Clause 5(3) provides that in rural area, marketing
societies or primary agricultural cooperative societies shall be
appointed as lead societies — The censtitution and functioning of
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- Primary Agricultural Creédit Facilities Societies is different from other
societies — Therefore, challenge to clause 5(3) must fail. [Sai Kripa
Gramin Prathmik Sahakri Upbhokta Bhandar Maryadit, Nainpur Vs.
State of M.P.] ' - i (DB)...109

" Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.P. 2009 — Clause

6 of Annexure-II —- Whether arbitrary or discriminatory — Classification -

of the cooperative societies for the purpose of running fair price shops
in rural areas is based on intelligible differentia and has a reasonable
nexus with the object i.e. availability of essential commodities at
-controlled prices to public in general — Thas, the provisions of clause
(6) can neither be said to be arbitrary nor discriminatory. [Sai Kripa
Gramin Prathmik Sahakri Upbhokta Bhandar Maryadit, Nainpur Vs,
State of M.P.] . _ (DB)...109

Registered sale deed - Presumption as to —Registered sale deed
has béen executed by defendant No. 2 in favour of defendant No. 1,

which is prima-facie valid and, therefore, a presumption arises with -

regard to its génuinenesp — Even assuming that. the sale deed was
executed without payment of any consideration and the defendant No.
~ 2 was not in a fit physical and mental condition at the time of execution
;of the sale deed, the same would be binding on deféndant No. 2 and
would be voidable document — Since defendant No. 2 has not challenged
~ ‘the same, it would bind her and it would be invalid only to the extent of
the share of the plaintiff. [Shakuntala Tiwari (Smt.) Vs, "Mohammad
Ramjan] ’ w160
Registration Act (16 of 1908), Section 49 — Non-Registration —
Effect — A document which is compulsorily registerable, if not
registered, could be used for proving collateral purposes — Nature of
possession can be looked upin_l and for the purpose of admission of
plaintiff that entire money was paid by appellant can be taken into
consideration to prove his admission. [Shanta Bai Vs. Pushkar Lal]
: e *9

_Registration Act (16 of 1908), Section 49 — Unregistered sale
deed - Unregistered document not relied for settlement of a claim, of
the defendant/respondent by the lower appellate Court—There was no
question of making application of the bar of Section 49, [Lilawati
(Deceased) Through LRs Vs. Vishram] . ...151
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Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(1)(xi) — Assault to a woman —
Where the accused being a stranger knows and has reason to believe
that the victim of the offence is a member of such a caste or tribe, the
offence would squarely fall under Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act and it would
not be necessary to establish further that the offence was committed
on the ground that she belongs to such a Caste or Tribe. [Baja alias
Bajasingh Vs. State of M.P.] ...224

Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(i)(xi) — Proof of Caste — Neither
complainant nor any other witness deposed in the Court that
complainant belonged to Scheduled Caste ~ No Certificate of any
competent authority to that effect was produced or proved before the
Court — Merely from the fact that in F.LR., the name of complainant
has been mentioned with her caste, it can not be held that she belonged
to Scheduled Caste in the absence of legal evidence in Court.
[Chalaniya Dheemar Vs. State of M.P.] ...189

Scheduled Tribes and Other Traditional Forest Dwellers
(Recognition of Forest Rights) Act, 2006 (2-0f 2007), Sections 2(c), 6 -
Forest Dwelling Scheduled Tribes — Circulars — Govt. is required to
act as per the object and spirit of the provisions of Act, 2006 — Circulars
issued do not disclose the mannér and procedure for determination of
rights of forest dwelling Scheduled Tribes and other traditional forest
dwellers — Application of circulars must be refrained unless and until a
person falls within the definition of forest dwelling Scheduled Tribes,
other traditional forest dwellers or critical wildlife habitat after following
procedure as specified under Section 6. [Madhu Vs. State of M.P.]

wo*5

Scheduled Tribes and Other Traditional Forest Dwellers
(Recognition of Forest Rights) Act, 2006 (2 of 2007), Section 2(0),
Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 — Other
traditional forest dweller ~ To show that a person belongs to forest
dwelling Scheduled Tribe, it is not enough that he should belong to
Scheduled Tribe Community — Three generations not less than 25 years
. of period, who were pastoral living in non-urban area likely to be
. portraying or expressive of the life of shepherds or country people
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38 INDEX

especially in an idealized and conventionalized manner living or in
nomadic having no fixed resident and wandering here and there, may
fall within purview of Forest dwelling scheduled fribes — Plaintiffs not
entitled for temporary injunction as pleadings do not ¢ontain the
mecessary contents as required under the Act. [Madhu Vs. State of
M.P] . , . *5

Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act (54 of 2002), Section 13(8), —
Phrase — Before the date fixed for sale or transfer — The words have
definite meaning and connotation — Intention of legislature while using

‘the said language is regarding date fixed for sale and not the actual

- sale'or transfer — Once a sale certificate is issued to the purchaser,

. sale becomes absolute — Sale certificate is the evidence of title — Bank

" can not accept the amount from the borrower after the sale is confirmed
nor can return auction amount to.the auction purchaser - Section 60 of
Transfer of Property Act has no application. [Gaurav Enterprises (M/s.)
Vs. State Bank of India] w49

Service Law — Bias of Enquiry Officer — Bias has to be
specifi cally Pleaded and proved — Mere allegation of involvement of
1.0. in some other criminal case does not show any bias — Procedural
irregularity in departmental enquiry does not always lead to
presumption of bias. [Vikram Sharma Vs. State Bank of Indore]

: : s *10

: Service Law — Compulsory Retirement — Only for three annual

confidential reports of the year 1976, 1977 and 1983 as also a

punishment awarded in a departmental enquiry, the petitioner was said

to be found fit for compulsory retirement in the year 1998 — Recent

record of the service of the petitioner was not examined — Held — Order
(of compulsory retlrement) quashed. [G.R. Dhupar Vs. State of M.P.}
o2

Service Law — Cnmmal Case — Stay of Departmental Enquiry -

Departmental Enquiry based on same charge — Merély because both
the proceedings are founded upon same facts departmental enquiry is’

not required to be kept in abeyance unless charges are complex in
nature invelving complicated questions of facts and law. [Vlkram
Sharma Vs. State Bank of Indore] : - ..*10
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) Service Law — Departmental Enquiry — No Evidence — Petitioner
who was working as A.D.J. was terminated from service on the ground
that he had hatched conspiracy with ‘A’ to cause injuries to another
A.D.J. so that bail application of father of ‘A’ will come to his board —
Complainant did not disclose the source of such information — During
departmental enquiry, complainant disclosed that he was informed by
‘B’ who in his turn was informed by two students about conspiracy —
Neither ‘B’ nor studerits examined — ‘C’ and ‘D’ who had given
affidavits in support of complainant also did not support in departmental
enquiry and alleged that affidavits were obtained by getting their

signatures on blank paper — Complainant did not disclose the source
of his information for near about 4 years — Reliance of inquiry officer .

_ on the affidavits of ‘C’ and ‘D’ not proper — Findings given by énquiry
officer are perverse — Order of termination quashed — As Petitioner
- has already attained the age of superannuation, he should be treated-
to be is service till the attainment of age of superannuation and will be
entitled for all benefits of service — Petition allowed. [G.S. Thakur Vs. -
State of MLP.] : (DB)...74

Service Law — Departmental Enquiry — Non-supply- of

documents — Non supply of documents will not vitiate the enquiry unless .

~ and until the relevance and thereafter the prejudice which is caused is
proved. [Vikram Sharma Vs. State Bank of Indore] «:*10

Service Law — Departmental Enquiry — Status of Enquiry Officer
—Preliminary Enquiry was conducted by an officer who is superior than
main Enquiry Officer - This will not vitiate the enquiry unless it is shown -
that main enquiry report is either influenced by preliminary enquiry report
or is based on mechanical reliance on the preliminary enquiry report.
[Vikram Sharma Vs, State Bank of Indore] e *10

Service Law — Examination-in-chief of witnesses without any
cross examination — One witness should be examined and then put to
cross examination and then only others will enter the witness box —
- Enquiry stands vitiated on this ground. [Vikram Sharma Vs. State Bank
of Indore] . *10

. Service Law — Examination of handwriting — Not necessary
and in absence of any enabling provisions, enquiry is not vitiated. .
[Vikram Sharma Vs. State Bank of Indore] ) e *10
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42 INDEX

Service Law — Punishment and Appellate Orders — Non-
speaking — Against 1.0.’s report a detailed representation and appeal
were preferred — Both were decided by non-speaking order — Orders
quashed because of non-application of mind. [Vikram Sharma Vs, State
Bank of Indore] - .. %10

Service Law.— Reason and sufficient opportunity of defence — |

Enquiry officer did not give opportunity to defence to lead evidence
_ despite cooperation of defence. [Vikram Sharma Vs, State Bank of
Indore] ...*10

Service Law — Transfer — Administrative Exigency or
Punishment — Petitioner posted as Deputy Director of Prosecution —

. During his tenure of 15 nionths he has not conducted any trial and has
filed only 9.returns and one caveat application before High Court -
Show cause notice issued to respondent No.3 is still under: consideration
—If the cases were not ailotted to!respondent No.3 then he should
have brought this fact to the knowledge of Director of Prosecution -
Work performed by respondent No.3 cannot be said to be an efficient

~ work by Deputy Director — Transfer is not only an incident of service
but a condition of service as well and is necessary in public interest

and efficiency in public administration — Transfer order unless shown:

‘to be malafide or in violation of statutory provisions, not open to
" interference by Court—Whether transfer was in public interest requires
adjudication on the basis of facts of each case — Order guashing the
transfer of respondent No.3 set aside — Writ appeal allowed. [Arun
Kumar Gupta Vs. State of ML.P.] (DB)...*1

_ Service Law — Termination — Petitioner working as a librarian
in the establishment of the respondent-school on probation for a period
of one year extendable by two years — Petitioner’s performance during
the period of probation was not found to be satisfactory and in spite of
issuing letters of counselling he did not show any improvement — A
charge sheet was issued to the petitioner, the authorities on their own
accord did not proceed any further in the enquiry —Respondent issued
the order of termination in view of terms of appointment letter — Held
—No fault can be found in the action of authorities — Impugned order
of discontinuance amounts to termination simplicitor and is neither
punitive nor does it cast any stigma upon the petitioner. [Nitesh Singh
Pawar Vs. Sainik Schools Society] ...94
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Settlement before Court — Settlement is binding between the
parties. inter se — Settlement arrived at between the bank and the
borrower will not bind the auction purchaser — Auction purchaseris
free to assail the action of the bank in a separate proceedings. [Gaurav
Enterprises (M/s.) Vs. State Bank of India] .49

- .Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 41 — Injunction — No
injunction can be granted against any coparcener — Each coparcener.
is having equal right in the property. [Gajendra Rao Vs. Murti Shri
Ganpati Ji Maharaj] ] . *4

Sthaniya Kshetra Me Mal Ke Pravesh Par Kar Adhiniyam, M.P
(52 of 1976),Section 69 — Imposition of Penalty — Petitioner declared
entire purchases and claimed exemption — Exemption was refused and
penalty was imposed — Held — Revisional Authority is required to record
the grounds of its satisfaction that the petitioner had concealed thé
aggregate amount of purchase price or furnished false particulars
thereof in the return — There was no concealment of purchases or
fumlshmg of false particulars by petitioner — Taking a legal plea that
goods are not taxable would not make the return a false return —
Penalty cannot be imposed by condemning the return as a false return
_.[Anklt Lime & Minerals (M/s.) Vs. Asstt Commercial Tax Officer]

"oy i (DB)...37

Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Sections 3, 123 —
Registration of will - For a valid gift of inmovable property, transfer
.must be affected by a registered instrument signed by or on behalf of
donor and attested by at-least two witnesses. [Ramu Singh Vs. Smt.
' Bandi Bai] ..121

Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 54— Sale — Plea of
want of consideration —Recital contained in the registered sale deed
dated 02.03.1987 shows the receipt of consideration as well as delivery

44

of possession — The sale deed shows that the sale is complete — Merely -

‘because the sale price is not paid, the sale deed can not be held to be
invalid — At the most, if the seller who has sold the property and has.
not received the sale consideration, may sue for recovery of the sale
consnderatlon [Shakuntala Tiwari (Smt.) Vs. Mohammad Ramjan]
...160

L

o

]



. INDEX . 45

Wa»‘mmsﬁar mmwﬁwmwﬁrﬁwwﬂ_
# - % 3k surwal @ = o1 wagtar, o Fa. w® FoTER T2
g~ Wﬁm#maﬁﬂa@mqwﬂaﬁﬂﬁﬁamﬁ
fodt w21 (e ey () A1 Re ¥9 Ale ghear)  ...49

-t

Riaffee sgaly s (1963 BT 47), arT 41 — a@or — o<t
#I Wil & faeqg ¥ @Ry ym 9 fear W wewr — s
weaItys wAafta ¥ W after @ &) (s e fa qﬁfaﬁmtrﬁr
off 7TErRI) . *4

: YT d7 4 mea @ udw qv v Ay, 5. (1976 BT 52),
T 69 — T BT FfErRITT — et F Wyl w7 wifve frar o BE @t
Trar fear — Beaﬁﬁmwaﬁns’masmm%mw—arhﬁafﬂa
- = e siETd Bt aw wmE B amet ot -aRifiRed e
It @ 5 arh 3 Ha b B Gofya @w o T fear sear Red
o wue) ey fafifear & — ar=h grr wa w1 B fowra 5@ fear Tar
wﬁwﬁmﬁam%ﬁaﬂ# - faftrs. o9 Jd gy 5 a o g A,
Redf wt frear Red a8 s — Red ot frear Red @ ww o
ﬂmwhaamaammmﬁmmml(mﬁmmm
'ﬁrﬁw @) ﬁ e Faftfaa A afo) (DB)...37

-

wwﬁrmaﬁ;ﬁwv(msz a>74) gNTY 3, 123—a?ﬂwab'r
e — Iad Wha P g T@ B Ay FARor WY ERT Fear
mmﬁmﬂﬂammﬁmﬁmmﬁum
maﬁl@amumﬁﬁvmmﬂmlmmzﬁ mqm)
121

: wwﬁrmaﬁﬁw(mazafw) T 54 — 39 — wfersa @
a:maasraﬁw Wawisa fawg o= . ozoa1937#amﬁtzm
nﬁwaﬂmﬁwammuﬁmtﬁmé - fosmg w= <wrfan
2 5 o gof @ — W= safi M Rwy Gw o=t o fear T Rwg
T FAG T B aRen T8 B oW ged — SgEr @ wyrar, afy Rsar
Mﬁmwﬁwuﬁma‘aﬂvﬁmuﬁmumaﬂﬁm?ﬁ
ﬁmuﬁmaﬁm@ﬂmﬁmmmélmﬁsﬂmmeﬁﬂﬁ)
fa. @tewm W) - 160



46 INDEX .

Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 123 — Gift - Receiver
should also prove that donor was the absolute owner of the property =Doner
died prior to coming into force of Act, 1956, therefore she was having limited
intérest in the suit property and was xiot competent to give the suit property

to plaintiffs in gift even though registered gift deed has been executed by

her in their favour. [Ramu Singh Vs. Smt. Bandi Bai]  weel21

) Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, (33 -of 1976); Sections
5(D(3), 6, 9, 10(1)(3)(4) — See— Constitution, Article 226 [M.P. Samdariya
Vs. State of M.P.] . v 70

Wakf Act (43 of 1995), Section 3()) — Mmfawalb After the death of
Mutawalli, petitioner was discharging the fimctions of Mitawalli and was
-managing the affairs and property of Maszid for the last 13 years — Also
paying annual contribution to the Board — Petitioner can be freated as
Mutawalli. [HalebdulAz:z Ansari Vs, M.P. Wakf Board, Bliopal]  ...252

Wakf Act (43 of 1 995), Section 64 — Removal of Mutawalli —
.Opportunity of Hearing — Inquiry under Section 64 of the Act ought to
have béen conduéted — Petitioner can be said to be aggrieved person.
[Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari Vs. MLP. Wakf Board, Bhopal] . - 252

Wakf Act (43 of 1995), Sections 64 & 67 — Appointment of
Committee — Committee can be appointed for the Supervision or
management of Board — Power can be exercised for suppression of
Committee — As removal of petitioner as Mutawalli was in violation of

Section 64(5), therefore appointment of Committee also not in accordance
with law. [Haji 'Abdul Aziz Ansari Vs, MLP. Wakaoard Bhopal] «ee252

WORDS AND PHRASES b

—Legal Malice — State is under obligation to act falrly without ill
will or malice, in fact or in law — It means something done without lawful
excuse— It is an act done wrongfully and willfully without reasonable or
probable cause, and not necessarily an act done from ill feeling and spite
~It is a deliberate act in disregard to the rights of others. [Arun Kumar
Gupta Vs. State of MLP.] L (DB)...*1 .

Ly
— Res Gestae — Eye-witness informed ‘B’ about the incident —
Information conveyed by eye-witness to ‘B’ is admnssxble as part of res-
gestae. [Ramdas Kachhi Vs. State of M.P.] S (DB)...207
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Farewell

Justice L.S. Shrivastava -

Born on December 16, 1949 at Bhind, in the family of
renowned Advocates. After completing B.Sc. in the year 1971 and
LL.B. in the year 1974 from Maharaja Jiwaji Rao Scindia College
Bhind, practiced as an Advocate for three and half years. On
August 14, 1978 joined Judicial Service as Civil Judge Class II.
Promoted as Additional District Judge in the year 1991. Appointed
as Registrar, M.P. State Administrative Tribunal (SAT), Jabalpur
from April 1997 to September 2004. Was appointed as District
and Sessions Judge in the year 2004. Prior to elevation, was
working as District Judge (Inspection and Vigilance) Gwalior
Zone.

Elevated as Judge of the Madhya Pradesh High Court on
August 25, 2009 and demitted Office on 15-12-2011.

We wish His Lordship a healthy, happy and prosperous lize.



Hon'ble Shri Justice A.K. Shrivhstava, bids farewell to
the demitting Judge :- Ce e

Ifeel honour to preside over this fareﬁel‘lw ovation being given to Hon'ble
.Shri Justice I.S. Shrivastava who is demitting the office today after rendering
his valuable services to this temple of justice. _

My Lord was born on 16th December, 1949 at Bhind in the family of
" renowned Advocates. His grand father Late Munshi Hubblalji who was being
denoted and whose Takhallus was "Raad" was a very renowned Advocate.
His revered father late Shri Harishchandra Shrivastava was a very famous
. Government Pleader and popular Advocate of District Bar Association Bhind
and similarly his uncle Late Shri Krishna Chand_u was the stalwart of Bhind
Bar Association.

After completing his B.Sc. in the year 1971 and LL.B. in the year
1974 from Maharaja Jiwaji Rao Scindia College Bhind, His Lordship practiced
for near about 3% years at Bhind. On 14% August, 1978 he joined judicial
services as Civil Judge Class - Il and on account of his hard work, he was
promoted to the post of C.J. M., Additional District and Sessions Judge in
the year 1991 and ultlmately District Judge in September, 2004. My Lord
was also sent on deputation on the post of Registrar, M.P. Administrative
Tribunal Principal Seat at Jabalpur from April, 1997 to September, 2004.
Soon before his elevation My Lord was serving on the post of District Judge
(Inspection and Vigilance) Gwalior Zone at Gwalior.

Looking to his hard work and approach to the law in deciding the
cases of different fields His Lordship was chosen by the- then Chief Justice
Hon’ble Mr. Justice A.K. Patnaik and Collegium members and his name was
recommended for elevation and ultimately My Lord adorned the seat of the-
Judge of the High Court on 25% August, 2009 when he took oath on that day.

His Lordship during his entire judicial career was being identified as
top honest Judge who was fully devoted to the judicial work and was faithful
16 the Institution. Even in difficult situations, My Lord always remained stabled
and was discharging his judicial duties like a Yogi Purush as stated by Lord
Skrikrishna in Shrimad Bhagavad Gita.

.
.
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In Upnishad also it is said that; "Those who see all creatures within -
themselves and themselves in all creatures know no fear. Those who see all
creatures in themselves and themselves in all creatures know no grief. How
can the multiplicity of life delude the one who sees its unity." . *

This quality of My Lord I have witnessed on sevéral occasions and is
well known to all. Once, the-then Chief Justice My Lord Justice A.K. Patnaik
while addressing District Judges and Additional District Judges in JOTRI, at
that time My Lord was District Judge (Vigilance) Gwalior. By quoting His
Lordship's name the then Chief Justice addressed the audience that an honest
and devoted Judge sometimes becomes an eyesore to others, but, the Judge
_should not get disturbed and should not deviate-from his judicial work and
“'without caring those unwanted comments, should discharge his judicial
functions like My Lord Justice I.S. Shrivastava discharged. This certificafe
- was opénly given to My Lord and, therefore, I say that My Lord is a Yogi
Purursh,

In Bhagavad Gita Ar_]un asked Lord Shri Krishna that what aré the
characteristics of one who is accomplished in meditation and steady in
intelligence ? How does such a steady person speak ? How does he sit ?
How does he move ?

Iqucic: )
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: ILord Shri Krishné inter alia answered
I quote :

o Srearer g ReruseEr | y
- Friends, the secret of His Lordship in achieving target is that he has

renounced all desires born of the mind, is satisfied in the Self and by the Self,
is said to be one whose insight is steady.

. Friendsi according to Rigveda a dedicated man offers love and respect
to the cosmic divinities; but remembers, offering love alone is not enough;

constant hard work and diligence are essential for success; then alone the
Lord Supreme showers His blessings upon them. _

Indeed, all these qualities are inherent in My Lord Justice Shrlvastava.

After His Lordship took oath as Judge of this Court when I congratulated My

Lord, in reply His Lordship said a couplet of his Late grand-father Munshi
Hubl?lalji from his Diwan :-

¥ W AN B TS T F 37 A |
PR 9N 5 F PR AT W= |

A Lawyer is always known and remembered by his able arguments
and by citing correct law to the Court. Similarly, a Judge is remembered by
his judgment which he decides analyzing the law in order to separate the
grains from the chaff. My Lord has delivered several land mark judgements
reported in the Law Journals which will always be remembered and they will
certainly guide the Bar and the Bench and to the légal fraternity at large.

At thé last, I should say that My Lord spent his entire judicial career
as Sant Kabirdasji said in a couplet.

FERT @er o ¥ 9 g €|
T HIg A PRI 9 Pig 9 N |

I myself and on behalf of Hon'ble The Acting Chief Justice as well as
on behalf of all the Judges of High Court, congratulate My Lord for the
successful yudicial career and pray Almighty God that he may live with great
" joy and enthusiasm.

i
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Shri. Manoj Dwivedi, Addl. Advocate General, bids
farewell -
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Shri Ajay Bagadiya, President, High Court Bar
Association, Indore, bids farewell:-

We have gathered today to bid farewell to Hon’ble Justice Shri LS.
Shrivastava, who demit office today. His Lordship was born on 16.12.1949
at Bhind and after completing his studies in science and law, joined the
profession and began practice as an advocate in the year 1978. My Lord
continued to serve the judicial system till he was elevated to the Hon’ble High
Court and sworn in on 26.08.2009. His Lordship has been a District Judge at
Indore as well and his tenure as the District Judge is unforgetable. The lawyer
community still stands indebted to his Lordship for his intervention at the time
when some dispute arose between the lawyers and the administration.

-

. HisLordship was a third generation lawyer. My Lord's grand father
Late Shri Hubalalji Shrivastava was a renowned Advocaté and famous Urdu
Poet. His Lordship’s father Late Shri Harishchandra Shrivastava continued
the high tradition of the family and eventually his Lordship with his work and
demeanour, has further added yet another feather in the cap of the family.

His Lordship has always had great attachment with the lawyers
community of Indore and we shall always remember him as a soft spoken, but
frank and fearless Judge.

My Lord has.a vast experience on the civil as well as Criminal side
and ] am reminded of what once great jurist Holmes remarked " The Law is
not mere Logic, but is also experience". My Lord has always been supportive
to the Junior members of the Bar and the j Jumore advocates always looked
forward to appear before him.

The tenure of My Lord asan Hon'ble Judge has been a distinguished ‘
and remarkable tenure wherein My Lord has dispensed justice without fear

.or favour. The order and judgements of My Lord reflect his qualities as they

are clear, crisp and precise in nature. My Lord has been perfect combination
of knowledge, exemplary behavour, Judicious conscionsnessand clarity of
thought. Sir, We shall miss you and always remember you for your enviable

«qualities.

I, on my behalf and on behalf of the Indore High Court Bar Association,

offer best wishes for the next part of his life.



Shri Pratap Mehta, Member, State Bar Council, bids
farewell :- .
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Shri Vivek Sharan, Assistant Solicitor General of Indla,
blds farewell ;-

_ I deem it to be my proud privilege in offermg this farewell ovation to
Hon'ble Shri Justice 1.S. Shrivastavaji.

Lord Denning in his book ”The Road to Justice" says :

- "Justice is difficult to define. Itis not something which can be seen. It
is eternal, not temporal; for, it is not the product of intellect but of spirit."

‘My lord, Justice Shrivastava is fortunate to be born in'an environment
ofnot merely pursuit of law, so indispensable for alawyer butofhi gh traditions,
and that unwritten code of fairess and courtesy without which the profession
would lose much of its value. He hails from the family of lawyers and at present,
the fourth generation has also joined the bar. His grandfather Shri Hublalji
Shrivastava started practice in the yéar 1898 at Bhind. My lord's father Shri
Harishchandraji Shrivastava was a criminal lawyer and had a distinction of
being Govt. Pleader for continuously almost 23 years and was known for
impartiality, courage and honesty partlcularly at that tnne decoit trials were
the main criminal litigation.

With these conceptions, received in 1nher1tance, it is My Lord's
paramount concern that human dignity must reach and inform every inch of
judicial activity. For My Lord "A good and faithful judge must strive to
determine what is right rather than who is right. Judicial verdicts may not
change heart but certainly can prevent people from becoming heartless".

Prior to joining Judicial Service in the year 1978, My lord, Justice
Shrivastava started practice in the civil side under the guidance of his tauji
Shri Krishnachandraji Shrivastava and in the criminal side, under the guidance
of Shri £.S. Mishra. My lord, had been custodian of justice at many places in
Madhya Pradesh, being a distinguished Judicial officer and also graced the
office of District and Sessions Judge at Indore and Rewa

He always tried to temper justice with mercy and tamped power with

patience during his long career as a Judge, at all levels. As Mr, Justice McCardie
said : "It is sense of independence of the Bar that deepens and conﬁrms the
instinct for fearless decision in the judge."

'With the co-operation at every stage in life, of Late Smt. Vibha

17



Shrivastava, wife of My Lord, Justice 'Shrivastavgji and with the blessings of
Smt. Jageshwari Devi, mother of Justice Shrivastavaji, My Lord took oath of
as a-Judge-of this Court on 25% August, 2009.

~ The elevatlon of Hon'ble Shri Shnvastava_u as Judge of this Court
reminds me what my father (Justice Dr. Maithli Sharan) says that a person
can reach to the heights only when he has emotions and human values in his
heart. '

My lord, is a scholar of Hindu Philosophy and Rehgmn and it can
unhesﬂatmgly be said for th

“"Dispensation of j Justlce is an attribute of God; Blessed are those on
whom that Godly assignment has fallen; Still blessed are those who acquit
themselves of the assignment with pride, dignity and honour.” .

. * Advocates who appeared before Justice Shnvastavap, in the High

Coutt as well as in the District Court have all praises for him and would share
my feelings :When1 say that this High Court is glorified and known by his
honesty, integrity and command in every sphere of law.

Sir, you will always enjoy a special position in the records of this
Court as well as in the hearts of all advocates of this Bar.

. - I, onmy behalf on behalf of the Union of India and on bchalf of my
colleagues, offer our greetmgs, good wishes to my Iord Hon'ble Justice Shri
LS. Shnvastava_u - . . , -

Shri P.K: Saxena, representative of Senior Advocates,
bids farewell :-

. My Lord Justice I.S. Shrivastava today you are demifting office after
successful career in the judiciary for more than 35 years. What is expressed
at the time of elevation of a Judge is the expectation of the Bar from the Judge.
as to how he will conduct in his career. Today My Lord is the date of judgement
to be passed by the Bar as to how your Lordship is faired on the Bench. I can
without fear of contradiction say that your Lordship has fulfilled all the
expectations of the Bar which were expressed at the time of your elevation.
Your court rooin was always full of soberity and serenity as is expected of
any good Court. Coming from the lawyers' family, you always felt that the



. lawyers appearing in your court are your distant cousin and who should be

allowed to say in the matter in which they are appearing. Your lordship rio.

lawyer is interested in the final out come of the case because it is the right of -
the Jawyer to address the court only. Judgment is your Lordship's domainand

your lordship always delivered the judgment without fear or favour and
absolutely in accordance with law

More than 120 years tradition of law practice is in your family and
you with the beginning of your career put great ideals before you in the
personality of Shri Jagmohanlal, Judge of the erstwhile High Court of Gwalior
and your cousin late Chief Justice Shivdayal. Today both of them must be
blessing you from where from they are because you have maintained good
tradition which were set by them in the judiciary.

-

- * Onbehalf of Senior Members of the Bar, I w18h you good health and
apeaceful life hereafter.

Farewell speech dellvered by Hon'ble Shri Justlce

1.S. Shrivastava :-

Fam overwhelmed w1th the sentiments and kirid words spoken to me
for which really I do not deserve. It is the exprcssmn of your affection for me
which has always reminded me to share my responsibility in descharge of my
duties as a Judge. The Lawyer and Judges stand together for the noble cause

" . ofthe justice. The Judges and advocates have total devotion for the cause of

justice. They do not work for any gain or loss to any person but they serve
the Godess of Justice and they help in dispensation of justice. No one loses
or no one gains in this process but the final result is that the justice has been
done which is necessary for the peace in the society. The life of a Judge is like
a Saint who lives in the world as a human being but discharges his duties
without any fear and favour with profound courage.

I am fortunate that the Almighty Shri Ram bestowed me with the liability

of a Judge. No one knows that what is his destiny but from the very childhood
the destiny clears the ways for the achievement of the goal of the life for
which we have been born. I am fortunate that I was born with the 11ab111t1es for
the dlspensatlon of the justice and I became a part of it as a Judge.

Today I want to share some experiences with the junior Advocates.

s
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Life is full of happiness and sorrows, It is an Art to enjoy the life which is only
possible with the help of principles of life. Shrimad Bhagwat Gita and Ramayana
have always been source of inspiration to me and it always inspired me to
lead a life with principles. According to story of Mahabharata when Yudhistir
went to collect water from the pond, he saw his brothers lying unconscious
and certain questions were put to him by Yaksh without answers of which he
was not allowed to take water. One of the questions of Yaksh was to explain
"Dharma" in few words where it situates. Ydhistirreplied that it is "Dakshta"
which means proficiency in all the fields of the life that has been a word of -
inspiration for me and I tried to follow it in all aspects of my life.

A man lives in different capacities in life at a time for legal profession
he is an advocate or judge and in the family he is son of his parents, he is
brother of his brothers and sisters, father of his children, friend of friend,
husband of a wife and he has to share all his responsibilities with high .
- proficiency every day along with comforts and discomforts and happmess
and sorrows whichhe perceives.

I always remember the lines.of an author-
qE-g@ W T ¥ art w9 gt pEew A
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- So we have to play our roles in the best way at the platform of liferé.nd death
according to the role of which has been assigned by the Almnghty to usin the

different stages of life.

In the Shrimad Bhagawad Gita it has been said that "Soul lives in
the body, it never dies."” It always pinches and condemns the person for
the wrongs and mistakes commited by him against moral principles. Therefore,
we must think over about the activities of the every day as an independent
spectator that how the day was, whether our activities were according to the
principles or not and every day we should try to improve ourselves and should
take care and not to repeat the mistakes again. I have tried to follow this
principle in my life ana Ahmghty has always given me courage to fizce the
situations.

s

Four things are required for the successin life :

(1) Hard work (2) Study of good books to feed your brain w1th good
ideas (3) To live the life with moral principles and (4) Faith in God that what



 Shri Jaisingh, Shri A.S. Garg, Shri M.L. Dhupad, Shri Z.A. Khan, Shri Ashok

is.done after your best efforts is for your betterment. J
If they are followed then you will be successful in the life.

In the cycle of life and death, I am fortunate that Almirghty gave me
birth in the family of advocates and persons of great ideals and ideas. My
grand father Late Shri Munshi Hubblal Raad senior advocate started practice
in 1898 at Bhind and since then The ""Mashal" (torch) of this noble profession
of advocacy is continuing in my family with the moral principles. My father
Late Shri Harishchandra Shrivastava was the Govt. Pleader and Public
Prosecutor at Bhind from 1951 -1974 and he continued on this post till death

with out break of singal day and he was famous for his truthfulness and honesty.

My uncle Late Shri Krishna Chandra Shrivastava, advocate was the leading
Civil Lawyer of Bhind. In his lotus feet I started my practice as.an Advocate.
He leﬂ: criminal practice only due to the fact that his young brother has become

public prosecutor and he did not want that both thé brothers should appear

against each other to plead a case. When I started practicing in Jan,1975
then I came to know that he used to retumn the fees of the case in which he
was not successful . On my question he replied that the confidence of success
which my client reposed in me,I failed to fulfill it hence I shoud not keep the

fees of this client,have faith in God and HE takes care of every advocate who.

is in this profession and you will see that he sends the clients to you and never

’" you go to any client to book the cases. This is the prinéiple of the advocacy

that the advocate never goes to the office of the client. Later on Icameto
know that word-to-word which he sald was correct, .

I am fortunate today that Shri S.S. Mishra, Advocate of Bhind in whose

lotus feet I learnt the principles of criminal practice, is present here to bless
me. : ’

I am extremely gre;teful. to all the senior Advocates of this Bar-

Shri A.M. Mathur, Shri G.M. Chaphekar, Shri A.K. Chitale, Shri T.N. Singh, _
‘Shri PK Saxena,Shri B.L. Pawecha,Shri S.C. Bagdia, Shri M.L. Agrawal,-

Shri Shekhar Bhargava, Shri C.L. Yadav, Shri D.D. Vyas, Shri Y.I. Mehta,

Kutumble, Shri Ramanlal Jain, Shri S.K. Vyas, Shri A.K. Sethi, Shri Piyush
Mathur, Shri Ashok Shukla, Shri L.N. Soni. Their assistance has always been
helpful to me in dispensation of justice and in interpretation of law and legal
principles-behind it. They are the assets of this Bar Association. ’

Lt
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ITam grateﬁll for the blessings of my Guruji Swami Shri Satyamitranand Giriji
of Haridwar and Swami Shri Akhileshswaranand Giriji of Jabalpur and late
‘Shri Swami Haridas Maharaj and Shri Prem Parmarji, they always showered

blessings on me due to which I could raise step-by-step to this august office.

!
The man alone can not achieve the destmatlon oflife but thlS isthe

cooperation of all thé persons due to which a goal is achieved. I am grateful
to all the persons from the beginning of my career and as Civil Judge upto this
stage by the cooperation, good wishes of them 1 could succeeded in fulfillment
of my responsibility and achieved the goal of life. One of the important chapter
of my life is over today.

I thank to all for their blessings, good wishes and cooperation in this
respect.

I am grateful to my famlly members -brother Shri S.S. Shrivastava,

Advocate of Bhind , my sons Raghav and Vaibhav and nephew Shashank and .
all the relatives and friends who came here. T am grateful to Smt. Vineeta.

Shrivastava, wife of Justice Shri A.K.Shrivastava who took pains to come
here despite her ailing condition. They always gave me moral support for the
discharge of my duties honestly with full dedication and they followed all the
restrictions imposed on me as a Judge.

Today again I pray and pay regards to my wife late Smt.Vibha

‘Shrivastava who left for her heavenly abode on 21.06.2003 without her prayers

~ and good wishes the achievement of the goal of life was not possible.

I am grateful to my mother Smt. Jageshwari Devi Shrivastava who not
only taught me moral principles of life but always blessed me and gave me
courage to face all the odd situations of life. My father late Shri Harish
Shrivastava expired in September, 1974 just three months before my enrollment
as an advocate. He was a strong believer of God and from astrology he was
knowing the fact from the last six months of his life that he has to leave for
heavenly abode in the month of Sept, 1974 but he did not express this fact to
any one and never became impatient in the discharge of all the liabilities of the
family and lived in the world in the same way with the trust that care has to be
taken by Almighty and he is nothing to do in this matter. In reality he wasa

Karmyogi. After his death later on I came to know all this fact from my-

family Pandit Shri Kalka Prasadji. He told me that he was knowing the fact
that this is last phase of his life and life will be no more from Sept,74. Today

Iam extremely grateful to Almighty that his belief in God has been proved to



be true in my life and all his children have achieved their goal of life. The lines
. of Bhagwad Gita "9RTEr q8rigq” has been proved to be true. ThlS fact
always gave me strength.

I express my gratitude to my colleague Judges for their full cooperaﬁon
during my tenure as a Judge. I am thankful to all the Advocates, Registrar
General, Principle Registrars, staff of the Registry at all the three places. I
express my-thanks to my personal staff Smt. Bharti Sawe, P.S., Smt. Charulata
Gadgil, Reader, Shri Neeraj Sarvate, Shri Amol Mahanag, Stenos, and
Jamadar Shri Bindeshwari Prasad, without the help of them I would have
been unable to discharge my duties.

I am thankful to Shri Gopilal Vyas Accountant, Protocol Officer and all
the A.P.Os. for their assistance in discharge of my duties. :

It is matter of pride for me that this ovationis being presided by J ﬁstlce :
Shri A.K. Shrivastava. My grand father was very fortunate in this regard that
~ the grand son of his eldest daughter and the sén of his youngest son, both are
in this Bench and farewell is being given to me by him.

I again bow my head to the Almighty God for his kindness.

In the end I express my gratitude to all of you and w1sh you a very
Happy andProsperous life. o

Jai Hind.
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. “Short Note (DB)
: *(1)
Before Mr. .Iusnce K. K. Lahoti & Mrs, Justice Vimla Jain
- W.A.No0.786/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 October, 2011

ARUN KUMAR GUPTA Appellgnt
Vs,
STATEOFM.P. &ors. o ... Respondents

A. Words and Phrases — Legal Mahce — State is under
obligation to act fairly without ill will or malice, in fact or in law — It
means something done without lawful excuse — It is an act done
_ wrongfully and willfully without reasonable or probable cause, and not

necessarily an act done from ill feeling and spite — It is a deliberate
‘act in disregard to the rights F)f others.

@ ‘-wéﬁ#;m—ﬁﬁwgm’a—mﬁmaﬂﬂﬁw'

gafa @ 21 ¥ W Rty ' agfm sdad o 3 fag =2 @ - gaor
Fed 2, faktrgef wfiRy @ faer 9 e — 7% 1@ Siugds 1@ SgEEY
Ffragea vd alRiA R @ A 9 1F srfard @ sk anawe w9
¥ gHiaT @@ 89 /@ 1 7 fard T - Iw a9 ° aReRt
g ¥ wwaﬁﬁmél

B. Serwce Law — Transfer — Admzmstratwe Extgency or
Punishment — Petitioner posted as Deputy Director of Prosecution —
During his tenure of 15 months he has not conducted any trial and has
filed only 9 returns and one caveat application before High Court —
Show cause notice issued to respondent No.3 is still under consideration
- —If the cases were not allotted to respendent No.3 then he should
.have brought this fact to the knowledge of Director of Prosecution —

Work performed by respondent No.3 cannot be said to be an efficient
work by Deputy Director — Transfer is not only an incident of service
but a condition of service as well and is necessary in public interest
and efficiency in public administration — Transfer order unless shown
to be malafide or in violation of statutory prov1s10ns, not open to
interference by Court — Whether transfer was in public inierest requires

adjudication on the basis of facts of each case — Order quashing the '

transfer of respondenit No.3 set asnde Writ appeal allowed

& oar Rfer — W—HWWWW



NOTES OF CASES SECTION

— arft SufRee afmle @ 9 ¥ Tewe — U@ 15 WAl $ S e
3 7R 9w i faarer aRafaa @ fean il s=a ~maray @ ws
Pad 9 Red gar v dfdge I@dwa vga frar— s=eff 5. 3 & 9
AN 1 FroT qaEn Aifew faarelw @ - afy goeff 5.3 @ wwwo

grafea 78 5 1 o 99 99X IF 92y Frve sl 9 wmert 7

arr arfey ot — ywweff w. 3 g fear o e SufRue @1 <@ e

TE WET AT GHAT — TIFIAT T BIA AIT ST AT ¢ qfew a1 31 37d

#1 ¢ ok dlefg ¥ W AT vuRE A THa @ fag smEwme @ -
| RAFTORYT ARY W4 9F #) AT Aot ST vuaEt @ afvee

¥ i 9@ <wiar oL e g5 ewEy @ fae gar a9 — @
TWIFTAReT atafad 3§ o7 39T AEfrfay 7@ ama @ a2l @ aER
= .fear s andfta 2 - woweff & 3mwaﬁﬁﬁamﬁm
- ImRw TR — Re anfia w9 :

The - Order . of the court was delivered b"y::
- KwrisaN Kumar Lasori, J. : ) e

" Cases referred:

(2010) 9 SCC 437, (2009) 2 SCC 592, (2004) 7 SCC 405, .
(2004) 48CC245. =
. AK Pathatk, for the appellant.

Rahul Jain, Dy.A.G. for the respondent nos.1 & 2.

RN. Smgh with Anshuman Singh, for the respondent no. 3.
' Short Note )

*(2)
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul '

W P.No.648/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 30 September 2011

BITANDEVI (Smt.) & ors. - . ... Petitioners
Vs, - . . .
STATE OF M.P. & ors. : ' " :..Respondents’’

A Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Section 5-A —
Acquisition of Land — Hearing of Objection — Hearing of objection is
not an empty formality — Competent Authority has to assign reasons
such as the unsuitability of the alternative land for the said public
purpose, the grave hardship that may be caused to owner by such

expropriation, ¢tc. — Order overruling objection should be pregnant

with reasons — Reasons are heartbeat of conclusion and in absence of
reéasons, the decision can not stand. :

t

T
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@ qf#aﬁfva;fbﬁw(mmar:) gIeT 57 — qf#wam‘q—
:ﬂm‘vm?g:ms‘ QY B LA @ A= FraRear af & — |wn
FRBR! 3t For 23 B ¥ IR 5 SR @tw-wuteE 2 Ivfee
Pt FUEFIr, I We@EwT gRT Wil st TR S $iRka s
wod! ¥, TE—AET TR FIX BT AR IO & wrel 7Ryel wiaw
arfey— srevr, frepd @t airen @ st SR a%armaﬁ fvfa sram w7y
W ﬂ?ﬁ'ﬁTI -

B Land Acquisition Act (I of 1894), Sections 4, 5-4 -
Acquisition of Land — Procedure prescribed is mandatory in nature — '
If property belongs to economically disadvantaged segment of Society
or people suffering from other handicaps, then the Court is not.only
entitled but is duty bound to scrutinize the action/decision of the State
with greater vigilance, care and circumspection keeping i in view the
fact that the land owner is likely to become landless and deprived of
* the only source of his livelihood and/or shelter.

. qﬁaa’vaﬁﬁav(mwaﬂf)mw#4 5;7—11377-57
a7 — fafea wfva aaus W@y A @ — afx w=ka wrw @ anfdfe
¥q q FAGR T 97 2 9T 39 JFepmr @ Thug @t a9 @ 99 ey
mwmnﬁmémaﬁaﬁfmméﬁimaﬁmﬁ/ﬁvﬁ
¥ aftre wadal, MR U9 <ETT ¥ §iE S¥, 39 92w ghend
" vad gy v qf wrh @ qPE@e:E 9o aweh selifaer el /@emEr
mmﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁaamﬁaﬁwmﬂﬂmﬁﬁél'

G Interpretation of Statute — Land Acqmsmon Act 1894
is an exproprlatory legislation — Provisions of the Statute should be
strictly construed as it deprives a person of his land without consent.

T, BT @7 AT — qf ssta i, 1894 wa@wT @1
faemrr @ — Wiﬁmmﬁm—aﬁmmﬂmaﬁqw&waﬁa
aﬁaﬂaﬁmqﬁla?ﬁmwﬁrgﬁqﬁaﬁaaﬂm%l

Cases referred:

" 2010(1)MPLJ 451, (2005) 7SCC 627 AIR2008 SC261, 2007(3)
MPLJ 439, AIR 1993 All 14, (1992) 2 SCC 168, 2006(4) MPHT, 494
(DB),2003(4) MPLJI 577, (2011) 4 SCC 769, (2010) 11 SCC 242, (2011)
5 SCC 553, (2010) 9 SCC 496, 1987 AC 625, (2001) 1 SCC 330

S.P, Jain, for the petitioner. .
M.P.S. Raghuvanshi, AddLA G. for the respondents No. 1 to 3
Sarvesh Singh Chouhan, for the respondent No.4.

-
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Short Note
*(3)
Before Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari
M.A. No. 299/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 31 October, 2011

DEVI SHAKUNTALA THAKRAL ..-Appellant
Vs. :
WIG BROTHERS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. & anr. " ...Respondents :

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Riile 1 & 2 _

Encashment of Bank Guarantee —In case of unconditional bank guarantees,
interference by the Court is warranted only when there is established fraud:
and irretrievable damage to the promise — Bank guarantee can not bel
encashed if it is conditional and for inconsistent purpose.

& Rfaer afarar wfear (1908 71 5), Jr3er 39 fraw 1 frz-a‘a'
IRet wt G- ad 35 I @ Aawme § gy o1 ewey Saw
99 FAES ¢ 99 sUe Wil ? Al guw @ s afy 5 -39
maﬂgﬂmﬂéfmmwﬁ:ﬁmﬁsﬁvsﬂﬁawﬁw%ﬁéi

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Encashment of Bank Guarantee — Bank Guarantee was for mobilization
of advance with a view to secure the said amount — Bank guarantee
has been encasghed for non-performance of contract — Trial Court nghtly
restrained defendants from invocation and encashment of Bank

Guarantee — Trial Court was also right i in directing the defendants to
deposit the amount as the bank guarantee was encashed after receiving . .

_the notice of the suit.

& Rifaer uf@ar wfear (1908 T 5), A9 39 A7 1 7 2 —
. % et P AT — aﬁ:tra%maz‘gmmﬁuﬁl@m#a}
SRA W, 5 TRA oft — W @ amed @ sror 7 wed A

2 — frar <raea 3 afiErder Bt 3% Tl o adddT O @ o

T ¥ ofm vU ¥ duel fear.— gRErEeTT B @ S e BT
ﬁ%ﬂé#ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂWﬂﬁWﬁﬁaﬁmﬁiﬁwumaﬂ#
‘@ T ¥ MR 11?11? T |
Cases referred:
ILR 2011 MP 1141, (1999) 8 SCC 436, (2006) 13 SCC 599, (2007)
6 SCC 470, (1975) 1 SCC 770, 2002(2) MPLJ 384, 1990 (Supp) ScC
727, (2003} 4 SCC 690.
Brian Da Silva w1th Nirnay Gupta for the appellant. ,
Jivesh Nagrath and R K. Sanghi, for the respondent No.1.

~
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Short Note
: *(4)
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava )
- '8.A.No. 367/ 1999 (Gwahor) decided on 1 October, 2011

GAJENDRARAO & ors. : - Appellants
Vs.: .
MURTI SHRI GANPATI JIMAHARAJ & ors. ...Respondents

A.  Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 22 — Legal -
Representatives — Original plaintiff died during the pendency of civil
' suit and his legal heirs were brought on record —Defendant filed appeal
against decree but ‘A’ one of the L.R. was not made.party — ‘A’ also
filed appeal against part dismissal of suit — Held — As ‘A’ had also
filed cross appeal and other legal representatlves were on record, first
appeal and second appeal filed by defendant was mamtamable andhad
not abated.

# - Refeer wlrar wfear (1903 & 5) IR 22 — Rftrs
g — Rifve e @ «fig w1 @ R q@ T 9 e @
alx sus faftre TR’ & afE = 9T T - afard 3 e @
foeg arfler Y@ 9 ™Y TAOR. ¥ | ¢S U $ USSR T g9 T
— g R W AR B AT "iReh, B freg sl wga 9 — afEiRa
— gfe v 4 €N ufy snflg yvge @ oft sl s fafe wfafferor
FfEE w 9, umqumm@mmmaﬂ
A SUIE T TAT AT

" B. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 41 — Injunction
— No injunction can be granted against any coparcener — Each
coparcener is having equal right in the property.

& RRRT ggaly aftifaT (1963 T 47). arT 41 — &R
—ﬁﬂﬂtﬁmﬂma%maﬂ#wﬁwumaaﬁmmm—
yA® gEe qEfa 4 WA afmR el ¥
Cases referred:

2009 RN 208, AIR 1971 SC 240 (2008) 15 SCC 517 AIR 1967 SC
49, AIR 1979 SC 1393.

" H.D. Gupta with Santosh Agrawal for the appellants.

V.X. Bhardwaj with C.S. Agrawal & Raja Sharma, for the respondents
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Short Note

: *(5)
Before Mr. Justice J.K.Maheshwari

M.A:No.1966/2010 (Jabalpur) decided on 20 September, 2011

MADHU & ors . ... Appellants
Vs. - '
STATE OF M.P. & an. ...Respondents

R B Scheduled Tribes and ther Traditional Forest Dwellers
(Recognition of Forest Rights) Act, 2006 (2 of 2007), Section 2(0),
Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 — Other
traditional forest dweller — To show that a person belongs ‘to forest
dwelling Scheduled Tribe, it is not enough that he should belong to
Scheduled Tribe Community — Three generations not Iess than 25 yéars

.of period, who were pastoral living in non-urban area likely to be

portraying or expressive of the life of shepherds or country people
éspecially in an idealized and conventionalized manner living or in
‘nomadic having no fixed resident and wandering here and there, may
fall within purview of Forest dwelling scheduled tribes — Plaintiffs not
entitled for temporary injunction as pleadings do not contain the
‘necessary.contents as requlred under the Act.

> Wmmwmwwmmmm
F1 'gryar) afefam, zo06 (2007 FT 2) arr 2(0), Rifder afdar aiear
(1908 &7 5) IR 39 FFF 1 FIX 2 — F7 yorITd 97 [ardt — 4%
soid & fag & wafdw o9 farh syfm seonfa o1 @ a8 gafa
2 & 99 aqqfaa srarfa e o1 s wifey — i Afewr < 59 )
Y 25 9¥ @Y Fafy @ R} A Ty g7 7 o F 9 g o,
Wit wxarel ® e &1 feEv 1 T S aear 8 avEr afewar ¥ ar
mwﬁmwmumﬁwmﬁmmm

e i fifaa fEm @ 98 Al 3oR IR wea @ €, a9 fardl .

apqfua oeonfa @1 IR § o wed - T sRuE wARY @
THaR T T afmEmat F aftifre @ solfa mifd smawas fea
avg,. Aafds ) )

B. Scheduled Tribes and Other Traditional Forest Dwellers
(Recognition of Forest Rights) Act, 2006 (2 of 2007), Sections 2(c), 6
~ Forest Dwelling Scheduled Tribes — Circulars — Govt. is required to
act as per the object and spirit of the provisions of Act, 2006 — Circulars
issued do not disclose the manner and procedure for determination of

14
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rlghts of forest dwelhng Scheduled Tribes and other tradltlonal forest
dwellers < Application of circulars must be refrained unless and until a
person falls within the definition of forest dwelling Scheduled Tribes,
other traditional forest dwellers or critical wnldhfe habitat after followmg
procedure as specified under Section 6.

& WWWWWWW@?W

&} arrar) aftfrE, 2006 (2007 &1 2), arery 2(c),6 — g7 frardt agafia _.

w7 arfa — oRyx - Wﬁaﬁﬁwzoosiﬂwﬁiﬁﬂ'&ﬂ'@'
ﬂmﬁm@ﬂmﬁmaﬁm% w52 1 wRu=m sy

ST WO a1 TERETE a9 PRl @ et o Pafer et 8y

yefY g yhpar yoe T B — aRyAr @ vatswar 9 F9 Aifee o9
a® 5 @f, g 8 @ siava. R ufem o T o9 @ TER,
79 Farh sggfaa seenty, mmﬂmmwmﬂw

- it Prame @ AT B e A @ T

Greeshm Jain, for the-appellants:
Sheetal Dubey, Govt. Adv.for the respondents.
Short Note (DB)
*6)
Before Mr. Justice P.K. Jaiswal & Mr. Justice LS. Shrwastava
Cr. A. No. 564/2001 (Indore) declded on 20 September, 2011

MANGUSINGH &ant. . . . ' ...Appellants
Vs. , . : B ' T
STATEOFMP. . -, ‘ . Respondent

. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sectum 302, Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 - Murder — Postmortem report
states that time of death was 136 hours from the date of postmortem —
Postmortem was done after 60 hours of incident — There is delay of 24
hours in lodging the FLR.— Delay of seven days in sending copy of
F.IR. to Magxstrate —Head was chopped from body by causing single
blow — Weapon used must have been heavy and such injury could not
have been caused by sword which was seized — Sword was also not-
produced before Court — Recovery of head and body also not reliable
- Appellants not guilty — Appeal allowed.

qvS iedrI (1860 BT 45). &NT 302, ¥ gfrar wf?-‘ar 1973 (1974 -
BT 2), €T 157 — 5041 — wa gdeer wfidesT ube wvar @ f 9 a1

wmu‘ﬂm:ﬁmﬁ 136 © BT AT — mq\"tﬂwma%soa'ai
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¥ vEr fHar W — qe.and ar. ?.'Gfﬁﬁ'#:!tiﬂﬁiﬂﬁaE? T,
IR AR, aﬁnﬁrwﬁmﬁeaﬁﬂrﬁﬁmﬁﬁmﬁaa—wiﬂm
T R @ 519 @1e far T o — syahr fRar T TR S R8T Eh
IR ¥ =t qeEr @ ST & B w1 god, B w3 frar 1T or —
‘mmwﬁwqmﬁﬁaﬁﬂ-{ m:ﬂ‘h'?ravaﬁmﬁ
1 fowawty & — arfrarff AW 7@ — anfia R
" The judgment of the court was delivered by :
L.S. SHRIVASTAVA, J. -
-Case referred: :
1998(1) JLJ 236.
Jai Singh with Vivek Singh for the appellants.
" Girish Desai, Dy. A.G. for the respondent/State.
. - Short Note (DB) _
o . “7) " i
_Before M. Justice Sanjay Yaday & Mr Justice TK. Kaushal

‘W.P. No. 5032/2002 (Jabalpur) decided on21 October, 2011

NAGAR PALIKA PARISHAD ...Petitioner
Vs. .
RAJESH KUMAR SAINI R Respondent ,

_ tConsumer Protection Act (68 of 1986), Section Z(b) ) (o)
— Consumer — Respondent approached Consumer Forum for execution
of lease deed in respect of allotted land — Neither council is a service
‘provider nor plot owner is a consumer under the Act— Complaint before
-Consumer Forum not maintainable — Petition allowed.

: TYHIFIT T JAFPAT (1986 T 68), GINT z(#?){ﬂ?)(s?}(aq}(aﬂ)

— Byl - Srdfed qf @ Waa ¥ yeer frdw B freme 3 woneff
VAT B B WHA TUT — AP @ swia T ot uRwe Qar
yasdl @ 3R 9 & qEs welt gratqr @ - SYAITI BINA & HE
ﬁm‘maﬁmﬁuﬂiﬁ MHST W |

-T.he order of the court was delivered by :
SAN3AY YADAV, J.

Cases referred:
AIR 1954 SCC 340, (2004) 1 SCC 287.
H.R. Upadhyaya, for the petitioner.
N.P. Dubey, for the respondent.
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: ShortNote @DB) - - v e
: ;o R *(8) - . A
Before Mrs Justice Sushma Shrivastava & M. Justice '
' ‘ . R.C.Mishra . . e
Cr A.No. 1049/ 1 993 (J abalpur) declded on 10 November 2011

SANTOSHRAT ' """
Vs, Sl :
STATE OF M.P. S Respondent

A, Ev:dence Act (I of 1872), Sectmn 32- Multiple Dymg
Declarations — In case of multlple dying declarations, Court: has to.

Appellant

_ scrutinize all the dymg declarations = ‘Court must find out whether the -

different dying declaratlons are consistent with each other in material
partlculars before aceeptmg and relying upon the same.

7 maﬁﬁav(mrzwr) mwaz—mﬁm
T — AT [YFIAT, FUAT A TP X e B w), [ S,
werat. Y WiEt seh i 2 — S wen a9t E 99 W fiwas wa
ﬂmwﬁwmaﬁq&mﬁﬂqqﬁﬁmm
ﬁﬁr&ﬁ#w@ﬁwﬂaéawﬁl

B , - Maxim- Falsus in uno falsus in ommbus False in, one
thmg, false in everythmg has no application in Indla P "

& T — vo 77 ¥ fsar al-wv 3 Prear - wmﬁﬁm

'ﬂm#ﬁwmm#mmﬁﬂﬂﬂl

C." Penal Code. (45 of 1 860), Section 3 04 Part )/ = Appellant
caused single knife injury in abdomen of déceased near umbilicus —

“None of Doctors opined that injury was sufficient in the ordinary course.

of nature to cause death —Death occurred nearly 19 days after the”

" .incident and was a result of cardio-respiratory failure due to abdominal

injury —Medical evidence was silent as to depth of injury —Appellant L
was rightly held gmlty of offenee of culpable hom:crde not amountmg o

to murder -
-

=r a'vcr.'m?-ar(fasa t'b'f45) 1T 304 mvrII—anﬂamff#
Wﬂﬁmﬁwﬂaﬁwwaﬂrﬁemﬂaaﬁ Fret fafrcas |
o1 afra 714 fy 9le, vaft & 6P o9 % 7o s1Ra 3@ 3 g

'mﬂweﬂ mﬁmﬁamﬁﬁa%mqqgémﬂzaﬂma} .
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PRV EIAHEIT @ Hoaed g3 ofl — die 91 w08 3 R 4 fufexiy
arg i @ — aflarefl 9 shm w9 @ ser 9 A A T a9
- It Aeay @ I @ fag 2 afrfefRa fear swr

D. Penal Code (45 of 1860)— Section 34 — Common
Intention — Nothing on record that acquitted accused persons had prior
knowledge that ‘A’ was having knife in his pant — Moreover, single
blow was inflicted by ‘A’ — Difficult to hold that his companions were
sharing a common intention to kill deceased.

> 4 TUT WIBT (1860 BT 45). SIRT 34 — I~ J¥Y — AfeEH
R 9 T4 f5 dvvaw Al il st qf =9 o 5 ‘A auef fe
¥ arg, fod o — 399 REr ‘A’ §RT U&d 9R (6T 14T o — 97 aren
Wﬁhﬁéﬁ:ﬂﬁﬂﬂiﬁwaﬁmﬁa%mmﬁwﬁm

The judgment of the . Court was ‘delivered by :

R. C. Misura, J. -
Cases referred:

. AIR 2003 SC 3617, AIR 1968 SC 1270, (2006) 7 SCC 172, AIR
2002 SC 2973, (1976) 3 SCC 104, (1970) 2 SCC 113, (1993) 2 SCC 684,
AIR 1965 SC 460, AIR 1993 SC 973, AIR 1993 SC 2636, AIR 1994 SC
1130, AIR 1940 Nag 340, AIR 1994 SC 1651, AIR 2010 SC 249

Suresh Singh with Siuvam Singh, for the appellant.
Umesh Pandey, G.A. for the respondent.
Short Note
*®)
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava
-8.A. No. 271/1997 (Indore) decided on 11 August 2011

SHANTABAI S ~..Appellant
PUSI-IKARLAL & anr. ' - ...Respondents

A Civil Procedure Code (Sofl1 908), Sectton 9 — Civil Suit
- —Preponderance of Probability — In Civil cases, the preponderance of

probability in the facts and circumstances of that particular casehas a
vital and important role in order to arrive a correct decision to the
case. : ’

4
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@ mﬁamwﬁm(mmwé),my—)%ﬁam_—_
Fferesregar w1 yaerar — Rifda gaxo 7, 4 @ sfua fofy I) wg
o f6d 90 faRre yovor @ el ud oRRefml & aftrdwmegar a)

| YEddl B AATETES q qea el qPST 21

B, Registration Act (16 of 1908), Section 49 — Non-
Registration — Effect— A document which is compulsorily registerable,
if not registered, could be used for proving collateral purposes — Nature
of possession can be looked upon and for the purpose of admission of
plaintiff that entire money was paid by appellant can be taken mto
consnderanon to prove his admission. :

& oredlaeor gferfaas (1908 @1 16) m?r.«s—m
g — RS W@ afed er /@ Rglaa fvar s g 2 af
el T fear arar, o9 wiaf¥as wateet @t wifa e eq

-.wuhr%mmmé—ﬁmwﬂmmm.éamaﬁﬁaﬁ

™ Wiy & yate og ¥ aflerlf g Wl v o fsd 1, &t
soel i e o & fag e forwmwsar 21
C Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, (45 of 1938),

Section 4 — Prohibition to held property benanii ~ Guidelines to test
bemmu transaction — discussed. :

' T Frft waTEw (yf%w‘er) mﬁwv (1988 &T 45) gIRT 4 —

. 90t Wl grewr svd gv gfyda - aqrthnaﬂma}m

Arfeie fagia — fd=ar & 1)

D.  Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, (45 of 1988),
Section 4 — Benami Transaction — Evidence available on record shows

‘that both the parties were having very sweet and cordial relations,

however, it can be inferred from surrounding circumstances that they

" wereliving together like husband and wife - Plaintiff admitted that entire

consideration amount and cost of construction was borne by defendant

_ although the sale deed was executed in his name — Defendant is in
"possession of the suit house since the time it was constructed — Defen-

dant is the owner of the property.
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E. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 105 — Validity
of an order — Legislature has authorized the person aggrieved by the °
judgment of the Trial Court to set forth any error, defect or irregularity
in any order, affecting the decision of the case, as 2 ground of objection .
in the appeal and therefore, the appellate Court ought to have taken
into consideration the validity of the order by which application for
amendment was rejected by Trial Court. '

8. . [Yfaa nfar wiear (1908 &7 5), T 105 — F3er st dear
— farer wmared @ Fofa /@ @l ofea 8t faas geq s @ fofy
Bt yaIfaa ot 9 fadft amdwr ¥ fasht gfe, qa ar sfafoar 9 afiw
® amEly &1 AER 9 @ fad uiltma wwar ? - v gufag, adie
- ey Bt 99 arkw @1 fafy A ®) fme A A afve or fres
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Cases referred:
AIR 1999 SC 2213, (2011) 4 SCC 567 1975 JLJ 667, AIR 1974
SC 171, AIR 1980 SC 727. :
. B.L. Pavecha with Nitin Phadke, for the appellant
' S.R. Kochatta, for the respondents. -
Short Note
*(10)
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 1096/2009(S) (Gwalior) decided on 10 November, 2011

VIKRAM SHARMA ...Petitioner
Vs. )
STATE BANK OF INDORE & ors. ...Respondents

A. Service Law — Departmental Enquiry — Non-supply of
documents —Non supply of decuments will not vitiate the enquiry unless
and until the relevance and thereafter the prejudice which is caused is
proved. _

®. war Rfr-fawrfly aia—swardal’ &1 gerr 76T B wrar
—<Eddl o1 IS T fEur e wig B g T Fvn e 9w B
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‘B. Serwce Law= Departmental Enqmry —Status. af Enquiry
Officer — Prelnmnary Enquiry was conducted by an officer .who is

:superior than main Enquiry Officer — This will not vitiate the enquiry

unless it is shown that main enquiry report is either influenced by :.
prellmmary enquiry report or is based on mechameal rellanee on the
preliminary enquiry report. ' . Trew

L@ dar R — i%mvﬁwawa mﬂwfafbiﬂ#a??)%m'—
R . Wi 99 aRe g B ¢ o g wiiaeal afer @ IR
2 — g% wid o gfva TN F w9 9F % g% <ufar & war 75 7=
maumﬁmmuﬁﬁﬁmuﬁ#ﬂﬁnmﬁﬂéawmﬁﬁm'

' __uﬁ&mwmﬁmwﬁﬁwmwmaﬁl

»C. - Service Law — Criminal Case - Stay of Departmenral '
Enqmry = Departmental Enqmry based on same charge —Merely -

.- because' both the proceedmgs are founded upon same facts

departmental enquiry is not required to be kept in abeyance unless
charges are complex in nature involving compheated questions of facts .
and law.

I A -_w‘arf%fé' amwﬁﬁ:'ym t%m':ﬁzrmawvi‘ﬁ—'

-'ﬁmﬂwwammﬁvwmﬁa msﬁqﬁaﬁ?ﬂmﬁm
'memﬁaé ﬁwﬁumaaﬂumnﬁamaﬂmaﬂé’r

maﬁﬁimmnﬁﬁfa%aﬁﬁmﬁa%ﬂwﬁrﬁra?aﬁauw
AU E*l :

© . D. Service Law - Bias of Enquuy Officer — Bms has 1o be
speczf ically pleaded and proved — Mere allegation of involvement of .

-1.0. in some other criminal case does not show any bias — Procedural

irregularity in departmental enqulry does not always Jead to
presumptmn of bias.

S ww-‘mmmwm— veraTa BT
ﬁﬁﬁeaﬁmwmﬁa%wﬁms’ mharﬂrmq-ﬂm
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ﬂﬂm—-ﬁﬂﬂﬁwma#uﬁmwasﬁaﬁuﬁmﬁawmaﬁ-
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E. Service Law — Examination of handwriting — Not
necessary and in absence of any enablmg provnsnons, enqmry is not
vntlated AR D N :
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' E Service Law — Examination-in-chief of witnesses

- without any cross examination — One witness should be examined and

then put to cross examination and then only others will enter the witness
box — Enquiry stands vitiated on this ground.

Z var Rfr — fem et ofa oeror @ wiferal o1 gew
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G. Service Law — Reason and sufficient opportunity of
defence — Enquiry officer did not give opportunity to defence to lead
evidence despite cooperation of defence. :

) AT Ay — BT o F9T #T U STaY — a9 U @
mﬁmamﬂﬁfm#qummﬁmmﬁ
FquR T8 fgam)

H. Service Law — Punishment and Appellate Orders — Non-
speaking — Against 1.0.’s report a detailed representation and appeal .
were preferred — Both were decided by non-speaking order — Orders
quashed because of non-application of mind.
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) SUPREME COURT OF INDIA . . N
Before Mr. Justice P. Sathasivam & M. Justice Di. B.S. Chaulzan a
"Criminal Appeal No, 839/2008 dec1ded on 19 September 2011

/

RAKESH&am' A " AR T Appellants .
STATE OF M.P. _ ; .. : o ...Respondent

A.. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder Ocular.
Evidence and Medical’ Evidence — Ocular evidence would have
‘preference over medical evidence unless it is estzblished t_hat ocular
-evidence isltotally irreconcilable with medical evidence. - (Para9)

' . Fv8 GIXAT (1860 BT 45), ST 302 —FCUT —Y AT ORI T
f%ﬁm*ﬂwm—mmaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂumma}wumﬁmﬁﬂ
. v o 1% 7% wifya 5@ & wmar 5 ywﬁmﬁtﬁmﬁﬁmﬁm

'mﬁmmél ' ;

. - . B. ° -Evidence Act £} of 1872), Sectwn 3- Related w:tness -
- Mere relationship does not’ disqualify a witness — Such evidence is
required to, be carefully scrutinized and appreciated. (Para 13)

R - mmﬁw(mrzwﬂ arer 3 — Frdere wE ~ ~
wae wef B st Y. T — wmiﬁmaﬂmﬁfﬁvﬁm
aﬁﬂ?ﬁrmﬁaﬁmma’l B

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sectwn 302, Evidence Act (1 of
1 872), Section 3 — Related eye witness — Deceased and eye witness ‘A’
were on same road — There was no obstruction in between them — As
accused were well known to ‘A’ therefore discrepancy with regard to.
distance becomes irrelevant — ‘A’ immediately lodged F.I. R. mention-
ing the names and overt acts of accused persons which gives assurance
regardmg truth of its versmn Wltness trustworthy —Appeal dismissed.

. (Paras 15 and 16)
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_aﬁmwmmmaﬁmzﬁwaaﬁ erraamq'q‘fﬁﬂ wEh
ﬁi‘&m'vﬂit sfiar @R : '
" D. - Evidence Act (I of 1 872), Section 3—W‘tness— Mmor _
discrepancies —-Minor discrepancies between narrations of witnesses
when they speak on details, should not be used to discard the evidence
in its entirety, unless such dlscrepancles are of material dimensions.

(Para 19)

SRR * A m&wafﬁﬁmr(mman) emr.a—?m'-ﬁ &7 faafaar
- et & qara § g T w9 3 R @ o @, 61 ST
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Cases referred:

. (2009) 13 sce 542, (2010) 10 SCC 259, (2011) 7 SCC 421, AIR
2005 SC 1912, 2007 SC'1019, (1996) 1 SCC 614, (2011) 2 SCC 36, AIR-
© 2010 SC 3624, (2009) 13 SCC 330, (1999) 9 SCC 525.

JUDGMENT

- The Judgment of the. court was delivered by,
Dr. B.S. CHAUHAN, J.: This criminal appeal has been preferred against the
]udgment and order dated 15.12.2006 passed by the High Court of Judlca-
ture at Jabalpur in Criminal Appeal Nos. 518 and 890 of 1997.

2. Facts as explained by the prosecution have been that:

A, On 5.3.1996, on the day of ‘Holi’ at around 11,30 a.m.; one
Kailash @ Killu was assaulted by the appellants.alongwith-aniother
accused in front of the house of one Rama Tailor. Anil (PW.11), nephew
of the deceased, who had been foIlowulg Kailash (deceased), raised
an alarm and the assailants were caught at the spot. Various persons -
"gathered at the place of occurrence but the assailants managed to
 flee. The injured Kailash was taken to the hospital but succumbed to
_ his'injuries. In view of the above, an FIR was lodged under Section
302 of Indian Penal Code, 1860 (heremafter called as ‘IPC*) and
Section 25 of the Arms Act, 1959, within one hour of the incident at
12.30 p.mi., wherein both the appellants and other accused we;e
named. In thc FIR it was also stated that two policemen, namely,
Ramdas Havaldar and Pannalal Sainik came at the scene and got the
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. accused personsreleased from the moband, thus, they succeeded in

runmng away.

“B.* ‘DrRK. Singhvi (PW.8), conducted the post-mortem on the

body of the deceased on the same day. In his opinion, there were

« three incised wounds found on his body, one on the neck, one on the
- chest and another in the abdomen. All the injuries had beén caused by

sharp edged weapons and Kailash had died within three to six hours

. prior to conducting the post-mortem examination. *© . .

C. . Dunng the cotirse of i investigation, the appellants were arrested '

and the weapons used in the offence were recovered on their disclosure

,statements After concludmg the i investigation, chargesheet was filed.

D. : . The case was committed for Sessions trial. The prosecutlon
examined a large number of witnesses in support of its case. One

- Halle (DW.1) was examined in defence and after conclusion of the _
.. trial, all the three accused were convicted for the offence punishable
. under Section 302 IPC vide judgment and order dated 21.2,1997
;. and were awarded sentence of ngorous imprisonment for life and a
. .. fineofRs. 2,000/- each in default thereof to serve further sentence
. .. of one year. . .

' E. © Beingaggrieved, all the three accused/conwcts preferredtwo T
appeals i.e. Criminal Appeal Nos. 518 & 890 of 1997 before the -

High Court of Judicature at Jabalpur, which were decided by ]udgment

and order dated.10.2.2005 in absence of their counsel.

F. ‘Being aggrieved, the present two appellants preferred crimi-

" nal ‘appeals before this Court i.e. Criminal Appeal Nos. 1463-64 of

2005 which were allowed vide judgment and order dated 20.7.2006

"and this Court after setting aside the judgment and order dated
10.2.2005 of theHigh Court of Judicature at J. abalpur, remanded the

appeals to be heard by the High Court afresh.

G . In pursuance of the said _]udgment and order of this Court dated -

20.7.2006, the appeals have been heard afresh and dismissed vide

| ]udgment and order dated 15.12.2006 by the High Court.
- Hence, this appeal : '

3.*  Beforeproceeding with the case on ment, it may be pertinent'to mention '

here that so' far as the case of the appellant Rakesh is concerned he had
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already served the séntence of more than 14 years a.d has been granted
premature release by the State. Appellant Rajesh has served about.7 -1/2
years and is still in jail. The third person Dinesh did not prefer any appeal so
we are not concerned with him so far as this appeal is concerned.

4. * Shri Siddharth Aggarwal, learned counsel appearing for the appellants,

has submitted that the Trial Court had placed very heavy reliance upon the
“alleged eye-witnesses Khemchand (PW.10) and Anil (PW.11) who, in fact,

could not be the eye-witnesses at all. The deposition of other witnesses
". examined by the prosecution, falsify the prosecution’s case in entirety. There -
have been material inconsistencies in the depositions of Khemchand (PW.10)
and Anil (PW.11), and their entire evidence has to be discredited. The High
- Court after considering the circumstances, did not find the evidence of
Khemchand (PW.10) trustworthy, however, failed to appreciate that the
evidence of Anil (PW.11) was also liable to be treated similarly. The ocular
evidence is contradictory to the medical evidence as the incident had occurred
at. 11.30 a.m., FIR had been lodged at 12.30 p.m. The post-mortem
examination was conducted at 1.00 p.m. on the same dayi.e. 5.3.1996. The
Doctof opined that Kailash @ Killu had died within 3 to 6 hours before the
post-mortem examination. Anil (PW.11) relied upon by the High Court, is
closely related to the deceased Kailash @ Killu and none of the independent
witnesses examined by the prosecution supported its case to the extent that
Anil (PW.11) could be present on the place of occurrence at the relevant
time. Thus, the appeal deserves to be allowed.

. 5. Per contra, Ms. Vibha Dutta Makhija, learned counsel appearing for
the State, has vehemently opposed the appeal contending that there is no rule
of law prohibiting reliance upon the evidence of the close relatives of the
victims, however, such evidence has to be carefully scrutinised. The medical
_.evidence may not be conclusive regarding the time of death as the physical
condition of a body after death depends upon various factors i.e. age,
geographical and climatic conditions of the place of occurrence etc. The facts
and circumstances of the case do not warrant interference with the concurrent
findings of the facts recorded by the courts below. The appeal lacks merit
. and is liable to be dismissed.

6. . Wehave consideréd the rival submissions made by the learned counsel -
for the parties and perused the record.

7. According to the prosecution case, Rakesh hit on the right side of the
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neck with knife, Rajesh on the right portion of the chest by gupti and Dinesh hit by
‘Katarna’ (Axe having long wooden handle 0f 42 inches) on the right portion of
the stomach of Kailash @ Killu, deceased. This evidence stands duly supported
by the medical evidence as Dr. R.K. Singhvi (PW.8), on conducting the
post-mortem examination found the following injuries on his person:

) Incised wound on the right portion of right clerical bone of
1.5x2x5 cms with regular edges. Faciea muscle, blood vessel
lungs was torn, blood was deposited in the chest.

it Incised wound on the right chest on third inter-coster space of
5cmx 1.5 cm x5 cm. Faciea muscle and blood vessels had
been cut.

iif) | ~ Incised wound in the right chest on mnth intercoster space of
4cmsx2cmx4cms.

In the opinion of Doctor Singhvi, all the injuries appeare& to have
been caused within 3 to 6 hours by sharp edged weapons prior to the
post-mortem examination.

8. All the weapons used in the crime had been recovered in the dlsclosure
statements made by the appellants and other accused. In the opinion of Dr. R.K. -
Singhvi (PW.8), injuries nos.1, 2 and 3 could be caused by the weapons used ,
in the offence. The question does arise as to whether there is inconsistency/
contradiction in the medical and ocular evidence. The evidence on record
clearly reveal that injuries had been caused to Kailash @ Klllu, deceased, on
his neck, chest and right portion of the stomach. .

9. ' Itisasettled legal proposition that the ocular evidence would have
primacy unless it is established that oral evidence is totally irreconcilable with
the medical evidence. More so, the ocular testimony of a witness has a greater
evidentiary value vis-a-vis medical evidence, when'medical evidence makes -
the ocular testimony improbable, that becomes a relevant factor in the process
of the evaluation of evidence. However, where the medical evidence goes so
far that it completely rules out all possibility of the ocular evidence if proved,

the ocular evidence may be disbelieved. (Vide: State of U.P. v. Hari Chand, -

(2009) 13 SCC 542; 4bdul Sayeed v. State of Madhya Pradesh, (2010)
10 SCC 259; and Bhajan Singh @ Harbhajan Smgh & Ors. v. State of
Haryana, (2011) 7 SCC 421).

10.  So far as the opinion of the doctor that death had occurred w1thm 3 to
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6 hours prior to post-mortem examination, does not mean that Dr, R.K. Singhvi
(PW.8) was able to fix any exact time of death. The issue raised by the learned 7

counsel for the appellants is no more res integra.

In Mangu Khan & Ors. v. State of Rajasthan, AIR 2005 SC 1912,

this Court examined a similar issue wherein the post-mortem report mentioned
that the death had occurred within 24 hours prior to post-mortem examination.
In that case, such an opinion did not match with the prosecution case. This
Court examined the issue elaborately and held that physical condition of the
body after death would depend on a large number of circumstances/factors
and nothing can be said with certainty. In determining the issue, various factors
such as age and health condition of the deceased, climatic and atmospheric
conditions of the place of occurrence and the conditions under which the
-.body is preserved, are required to be considered. There has been no

cross-examination of the doctor on the issue as to elicit any of the material

fact on which a possible argument could be based in this regard. The acceptable

ocular evidence cannot be dislodged on such hypothetical basis for which no
“proper grounds were made.

11. - InBaso Prasad & Ors. v. State of Bzhar, AIR 2007 SC 1019, whlle

con31denng a similar issue, this Court held that exact time of death cannot be
estabhshed scxentlﬁcally and precisely.

Halle (DW.1), examined by the appellantsiin their defence, deposed
. that incident occurred at 11.00 a.m. which is corisistent with the prosecution
case. Thus, in view of the above, the submission so advanced by the learned

counsel for the appellants, is not tenable and thus, does not tilt the balance in-

favour of the appellants. The argument does not require any further
consideration.

12.  This Court in Kartik Malhar v. Stare of Bihar, (1996) 1 SCC 614,
- deﬁned interested witness’ as: :

“A close relative who is 4 natura] witness cannot be regarded
~ asan interested witness. The term “interested’ postulates that
. - the witness must bave some direct interest in having the accused
somehow or the other convicted for some animus or for some
* other reason.”

13.  Evidence of related witness can be. relied upon provided it is
trustworthy Mere relationsliip does not disqualify a witness: Wlmesses who
are related to the v1ct1m are as competent to depose the facts as any other

e



>

LL.R.[2012]M.P. Rakesh Vs.State of M.P. (SC) 7

witness. Such evidence is required to be carefully scrutinised and appreciated
before reaching to a conclusion on the conviction of the accused in a given
case. (See: Himanshu @ Chintu v. State (NCT of Delhi), (2011) 2 SCC 36;
and Bhajan Singh @ Harbhajan Singh & Ors. (supra).

14.  Anil (PW.11), undoubtedly, has been closely related to the victim being
his nephew. His evidence requires a very careful and close scrutiny in the hght
of the aforesaid settled legal propositions.

15.  Themain thrust of the argument of the learned counsel for the appellants
has been that the statements of Khemchand (PW.10) and Anil (PW.11) have
been mutually destructive, thus both are liable to be discarded altogether. The
High Court has disbelieved Khemchand (PW.10) to the extent that he was
present at the time of incident and thus, could not be an eye-witness.
Deposition of Anil (PW.11) clearly reveals that incident occurred at 10.30 .
a.m. in front of the house of Rama Tailor and the appellants alongwith Dinesh
caused injuries to Kailash (deceased) with weapons such as knife, gupti and
‘katarna’ on the neck, chest and stomach. At the time of incident, Anil (PW.11)
had been at a short distance from the victim. Ishwar Nayak (PW.6),
Dharmendra (PW.12) and other persons had also gathered there. He also
deposed about the motive that Rakesh, accused, wanted utensils from Kailash
(deceased), who refused to oblige the accused. Rakesh, accused had
threatened Kailash to face dire consequences. In cross examination, he has
admitted that at the time of the incident, Ishwar Nayak (PW.6), Dharmendra
(PW.12) and Pradeep Pathak (PW.15) etc., were with him. He denied that .
he reached the place of occurrence on being informed by Halle (DW.1) and
further denied the suggestion that he had not seen the quarrel between the
accused persons and the deceased. He gave a full account of the overt acts of
the accused while causing injuries to Kailash. His evidence has to be examined
taking into consideration that the site plan prepared by the Patwari make it
clear that the incident occurred on a main road and the victim as well as Anil -
(PW.11) were on the same road. There was no obstruction in between, thus
Anil (PW.11) could clearly view the incident. Though, there has been some
dispute regarding the distance between the two, but taking into consideration
the fact that the accused had been very well known tothe witness being resident
of the same village, the distance becomes immaterial for the reason that the
witness could recognize him even from that distance. The other eye-witnesses,
particularly, Ishwar Nayak (PW.6), Dharmendra (PW.12) and Pradeep Pathak

(PW.15) did not support the case of the prosecution appropriately.
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Dharmendra (PW 12) stood declared hostile. Deposition of Ishwar Nayak
(PW.6) has corroborated the case of the prosecution to the.extent that Anil
(PW.11) was at the place of occurrence earlier to him. In cross-examination,
he'deposed as undet:’

“Half the boys ran towards the spot of incident immediately.
Amongst them was Anil also. I did not g6 with Anil.”"

16. Inviewofthe above, it is evident that incident occurred at 1 1 J0am.
Kailash, injured was taken to the hospital where he was examiried by the
. doctor and declared dead. Anil (PW.11) went from hospital to police station
-.and lodged the FIR at 12,30 p.m. wherein all the three accused were
specifically. named. The distance of the pollce station from the place of
occurrence had been only 1 k.m. The overt acts of the accused had been
mentioned. The motive was-also disclosed. Itis improbable that the appellants
.. had been cnroped falsely as promptness in lodging the FIR shows that there
was no time for manipulation. Prompt and early reporting of the occurrence
by the informant with all its vivid details gives an assurance regarding truth of
its version. Allegations may not be an aﬂer—thought or having a colourable
version of the incidents. (See: Kishan Singh (dead) thr. Lrs. v Gurpal Singh
& Ors., AIR 2010 SC 3624),

‘ It does not appeal to reasons as to why the witness would fal'sely.
enrope the appellants and other accused in such a heinous crime and spare .

- the real culprits to go scot-free. In the FIR, Anil (PW.11) has disclosed that

his father Khemchand (PW.10), Ishwar Nayak (PW.6) and Dharmendra

(PW.12) reached the place of occurrence at a later stage. As the parties were

~ known to each other being the’ residents of the same.village, the 1dent1ty etc.

was notin dispute.

17.,  The Trial Court had appreciated the evidence on record, and reached

; the conclusion to the effect that Anil (PW.11) was a trustworthy witness and
~had been an eye-witness of the incident. He had faced grilling |
cross- examination. However, no discrepancy or error could be shown in
spite of the fact that he was nephew of Kailash (deceased). On careful scrutmy
of his deposition, his statement was found trustworthy.

The court further held that even if the other witnesses on the spot had
not supported the prosecution case, Anil (PW.11) was a natural witness and
had seen the incident. The other circumstances particularly, the statements of
B.M. Dubey, Investigating Officer (PW.21) and Balram (PW.9), the atrest of
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accused, recovery of weapons on their disclosure statements proved the
prc')secﬁtion case. The depositions of B.M. Dubey (PW.21) had been natural
There was no proof that the I.0. (PW.21) had any amrhosny or any kind 0}
interest and closeness to the deceased. Therefore, the question of not believing
the statement of B.M. Dubey, I.O. (PW.21) does not arise. The High Court in
splte of the fact of dis-believing Khemchand (PW.10), found the prosecution
case wholly proved on the sole testimony of Anil PW.11). ' '

18.  .There are concurrent findings of fact by the two courts below. Unless
the'ﬁndlngs so recorded are found to be perverse, this Court should not
generally interfere. This “Court cannotembarkuponﬁ‘u_itleg.staskofdetermining
the issues by re-appreciating the evidence.” (Sée : Manju Ram Kalita v.
. State of Assam, (2009) 13- SCC 330).

19." Even if there are minor d1screpanc1es between the narrations of
witnesses when they speak on details, unless such contradictions are of material
dimensions, the same should not be used to discard the evidence in its entirety.
The trivial discrepancy ought not to obhterate the otherwise acceptable
evidence. -

20. In Leela Ram (Dead) thr. Duli Chand v. State of Haryana & Anr.,
(1999) 9 SCC 525, this Court observed as.under:

“The Court shall have to bear mmmd t.hat dlfferent witnesses
react differently under different situations: whereas some *
become speechless, some start wallmg while 3ome othérs run
away from the scene and yet there are some who may come _
forward with courage, conviction and belief'that the virong
should be remedied. As a matter of fact it depends upon
individuals and individuals. There cannot be any set pattern or

- uniform rule of human reaction and to discard a piece of
.evidence on the ground of his reaction'hot fallmg within a set
Jpattern is unproduct:we and a pedantic exercise.’

21.  Inview of the above, we reach the inescapable conclusion that the
~ courts below reached the correct conclusion in acceptmg the prosecution case.
Anil (PW.11)is a natiral witness and his testimony in$pired conﬁdence and s,
thus, worth acceptance. )

. Thé facts and circumstances of the mstant case do not warrant any
mterference by this Court. Appeal lacks merit and is, accordingly, dismissed.
: Appeal dismissed.
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. WRITAPPEAL.
Before Mr. Ju.mce K. K. Lahoti & Mrs. Justice Sushma Shr:vastava
W.A. No. 1182/2010 (Jabalpur) dec1ded on 21 October, 2011 .

NIRMALA PATHAK (SMT) © - . ‘il.Appellant
Ve s iR
STATE OF M.P. & ors. * . ...Réspondents

Mumctpal Corporatmn Act MPE (23 of 1956) Section 441 —

Electwu Petition — Nzrvachan Niyam, Rule 94 — Name of appellant o

was deleted from the voter list — ~ Appellant contested the election of _
Mayor of Municipal Corporation and was elected under the iriterim .
order of High Court - Election Petition also filed against hér also on .
the ground of deletion of her name from voter list = Eléction Petition
pending before Tribunal involves the question of correction and deletion

- of her name in the voter list — The Election Tribunal has to record
findings and such findings would supersede the orders passed by: .
Reglstratlon Officer - Any order passed in W.A. would adversely effect:
the proceedings pending before the Election Tribunal - Writ Appeal

- . disposed off with direction that matter be finally adjudicated by Election”

_Tribunal and till that date the order of Registration Officer deletmg
the name of the Petltloner shall not be given effect and shall be subject -
- to the final decision by the Election Trlbunal - . . (ParaG)

FIegIerE g aiﬂﬁw 7y (1956 a7 23) arer Mf—ﬁafa? '
aﬁw—ﬁafavﬁﬂvﬁwgq—mhanﬁmmmmwﬁﬁm,
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.waﬁaﬁafaqmﬁm#WHmmwmiﬁﬁﬂgmwm
. m#muwaxm‘ﬁé—ﬁahwmﬁmwaﬁﬁﬁm‘mﬁﬁlﬁaﬁaﬂ#ﬁﬂf
2 v 39 P Tofler st gt RT st Bt aftmwia wA—se, - -
T ¥ 9w frar v o andw, fPrafa afexwr @ e @fig wdfad)
aﬁuﬁmawﬁuwﬁaaﬁm—wﬁ%m%mﬁaaﬁamﬁm
fovar war f6 frafas afewr gro amer @i ~mafiffa fer ok .
P @S o9 ardl e T s @ uehEe. afte @ emkw Wt -
S umﬂ?azﬁﬁmmﬁmaﬁvﬁafaamﬁmw%aﬁwﬁﬂu%m :
BT .



LLR.[2012]M.P.  Nirmala Pathak Vs. State of M.P. (DB) 11

A. M. Trivedi with Sampoorn Tiwari, for the appllant.
R.D. Jain, A.G with Rahul Jain, Dy. A G. for the respondents No. 1,
3&6. .
~ Pankaj Dubey, for the respondent No. 2.
Kishore Shrivastava with Rakesh Jain, for the respondent No. 7.

-~ ORDER

The order . of .. the court was  delivered by
KrisuN KuMar LanoTi, J.: This appeal is directed against an order dated
26.10.2010 in Writ Petition No.12756/09, under Section 2 of the M.P. Uchcha
Nyalaya (Khand Nyaypeeth Ko Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005. By the aforesaid
order, learned Single Judge disposed of the writ petition, preferred by the
appellant, for préssing remedy of appeal before the appellate authority against
the impugned order dated 26.11.2009 Annexure P/12 passed by the
Registration Officer, Municipal Corporation (Nirvachan), Katni.

2. By order dated 26.11.2009, the Registration Officer, Municipal
Corporation, Katni directed deletion of the name of the appellant from the
voter-list. It-will be pertinent to mention that the order dated 26.11.2009
Annexure P/12 passed by the Registration Officer, Municipal Corporation
(Nu'vachan) Katni was stayed by the learned Single Judge and after the interim
order passed by the learned Single Judge, the appellant herein contested the
election of Mayor of Municipal Corporation, Katni and she defeated her
nearest rival Smt. Alka Jain by a margin of votes of 5000.

3. This appeal was filed on 29.10. 2010 and was placed before the
Division Bench for consideration. On 8. 11 2010, a Division Bench of this
Court passed an order which reads thus:- -

«g112010 ' -

ShriA. M Tnvedl, learned senior counsel assmted by
" ShriAshish Tnvedl, Advocate for the appellant

Shri Sanjay Dwivedi, learned GovermnentAdvocate
" for respondents No.land3to6.

: Shri Panka_] Dubey, learned counsel for respondent
. No.2. ) :

, Shn Rakesh J ain, learned counoei for respondentNo.?r.: I
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When the matter was taken up today, at the outset,

Shri A.M.Trivedi, learned senior counsel appearing for the

appellant, stated that the appellant has been advised to

- withdraw appeal preferred under Rule 9A(4) of the Madhya

. Pradesh Nagar Palika Nirwachan Niyam, 1994 before the.

Collector. He submitted that since pure question of lawis =

involved in the case and in view of the fact that the appeal is

pending before this Court against the order of the learned Single

-Judge, it is appropriate that the controversy may be dec1ded
by this Court. -

Learned Government Advocate appearing for the

respondents No.1 and 3 to 6 and the learned counsel for

- respondent No.2 have no objection to the aforesaid prayer
made by learned senior counsel appearing for the appellant.

In view of the aforesaid submissions made before us,
the appellant may seek leave of the appellate authority to
withdraw appeal preferred under Rule 9A(4) of the Madhya
Pradesh Nagar Palika Nirwachan Niyam;, 1994 and file an
application alongwith the order of the appellate authonty

. penmttmg her to withdraw the appeal. -

Looking to the facts of the case and also in view of
the interim order dated 26.11.2009 passed in W.P.No.12756/
2009, it is directed that the operation of the impugned order
dated 26.11.2009 passed by respondent No.4 shall remain

- stayed till 31% of January, 2011.

List the matter in the second week of January, 201 1.”

4. Thcreaﬁer, matter remained pending and is heard finally by this Court.
The learned counsel appearing for the appellant challenged the impugned order
dated 26.11.2009 on followmg grounds:-

1] That the name of appellant was entered in the voter list of
Ward No.31Chhotelal Pathak Ward, Katni. Though there was some
' . error in the name and age of the appellant in the said voter list but it
was duly corrected by the Registration Officer under rule 9 of the
"+ M.P. Nagar Palika Nirvachan Niyam, 1994 (heremafter rcferred to as
‘Nirvachan Niyam).
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@  The appellant belongs to an old tradition congress party family.
Her husband was a Cabinet Minister and MLA. Her son is also.a

+ sitting MLA. The appellant has made various allegations in respect of

influence of another ruling political party. Because of the aforesaid, it

- had influenced the election officer posted at Katni, resulting an order

directing deletion of her name by the election officer on 26.11.2009,
the date on which nomination for the office of Mayor, Municipal
Corporation, Katni was to be filed. The post of Mayor Mun1c1pal

' Corporation, Katni was reserved for woman,

© @) That the name of appellant was included in the voter list of
* Gram Panchayat Barmani, Legislative Constituency Vijayraghavgarh

because appellant was possessing agricultural land and a rural house

- there, while appellant was not the ordinarily resident of village Barmani
-and in fact is an ordinarily resident of Ward No.31 of Katni. The

appellant was usually visiting village Barmani to take care of her
agriculture but since last one year because of heart disease, she was

.-continously residing at her house situated at Ward No.31 Chhakodilal

Pathak Ward of Katni. Late Chhakodilal Pathak happened to be her

*  prand-father-in-law and there is an ancestral house of husband of the

appellant at Ward No.31 of the Municipal Corporation, Katni.

.(1v) That, on 20.11.2009, the appellant moved an appllcath_n for
. .deletion of her name from the voter list of Gram Panchayat Barmani- -

on the ground that since about one year, she was continuously residing
in Ward No.31 of Katni. The Revenue Inspéctor recommended for
deletion of her name from the voter list of the Gram Panchayat Barmiani,
but such application was rejected by the Registration Officer-cum-
S.D.0., Vijayraghavgarh. Being aggrieved by the aforesaid, appellant

~ had preferred an appeal before the Collector-cum-District Election
- officer, Panchayat, Katni who remanded the case to the 5.D.O.and
‘ultimately by an order dated 8.12.2009, the SDO, Vijayraghavgarh

directed for deletion of name of the appellant from the voter-list of -

_ Gram Panchayat, Barmani vide order Annexure P/13.

(v)  Thaton7. 7 2009 M.P. State Election Commission had 1ssued
anorder for appointment of Registration/Assistant Registration Officer
forinviting claims and objection for preliminary/draft voter-list of

- Municipal Corporation, Katni. The last date of such correction was

N
hY
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24.10.2009 and.last date of publication of final voter list was

.11.11.2009. Appellant had found that particulars of her name were

wrongly recorded in Part-3, Ward No.31 Katni at Sr.No.219 as

““Nirmala W/o Jitendra Kumar, aged 47 years™. Appellant had moved

an application for correction in the voter-list under rule 9 of the
Nifvachan Niyam for correction of the entry as “Nirmala W/o
Satyendra Kumar, aged 58 years”, The application was filed on the

- prescribed format Annexure P/15. An enquiry was made by an

authorised offi¢er. He had made recommendation and accordingly,
the Registration Officer, on being satisfied from the preliminary enquiry
report, on 20.10. 2009 directed that the name of appellant be

U corrected He ordered thus:-

In place of “Jitendra Kumar’, ‘Satyendra Kumar’ and

in piace of age ‘47’ years, age ‘58’ years be corrected.,

(vi)  That, under rule 6(4) of the Nirvachan Niyam, voter-list so
amended was final subject to decision of appeal, if any. Rule 6(5)
provides that any person aggrieved by the decision of the Registration

. Officer may prefer an appeal to the appellate authority within five days

of such decision, but no provision is there for-filing an appeal after

. publication of the final voter-list. As no appeal was filed within 5 days
* against order dated 20.10.2009, order of Registration Officer had attained

o (i) - The appellant when inspected the final voter-list pub-lished on

11.11.2009 found that her name was not corrected because of some
printing error or due to clerical mistake while aforesaid entry was

already directed to be corrected by the Registration Officer on -
' 20.10.2009. The appellant under the proviso of rule 9 moved an.
* application to the Registration Officer for correction of such entry and

the Registration Officer-cum-SDO, Katni directed correction of error

in the name of appellant and the entry was directed to be corrected on
'20.11.2009 in the final voter list. Against such an order no appeal,

revision or review is provided under the rules, as such ﬁnal voter list

+ had attained finality under rule 6(4).

(viii) That, rule 9-A of Nirvachan Niyam provides for deletion of
entry in the voter-list in certaln exigencies, like a person concerncd

¥
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is registered in the voter-list of more than one ward of the Mumc1pa11ty _

. concerned or of any other Mumclpahty or of any Panchayat. Section
- *12 of the M.P. Municipal Corporation Act,1956 (hereinafter referred
. . 1o as ‘the Act’)specifically provides that no person shall be entitled to

be registered in the electoral roll of more than one ward in the same

- ity and no person shall be entitled to be registered in the-electoral -

‘roll for any ward more than once. But registration of a person in any

. other Panchayat is not a disqualification under Section'13 ofthe Act.

- It is stated in para 9'of the memo of appeal that the: provision as

" contained in fule 9-A providing deletion of the name; ifregistered, in

the voter-list of any Panchayat is contrary to section 12 of the Act.

(ix)  That, respondént No.7 Kamendra Smgh a worker of rival
political party, at the instance of some political leaders of ruling party,

- filed an appeal on 23.11.2009 directly before the Election Officer-

" cum-Collector underrule 9, 9-A read with 9-A(4)(5) of the Nirvachan

‘Niyam. The appellate authority directed for issuance of the notice to

** * "the appellant on 23:11.2009 directing her appearance on 24.11 2009

at 12 O’clock

i o

" (x) -~That on 23, 11 .2009, the appellant was declared as an
. "_authonsed congress party candidate for the election of office of Mayor

-+ and-had submitted a nom1nat10n as an authorlsed congress party
-+: candidate. v ;

Coel (x1) Respondent No.7 Kamendra Singhraised an objection that

: name of the appellant was registered in the Panchayat also and her.

name deserves to be deleted from the voter.list of Ward No.31 of
Mumclpal Corporat:lon, Katm

' "(xn') ~ That, respondent No.7 erroneously moved an application

under rule 9-A before the Registration Officer-cum-SDO on the basis
of same set of fact on which he had filed an appeal before the
appellate authority -cum-Collector. On this appeal, the appellate
authority directed for appearance of the appellant 24.11 2009 at 12

. _hours. On the appllcatlon filed by the’ respondent No.7 under rule
"9:A before the Registration Ofﬁcer-cum-SDO Katni, the Registration

Officer summoned the appellant to appear on 24. 11 2009 at4 p-m.

'(xm) The appellate authority who directed for appearance of the

sy
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~ appellantat 12 0’clock again directed the appellant to appear before

him at 5 p.m. Though he was apprised thaf the Registration Officer
had fixed the case under rule 9(A) at 4 p.m. The appellarit at 4 p.m.
appeared before the Registration Officer. The appellant made an
objection before the Registration Officer for supply of documents filed

by the respondent No.7 alongwith the application. The Registration -

Officer fixed the case for 25.11.2009 at 10 a.m. Thereafter, when the
appellant reached to the office of appellate authority-cum-Collector
at5.15 p.m., she became aware that the respondent No.7 Kamendra
Singh had w1thdrawn the appeal filed before the District Election Oﬂicer

- (xiv) On25.11.2009, the Registration Officer heard both parties

and passed an order at 7 p.m. Some allegations are also made in para
13 of the writ appeal that the leaders of rival ruling party had met with
the SDO, Katni and in this regard, a Fax message was also sent to the
State Election Commission against the Registration Officer.

(xv)  That,26.11.2009 was the last date for filing riomination paper
and to deter the appellant from contesting the election of Mayor, Katni,

_the Registration Officer-cum-SDO, Katni passed the impugned order

on 26.11.2009 at 12 p.m. directing deletion of the name of appellant
from the voter-list of Municipal Corporation, Katni on the ground that
her name was entered in the voter-list of Gram Panchayat, Barmani.
-Though it was not a disqualification under Section 12 of the Act;

(xvi) That; an appeal against such an order was filed before the
District Election Officer, Katni, but the appeal was not registered by

_ " the District Election Officer and the appellant apprehending some bias

“of the District Election Officer, rushed to the High Court, filed a writ
petition before the learned Single Bench on 26.11.2009. The aforesaid

“writ petition was heard on 26.11.2009 itself and ad interim writ was
issued in W.P.No.12756/09. The order reads thus:-

“26.11.2009

It is submitted that petitioner has been declared as a
candidate for the office of Mayor for Katni district by the Indian

National Congress political party and her name also exists in the voter-

list of CLP Ward No.31 Katni, but the respondent No.4 by the

~impugned order dated 26.11.2009 Annexure P-12, has directed for

»r

»
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the deletion of her name from the voter list. It has also been submitted
that if the order dated 26.11.2009 will not be stayed, petitioner will
be illegally deprived from contesting the prestigious election of Mayor
as the date fixed for scrutiny of nomination papers is tomorrow.

After hearing the learned counsel for petitioner, I deem it proper
to stay the operation of impugned order dated 26.11.2009 Annexure
P/12, and the operation of the order is accordingly stayed. It is,
however, made clear that the election in question of petitioner will be
subject to the final decision of this petition.”

(xvil) Against the order passed by the learned Single Judge dated
26.11.2009, respondent No.7 Kamendra Singh filed a Writ Appeal
No.1142/09 in which on 27.11.2009, a D1v151on Bench of this Court
‘passed an order which reads thus:-

“27.11.2009

Having heard the learned counsel for the parties, we are of
the considered opinion that the lis in question does require delineation
both on fact and law. What has been canvassed before us from both
sides is not such which apparently touches any jurisdictional factor
but delving deep into the factual matrix, the provisions in entirety and
law in the field. In view of the aforesaid, we are disposed to think that
interference at this stage in appeal would notbe appropriate especially
when the learned single Judge has expressed the view the election in
question would be subject to the final decision of the writ petition.
However, we may hasten to clarify that we have not expressed any
opinion on the merits of the case. Regard being had to the peculiarity
of the case we would request the learned single Judge to dispose of
the writ petition as expeditiously as possible.

Accordingly, the writ appeal stands disposed of.

(xviii) After ad interim writ issued by the learned Single Judge on
26.11.2009, the appellant contested the election of Mayor of Municipal
Corporation, Katni as a candidate of Indian National Congress and
defeated her nearest rival Smt.Alka Jain, a candidate of ruling party
BJP by amargin of about 5000 votes. It is alleged that after declaration
of the result, various appeals were filed before the District Election
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Officer which inspite of objection raised by the appellant, were
entertained. .

(xix) That, Smt.Alka Jain has also filed an election petition against
the appellant under Section 441 of the Act on the same grounds, which
are raised in this case, which is pending before the Additional District
Judge, Katni. _

On the aforesaid grounds, this appeal has been filed.
Respondents opposed the writ appeal on the following grounds:-

(a) That, the appellant was in fact an ordinarily resident of village
Barmani and was not entitled to contest the election of Mayor,
Municipal Corporatlon Katni.

(b)  That, in fact Nirmala W/o J itendra Kumar is the wife younger
brother of husband of appellant, the ordinarily resident of Ward No.31,

Municipal Corporation, Katni and taking advantage of the same name,

the appellant, just to get the benefit of reservation of seat of Mayor,
Katni got the aforesaid manipulation.

(c)  That, upto 20.10.2009, no order as is filed as Annexure P/15
was passed, otherwise there was no question of filing another
application on 20.10.2009 by the appellant for correction in the entry.

(d)  Thatappellant’s application for deleting her name from the
voter list of Gram Panchayat Barmani was already rejected, so she
was not entitled to contest the election from Ward No.31 for the office
of Mayor, Katni.

()  Againstthe impugned order dated 26.11.2009, the appellant
had already preferred an appeal, so learned Single Judge rightly
directed for disposal of the writ petition with liberty to the appellant to
press the appeal pending before the District Election Officer,

® That, on the date when the impugned order dated 26.11.2009
was passed, her name was appearing in both places namely at Gram
Panchayat, Barmani and also at Ward No.31 of Municipal
Corporation, Katni, so Registration Officer rightly directed deletion
of the name of the appellant from the voter list of Ward No.31 of

»
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6.

(g)  Thatthe appellant was ordinarily resident of village Barmani.
By manipulation, she got entered her name in the garb of correction of
entry which was not correct. In fact, younger brother of husband of
the appellant namely Jitendra Kumar is ordinarily resident of Ward
No.31. Other family members’ names are also appearing in the voter

+ list, so the Registration Officer rightly passed the order dated

26.11.2009 directing deletion of the name of the appellant from the
voter list of Ward No.31 of Katni, in which there is no fault.

(h) The appellant was not entitled to be registered at two places
and her application for correction of the entry was not maintainable.
It is submitted by the respondents that this appeal may be dismissed.

From the perusal of the aforesaid facts, it is apparent that the appellant,

after passing of ad interim writ by the learned Single Judge contested the
. election for the office of Mayor, Municipal Corporation, Katni and she was
declared as a returned candidate and at present she is holding the office of
Mayor, Katni. It is also not in dispute that the another candidate who was
rival contestant of the appellant namely Smt.Alka Jain has filed an election
petition against the appellant under Section 441 of the Act which is pending,
for adjudication, before the Additional District Judge, Katni who has to look
into the matter and after holding a due enquiry, to decide the matter in
accordance with law. In this case, various disputed questions of facts are
involved namely:-

(@)  Whether the appellant was the ordinarily resident of Ward
No.31 of Katni or she was ordinarily resident of Gram Parichayat,
Barmani ?

(b) . Whether Smt.Nirmala W/o Jitendra Kumar was a correctentry
in the voter list or it was duly corrected at the instance of the appellant
by the Registration Officer ?

(c) Whether the order dated 20.10.2009 was duly passed by the
Registration Officer and it was in existence even before passing of the
order by the Registration Officer on 11.11.2009 ?

(d)  Whether the appellant was.an ellglble candidate to contest
the election of Mayor, Katni.

All'these questions are to be examined by the Election Tribunal in the
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election petition filed by Smt.Alka Jain. The Election Tribunal while considering
the election petition will have to record findings in this regard after receiving
the evidence of both parties. The order of Election Tribunal deciding all the
issues will supersede the orders passed by the Registration Officer or by the
appellate authority in the matter. At this stage, if the matter is remanded back
to the appellate authority to decide the appeal, which has already been -
withdrawn by the appellant will be a futile exercise in the matter. The Division
Bench in this matter rightly permitted the appellant to withdraw the aforesaid
appeal with liberty to raise all the contentions in this appeal on 8.11.2010.
Any decision in this writ appeal will affect the decision of the election petition
filed by Smt.Alka Jain who is not party before this Court. In this appeal, the
contesting party is respondent No.7 who at present is not party in the election
petition. In absence of Smt.Alka Jain, if any finding is recorded by this Court,
naturally it will affect Smt.Alka Jain who has not been heard by this Court. In -
these circumstances, we find it appropriate to dispose of this writ appeal with
a direction that matter be finally adjudicated by the Election Tribunal in the
eléction petition filed by Smt.Alka Jain and till the matter is decided by the
Election Tribunal, order dated 26.11.2009 passed by the Registration Officer
be not given effect to and which shall be made subject to final decision by the
Election Tribunal.

7. The matter may be examined from one more angle. If this appeal is
dismissed, naturally order passed by the Registration Officer under rule 9-A
of the Nirvachan Niyam will come into force and the appellant who has
contested the election of Mayor will lose the seat only on the ground that she
was not an eligible candidate to contest the election of Mayor on the reserved
seat for woman at Municipal Corporation, Katni. If this appeal is allowed and
the order passed by the Registration Officer is set aside, this Court has to
record various findings which should be recorded only by the Election Tribunal.

- If those findings are recorded by this Court, naturally it will have an effect on

the Election Petition filed by Smt.Alka Jain against the appellant and is still

pending before the Election Tribunal, Katni. Article 243ZG of the Constitution”
of India provides that no election to any municipality shall be called in question
except by an election petition presented to such authority and in such manner
as is provided for by or under any law made by the legislature of a State.

Section 441 of the M.P. Municipal Cozrporation Act, 1956 provides thus:-

441.Election Petition- (1) No election or nomination under
this Act shall be called into question except by a petition
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presented in accordance with the provision of this section.

(2)  Such petition may be presented on one more of the
grounds specified in section 441-B-

(a) by any candidate at such election or nomination; or .

(b)  (i)in the case of an election of a Councillor, by any
voter of the ward concerned;

(ii) in the case of nomination of a Councillor, by any
Councillor;

@i inthe case of election of Mayor, by any voter of the
Municipal area to the principal Civil Court of original
jurisdictional (hereinafier referred as the Court) within the local
limits of whose jurisdictional the election or nomination was

held.
(3)  No petition presented under sub-section (2) shall be
admitted unless-

@ it is presented within thirty days from the date on which
) the result of such election or nomination was notified _in the
Gazette; and

()  itisaccompanied by a Government Treasury receipt -
showing a deposit of two hundred and fifty rupees.

(4) A petitioner shall join as respondents to his petition-

(@)  where the petitioner, in addition to claiming a
declaration that the election or nomination, as the case may
be, of all or any of the returned candidate is void, claims a
further déclaration that he himself or any other candidate has
been duly elected or nominated, all the contesting candidates
other than the petitioner, and where no such further declaration
is claimed, all the returned candidates;

(b)  any other candidates against whom allegations of any
corrupt practices are made in the petition.

(5)  Anelection petition shall-
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(a) contain a concise statement of the material facts on
which the petitioner relies;

(b)  with sufficient particulars, set forth the ground or
grounds on which the election or nomination is called in
question;

-(c)  besigned by the petitioner and verified in the manner

prescribed in the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 (V of 1908),
for the verification of pleadings.

441-A-Relief that may be claimed bj( the petitioner.-A
petitioner may claim-

(@  adeclaration that the election or nomination of all or
any of the returned candidates is void; and

(b)  inaddition thereto, a further declaration that he himself
or any other candidate has been duly elected or nominated.

(2)  Theexpression “returned candidate” means a candidate
whose name is notified in the Gazette under section 22,

441-B, Grounds for declaring election or nominations to
be void.-(1) Subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), if
the Court is of the opinion-

(@  thatonthe date of his election or nomination a returned
candidate was not qualified or was disqualified, to be chosen
as a Mayor or a Councillor; or

(b)  that any corrupt practice has been committed by a
returned candidate or his agent or by any other person with
the consent of a returned candidate or his agent; or

- (c) that any nomination paper has been improperly

rejected; or

(d)  thatthe result of the election or nomination, in so far as
it concerns a returned candidate has been materially affected-

@ by the improper acceptance of any nomination; or

4
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(i) by a corrupt practice having been committed in the interest
of the returned candidate by a person other than that candidate
or his agent or a person acting with the consent of such candidate
or agent; or

(i) by the improper acceptance or refusal of any vote or
reception of any vote which is void; or

(iv) by the non-compliance with the provisions of this Act
or of any rules or orders made thereunder save the rules framed
under section 14 in so far as they relate to preparation and
revision of list of voters, the Court shall declare the election of
the returned candidate to be void.

'(2) If in the opinion of the Court d returned candidate has
been guilty by an agent of any corrupt practice, but the Court
is satisfied -

(@ that no such corrupt practice was committed at the
election or nomination by the candidate, and every such corrupt
practice was committed contrary to the instructions, and
without the consent of the candidate ;

(b)  that the candidate took all reasonable means for
preventing the commission of corrupt practices at the election
or nomination; and

(¢)  thatinall other respects the election or nomination was
free from any corrupt practice on the part of the candidate or
any of his agents; then, the Court may decide that the election
or nomination of the returned candidate is not void.

441-G. Disqualification arising out of corrupt practices-
If any person, after the commencement of this Act, is, upon
the trial of an election petition thereunder, found guilty of any
corrupt practice, he shall, for a period of five years from the
date on which such finding takes effect, be disqualified for
voting at any election; '

Provided that the State Government may, by notification,
remove the disqualification incurred under this section with
effect from such date as mav be snecified therein.
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8. Section 441-B(a) specifically provides that the Court can declare
election of a returned candidate to be void on the ground that on the date of
his election, a returned candidate was not qualified or was disqualified to be
chosen as Mayor or any corrupt practice was committed by a returned
candidate. Aforesaid provision provides a complete mechanism to consider
all these questions which are raised by the parties before this Court. But as
we have stated hereinabove, any decision in this appeal would affect the
election petition filed by Smt. Alka Jain against the appellant. An election petition
challenging the election of the appellant has already been filed before the
Election Tribunal, and is pending before the competent Court of jurisdiction.
It would not be appropriate for this Court to decide all the aforesajd
contentions which are in fact disputed questions of facts and require proper
adjudication. In some of the issues, evidence will also be required to be
recorded. In these circumstances, it would not be appropriate for this Court
to decide the issues which are raised by the parties before this Court and we
find it appropriate to the parties to await the verdict of Election Tribunal in this
regard.

9 In view of aforesaid, we find it appropriate to dispose of this writ
appeal with following directions:-

@  Order dated 26.11.2009 passed by.the Registration Officer
directing deletion of name of the appellant from the voter-list of Ward
No.31 of Katni shall remain in abeyance till the decision by the Election
Tribunal in the election petition filed by Smt.Alka Jain against the
appellant challenging her election of Mayor of Municipal Corporation,
Katni and shall be subject to final decision by the Election Tribunal,

()  TheElection Tribunal is directed to decide the election petition
preferred by Smt.Alka Jain expeditiously.

(i)  The decision of the Election Tribunal shall be binding on all the
parties.

With the aforesaid directions, this writ appeal is finally disposed of
with no order as to costs.

Appeal disposed of
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WRIT APPEAL .
Before Mr. Sushil Harkauli, Acting Chief Justice & Mr. Justice Alok
' Aradhe

W.A No0.902/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 28 November, 2011

BASANT KUMAR JAIN ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE BANK OF INDIA ...Respondent

Constitution — Article 226 — Writ Petition — Alternative Remedy
— Appellant asserted that no notice under Section 13(2) of Securitization
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security

. Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 was issued whereas counsel for the

respondent-Bank has stated that notice under Section 13(2) of the Act
was served by affixture and panchnama was prepared — The question
whether under Section 13(2) of the Act was served on the appellant or
not, is a disputed question of fact which can not be adjudicated in a writ
petition —All the grounds with regard to procedural irregularity in taking
the measures under Section 13(4) of the Act can very well be agitated
and adjudicated in the appeal preferred under Section 17 of the Act —
Writ petition on the ground of availability of alternative remedy, can
be dismissed — Writ appeal dismissed, (Para7)

. WRETT — FTWT 226 — Re TFawr — F#>9F svarv — adiaredf
7 wrE & 5 i afaa’ o1 gffies sk gafes e
gfeffay f&9 &1 wads (SARFAESI) afifram, 2002 & grr 13(2) @
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B a1 13(2) B Fawfa few ol f5ar T or serEr 9@ Rl qen
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™ Wt smaRt Bt Sfafs 3 arr 17 @ sala sefig {-gdwTRY SemEr
1§ =mafiia fear s wwar @ —dafeas SUuR @ SudEar @ AER 9T
Re aifaer @R 4 w1 wsdh & — Re afla =lkw)

Cases referred: ]
~ (2010) 8 SCC 110, (2008) 1 SCC 125, AIR 2008 PUNJAB &
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HARYANA 148, AIR 2008 KARNATAKA 136, AIR 2011 JHARKHAND
68, (2005) 6 SCC 499, (1998) 8 SCC 1, AIR 2005 SC 3454, AIR 1971
SC 33, (2008) 12 SCC 675.

Ashok Lalwani, for the appellant.
Anuj Agrawal, for the respondents.

ORDER

The order of the court was delivered by:
ALox ArADEE J. : Heard on the question of admission.

In the instant writ petition, the petitioner has challenged the validity of
the order dated 25.7.2011passed by the learned Single Judge by which the
writ petition preferred by the appellant has been dismissed. In order.to
z:gg'-eciate the appellant’s grievance, few facts need mention, which are stated

2. The appellant had obtained financial assistance from the respondent-

Bank to the tune of Rs.23.25 lacs for establishment of grossery business. In

order to secure the loan, the appellant had mortgaged his property consisting

land as well as residential house situate at village Bankhedi, District

Hoshangabad. It is the case of the appellant that he sustained losses in the

business and thereafter, he shifted to Raipur. A notice dated 21.3.2007 was

published in the newspaper in exercise of power under Section 13(4) of the

Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of
Security Interest Act, 2002 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’). The appellant

thereupon approached this Court by filing a writ petition inter-alia on the .
ground that neither any notice as envisaged under Section 13(2) of the Act

was issued to the appellant nor there was compliance with provisions of
Section 13(3-A) of the Act. The writ petition preferred by the appellant was

dismissed by the learned Single Judge by placing reliance on the decision of
Supreme Court in United Bank of India Vs. Satyawati Tandon (2010) 8

SCC 110. The learned Single Judge declined to entertain the writ petition in

view of availability of alternative remedy under Section 17 of the Act before

_ the Debts Recovery Tribunal. In the aforesaid factual backdrop, the appellant

has filed the instant appeal.

3. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the learned Single
Judge ought to have appreciated that neither any notice under Section 13(2)
of the Act was served on the appellant nor there was compliance with provisions
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of Section 13(3-A) of the Act, therefore, the action initiated by the respondent-
Bank under Section 13(4) of the Act was abinitio void. It was further
submitted that alternative remedy is not a bar in entertaining the writ petition.
It was also submitted that writ petition was entertained by the learned Single
Judge initially and various interim orders were passed and, therefore, the writ
petition should not have been dismissed on the ground of availability of
alternative remedy. It was urged that the appellant can raise the ground with
regard to the validity of the measure taken under Section 13(4) of the Act
only in the appeal under Section 17 of the Act. In support of his submissions,
learned counsel for the appellant has placed reliance in the cases of Transcore
Vs. Union of India and another, (2008) 1 SCC 125, Bhupinder Singh V.

State Bank of Patiala & Others, AIR 2008 Punjab and Haryana, 148, M/
s. Raja Associates & Ors. Vs. Union of India & Ors., AIR 2008 Karnataka
136 and M/s. Jayant Agencies Vs. Canara Bank & Ors., AIR 2011 Jharkhand 68.

4, On the other hand, learned counsel for the respondent-Bank submitted
that notice under Section 13(2) of the Act dated 20.3.2006 was sent at the
address of the appellant, however, the same could not be served. Eventually,
the notice was affixed in the premises of the appellant and the panchnama
was prepared. It was further submitted that notice under Section 13(2) of the
Act was also sent to the guarantors which was duly served upon them. The
action under Section 13(4) of the Act has been taken by the respondent-
Bank in accordance with law which does not call for any interference, as the
appellant has an efficacious remedy under Section 17 of the Act where he can
agitate all his grievances.

5. We have considered the submissions made on both sides. It is well
settled in law that powers conferred on this Court under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India are very wide and there is no express limitation on exercise
of the power, but at the same time, the rules of self-imposed restraint have
been evolved for exercise of powers under Article 226 of the Constitution of
India. The doctrine of availability of alternative remedy is a rule of selfimposed
limitation. It is essentially a rule of policy, convenience and discretion and
never arule of law. Despite existence of an alternative remedy it is within the
jurisdiction of discretion of the High Court to grant reliefunder Article 226 of
the Constitution. There are two well recognized exceptions of doctrine of
exhaustion of statutory remedies. First is when the proceedings are taken
before the forum under a provision of law which is ultra vires and secondly,
when the impugned order has been made in violation of the principles of natural
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justice. [See: State of H.P. Vs. Gujarat Ambuja Cement Ltd., (2005), 6

SCC 499, and Whirlphool Corporation Vs. Registrar of Trade Marks,-

Mumbai and others, (1998) 8 SCC 1]. In Satyawati Tandon, supra, the
Supreme Court has held that rules of exhaustion of alternative remedy is a
rule of discretion and not of compulsion. It has further been held that ordinarily,
a writ petition under Article 226 of the Constitution of India should not be
entertained if an effective remedy is available to an aggrieved person and this
rule applies with greater rigour in the matters involving recovery of taxes,
cess, fees and other types of public money and dues of bank and other financial

‘institution. However, it has not been held by the Supreme Court that in no -

case, a writ petition can be entertmned under Article 226 inspite of avallablhty
of alternative remedy.

6. Section 13 of the Act deals with enforcement of security interest.
Section 13 (2) provides that in case of default in repayment of the loan and
the account of the borrower in respect of such a loan is classified as
nonperforming asset then secured creditor may require the borrower by notice
in writing to discharge in full his liabilities to the secured creditor within 60
days from the date of notice, failing which secured creditor shall be entitled
to exercise all or any of rights under section 13 (4) ofthe Act. Section 13 (3)
mandates that notice under Section 13 (2) shall give details of the amount
payable by the borrower. Section 13 (3-A) casts a duty on the secured
creditor to decide the representation/objection preferred by the borrower on
receipt of notice under Section 13 (2) and to communicate the reasons for
non-acceptance of the representation/objection within a week. Thereafter
the secured creditor can resort to the measures under Section 13 (4) of the
Act. Thus, before invoking measures under Section 13(4) the secured creditor
is required to comply with the provisions of Sections 13 (2), 13 (3) and 13
- (3-A) of the Act. There may be cases where the writ petition can be entertained
notwithstanding the remedy of appeal under the Act, such as, a case where
admittedly there is no compliance of provisions of Section 13(2) and 13 (3-A)
of the Act, which is sine qua non for exercise of powers under Section 13(4)
of the Act. In such a case, the measure/action taken under Section 13(4) of
the Act would be abinitio void and in violation of principles of natural justice
as incorporated in the Act. Such a case would be covered by the exception
to the doctrine of exhaustion of alternative remedy pointed by the Supreme
Court in Whirlpool Corporation (supra) and Gujarat Ambuja Cement
(supra) There may also be case where the writ petition is entertained by the
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High Court and interim orders are passed and in compliance of interim orders
substantial amount of loan is repaid to the financial institution, in such a case,
the High Court would not be justified in dismissing the writ petition on the
ground of availability of alternative remedy. We may hasten to add here that
the aforesaid examples are only illustrative and not exhaustive. .

7. . Onthe touchstone of well settled legal position and in the light of
decision of the Supreme Court in Satyawati Tandon, supra, the facts of the
case may be seen. In the instant case, on one hand the appellant has asserted
that no notice under Section 13(2) of the Act was issued whereas learned
counsel for respondent-Bank has stated that notice under Section 13(2) of
the Act was served by affixture and panchnama was prepared. The question
whether or not notice under Section 13(2) of the Act was served on the
_appellant or not, is a disputed qiestion of fact which cannot be adjudicated in
a writ petition. It is well settled in law that this Court would not adjudicate the
disputed questions of fact in exercise of power under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India. See: Mrs. Sanjana M. Wig Vs. Hindustan Petro
Corporation Ltd., AIR 2005 SC 3454. The instant case is not a case where
the appellasit has paid the substantial amount towards the loan taken by him
from the Bank. The contention that in an appeal under Section 17 of the Act,
the aggrieved person can only challenge the order passed under Section 13(4)
of the Act, also does not deserve acceptance. We haveé carefully gone through
the provisions of Section 17(1) of the Act and we have no manner of doubt
that all the grounds with regard to procedural irregularity in taking the measures
under Section 13(4) of the Act can very well be agitated and adjudicated in
the appeal preferred under Section 17 of the Act. Similarly, the contention
that once the writ petition is entertained, this Court cannot disniiss the writ
petition on the ground of availability of alternative remedy also cannot be
- accepted as the ratio of the decision relied upon by learned counsel for the
-appellant in L. Hirday Narain Vs. ITO, Bareilly, AIR 1971 SC 33, has been
mellowed down subsequently by the Supreme Court in State of UP. and
Another v. Uttar Pradesh Rajya Khanij Vikas Nigam Sangharsh Samiti
and Others, (2008) 12 SCC 675 and it has been held — it cannot be laid
~ down as proposition of law that writ petition is admitted it can be dismissed
on the ground of availability of alternative remedy.

8. For the aforementioned reasons, we do not find any: merit in the appeal.
The same fails and is hereby dismissed.
: Appeal dismissed.
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WRIT APPEAL
Before Mr. Justice S.N. Aggarwal & Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube

W.A. No. 160/2011 (G\;valior) decided on 9 December, 2011

SURESH PAL SINGH ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ’ ...Respondents

Police Regulations, M.P., Regulation 70-A — Out of Turn
Promotion — Such promotion is not a matter of legal right — It is within
the discretion of the competent authonty to grant or not to grant out of
turn promotion. (Para 12)

glera 1395, 9.9, ﬂﬁmm—v—ﬂwwﬂvﬁaﬂ%@hwﬁﬁ
fakre afer @1 faga 98 2—fa=r o vei=fa we &3 serar gsE
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Prashant Sharma, for the appellant.
Vivek Khedkar, Dy. A.G. for the respondent/State

ORDER

The order of the court was  delivered by :
S.N. AGGarwaL, J :- This is an intra-court appeal filed by the appellant
aggrieved by the order of learned Single Judge dated 26® October, 2010 in
Writ Petition No.3785/09 rejecting his claim for out of turn promotion to the
post of inspector from the post of sub inspector.

(2)  Briefly stated, facts of the case giving rise to this appeal are as follows:

The appellant, in the night of 16® November,2002 while working as
sub inspector at Police Station, Panihar had participated in an encounter in
which six dacoits including the gang leader, a known dacoit Pappu Gurjar,

~were killed on account of exemplary acts of bravery exhibited by the members
of the police party that participated in the encounter. In terms of Regulation
70-A of Madhya Pradesh Police Regulations, a police personnel can be
considered for out of turn promotion for his act of bravery on the
recommendations of the competent authority. The competent authority of the
respondents granted out of turn promotion to four police personnel who were
'members of the police party that participated in the encounter. A copy of the
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order of their promotion is Annexure P/4 at page 70 of the appeal paper
book. The appellant was not granted out of turn promotion. The authorities
recommended him for issuance of citation and for cash reward of Rs.5,000/-
which he got. Consequent upon recommendations of the competent authorities
of the respondents, the appellant was rewarded for the acts of his bravery
exhibited by him in the incident in question by award of police medal and cash
of Rs.5,000/-. However, he was denied out of turn promotion by the
respondents for the following two reasons :

(i) "Theactofofbraveryofthe appellant was distinguishable
from the act of bravery of those who were granted out
of turn promotion. Reference may be made in this regard
to the return of the respondents and the relevant portion
of which is at page 73 of the appeal paper book.

(i) There was no vacancy of inspector in the quota of out
of turn promotlon at the time he was considered for such
promotion.”

(3)  Theappellant was aggrieved by denial of out of turn promotion by the
respondents to him and he challenged their administrative decision in this regard
by filing a writ petition in which the order impugned in the present appeal has
been passed by the learned Single Judge. The learned Single Judge has upheld
the administrative decision of the respondents in denying out of turn promotion
to the appellant basing his finding on the plea of respondents that the act of
the appellant was distinguishable from the acts of those who were granted out
of turn promotion. The learned Single Judge did not go into the second
reason regarding availability or non-availability of vacancy in the quota of out
of turn .promotion, which was also a ground for denial of out of turn promotion
to the appellant by the Department

(4)  Wehave heard Shri Prashant Sharma, learned counsel appearing on
behalf of the appellant and Shri Vivek Khedkar, learned Deputy Advocate
General appearing on behalf of respondents/State. We have also perused the
record and have given our anxious consideration to the rival submlssmns made
by the counsels for parties before us..

(5)  The first ground on which the appellant has been denied out of turn
- promotion which has also been accepted by the learned Single Judge is that
his act of bravery in the incident was distinguishable from those who were
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granted out of turn promotion vide order Annexure P/4 at page 70 of the
appeal paper book. The respondents have pleaded in their return as under:

"While scrutinizing case of petitioner Screening Committee
observed that petitioner has fired on dacoits taking shelter of
his colleague B.K Parashar which was totally against field crafts
and tactics. In this manner petitioner has put the life of his
colleague in danger and as such committee did not found' work
of petitioner distinguishable for grant of out of turn promotion.”

‘With the assistance of the counsels for the parties we have scanned
the record in order to find out whether the role of the appellant was actually
distinguishable from the role of those who have already been granted out of
turn promotion. In this regard, we would like to refer to the contents of the
FIR as also the report of Superintendent of Police as both these documents
contain the role performed by the appellant in the encounter. :

(6)  AnFIR of the incident in which six dacoits including the gang leader
Pappu Gurjar were killed was lodged by Station House Officer Inspector
B.K.Parashar. A typed copy of the FIR is Annexure P/2 at pages 48 to 57 of
the appeal paper book and the . relevant portion insofar as it deals with the
role of the appellant in the incident is extracted herein below:

“T 1. T@ifera} & uidt He @ SR / A9F 5 T B
R refrer forg gY oft e o @ forg vata oy w1t off fw g
QL1 7 AT W S STaay Mell Bt deR & I 9w B
B AT Wl SR e IaRravrar &1 ufag <0 Y Igw dRar @
gt Ut & g ST vF HHa) B | A9 # ofc o 9 M
T4 gY Bl 3T A4 9K T8 d I velnef SRR o7 & sy
a2 gferw afdr. 59 9= oo wemef vrR 3R sdal B g e
wdor 3 for seerT 6 99 ¥ (e 9 7 s B U™ e
AP AR, [T IR Fear BRR BRE @ g e e fr o
A Ao o vaadl e, TRER  arererd aul o wiRew
" ST HR S DI P By WV BT IR=G I gY T A8
DRI AU AS 3 AAHA D GRI EAAN B X8 THd Bl BRN P
ERMTE DY fqar af M gRI TeHTal $HT W BIAR T8l a1 S
W IR AT 1 e @ 7 8 9ar AR T shd B 9% F ysEe
R R P 99 A g | 5h W D) ERIE B o 99 U
HS[E §ER A W (H5A AHD 8HY g9 YA § D, TRER

"
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(7) The Supenntendent of Police had recommended the case of the

. appellant alongwith others for their out of turn promotion vide document which
is at page 60 of the appeal paper book and the relevant portlon thereof is
extracted herein below: : :

“ e Wﬂ@%ﬂ?aﬁmmﬁﬂaﬁwg@ﬁ?wﬁ
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fiee sda N e aEa @i duw e 5 R g 9
, G @ S ¥ (PUB B AR w8AT ¥ sl B Bl I gE |
w91 ¥ Toat ) SPAR wee) R § T e @
TR B IR FY WIUN 3G AP UG SHal 7 T aBd Y
IR TR ST BIRR LS oY 33 R =A@ e e
ol g2 Prdleres argiter Rig wARam 3 uidf w1 gehal | STt
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A 3= Age TR A Su e gad.RiE T T5a wEe e
raT Y, For g qug el o EiRET Bt ey o W1 I8 ot 9.
W 9 e TadRiE TR FER BRI <9 Y R ol
it e Rig 7Rar ot T W SR S B Aepr T2 e e
A R T 39 Pl A5, IRRR e aeis Re w&iRar o
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Re & ® o 99 9 1o e ¥ 99 IReR @ SR R
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(8)  Abarereference to the role of the appellant contained in the FIR and
the recommendation letter of Superintendent of Police would amplify the act
of his bravery and would negate the first reason ' given by the respondents for
denying out of turn promotion to him. Rather the role of the appellant as
contained in the above documents tends to show that he had exhibited an
exemplary act of bravery in the encounter for which he was eligible to be
considered for his out of turn promotion in terms of Regulation 70-A of Madhya
Pradesh Police Regulations. The appellant, in fact, stand already by the
Department for his act of bravery by issuance of a citation and giving him cash
reward bf Rs.5,000/-. It was on the recommendations of the Department that
the appellant got President Medal for the act of bravery exhibited by him in
the incident of encounter on 16th November,2002.

(%)  Thenextquestion that now stares at us craving for an answer is whether
the appellant was also entitled for out of tum promotion as a matter of right in
terms of Regulation 70-A of Madhya Pradesh Police Regulations. A perusal
of the ‘order dated 27th October, 2008 ( Annexure P/l at page 38 of the
appeal paper book) would show that the appellant was denied out of turn
promotion also for the reason that there was no vacancy available for him at
the relevant time when he was considered for out of turn promotion. The
relevant portion of the order by which he was denied out of turn promotion is
extracted herein below: :

“aE ff ST & 5 weawdy gt ¥ adEm o Prdes
P B WEd 1014 TR F A oA o B forg Rifted s40 T3t 1@
gt afeT 7 @ g 95 Frdes w9 @ g vei=I T
e 8 | I & oReA B2 (o) 516 /85 /-4 /2 10/6 /87
B IRIR W ¥ g TR 3G 10 URIE B Biel FiRa fear mar
g1 T WOR A 1014 Wigd w17 3 R admm ¥ srfe @i
Tl & 921 Frierant # ol 77F @ 100 & aftre Prdes ww @ o
TSI ATl | 39 UOR B} ASE s € 2% ¥ wme
TR & SaeR T7et g B €, R f—vg Yeer M
aﬂ#mﬁmﬁrﬁﬁ/aﬂfmﬁﬁa%mawﬁwamm%‘.
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-(10)- - The respondents in- thexr return to the writ petition ﬁledlby tl}e appellant

“have reiterated their stand that there was no vacancy available for the appellant
" to grant him-outof turn promotion. The relevant portion of the/retum of the
respondents in regard to vacancy position which is there at page 71 of the_v
appeal pap er book is extracted herein below: e

" "Beside all the above it is furtherto be subm1tted that

' presently there are total 1014 sanctioned post of Inspector in
Pollce force agalnst which 649 posts are allocated for
unresered cate gory Out of 649 unreserved category posts 95
Inspectors are holding such post on the. basis of out of turn.

promotlon The State Government by order dated 10.6.87
has fixed criteria of 1 O% posts and as against total sanctioned

g post 0f 1014 posts 921 Inspectors are in existence and out of
them 100 Inspectors from all category is holding post of
Inspector on the basis of out of turn promotion. In this way

" outofturn promotion has been givenin excess to fixed quota
which adversely affect on career of general promotion channel
employee. In this manner no post for grant of out of turn

promotlon is presently available. "

'

( 1 1) The aforcmentloned facts pleaded by the respondents in the order by
‘which the appe]lant was demed out of turn promotion as also in their return
regarding vacancy posmon do not depict whether the vacancy position
disclosed by them was of a time when he was considered for out of turn
promotion in regard to his act of bravery in the encounter of 2002. Though,
the appellant has not pleaded either in the writ petition or in the appeal that
the respondents had granted out of turn promotion to any of his juniors, but
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for the first time, the learned counsel appearing on his behalfhas orally submitted
before us that the respondents have granted out of turn promotion to the
persons junior to him. The learned Deputy Advocate General, appearing on
behalf of the respondents/State says that he can neither admitnor deny the .
statement of the appellant in regard to grant of out of turn promotion to any
junior of the appellant as he had no opportunity to take instructions in this
regard from his client.

(12) We are of the view that out of turn promotion in terms of Regulation

70-A of Madhya Pradesh Police Regulations is not a matter of legal right. It is
within the discretion of the competent authority of the respondents to grant or
not to,grant out of turn promotion. But exercise of administrative discretion by
;;hc;;Dlejggg_tment.must not be vitiated by any unreasonableness, irrationality,
,_prtejuéli'cpolr any bias. Since a plea has been taken on behalf of the appellant
_ that the Department has granted out of turn promotion to his juniors in regard
* to the same act of bravery, we deem it appropriate that ends of justice shall be
adequately met in case the case of the appellant for his out of turn promotion
is considered by the Department once again limiting only on the point whether
any person junior to him has been granted out of turn promotion with regard
to the same act of bravery in the incident of encounter that took place on 16th
November, 2002. In case, upon such consideration, it is found by the
. Department that any person junior to the appellant has been granted out of
turn promotion, then they should also consider the claimof appellant for his
out of turn promotion taking into-account the role played by him in the encounter
which we have already extracted herein above, but that should again be
dependant upon availability of vacancy in the quota of out of turn' promotion
at the relevant time and, of course, the relevant time is the date when encounter
in which the appellant had participated had taken place.

(13) Inview of the foregoing, we find it difficult to sustain the impugned
order of the learned Single Judge which is hereby set aside. This appeal is
partly allowed to the extent already mentioned herein above. The respondents
are directed to pass a speaking order in the light of our observations within
four weeks of receipt of certified copy of this order under intimation to the
appellant. The parties are left to bear their own costs. R

Appeal partly allowed
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. 'WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K. K. Lahoti & Mrs. Justice Vimla Jam

W.P.No. 911/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on 27 August, 20 1_1 :

ANKIT LIME & MIN ERALS W L ... Petitioner .
Vs. .
ASSTT COMMERCIAL TAX OFFICER &ors. - ... Respondents

Sthaniya Kshetra Me Mal Ke Pravesh Par Kar Adhiniyam, M.P
(52 of 1976),Section 69 = Imposition of Penalty — Petitioner declared
entire purchases and clairhed exemption — Exeinption was refused and
penalty was imposed — Held — Revisional Authority is required to record
the grounds of its satisfaction that the petitioner had concealed the:
aggregate amount of purchase price or furnished false partlculars
thereof in the return — There was no concealment of purchases or
furnishing of false partlculars by petltloner—Takmg alegal plea that
goods are not taxable would not make the return a false return —
Penalty cannot be imposed, by condemmng the return as a false return.

(Para 9)
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Cases referred:

(1970) 25 STC 211(SC), (1983) 16 VKN 44,
. - Mukesh Agrawal, for the petitioner. . e
. Vivek Agrawal; G:A. for the respondent/State.

o
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ORDER ..

The order of the court was delivered by :
ViMLA JAIN, J. :- The petitioner, being aggrieved by order dated 9.9.2003
(Annexure P-7) passed in revision by respondent No.2 Divisional Deputy
Commissioner, M.P. Commercial Tax, J abalpur, confirming the penalty of
Rs.65,500/-, arising out of the order dated 16.1.2003 (Annexure P-4) under
Section 13 of the M.P Sthaniya Kshetra Me Mal Ke Pravesh Par Kar
Adhiniyam, 1976 (52 0f'1976) (hereinafter referred to as the Act) read with
Section 69(1) of the M.P. Vanijyik Kar Adhiniyam, 1994 (5 of 1995) passed
by respondent No.1 Assistant Commercial Tax Officer, Katni, has come to
this Court by filing a writ petltlon under Articles 226 and 227 of the Constltu-
tion of India.

2. Bneﬂy stated the facts of the case are that the petltloner—M/s Ankit
Lime & Minerals a manufacturer of limestone was assessed for tax by
respondent No.1 for the period 1.4.1999 to 31.3.2000 by assessment order
dated 28.11 2002 The tax of Rs.16,125/- with interest of Rs.11 ,610/- was
assessed under Section 26(4)(a) of the Act and total demand of Rs.27,735/-
was raised. The penalty proceedings were also initiated. During the course of

penalty proceedings, the entire purchases of Rs.17,02,880/- disclosed bythe .

petitioner; books of accounts, bills of sales and purchases weré acéepted by
réspondent No. 1. But the Assessing Officer treated these pirchases as taxable
purchases, levied penalty of Rs.65500 and refuted the submission of the
petitioner that the penalty could not be imposed because there was no fraud
or concealment of any transaction in the return. The revision was preferred
by the petitioner against the penalty order but it was dismissed by respondent
No.2. The petitioner being dissatisfied with the rewsmn order has filed the
present writ petition.

3. The short question involved in this petmon is, whether a case for
imposition of penalty for the assessment year 1.4.1999 to. 31.3.2000is made
. out against the petitioner or not.

4, It was submitted that the petitioner had declared entire purchases and
claimed exemption under Section 3 of the Act. The Assessing Officer had
accepted its books of accounts and sale vouchers but issued a notice to impose
the penalty. The petitioner had replied to the notice that it has correctly disclosed
all the facts and put its legal claim regarding tax exemption.

3
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5. The explanation of the petitioner was not accepted by both the

authorities and penalty of Rs.65,000/- was imposed on the petitioner on the

ground that ithad submitted the false return and concealed the amount of

purchases for the period 1.4.1999 to 31 3 2000 and thus it had not deposited
the required tax in time.

6. We have heard learned counsel for the parties

7. It is not the case of respondents that the petmoner had submitted the
false particulars in its return. On the other hand, it is clear from the impugned
order that the petitioner had subrmtted required details and claimed exemption
by raising a legal plea. The authorities imposed the penalty on the.ground that

it claimed exemption which amounts to deliberate non-payment of the tax and
filing false return. We have perused the record and penalty order dated
9.9.2003 passed in revision by the respondent No.2 conﬁrmmg the penalty

8. To appreciate rival contentions of the parties, it will be necessary to
look into the relevant provisions, Section 13 ofthe Act and Sectlon 69 of the
M.P. Vanijyik Kar Adhiniyam, 1994 read thus:-

“SECTION 13 CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
“YVANIJYIK KAR ADHINIYAM” TO APPLY:- Subject
to provisions of this'Act and the rules made there under,
sections 3, 11, 26, 27, 28,29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 36, 38,39, 40,
41, 42, 43, 45, 46, 47, 49, 52, 54, 55, 56, 61, 62, 63, 64,
'65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70,71, 72, 73, 74, 75,76, 77 and 80 of
the **Vanijyik Kar Adhiniyam” and notifications issued-
thereunder shall mutatis mutandis apply to a dealer or person.
in respect of the entry tax levied and payable under this Act as’
if these sections were mittatis mutandis incorporated in this
Act and the rules, orders and notifications issued under those"
sections were mutatis mutandis or 1ssued under the relevant
sections as so incorporated in this Act.’ S

. PR ]
69. Power of Commissioner or appellate or revisional
authority to impose penalty in certain circumstances—
(1) If the Commissioner or the appellate or revisional authority,
in the course of any proceedings under this Act is satisfied
that a dealer has concealed his turnover or the aggregate ~
amount of purchase prices in respect of any goods or has™
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furnished false particulars of his sales or purchases, as the case
may be, in his return or returns for any year or part thereof or
has furnished a false return or returns'for such period, the
Commissioner or the appellate or the revisional authority as -
the case may be, may initiate proceeding separately for
imposition of penalty under this Section.

(2)  The proceeding under sub-section (1) shall be initiated
by the Commissioner or the appellate or revisional authority
as the case may be, by issue of a notice in the prescribed form
for giving the dealer an opportunity of being heard. On hearing
the dealer, the Commissioner or the appellate or the revisional
authority as the case may be, shall pass an order not later than -
one calendar year from the date of initiation of such proceeding
or within such further time as allowed by the State Government,
directing the dealer that, he shall in addition to the tax payable
by him pay by way of penalty a sum which shall be five times
of the amount of tax evaded.

(3)  If the total Tax shown as payable according to the
return or returns and paid by a dealer for any period or part
thereof is less than eighty per cent of the total tax assessed
under Section 27 such dealer shall be deemed to have
concealed his turnover or aggregate of his purchase prices or
to have furnished false particulars of his sales or purchases in
his retumn or returns or to have fumished a false return or returns
for the purpose of sub-section (1) unless he proves to the
satisfaction of the Commissioner or the appellate or the
revisional authority, as the case may be, that the concealment
of the said turnover orthe aggregate of purchase prices or
furnishing of particulars of sales or purchases or furnishing of
the false return or returns was not due to any fraud or gross
negligence on his part.”

9. In order to attract imposition of penalty under Section 69, the revisional
authority is required to record the grounds of its satisfaction that the petitioner
has concealed the aggregate amount of purchase price or furnished false
particulars thereof in the return. On going through the impugned order, we do
not find any concealment of purchases or furnishing of false particulars by the
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petitioner. The petitioner had not attempted to do so. On the other hand, it
had raised a legal plea seeking exemption of tax on the goods. Taking a legal
~ plea that the goods are not taxable would not make the return a false return.
It appears that the petitioner had not submitted the feturn with guilty mind
because it had the bonafide belief that the entire goods were not taxable.

Therefore, the penalty cannot be imposed by condemning the returnasa
false return. In the case of Hindustan Steel Limited v State of Orissa (1970)
25 STC 211 (SC), the Supreme Court has held that an order imposing pen-
alty for failure to carry out a statutory obligation is the result of a quasi crimi-

nal proceeding and penalty will not ordinarily be imposed unless the party
obliged either acted deliberately in defiance of law or was guilty of conduct
contumactous or dishonest, or acted in conscious disregard of its obligation.

10. A Division Bench of this Court in Goyindram Chatramal, Gwalior
Vs Commissioner of Sales Tax (1983) 16 VKN 44 held that failure to
disclose purchases in quarterly returns will not amount to impose penalty. To
fall-within the ambit of section of penalty, it must be accompanied with mens
rea. When there is a bonafide doubt about the fact that the purchases are
taxable or not, it cannot be said that there was any mens rea of the Assessee -
in deliberately non-payment of the tax. The Division Bench held that in such
circumstances, the Assessee was not liable for penalty. In the present case,
the Assessee disclosed all the transactions and complete return was filed but
the Assessee contended before the authority that the aforesaid transactions
were not taxable. It appears that it was a bonafide plea of the Assessee,
which was not upheld by the authorities but on this ground, the petitioner was
not liable for penalty.

11.  Inview ofthe aforesaid discussion, we do not find that the petitioner
with guilty mind had concealed purchases or had submitted false returns to
invite the penalty. :

12."  Accordingly, the petition deserves to be and is hereby allowed. The
impugned order dated 9.9.2003 (Annexure P-7) passed by the Divisional
Deputy Commissioner, Jabalpur is hereby quashed. No order as to costs.

Petition allowed
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WRIT PETITION
: Before Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 13087/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 September, 2011

GR. DHUPAR _ ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

Service Law — Compulsory Retirement — Only for three annual
confidential reports of the year 1976, 1977 and 1983 as also a punish-
ment awarded in a departmental enquiry, the petitioner was:said to be
found fit for compulsory retirement in the year 1998 — Recent record.
of the service of the petitioner was not examined — Held — Order (of
compulsory retirement) quashed. - (Paras 6 &7)
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Case referred:
(2001) 3 SCC 314.
‘Rajesh Maindiratta, for the petitioner.
Kumaresh Pathak, Dy. A.G. for the respondent/State.

ORDER

K.K. Trivepy, J. :- This petition was originally filed as Original Appli-
cation No. 3079/1998 before the M.P. Administrative Tribunal and has been
transmitted to this Court after closer of the Tribunal, and is renumbered as
W.P. No. 13087/2003. The petitioner, who was at the relevant time working
as Principal Class-I in the Industrial Training Institute, Khandwa, was ag-
grieved with an order of compulsory retirement issued on 18% February, 1998
(Annexure A-4) and after making of representation, approached the M.P.
Administrative Tribunal challenging the said order on various grounds.

2. It was contended by the petitioner that he has unblemished service
record to his credit and could not have been compulsorily retired treating him

~
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as a dead wood in view of the fact that the petitioner after grant of promotion
as Principal was made to work on the post of Apprentice Advisor, which was
equivalent to.the post of Deputy Director and was also made to officiate on
the post of Joint Director w.e.f. 06.11.1994 to 11.10.1995. It is contended-
by the petitioner that had he been so bad in his service performance he would
not have given the benefit of higher post than the substantive rank of the
petmoner and therefore, it is contended that the order of compulsory retirement
is unsustamable inthe eye of law. : '

3. °  Therespondents in their retuin have contended that there were adverse

entries in the confidential report of the petitioner for the year 1996, 1997 and

1983, There was one more fact that the departmental enquiry was initiated -
against the petitioner and the order of recovery was issued against him on-
26.06.1997. It is contended by the respondents that taking into consideration.
of these facts, the petitioner was found to be fit for compulsory retirement in -
exercise of power under Fundamental Rule 56 (3) and therefore, the order of
compulsory retirement was issued.

4.  The petitioner by way of filing rejoindér has controverted such facts
and has categorically stated that he was not served with the adverse entries of
confidential report as mentioned in the return of the respondents and was -
* denied any opportunity to explain his conduct, seeking expunging of the
adverse part from the confidential report. Since he was given the posting on
higher posts thereafter, the effect of adverse entries was wiped out. It is
also contended that once charge sheet was issued, enquiry is conducted and-
the perialty is iz posed the petitioner could not have been compulsorily retired
taking into accous such facts of the departmental enquiry. The resPondents
have tried to make out the case by filing an add1t10na1 return. '

5. Heard the learnéd counsel for the partles. The law of compulsory
retirement is already settled by the Apex Court in the case of State of Gujrat
Vs. Umed Bhai Patel, (2001) 3 SCC 314, wherein it has been categorically
held by the Apex Court that there are settled parameters on account of which
thie casés for compulsory retirement are required to be considered. This has
been categorically held by the Apex Court that compulsory retirement cannot
be based on a finding recorded in a departmental enquiry on account of which
the punishment is already issued to the delinquent employee. It has been held
categorically by the Apex Court that overall service record is required to be
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considered and for one or few stale confidential reports, communicated or
un-communicated, an employee/ officer is not to be adjudged as a-dead wood,
unfit to remain in service in the public interest and is not required to be
compulsorily retired. '

6. This Court vide order dated 30 November, 2010 directed the
respondents /State to produce the screening Committee record for perusal of
this Court. Time and again adjournment was sought and despite specific order
the said record was not produced. However, from the facts as have been
stated in the return, it is clear that only for the aforesaid three annual confidential
reports of the year 1976, 1977 and 1983 as also a punishment awarded ina
departmental enquiry, the petitioner was said to be found fit for compulsory
retirement in the year 1998. Such a conduct of the respondents cannot be
accepted. The recent record of the service of the petitioner was not examined
and only for the aforesaid three confidential reports, he has been declared
unfit to continue in the employment.

7. Inviewofthis, the order impugned dated 18.02.1998 is not sustainable
and is hereby quashed. Since the petitioner has attained the age of
superannuation, it will be deemed, as if, he has continued in the service till he

actually attained the age of his superannuation and he will be entitled to the
salary for the said period. It is further directed that the recommendation -

made with respect to the promotion of the petitioner, kept in the sealed cover
during the period he was facing the departmental enquiry and was later on
compulsory retired, will be looked into and the respondents will take a fresh
decision whether to grant promotion to the petitioner or not. The arrears of
the salary be paid to the petitioner for the period of compulsory retirement
and his claim for promotion be finalized within a period of four months from
the date of communication of this order. :

8. The petition succeeds and allowed to the extent indicated herein above.
There shall be no order as to cost.

Petition allowed

A
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LL.R.[2012]M.P. 45
WRIT PETITION -
" 'Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav & Mr. Justice TK. Kaushal
: W.P.-No. 10471/2010(S) (Jabalpur) decided on 28 September, 2011

UNION OF INDIA & ors. . - ...Petitioners
Vs. ' .
M.L.KHARE . ...Respondent

Central Civil Services (i Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules,
1965 — Rule 11(iii) — Personal gain of a Government servant is not the
condition precedent for effecting a recovery once it is proved that the
loss is attributed to the negligence. (Para 16)
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Cases referred :

(2010) 5 SCC 775, (2011) 7 SCC 325, (2006) 10 SCC 388.

S.4. Dharmadhikari, for the petitioners.
Vijay Tripathi, for the respondent.

ORDER

The order of the «court was delivered by :
SANJAY YADAY, J. :-With consent, the petition is heard finally. -

This order shall also govern the disposal of Writ Petitions No. 10512
0f2010(s), 10584 of 2010(s), 10665.0f 201 0(s) and 10754 of 2010(s) as
the issue involved in these petitions is identical. The petitions were, therefore,
analogously heard and are decided by this common order.

2. For the sake of order facts are taken from Writ Petition No. 10471/
2010. The Central Administrative Tribunal, Jabalpur Bench, J abalpur, while
upholding the charge of misconduct levelled against the respondent (Applicant
before the Tribunal) has interfered with the punishment of recovery.

3. Respondent while working as Supervisor in SBCO, Head Post Office,
Balaghat, was charge- sheeted under Rule 16.of Central Civil Services
(Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules, 1965 (hereinafter referred to as
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‘Rules 0f 1965°) on 18-08-2002.

4. Charges levelled against him were that while working as.Supervisor
with effect from 18-02-2002 he derelicted in discharge of his duty as
Supervisor as a result whereof one Shri Mahesh Padwar, Sub Post Master,

Bisra Sub Office made bogus withdrawals from different saving Bank,

Recurring Deposit, Term Deposit and Monthly Income Scheme accounts and
did not account for the same in respective accounts, resulting in boguis
w1thdrawals and loss to the Government to the tune of Rs. 29,21,222/-. It
was alleged that charge sheéted employee failed to ensure proper voucher
checking of SB/RD/TD/MIS etc. of Bisra Sub Post Office as required under
“thie S.B. Control Procedure and thereby violated the instructions contained in

Government of India Ministry of Communication, Department of Posts,No. __

113-1/2002 SB, dated 05-05-2003 and SB Order No. 33/2002 dated 13-

- 12-2002, wolatmg Rules 3(1)(11) and 3 (2) (I) of CCS (conduct) Rules, 1964.
5, Denial of charges led to initiation of departmental proceedings which ,

culminated into the order dated 20-06-2008; whereby, the punishment of
recovery of Rs. 1,00,000/- from the pay of the respondent at the rate of Rs.
3,000/- per month was ordered.

6. Aggrieved, the respondcnt filed O.A. No. 191. of 2009 before the
Tribunal.

7. The Tribunal while upholdmg the finding of misconduct recorded by
the disciplinary authority, however, interfered with the quantum of punishment
and accordmgly quashed the impugned order of recovery. The Tribunal
observed that the respondent- management failed to establish a direct link
between the defaults by the applicant and the loss suffered by the Government.

Tribunal relied upon the paragraph 106 and 107 of the Post Office Manual
Volume IIL.

8. - The Tribnunal held in paragraph 14:

“14. Usually, the dlsc1p11n'ary authority is the best judge in .
respect of punishment to be awarded to any Government |,
"servant. But if there is any basic legal shortcoming in the view
taken by the disciplinary authority, the court can certamly
. interfere in the matter. A perusal of the disciplinary authority’s
order and the order of the appellate authority clearly shows ',
that they have established he default of the applicant in not.

H

I
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complying with various rules and in niot discharging his duties
in a proper manner. At the same time, they have failed to
establish a direct link between the defaults of the applicant
and the loss suffered by the Government. Looking to Rules
106 and 107 of the Post Office Manual, Volume III, quoted
above, and also the authorities cited by the learned counsel
for the applicant, I consider it proper to set aside the
punishment awarded to the applicant, becauise in this ¢ase it
has not been established that the applicant was directly
responsible for the loss suffered by the Government, without -
disturbing the finding that the applicant was guilty of the charges
levelled against him. In other words, upholding the orders of
the disciplinary authority as well as the appellate authority
except for the actual punishment awarded to the applicant,
* the matter of punishment to be awarded to the applicant is--
remitted back to the appellate authority who shall re-decide
the issue within six months of the receipt of this order after
giving a proper opportunity of hearing to the applicant. As per
" rules, the following minor penalties can be imposed on a
" ‘Government servant : e
G censure; . - g
()  withholding ofhis promotion; -
, (i)  recovery from'his pay of the whole or part of any
*+ '+« pecuniary loss caused by him tothe Government by negligence -
" "*"'or breach of orders; o R
. @)  withholding of increments of pay
“The disciplinary authority, in this case, imposed penalty no.
- (iii) which was not justified in the facts of the case as the same '
is legally untenable. Therefore, the appellate authority shall be '
free to consider the facts of the case, and after hearing the
applicant, may impose any one of the above minor penalties .
- ‘on'the applicant, except penalty no, (iti). As aklogical corollary, -
itis also ordered that the Respondents shall refund the amount _
.already recovered from the applicant, if any. The amount ,
already recovered should be refunded to the applicant within ..
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two months of the receipt of this order and the matter of
punishment should be re-decided by the appellate authority,
after hearing the applicant, within six months of the receipt of
this order.”

9. It is the said order which is being challenged in this petjtion.

10.° Itisurged that the Tribunal fell into patent error in exonerating the
respondent from recovery of pecuniary loss caused to the Government due to
negligence. It is contended that it was beyond the powers of the Tribunal to
have set aside the recovery more particularly when the charges of misconduct
were proved and upheld by the Tribunal. It is contended that Tribunal
misconstrued not only Rule 11 (iii) of the Rules of 1965 but also paragraph
106 and 107 of the Post Office Manual Vol. IIL. It is contended that upon true
construction of the provision it would borne out therefrom that it is not a
condition precedent for recovery of loss to the revenue that a person at whose
instance the loss is incurred has personally gained from it. It is urged that the
Tribunal has wrongly interfered with the punishment.

11.  Therespondent on his turn supports the order passed by the Tribunal.

12.  Thequestion for consideration is whether when the charge of negligence
resulting in pecuniary loss to the Government having been proved in a

departmental enquiry and upheld by the Tribunal, the Tribunal was justified in -

interfering with the punishment of recovery.

13.  Triteitis that punishment is the discretion of the disciplinary authority
and the Court will not substitute its own judgment [Administrator, Union
Territory of Dadar and Nagar Haveli v. Gulabhia M. Lad : (2010) 5
SCC 775, paragraph 14, State Bank of Mysore and others v. M. C.
Krishnappa (2011) 7 SCC 325, Paragraph 8], unless the punishment shocks
the conscience (Union of India v. Dwarka Prasad Tiwari : (2006) 10 SCC
388 Paragraph 10 & 15). Even in such cases it is held that, it should ordinarily
remit the matter to disciplinary authority for réconsideration of punishment.

14.  Rule 11 of Rules of 1965 lays down different penalties which can be
imposed on a Central Govt. Servant found guilty of charges either under Rule
14 or 16, as the case may be. Clauses (i) and (iv) of Rule 11 lay down minor
penalties. Clauses (v) to (ix) lay down major penalties. An exception vide
explanation is carved out, as the instances given thereunder are not construed
as penalties. o

O
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15.  Weare concerned with clause (iii) of Rule 11 which stipulates that on
found guilty of the charges and for good and sufficient reasons penalty of
“recovery from his pay of the whole or part of any pecuniary loss caused by
him to the Government by negligence or breach of orders” can be imposed.

16.  Inother wordsif due to negligence of Govt. servant there is pecuniary
loss caused to the Government, the discretion lies with the disciplinary authority
to recover from the pay of Government servant either the whole or part of
such loss. Personal gain of a Government servant is not the condition precedent
for effecting a recovery once it is proved that the loss is attributed to the
negligence. ‘

17.  In the case at hand the loss to the Government ascertained is Rs.
29,21,222/-. The respondent though is not held guilty of chdrge of
embezzlement but is found negligent in supervising which led to siphoning of
colossis amount of money by a co-accused. In other words had the respondent
be good at supervision, the attempt by co-employee in retrieving the money
could have been checked. The Tribunal in our considered opinion is not justified -
in holding that unless there is personal gain mere negligence and the loss
occasioned thereon will not be sufficient a ground to effect recovery of whole
or part of such loss.

18.  Weaccordingly setaside the order passed by the Tribunal and dismiss
the Original Application filed by the respondent herein.

19.  The petition is allowed to the extent above. No costs.

20.  Acopy of this order be kept in Writ Petitions No. 10512 of 2010(s),
10584 of£ 2010(s), 10665 0of 2010(s) and 10754 of 2010(s).

Petition Allowed

I.L.R.[2012] MLP. 49
WRIT PETITION
 Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
‘W.P. No.5432/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 20 October, 2011

GAURAV ENTERPRISES (M/S) _ ... Petitioner
Vs. '

STATE BANK OF INDIA & ors. ... Respondents
A. Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and

Enforcement of Security Interest Act (54 of 2002), Section 13(8), —
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Phrase — Before the date fixed for sale or transfer — The words have
definite meaning and connotation — Intention of legislature while using
the said language is regarding date fixed for sale and not the actual
sale or transfer — Once a sale certificate is issued to the purchaser,
sale becomes absolute — Sale certificate is the evidence of title - Bank
can not accept the amount from the borrower after the sale is confirmed
nor can return auction amount to the auction purchaser — Section 60 of
Transfer of Property Act has no application. (Para 13)
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B. Settlement before Court — Settlement is binding between the
parties inter se — Settlement arrived at between the bank and the borrower
will not bind the auction purchaser — Auction purchaser is free to assail
the action of the bank in a separate proceedings. (Para 15)
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Cases referred :
AIR 2011 SC 2060, (2007) 5 SCC 745, AIR 2008 MADRAS 108.

Arvind Dudawat, for the petitioner.
Raju Sharma, for the respondents No.1 & 2.
N.K Gupta, for the respondents No.3,4 & 5.

ORDER

Suioy Paur, J. :- Brief facts necessary for adjudication of this matter
are as under:- '

L

(L]



LL.R.[2012]M.P. Gaurav Enterprises Vs State Bank of India 51

Earlier the botrowers, i.e., respondents No.3,4 and 5 herein, filed a
writ petition before this Court, which was registered as Writ Petition No.4898/
2011. The said writ petition was filed on 23.7.2011. On 28.7.2011 the parties
to the said litigation produced a settlement, which was entered into between
them before the court and court passed the order in terms of settlement. The
terms of settlement are as under:-

“(1)  That, the present petition has been filed challenging
the auction proceedings initiated by the State Bank of India
under SARFAESI Act, 2002.

() That, as on date an amount of Rs.1,05,36,058/-
(Rupees One Crore Five Lakh Thirty Six Thousand and Fifty
Eight Only) is due against the petitioner. The propeny has
already been auctioned on 26 07.2011.

. (3). . That, the petitioners are ready to deposit the aforesaid
~ amount of Rs.1,05,36,058/- on or before 05.08.2011 in full _
" and final settlement. If the aforesaid amount is deposited by
" the petitioners on or before 05.08. 2011, in that case, the ...
respondent Bank shall not finalize thc auction held on
26.07.2011 in regard to the petitioner’s property and the loan
account shall be closed.

(4)  That, if the petitioners’ falls to dep051t the aforesaid
amount upto 05.08.2011 in that case, the said proposal shall
come to an end and respondent State Bank of India shall finalize
the auctions proceedings held on 26.07.2011 and shall proceed
further against the petitioners for remaining dues.”

This court disposed of the said petition with the observation that since
the parties have entered into a settlement, the petition is disposed of in terms
of the settlement. It is further observed that settlement shall bind the parties.

2 This petition is filed by the auction-purchaser submitting that the action
of the bank runs contrary to the mandate of Securitization and Reconstruction
of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (for
short‘the SARFAESI Act’) and also against the settlement arrived at between
the parties. To elaborate, Shri Dudawat, learned counsel for the present
petitioner submits that as per the settlement the petitioner was required to
pay the amount posxtlvely by 5th August, 2011. Interestingly, the settlement
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provides the consequence of not depositing of said amount by 5th August,
2011 in Clause 4, whereby it is mentioned that the proposal will come to an
end and respondent-State Bank of India shall finalise the auction proceedings
held on26.7.2011 and shall proceed further against the petitioner for remaining
dues. He vehemently argued that the amount was in fact realised on 10th
August, 2011.

3. Learned counsel for the petitioner further submits that the action of
the bank is contrary to the provision of Section 13 of the SARFAESI] Act.
Learned counsel by placing reliance on the documents filed by the bank submits
that the cheque which was deposited on 6.8.2011 was realised on 10.8.2011
and the documents further show that on 6.8.2011 the requisite amount was
not in the account of M/s. Agri Commex Warehousing & Logistics Pvt. Ltd.

4.‘ Per Contra, Shri Raju Sharma, learned counsel for the bank and Shri -

‘N.K. Gupta,k learned counsel for the borrowers, submit that the amount was
admittedly required to be deposited as per the settlement on 5. 8.2011 but on
5.8.2011 there was an All India Strike of employees of State Bank of India
and, therefore, on that date the amount could not be deposited. However, on
6.8.2011 an amount of Rs.1,36,058/- was deposited by way of transfer and
an amount of Rs. 1,04,00,000/- was deposited by way of cheques. They
submit that the delay was unavoidable, inevitable and beyond the control of
the parties because on 5.8.2011 there was an All India Strike. They further
submit that there is no illegality in the action of the bank. Heavy reliance is
placed on Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, which reads as under:-

“13(8).—If the dues of the secured creditor together with all

_ costs; charges and expenses incurred by him are tendered to
the secured creditor at any time before the date fixed for sale or
transfer, the secured asset shall not be sold or transferred by the
.secured creditor, and no further step shall be taken by him for
transfer or sale of that secured asset.”

5. * Shri N:K.Gupta appearing for the borrower further submits that
Section 2(2) of the SARFAESI Act provides that words and expressions
used and not defihed in this Act but defined in the Indian Contract Act, 1872
or the Transfer of Property Act, 1882 or the Companies Act, 1956 or the
Security and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 shall have the same meanings
respectively assigned to them in those Acts. Shri Gupta submits that words
“transfer” and “sale” are not defined in the SARFAESI Act and, therefore,

r
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to see the actual meaning of these words one has to revert to the Transfer of
Property Act. Shri Gupta placed reliance on the definition of ‘transfer 'and
‘sale’ in Sections 5 and 54 of the Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (herein
after called as ‘TP Act’).

The said definitions are reproduced here as under:-

“S. “Transfer of property” defined — In the following sections
“transfer of property” means an act by which a living person
conveys property, in present or in future, to one or more other
living persons, or to himself, and one or more other living
persons; and “to transfer property™ is to perform such act. .

In this section “living person” includes a company or
association or body of individuals, whether incorporated or
not, but nothing herein contained shal] affect any law for the
time being in force relating to transfer of property to or-by .
companies, associations or bodies of individuals.

54.“Sale” defined — “Sale” is a transfer of ownership
in exchange for a price paid or promised or part-paid and
part promised.

"Sale how made.— Such transfer, in the case of tangible
immoveable property of the value of one hundred rupees and
upwards, or in the case of a reversion or other intangible thing,
can be made only by a registered instrument.

In the case of tangible immoveable property of a value
less than one hundred rupees, such transfer may be made either
by aregistered instrument or by delivery of the property.

Delivery of tangfble immoveable property takes place
when the seller places the buyer, or such person as he directs,
in possession of the property.

' Contract for sale.— A contract for the sale of
immoveable property is a contract that a sale of such property
shall take place on terms settled between the parties.

It does not, of itself, create any interest in or charge
on such property.” .
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6. It is the further stand of the learned counsel for the respondents that as
per Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, the actual sale or transfer never
took place. On the contrary, by document dated 10.8.2011 the present
petitioner was informed that as per Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, the
sale could not take place and therefore the amount deposited by present
petitioner was returned to him. In the light of aforesaid, the stand of the
respondents is that there is one day’s delay in depositing the amount as per
the order dated 28.7.2011 passed by this Court and that delay is because of
unavoidable circumstances, i.e., All India Strike.

7. Reliance is further placed on the Security Interest (Enforcement)
Rules, 2002 (bereinafter called as “2002 Rules”). By placing reliance on Rules,
9(1), 9(4) and 9(7), learned counsel for the respondents submits that unless
an actual transfer or sale takes place, no right is created in favour of the
present petitioner and bank was well within its jurisdiction to cancel the same
and since amount in question was realised from the borrowers, there is no
illegality in the action of the bank. Shri Raju Sharma also relied on AIR 2011
SC 2060 (M/s L.K.Trustv. EDC Ltd. & others) to submit that in absence of
execution of a sale deed, right of borrower to redeem property is not lost.

8. Shri Dudawat has placed heavy reliance on the language of Section
13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, wherein the words used are “before the date
fixed for sale or transfer” (emphasis supplied). In explicit, Shri Dudawat
submits that the intention of legislature is not actual sale or transfer which is
_ required to take place but is a date fixed for sale or transfer. Meaning thereby
the date which is fixed for auction which is an exercise for sale in favour of the
auction purchaser. He submits that admittedly the date of auction was
26.7.2011, on which date even a certificate was given to the petitioner, which
is Annexure P/ 2. In Annexure P/2 it is made clear that the sale is confirmed in
favour of the petitioner. He submits that the sale was confirmed and confirmation
letter Annexure P/2 was issued in favour of the present petitioner and, therefore,
after this neither under the garb of the settlement arrived at before this court
nor as per Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act the bank could have taken
‘U’ turn and accommodated the borrowers.

0. Learned counsel for the respondents have taken a specific stand that
a combined reading of Rules 9(1), 9(4), 9(6)-and 9(7) of 2002 Rules clearly
shows that there is a specific method prescribed for the sale of the property
and merely because an auction has taken place, that does not mean that any

&
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legal right to enjoy the property is accrued in favour of the petitioner. Reli-
ance is also placed on Conditions No.9 and 10 of Annexure P/1, which pre-
scribe that the Specified Officer has a power to cancel the auction without
assigning any reason and the said officer is not compelled to accept the amount
from the auction purchaser. Shri Gupta submits that merely because some
amount was deposited by the present petitioner, it will not bestow any right to
the petitioner to enjoy the property and bank has acted strictly in consonance
with the provisions of the SARFAESI Act and the rules made thereunder

10.  Inthe opinion of this Court, the attack on the action of the respondents
is of two folds. Shri Dudawat firstly submitted that the amount was not
deposited as per the settlement entered into and recorded by this Court.
Secondly, he submits that as per Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, after
confirmation of sale, there was no occasion for the bank to accommodate the
borrower. ‘

11.  The certificate Annexure P/2 shows that on deposition of an amount
0fRs.25,05,500/- by the petitioner, the sale of the petitioner was certified
and confirmed. Shri Raju Sharma heavily relied on the judgment of Apex
Court in M/s. L.K. Trust (supra). The said case deals with Section 60 of TP
Act. The case in hand is regarding Section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act. This
is settled in law that the judgments of Supreme Court are not Euclid’s Theorum.
The ratio decidendi of the Supreme Court judgments depends on the fact
situation of the particular case and the Statute which was under consideration
before the court. This is also settled in law that even a single fact may change
texture of a ratio. Thus, examining Section 60 of TP Act in juxtaposition with
Section'13(8) of SARFAESI Act shows that both the Statutes are not pari
materia and are worded in a different language. Thus, the intention of the
Legislature appears to be different in enacting the aforesaid provisions. How-
ever, the Apex Court in (2007) 5 SCC 745 (B. Arvind Kumar vs. Govt. of
India and others) held as under:-

“12...... When a property is sold by public auction in pursuance
of an order of the court and the bid is accepted and the sale
is confirmed by the court in favour of the purchaser, the sale
becomes absolute and the title vests in the purchaser. A sale
certificate is issued to the purchaser only when the sale becomes
absolute. The sale certificate is merely the evidence of such
title. It is well settled that when an auctionpurchaser derives
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title on confirmation of sale in his favour, and the sale certificate
is issued evidencing such sale and title, no further deed of
transfer from the court is contemplated or required. In this
case, the sale certificate itself was registered, though such a
sale certificate issued by a court or an officer authorised by
the court, does not require registration. Section 17(2) (xii) of
the Registration Act, 1908 specifically provides that a
certificate of sale granted to any purchaser of any property
sold by a public auction by a civil or revenue officer does not
fall under the category of nontestamentary documents which
require registration under sub-sections (b) and (c) of section
17 (1) of the said Act. We therefore hold that the High Court
committed a serious error in holding that the sale certificate
did not convey any right, title or interest to plaintiff’s father for

want of a registered deed of transfer.” .
(emphasis supplied).

12.  Thisissue came up for consideration before a Division Bench of Madras
High Court in a case reported in 4IR 2008 MADRAS 108 (K Chidambara

ot

Manickam vs. Shakeena and others). The Madras High Court framed a -

question which reads as under:-

“(i) Whether the sale of the secured asset in public auction as
per Section 13(4) of SARFAESI Act, which ended in issuance
of a sale certificate as per Rule 9(7) of the Security Interest
(Enforcement) Rules, 2002 (in short “the Rules”) is a complete
and absolute sale for the purpose of SARFAESI Act or whether
the sale would become final only on the registration of the sale
certificate?”

This question is answered by Madras High Court as under:-

“In our considered view, the borrowers should have approached
the secured creditor or the authorised officer before the date
fixed for sale and not after the sale, as provided under Sub-
section (8) of Section 13 of the SARFAESI Act. As discussed
earlier, only if the borrowers approach the secured creditor or
the authorised officer before the date fixed for sale or transfer
and tender or pay all the dues to the secured creditor, the

Y]



>

LLR.[2012]M.P. Gaurav Enterprises Vs State Bank of India - 57

Section creates a bar on the secured creditor or authorised
officer to proceéd further with the proposed sale or transfer.
In this case, admittedly, the date fixed for the sale was 19-12-
2005. But, even according to the version of the borrowers,
they approached the secured creditor only on 2-1-2006. In
such circumstances, the contention of the learned Counsel for
the borrowers is without any basis and contrary to the
provisions contained in Sub-section (8) of Section 13 of the
Act” '

The crux of contention before the Single Judge of Madras High Court
by the borrower was that even after issuance of sale certificate the right of
redemption under Section 60 of TP Act is available. Learned Single Judge of
Madras High Court agreed with the argument advanced by the borrower that
the right of redemption which is embodied in Section 60 of TP Act is available
to the mortgagor unless it has been extinguished by the act of parties and until
the sale is completed by registration, and that the mortgagor does not lose his
right of redemption, came to conclusion that the sale takes complete shape
only after it gets registered and it does not come to an end by issuance of a
sale certificate.

The Division Bench did not approve the said finding of the Single
Judge and allowed thé appeals and dismissed the writ petitions. ‘

13.  Inthe present case also, the stand of respondents is that mere issuance
of sale certificate will not bestow any right in favour of the auction-purchaser
and unless actual sale deed is executed, there is no “sale” in the eyes of law
and power of redemption can be exercised by the bank. In the opinion of this
Court, this argument is liable to be rejected. The language of Section 13(8) of
SARFAESI Act is very clear, which contains the words “before the date
fixed for sale or transfer”. The intention of the Legislature appears to be
the date fixed for sale and not the actual sale. The Statute is accordingly
designed and worded. Thus, before date fixed for sale, the borrower could
have exercised the same and Section 13(8) permits the bank to do the same.
In other words, Section 13(8) even prohibits the bank to transfer or sell the
secured assets before the date fixed for sale and gives an opportunity to the
borrower to repay all dues, costs, charges and expenses incurred by the bank.
However, once sale certificate is issued, the bank cannot invoke Section 13(8)
of SARFAESI Act and Section 60 of TP Act has no application. Accordingly;
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the judgment cited by Shri Raju Sharma in M/s. L K. Trust (supra) has no
application in the fact situation of this case. '

14. The respondents have also relied on conditions No. 4,9 and 10 of
Annexure P/1. Conditions No.9 and 10 are of no assistance to the respondents,

. Condition No.9 deals with power of the bank to postpone or cancel the auction.
In the present case, auction has already taken place and auction-purchaser
has been given a sale certificate. Thus, Condition No.9 has no relevance.

- Condition No.10 deals with the power of Specified Officer to not to accept
the auction amount and reject the same. In the present case, the said amount
has already been accepted and a sale certificate is issued. Thus, Condition
No.10 also has no relevance.

15.  Sub-Rule(4), (6) and (7) of Rule 9 0of 2002 Rules are of no assistance

- to therespondents. Reading these rules with section 13 (8) of the SARFAESI

~ Act shows that the intention of law-makers is that till the date fixed for sale
and not after the sale if borrower tenders all dues to the secured creditor, the
section prohibits the secured creditor or authorised officer to proceed further
with proposed sale or transfer. In this case, admittedly, the date fixed for sale
was 26.7.2011. This is also admitted position between the parties that no
payment was made before 6.8.2011. Accordingly, the action of the bank cannot

* be said to be in consonance with section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act. After
the date of sale aforesaid, it was not open for the bank to accept the amount
from the borrower and return the amount to the auctionpurchaser. This action
runs contrary to the scheme of the SARFAESI Act and the rules made there-

* under. I also find force in the argument of learned counsel for the petitioner
that the settlement arrived at between the borrower and the bank will not bind
the present petitioner, who was not a party in the said settlement. "Thus, exam-
ining it from any angle, either as per Section 13(8) of SARFAESI Act or from

the anglé of implementation of the settlement, the action of the bank cannotbe

upheld. -

16.  Thebank in order dated 10.8.2011 has solely relied on Section 13(8)
of SARFAESI Act. As analyzed above, Section 13 (8) does not permit the
bank to accept the amount from the borrower after sale is confirmed. Thus,
for the aforesaid reasons, the action of the bank cannot be approved.

17.  Consequently, petition is allowed. The respondent-bank is directed to
handover possession of the property to the petitioner. However, the bank is

4]
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at liberty to do necessary formalities in accordance with the SARFAESI Act
and rules made thereunder for doing the same. No.costs.

Petition allowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 59
WRIT PETITION
Before M. Justice Sanjay Yadav & Mr. Justice T.K. Kauslml
W.P. No. 3806/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 21 October, 2011

S.K.GAUR . o Lo A Petltloner
VS ! 'y ' ’
DENABANK, BHOPAL . - : Respondent

. Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 194 7), Section 334 — Scope —
Petitioner, initially appointed as a-Clerk (workman) was promoted to

~Junior Manager in 2002 — In 2005, he was charge sheeted and

ultimately punished with punishment by compulsory retirement — Held
~The petitioner was not a workman, thus, the Tribunal (C.GLT.) was
not Justlfied in entertaining the application under Section 33A at the
instance of the employee who was not a workman. (Para 23)
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Case referred :

~ AIR 1966 MP 60.
N.S. Ruprah, for the petitioner.
Anoop Nair, for the respondent.

.ORDER"

. The -order of the court ~was delivered by:
SANJAY YADAV, J :- This order shall govern'the final disposal of Writ Petition
No. 15017/2008 (Dena Bank, Bhopal v. S. K. Gaur) and Writ Petition No.
3806/2009 (S. K. Gaur v. Dena Bank, Bhopal) as both these writ petitions
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under Article 227 of the Constitution of India are directed against the Award
passed by the Central Government Industrial Tribunal-cum-Labour Court on
01-02-2008.

2, Relevant facts are carved out from Writ Petition No. 15017/2008.
Respondent (hereinafter referred to as ‘employee”) while appointed as Cashier-
cum-Clerk with the petitioner-Bank (hereinafter referred to as © employer’)in
June, 1978 was proceeded ‘against and by order dated 26-09-1978 his
services were terminated while he was on probation for the irregularities
committed by him. Later on keeping in view the undertaking given by the
employee of future good conduct, he was reappointed on 29-11-1979.

3. Theemployee was charge sheeted on 21-12-1982 which culminated
into punishment of stoppage of one increment with cumulative effect.

4, Another charge sheet was issued to the petitioner on 20-09-1985
which resulted in stoppage of increment with cumulative effect and one
increment with noncumulative effect and debarring him from appearing in
promotion test for a period of three years. Against this order, the employee
raise an industrial dispute forming subject matter of case No, CGIT/LC/R/
247/97 before Central Government Industrial Tribunal-cum-Labour Court,

5. That the employee later on was promoted as an Officer in Junior
Manager Grade I (JMG-I) in the year 2002. :

6. That on 26-11-2005 employee was charge sheeted with the charges

that he (a) failed to maintain utmost devotion, diligence and honesty while

discharging his duty to take requisite steps to protect the interest of the Bank;

(b) committed fraud on the Bank by claiming HRA/TA claim submitting fake

and fabricated hotel bills; (c) lack of honesty and integrity and (d) doing acts
. unbecoming of an Officer-employee.

7. In the departmental enquiry all the charges levelled against the
employee were proved which led to his dismissal from service by order dated
30-08-2006. In an appeal the order of dismissal was converted to compulsory
retirement by order dated 28-02-2007 by the Appellate Authority.

8. Since the reference Case No. CGIT/LC/R/247/97 was pending on
30-08-2006 when the employee was dismissed from service, he filed an
application under section 33A of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (herein
after referred to as ‘the Act of 1947°).

]
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9. Section 33A provides that when an employer contravenes the
provisions of section 33 during the pendency of proceedings before a
conciliation offer, Board, an arbitrator, Labour Court, Tribunal or National
Tribunal as the case may be, an employee aggrieved by such contravention,
may make a complaint in writing to such authority/Labour Court/Tribunal as
the case may be. On such complaint the authority/Labour Court/Tribunal as
the case may be shall adjudicate upon the complaint as if it were a dispute
referred to or pending before it, and shall submit its award i in accordance with
the provisions of the Act of 1947, oL

10.  Sub-section (1) of Section 33 of the Act of 1947, whlch is relevant in
the context, provides that :-

“33. Conditions of service, etc., to rema’in unchanged under
certain circumstances during pendency of proceedings.

(1)  During the pendency of any conciliation proceeding
before a conciliation officer or a Board or of any proceeding
before an arbitrator or a Labour Court or Tribunal or National
Tribunal in respect of an industrial dispute, no employer-shall-

(a) Inregard to any matter connected with the dispute, alter,
to the prejudice of the workmen concerned in such dispute,
the conditions of service applicable to them nnmedlatcly before
the commencement of such proceeding; or

(b) For any misconduct connected with the dispute, discharge
or punish, whether by dismissal or otherwise, any workmen
concerned in such dispute, save with the express permission
in writing of the authority before which the proceeding is
pending.”

11, " The employee also questioned the order of punishment on the ground
- that he was not afforded proper opportunity of hearing.

12.  Employers on their turn besides raising an objection as to maintain-
ability of an application under section 33A on the ground that the employee
being an officer in Junior Manager Grade-], was not a2 workman under section
2(s) of the Act of 1947, justified punishment for the reasons that same was
inflicted after affording due opportunity of hearing.

13.  The Tribunal while deciding both the issues against the employer,
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directed the reinstatement of employee without back wages.

14.  Whereas the employer calls in question the entire Award. Gnevance
raise by employee is against nongrant of back wages.

15.  Whilerejecting the plea as to maintainability of an application under
section 33A for want of his being a workman under section 2(s), the Tribunal
observes :

“9. ...., the non-applicant could not succcedto prove by the
reliable documentary evidence that the disciplinary action was
initiated against the complainant, who was not covered by the
definition of “workman” given in Sec-2 of the L.D.Act. The. -
solitary oral evidence deposed during the cross-examination
. of non-applicant’s witness Shri R. D. Negi is not at all sufficient
to prove that the job of the complainant was of superv1sory or
managerial nature, in the absence of documentary evidence in
that regard. Thus the non-applicant has failed to prove that the
complainant was not a ‘workman” as defined under Sec-2(b)
[sic (s)] of the I.D.Act when the Disciplinary Action was
initiated against him. It means that the non-applicant has failed
to prove that this court has no jurisdiction to try this case.”

‘16.  Whether an employee is.a workman or comes within the exception
(iii) or (iv) of Section 2 (s) depends on exact nature of his work and not
designation. The nature of work can be determined from the letter of
appointment/promotion, the nature of duties and other attending factors. It is
the predominant duties which an employee is required to do are the factors to
determine his status whether he is workman or discharging supervisory,
managerial or an administrative functions. The determining factor can be
gathered only on the basis of evidence.

17. - Inthe case at hand the employee was promoted as Officer in Junior
Manager Grade-I (JMG-I) in the year 2002. He was charge sheeted on
26-11-2005 while posted as an Officer in Freeganj Branch, Ujjain. In his
cross-examination the employer’s witness Shri R. D. Negi deposed :

e Applicant Junior Management grade-I ke pad par the*.
Inka Nature of work supervisory tha. Supervisory Nature mein
D.D. Sign karna] cheque pass karmna, miscellaneous vouchers
ko Authorise karna, ledger posting ko Authorise karna aate
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hein. Applicant ka Job Administrative Capacity ka tha. Inko
Power of Attorney di gayee thi. Power of Attorney pesh nahin
kiya hai parantu kar sakta hoon.” :

18.  The employee was also examined. In his cross examination he stated
“1985 mein hamari service condition Desai Award fatha Shastri Award se
Govern hoti thin mujhe nahin malum ki promotion rules alag se lagu hote hein
athwa nahin. Officer ke promotion hetu pariksha mein baithne hetu mujhe 3
varsh ke [iye Debar kiya gaya tha. Us aadesh ke viruddha prakaran Lekha R/
247/97 is Nyayadhikaran mein lambit hai. Mujhe 2001 mein officer ke pad
par pronnati ki gayee thi. Promotion par meri posting Ujjain mein hui 2002 se

- 2006 tak meine officer ke pad par karya kiya. Mujhe nahin malum ki jab

mein officer posted tha hamari service condition kis Rule ke tahat Govern
hoti thi. Clerical staff’ke liye sewa shartein award ke tahat hein. Officer hetu
sewa shartein alag hein,”

19.  Admittedly, the employee was holding‘a post of Officer when he was
served with the charge sheet on 26-11-2005. The service conditions as per

. his own admission were not governed by either Sastri Award or Desai Award.

20.  Clerical Staff, ordinarily understood does, a ministerial work which
are routine in nature and doés not involve any control or supervision. The
expression ‘clerk’ is a noun and “is a person who works in an office, bank, or
law court and whose job is to look after the records; accounts, etc. (See :
Collins Cobuild English Language Dictionary Second impression Edn. 1992).
On the other hand a manger, supervisor or an administrative officer is required
to take decision by exercising the discretion vested mto him either by
appointment or promotion.

21.  Inthepresent case an officer.in Junior Manager Grade-I is required
to sign the Demand Draft, pass cheques, to authorize miscellaneous vouch-
ers, to authorize ledger posting. These duties being discharged in an adminis-
trative capacity are not shown to be performed by the clerical staff. An inci-
dental work of a clerk, i.e., written work done by an officer in JIMG-I will
not transform him into the status of a clerk, which can be termed as a work-
man.

22. - In Harris Mineral Supply Co., Jaitwara and others v. Salim M
Merchani and others : AIR 1966 M.P. 60, it 1s observed : -

#7.......In determining whether an employee is oris not a
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manager, excluded from the definition of *‘workman’ given in
section 2(s), what is decisive is not his designation but the
nature of the work done by him. In order to come within the
category of a person “who is employed mainly in a managerial
or administrative capacity” excluded from the definition of
‘workman’, it is essential that the predominant feature of the
duties of the person employed as manager must consist in
directing and controlling other employees or in discharging
functions mainly of a managerial nature.”

23. Inviewof above analysis and given facts of present case we are of the
considered opinion that the Tribunal was not justified in entertaining the appli-
cation under section 33A at the instance of the employee who was not a
wotkman. The same ought to have been rejected. As the employee being not
a'workman, the provisions of section 33 (1) of the Act of 1947 are not attracted.
The Award dated 01-08-2008 is hereby quashed.

24," Inview of above, the issue as to whether the Tribunal was under
obligation to have afforded an opportunity to the employer to prove the
rmsconduct as the disciplinary enquiry was held vitiated, is not gone into.

26 In the result Writ Petition No. 3806/2009 by the employee directed
against non-granting back wages is dismissed. Whereas Writ Petition No.
1501772008 is allowed to the extent above. No costs. -

: ' order accordingly
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul

W.P.No0.6621/2010 (Gwalior) decided on 21 October, 2011

Y.P.SINGH (PROF.) - ... Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P.& ors. ... Respondents

A, Grant-in-Aid Rules, M.P. for Non-Governmental Institutions
(Technical)- Aided institutions are bound to follow the orders and rules
made by the State Govt. — Employees of aided institutions are entitled
to receive similar benefits which are applicable to the employees of
Govt. Institutions. (Para 12)
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B. Age of Superannuation— Teachers in technical aided
institutions - State Govt. has accepted the AICTE Regulatlons
prescribing the age of retirement for teachers as 65 years and issued
the orders — Same is binding on technical institutions receiving grant-
in-aid from the Govt. : (Para 14)
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- Cases referred :

1992 (SUPP) scc 191, (2007) 11 SCC 58, (2000) 10 SCC 527,
(2004) 1 SCC 592, (1997) 3 SCC 571, (2011) 7SCC 172, W.P. No. 13449/
2011. .

D K Katare, for the petitioner. ;
Praveen Newaskar, Dy.G A. for the respondent// State
K.N. Gupta with Anmol Khedkar, for the respondents No.3 & 4.

" ORDER

Suloy PAuL, J :- Since these three matters are inter connected, with -
the consent of parties, the matters are analogously heard and decided by this

common order.

W.P.No.6621/10 is taken as a leading matter. Brief facts necessary

“foradjudication of these matters are as under:-

. The petitioners are Teachers in technical institutions. The institutions

“in which the petitioners are working are admittedly getting the grant-in-aid

from the State Government. This is also admitted between the parties that the
All India Council for Technical Education Act, 1987 is applicable to the
technical institutions in which petitioners are working.

2. The case of the petit{oners isthat AICTE issued a reguiaﬁon Whjch is
published on 5.3.2010 in the Gazette of India which is known as All India

b
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Technical Education Council (Technical Institutions (Diploma) for Teachers
and other Teaching Staff Pay Scale, Service Conditions, and Eligibility)
Regulations, 2010. These regulations are hereinafter referred as “2010
Regulations™. A copy of regulations is placed as Annexure P-6 in
W.P.No.2371/11. By way of aforesaid regulations, the AICTE revised the
pay scales and other service conditions of the teaching staff, The age of
superannuation is mentioned in internal page 11 of the said Gazette notification.
A perusal thereof shows that the UGC circular dated 23.3.2007 is borrowed
for the purpose of fixing the age of superannuation of teaching staff. The said
circular dated 23.3.2007 is filed as Annexure P-5 with W.P.No. 2371/11.In
Clause 2(i) it is mentioned that the age of superannuation of only teaching staff
working on regular basis against sanctions post as on 15.3.2007 in any of the
centrally funded higher and technical educations under the Ministry shall be
. increased from 62 to 65 years. Consequently, by AICTE regulations, the said
) prov151on is borrowed.

3. Shri D.K Katare, Shri D.S.Raghuvanshi and Shri-Vivek Jain, learned
counsel’ appearing for the petitioners submit that in obedience of the said
2010 Regulations, the State Government has issued the order dated
19.10.2010. In the order itself it is made clear that it is issued by following the
2010 Regulations and it shall be applicable to all Government, Autonomous
and Aided Polytechnic Institutions. Thus, the stand of the petitioners is that
the 2010 Regulations have a binding force and it is not voluntary either for the
State Government or for the institutions to follow or not to follow it. To
elaborate, the counsel submit that once 2010 Regulations are implemented
and the order dated 19.10.2010 is issued by the State Government making it
applicable to all Government, Autonomous and Aided institutions, it is no more
open for the aided institutions to decline enhancement of age for retirement
from 62 to 65 years.

4.  Shri D.S.Raghuvanshi relied on Grant-in-Aid Rules for Non-
Government institutions (Technical) in Madhya Pradesh. These rules are filed
as Annexure P-6 with W.P.No0.4532/11. The learned counsel submits that the
institutions are getting the Grant-in-Aid from the State Government and,
therefore, are bound by the decision and conditions passed by the State
Government. By relying on these rules, the learned counsel submits that it is
not open to the aided institutions to say that these rules have no application. In
nutshell, the singular question before this Court is whether it is open for the
aided institutions to decline implementation of State Government order dated

<%
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19.10.2010 arid whether such institutions can deny the benefit of extension of
age of retirement to its teachers?

5. Shri K.N.Gupta, learned Senior Advocate; on the other side, submits
that the AICTE Act and regulations made thereunder are applicable only to-
the extent the Act permits. He submits that this Act and regulations makes it
clear that it basically deals with the standard of education and not with the
service conditions of the employees of the technical institutions. He further
submits that neither under the AICTE Act nor under the UGC Act,any service

-conditions of employees are laid down. He also relied on various Supreme

Courtjudgments.

- 6. In the opinion of this Court, this is a peculiar case where the 2010

Regulations were accepted by the State Government and a consequential
order dated 19.10:2010 is already issued. In the order dated 19.10.2010it -
is made clear that it will have an application on Government, Autonomous
and Aided institutions. Shri K.N.Gupta, learned Senior Advocate has placed
reliance on 1992 Supp (3) SCC 191 (T.P.George and Others Vs. State of
Kerala and Others) to submit that it is for the State Government to implement
the scheme in a modified form and aggrieved teachers of private institutions .
cannot claim as a right that after accepting major portion of the scheme, State
Govt. is bound to accept the age of retirement as well. I have considered the
said submission. This judgment has no application in the facts situation'of the.
present case. The scheme which was considered by the Kerala High Court in
W.A.No0.223/91 and in turn by the Supreme Court in the said matter itself
provides that this is a voluntary scheme and has no binding on the State

_ Government. This judgment has no application because in the present case

the State Government has already accepted 2010 Regulations and passed a
consequential order. Shri Gupta, learned senior counsel, then relied on
(2007)11 SCC 58 (B.Bharat Kumar and others Vs. Osmania University
and Others). In page 61 it is mentioned as under:-

_ “The factual situation in this case is almost identical with that
in T.P.George’s case, 1992 Supp (3) SCC 191 where the
issue was whether the retirement age stood raised to 60 years.
The very language of the letter dated 27.7.1998 suggests that
the scheme is voluntary and not binding at all. It is specified in
the judgment of the Kerala High Court that the teachers had
no right to claim a specific age because it was suggested in the
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scheme which itself' was voluntary and not binding. The Court
clearly observed that “the appellant cannot claim that major
~ portion of the scheme having been accepted by the
Government, they have no right not to accept the clause relating
to fixation of higher age of superannuation”. The Court therein
observed that it was a matter between the State Government
on the one hand and the University Grants Commission on the
.. other and it would be for the University Grants Commission to
extend the benefit of the scheme or not to extend the same
depending upon its satisfaction about the attitude taken by the
State Government in the matter of implementing the scheme. It
“was also clearly observed that as long as the State Government
Jhas not accepted UGC’s recommendations to fix the age of
* * swperannuation at 60 years, teachers cannot claim as a'matter
of right that they were entitled to retire on attaining the age of

. 60 years”. i

7. :The Apex Court has followed T.P.George in this matter. The aforesaid
re-produced paragraph makes it clear that it was for the State Government to
accept the UGC recommendation or not. This judgment also has no application
because in the present case the State Government has already accepted the
recommendation and enhanced the age of retirement to 65 years.

8. Shri Gaupta has also relied on (2000) 10 SCC 527 (State of Bihar

and Another Vs. Teachers’ Association of Govt. Engmeermg College and
- Others.). This judgment is of no assistance to the institutions because in that
case the teachers of Government colleges were claiming parity in the age of
retirement with teachers of Patna University. In this case, the State Government
has already treated them at par and passed the order dated 19.10.2010
commanding the Government, Autonomous and Aided institutions to enhance
the age upto 65 years. Shri Gupta also relied on (2004) 1 SCC 592 (Suresh
- Chandra Singh and Others Vs. Fertilizer Corpn. Of India Ltd. And Others).
* 'This judgment will also not cut any ice because in this case the employees of
Public Sector Units were claiming parity in the matter of age of retirement
with Central Government employees. In the present case, this parity is al-
ready recognized and established because the State Government has already
passed the order dated 19.10.2010. For the same reason, (1997) 3 SCC
371 (K.Krishnamacharyulu and Others Vs. Sri Venkateshwara Hindu
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College of Engineering and Another) cited by Shri Gupta has no application.
Lastly, Shri Gupta relied on (2011) 7 SCC 172 (Khandesh College Education
Society, Jalgaon and others Vs. Arjun Hari Narkhede and others) to submit
that teachers of aided institutions are not Government servants, This is nobody’s
case, nor the petitioners are claiming the State Government employees status.
Hence, the judgment cannot be pressed into service.

9. . Reverting back to the order dated 19.10.2010 which will show that in
Clause 3 the State Government has followed and accepted the regulatlons
and enhanced the age of teachers from 62 to 65 years.

10. . Shri Gupta submits that the document dated 21.4.201 1 (Annexure R/
2-2) filed with W.P.No.2371/11 shows that the order of Government dated
16.4.2010 has no application for teachers of aided institutions. This argument
deserves rejection. The petitioners are neither seeking enforcement of order
dated 16.4.2010 nor order dated 21.4.2011 issued for the petitionets who
were working in technical institutions. The said order is issued by Higher
Education Department and, admittedly, technical institutions are not working
under the Higher Education Department. The next reliance of Shri Gupta is -
on document dated 14.10.2010 (Annexure R/2-6 filed with W.P.N0.2371/
11 whereby it is mentioned that as per memorandum and article of associa-
tion of the society, governing body/managing comxmttee has power to'extend
the service of an employees

11.  In the opinion of this Court, this order is also of no help to the
respondents. The petitioners are not seeking any extension of service. They
are claiming that their age of retirement has already been enhanced by the
State Government and it should be implemented.

12.  Reverting back to the Grant-in-Aid rules would show that these rules
are binding on the aided institutions. The institutions which are taking prant-in-
aid from the State Government are bound by the orders of the State
Government. Following portion of these rules are reproduced:-

~ “The staffing pattern of the institution for teaching staff,
supporting staff and other staff would be as per pattern
approved by the Government of India and the all India Council
of Technical Education and agreed to by the State Government
in case of Engineering Colleges, Polytechnics and professional/ .
vocational institutions receiving grant-in-aid from the
Govemment.
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- The employees of grantee institutions shall be entitled to scales
of pay, allowances dearness allowance and such other

allowances/benefits which are applicable to the employees of
Government institutions.

All orders issued and embargoes imposed by the State
Govemnment to tide over financial stringencies shall be applicable
to grantee institutions also.”

13.  The Karnataka High Court in the case of Dr. R. Halesha and others
Vs. State of Karnataka and others (W.P.No.13449/2011) and other
connected matters has allowed the petition. In the said case, the Kanataka
High Court relied on the UGC regulations and held that those regulatlons are
binding on the respondents.

14, In the light of aforesaid, itis clcar that the aided institutions are bound
to follow the orders and rules made by the State Government. Once the State
Government has passed the oder dated 19.10.2010, its not open to the
institutions to keep the age of retirement of teachers as 62 years. They are
bound to follow the order dated 19.10.2010.

15. Resultisinevitable. The orders in different petitions prematurely retiring

_the petitioners at the age of 62 years are quashed and set aside. The age of
retirement of the petitioners shall be 65 years. The respondents are bound to
implement the ordér of the State Government dated 19.10.2010. The petitions
are allowed to the extent indicated above.

Petition allowed
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. WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
W P. No. 18045/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 24 October, 2011

M.P. SAMDARIYA ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ' ...Respondents

Constitution, Article 226, Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation)
Act, (33 of 1976), Sections 5(1)(3), 6, 9, 10(1)(3)(4) — Transfer of Land
— Transfer of excess land through sale deed after draft statement and
notification is void ab initio and does not create any right — Any such
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transfer shall be deemed to be null and void — Petition dismissed.
- (Para 10)
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Cases referred:

(2010) 8 SCC 467, (2010). 10 SCC 677.
N.P. Pandey, for the petitioner.

ORDER

SanJay Yapav, J :- Heard.

Order dated 15.9.11 passed by the Additional Collector, Jabalpur is
being challenged in this writ petition under Article 226/227 of the Constitution
ofIndia. =

2. By said order petitioners request for recording him as owner of land
admeasuring 0.983 hectare KhasraNo.19, S.N. 664 P.C. No.20/17 Village
Maharajpur has been declined on the ground that the same vests in the
Government and is recorded as Government land after being declared sur-
plus in a proceeding under Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act 1976
and taken possession of.

3. The land in 1question originally belonged to one Anandllal Dubey who
owned the entire Khasra No.19. In a proceedings under the Act of 1976
forming subject matter of case N0.308 H-90 (9-9)/1981-82, land .
admeasuring 9831.17 sq.mts. was declared surplus. Possession of said land
was handed over to the State on 27.2.92 as is apparent from the possession-
letter on record. The possession was given by one Shankar Prasad Tiwari,
son-in-law of said Anandilal Dubey in presence of two mdependent witnesses
Santlal and Arjun Prasad. -

4. Itappears that afte_r the land in question has beeﬁ declared surplusL
said Anandilal through power of Attorney Holder Shri Anand Giri s/o Shri
. Sewak Giri Goswami sold the part of surplus land (i.e. the land in question) to
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one Kasturi Devi vide sale deed dated 26.3.90. Name of Kasturi Devi on the
‘basis of sale deed was got recorded in panchshala Khasra.

5. Said Smt. Kasturi Devi expired on 19.11.93. The petitioner on the
basis 6of the will dated 30.5.86 claimed himselfto be the owner of the property

and through one Power of Attorney Shri Vinay Kumar Khanna applied for
mutatjon on the ground that with the repeal of Act of 1976 by Urban Land * -

(Ceiling and Regulation) Repeal Act 1999, the land in questlon reverted in
favour of erstwhile owner.

6. The Claim of the petitioﬁer has been negativ by the impugned order
on the ground that having been vested with the State Government after being

declared surplus and taken possession of, the Act of 1999, will not effect the

vesting.

7 Rightly so, as only those proceedings under'l_ 999 Act stand'abated
‘where possession has not been taken (Please See: Sulochana Chandrakant
Galande v. Pune Municipal Transport: (2010) 8 SCC 467), In the case at
hand, the possession of land in question in pursuance to the declaration of it
being surplus was handed over on 27.2.92. Though the pctmoner questions
the manner in which possesswn ofland is taken.

8. It is urged that the Shakarla‘l Tiwari, (son-in-law of Anandilal) had no
authority to hand over the possession. Even if the submission is presumed to
be correct, the fact remains that neither Shankarlal Tiwari nor said Anandilal
ever came forward to question the vésting of surplus land.

0. - Even otherwise (though the petitioner has not declared the relevant
dated as to when the statement under Section 6 of the Act of 1976 was filed
by the said Anandilal and the date of notification under Section 9 and Section
10 (1) of the 1976 Act) the title of the case wherein the land in question was
declared surplus discloses it to be of the year 1981-82 i.e. much before the
execution of said sale deed dated 26.3.90. Sub-Section (1) of Section 5 of
1976 Act stipulates that where any person commencing on the appointed day
and ending with the commencement of the Act of 197 6 has transferred such
land or part thereof, by way of sale, mortgage, gift, lease or otherwise, the
extent of the land so transferred shall also be taken into account in calculating
the extent of vacant land eld by such person and the excess vacant land in

relation to such person shall be selected out of the vacant land held him. Clause

w
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@ of sub-Section (4) of Section 10 of the Act of 1976 stipﬁlatés that no

person shall transfer by way of sale, mortgage, gift lease or otherwise any
excess vacant land (including any part thereof) specified in the notification

- under sub-Section (1) or sub-Section (3) of Section 10 and any such transfer

made in contravention of the provision shall be deemed to be null and void.
(Similar situation arises when transfer is béfore the statement filed under Section
6 and the publication under Section 10 (1) as per Section 5 (3) such transaction
is deemed to be null and void under Section 5(3) of 197 6 Act: Please see
Ritesh Tewari and another v. State of Uttar Pradesh and others: (2010)
10 SCC 677). '

10.  Inthe case at hand the said transfer of excess land by virtue of sale
deed dated 26.3.90 being after the draft statement filed under Section 6 and
the notification under Section 10(1) of 1976 Act, is void ab initio, and does
not create any right in favour of the petitioner. In Ritesh Tewari (supra) it is
observed- o o

“32- It is settled legal proposition that if an order is bad in its
inception, it does not get sanctified at a later stage. A
.subsequent action/development cannot validate an action which |
was not lawful at its inception, for the reason that the illegality
strikes at the root of the order. It would be beyond the
competence of any authority to validate such an order. It would
be ironical to permit a person to rely upon a law, in violation
of which he has obtained the benefits. '

35- In the instant case, as we have observed that the alleged
sale deed dated 20.4.82 in favour of Mayur Sahkari Awas
Samiti has been a void transaction, all subsequent transactions
have merely to be ignored.” . '

11. In view of above the impugned order negativing the claim of the
petitioner for recording him owner of the property in question cannot be faunited
with.

12.. " Intheresult, petition'fails andis héreby dismissed.

Petition dismissed
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"WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Rajendra Menon & Mr.Justice AIakAradhe
W.P. No. 6532/2000 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 November, 2011

GS.THAKUR o ' ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Respondents

Service Law — Departmental Enquiry — No Evidénce —Petitioner
who was working as A.D.J. was terminated from service on the ground
that ke had hatched conspiracy with ‘A’ to cause injuries to another
A.D.J. so that bail application of father of ‘A’ will come to his board -
‘Complainant did not disclose the source of such information — During
departmental enquiry, complainant disclosed that he was informed by

‘B’ who in his turn was informed by two students about conspiracy —

Neither ‘B’ nor students examined — ‘C’ and ‘D’ who had given affidavits
in support of complainant also did not support in departmental enquiry
and alleged that affidavits were obtained by getting their signatures
on blank paper — Complainant did not disclose the source of his
information for near about 4 years — Reliance of inquiry officer on the
affidavits of ‘C’ and ‘D’ not proper — Findings given by enquiry officer
are perverse— Order of termination quashed — As Petitioner has already
attained the age of superannuation, he should be treated to be is service
till the attainment of age of superannuation and will be entitled for all
benefits of service — Petltmn allowed, ' (Para 13 to0 17)
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Cases referred:

2009(2) SCC 570, AIR 2002 SC 3030, AIR 1998 SC 3038, (1995)
1 SCC 404, (2006) 4 SCC 713, W.P. No. 5400/2000 decided on 23-8-
2011, (2006) 7 SCC 180, (1991) 2 SCC 716, (2010) 5 SCC 349, AIR
1996 SC 1669, AIR 1985 SC 1121, (1966) 1 SCR 466=AIR 1966 SC
671, (1971) 1 SCR 201=AIR 1970 SC 1302

Manoj Sharma, for the petitioner. _
Kumaresh Pathak, Dy.Adv.Gen, for the respondent no.1.
V.8.Shroti with Ashish Shroti, for the respondent no.2.

ORDER

The order of ~the court was delivered by:
RAJENDRA MENON, J :- The petitioner who was a judicial officer has filed this
writ petition challenging the order Annexure P-1, dated 29-08-2000, by which
he has been punished after a departmental inquiry and his services have been
terminated. Challenge is also made to the order Annexure P-14 dated 19-03- -
2002, by which the appeal filed by the petitioner has been dismissed by the
appellate authority, namely, the Governor.

2. The petitioner bad joined the State Judicial service as a Class-II Civil
Judge after he was appointed on 26-10-1975 vide order Annexure P-2. He
was promoted to the higher judicial service on 15-09-1 989 vide Annexure
P-3. According to the petitioner, right from the date of his appointment in
the year 1975 till the impugned action was taken in the year 2000, he had a
unblemished service career of more than 25 years. Itis his case that during
this long period of 25 years, no action was taken against him, he was never
warned , reprimanded,, nor any charge sheét issuedto him or any adverse

_remark communicated, accordingly, it is his case that he had a unblemished

service record.

N

3. In the year 1995, the petitioner was posted as Additional District &
Sessions Judge, Bhind, one ‘Shri A.K.Jain was also posted in the same capac-
ity in District Bhind. It is seen from the record that Shri A.K.Jain made a
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complaint to the effect that one Anil Kumar Sharma with an ulterior motive
has conspired with the present petitioner to cause injuries to him, so that
Shri A.K.Jain is unable to perform his duties between 13-06-1995 to
16-06-1995. 1t is stated by Shri A.K.Jain in his complaint that in pursuance to
the aforesaid conspiracy, Shri Anil Kumar Sharma came with his Scooter
from behind on 13-06-1995 when Shri A.K.Jain was coming to the court in
" the eatly morning, dashed against the Scooter in which Shri A.K.Jain, was
going to the court, as aresult he sustained certain injuries. It is stated in the
complaint that father of Anil Kumar Sharma, one Shri Rishab Dev Sharma
was implicated in Crime No.374/94, a criminal case was registered against
him for offence under section 307 of IPC, by Police Station Dehat Bhind,
Shri Rishab Dev Sharma was absconding and to facilitate grant of bail to
Shri Rishab Dev Sharma, the entire conspiracy has hatched to enable the
- petitioner to hear the bail application in the absence of the complainant Shri
AKX Jain, ‘ :

4. On the basis of the complaint of Shri A.K.Jain, it is seen that a
preliminary inquiry was ordered by the High Court. District Judge (Vigilance),
was directed to conduct an inquiry into the matter. Finding a prima facie case
made out on the basis of the preliminary inquiry conducted by the District
Judge(Vigilance), a charge sheet dated 30-12-1997 was issued to the
petitioner. The petitioner submitted his reply to the charge sheet vide Annexure
P-5 dated 04-05-1998. It is stated that before submitting the reply, vide
" Annexure P-6 dated 09-01-1998, the petitioner sought for supplying various
documents and report of the preliminary inquiry. This was refused by the
High Court on 28-03-1998 vide Annexure P-7 and therefore without the
documents being made available, petitioner submitted his reply to the charge
sheet vide Annexure P-5. Finding the reply to the charge sheet to be
unsatisfactory, departmental inquiry was ordered. One Shri S.K.Sharma,
District Judge(Vigilance) Gwalior Zone was appointed as Inquiry Officer. In
the inquiry, statements of 8 witnesses were examined on behalf of the
prosecution, they are Annexures P-9(A) to P-9(H). On the basis of the
material that came on record , the Inquiry Officer submitted his report on

18-02-1999. The report of the Inquiry Officer was served on the petitioner-

alongwith a show cause notice Annexure P-11 dated 07-04-1999, The
petitioner submitted his reply to the same vide Annexure P-12 and on the
. basis of the résolution, which was passed by the Full Court on 08-07-2000
(Annexure R-5), the impugned action was taken. The appeal filed by the

w
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petitioner. vide Annexure P-13 haviné beenrejected by the Governor vide
- Annexure P-14, the petitioner has filed the present writ petition.

5. Shri Manoj Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner took us through
the allegations levelled against the petitioner in the charge sheet and argued
that the solitary charge against the petitioner in the charge sheet wasthathe .
had hatched a conspiracy with Anil Kumar Sharma, caused injuries to Shri
A .K.Jain the complainant with an ulterior motive to ensure that Shri Jain did
not perform court work from 13-06-1995 till 16-05-1995, which was the
summer vacation period in the court and as only two Additional District Judges
were available for the vacation. If Shri A.K.Jain who was to discharge vacation
duties was on leave, the bail application of Shri Rishab Dev Sharma would
come for hearing before the petitioner and bail would be granted. Shri
Manoj Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner argued that to substantiate
the aforesaid allegation, 8 witnesses have been examined and afier taking us
through the statements of these witnesses, the complaint of Shri A.K .Jain and
the findings recorded by the Inquiry Officer, learned counsel emphasized
that the allegations levelled against the petitioner are not atall proved. The
circumstances that have come on record in the inquiry do not substantiate the
allegation in the charge levelled against the petitioner and the Inquiry Officer
and the. Disciplinary Authority on the basis of presumption and assumption
have taken action against the petitioner. Contending that without there being
sufficient evidence to implicate the petitioner with the offence or the, act in
question, in a arbitrary and illegal manner, the impugned action is taken .
Emphasizing that the finding recorded by the Inquiry Officer is wholly perverse,
contrary to the evidence available on record, the appreciation of evidence
done by the Inquiry Officer is wholly illegal. Shri Manoj Sharma submitted
that on the following grounds the action taken against the petitioner is
unsustainable. The grounds canvassed by Shri Manoj Sharma can be
categorized as under :

()  Itwas submitted by learned counsel for the petitioner that
when the charge sheet was issued, the petitioner sought for various
documents vide his application Annexure P-6 dated 09-01-1998,

the documents included the statements of witnesses recorded in the
preliminary inquiry, inquiry report, these documents were never
supplied to the petitioner instead the High Court vide order dated
28-03-1998 (Annexure P-7) rejected the request of the petitioner. It
is stated that the petitioner was handicapped due to non supply of
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these vital documents and was compelled to submit his reply to the
charge sheet without these material documents, accordingly the first
ground canvassed is that the entire proceedings stands vitiated on
the aforesaid ground.

(@)  Thesecond ground canvassed was that the witnesses who
were examined in the preliminary inquiry were also examined in the
departmental inquiry and the statements of all these witnesses recorded
inthe preliminary inquiry were supplied to the petitioner only on
16-09-1998 i.e. on the day when the witnesses were being examined.
Accordingly, itis stated that as the statements were not supplied in
advance, the petitioner was handicapped in effectively cross examining
the witnesses, accordingly itis emphasized that the same amounts
to breach of the principle of natural justice and therefore the entire

‘inquiry is vitiated.

(iit) The third ground canvassed was that the findings of the Inqmry
Officer are perverse and the Inquiry Officer has not given any reason
for disbelieving the statements of some of the witnesses recorded in
the inquiry particularly the statements of PW-6 Ramvir Singh Yadav
and PW-8 Udaivir Singh. It was stated that these witnesses were
declared hostile in the inquiry and by referring to certain affidavits
given by them to the petition which formed part of the complaint,
the petitioner is held guilty and in doing so, no cogent or justifiable
reason is given as to why the statements recorded in the inquiry is
being discarded in comparison to the statements recorded in the
preliminary inquiry or the affidavit submitted. That apart taking us
through the entire evidence of all the 8 prosecution witnesses, the
finding and reason given by the Inqmry Officer and the appreciation
of evidence done, Shri Manoj Sharma, learned counsel for the
petitioner argued that the findings are perverse. The allegations lev-
elled against the petitioner are not proved and the circumstances
brought on record in the inquiry is not such on the basis of which the
guilt of the petitioner can be said to be conclusively proved.

(iv) the next contention urged was that after the inquiry was
concluded i.e. after statements of prosecution witnesses were recorded
and after defence witnesses of the petitioner were also examined,
general examination of the petitioner by the Inquiry Officer as

Y
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contemplated under Rule 14(18) of M.P. Civil Services (Classification
Control & Appeal) Rules, 1966 was not undertaken and as this
mandatory provision is not followed, it is stated that the entire inquiry
stands vitiated.

_ ) finally the last submission made by Shri Manoj Sharma was

"to the effect that even if the allegations levelled against the petitioner

are held to be proved, it was submitted by him that the punishment

imposed is too harsh and disproportionate and therefore, the same
cannot be upheld. :

In support of the aforesaid contentions, Shri Manoj Sharma invited
our attention to the following judgments:

2009(2)SCC 570 (Roop Singh Negi Vs. Punjab National Bank
.and others) .

AIR 2002 SC 3030 (Sher Bahadur Vs. Union of India and others)

to canvass his contention that the evidence adduced in the inquiry do not
establish the guilt against the petitioner and the oral and documentary evidence
are not sufficient to hold the petitioner guilty for the misconduct alleged.

AIR 1998 (SC) 3038 (State of UP Vs. Shatrughan Lal and
another)

(1995) 1 SCC 404 (Committee of Management, Kisan Degree
College Vs. Shambhu Saran Pandey and others) '

(2006) 4 SCC 713 (Narinder Mohan Arya Vs. United India
Insurance Co.Ltd. and others)

in support of the contention that there is procedural irregularity inthe conduct
of the inquiry, non supply of documents and breach of the provisions contained
in Rule 14(18) vitiates the entire inquiry, accordingly on the basis of the
aforesaid Shri Manoj Sharma argued that the impugned action is liable to be
quashed.

6. Shri V.S.Shroti, leammed Senior counsel, assisted by Shri Ashish Shroti,
learned counsel for respondent no.2 and Shri Kumaresh Pathak, learned
Deputy Advocate General, for respondent no.1 refuted the aforesaid
contentions and argued that as far as procedural irregularity pointed out by
the petitioner is concerned, the same is not correct. It was emphasized that

¥



80 G.S. Thakur Vs State of M.P. (DB) I.L.R.[2012]M.P.

all the necessary documents were given to the petitioner alongwith the charge
sheet and the statements of the witnesses recorded in the preliminary inquiry
were also given to the petitioner at the time of departmental enquiry and on
the basis of the same, the petitioner having elaborately cross examined each
of the witnesses, it is stated that no prejudice has been caused to the petitioner
and therefore, on the ground of procedural irregularity, no case for interference
is made out, particularly when the petitioner is unable to demonstrate before
this court the prejudice caused to him due to non supply of the documents.

7. Further taking us through the statement of the witnesses and the reasons
given by the Inquiry Officer in his report Annexure P-12 Shri Shroti argued
that a reasonable finding has been recorded by the Inquiry Officer after due

appreciating the evidence and matertal that came on record and this court

cannot now go into the question of sufficiency of evidence or otherwise
and exonerate the petitioner, Inviting our attention to certain principles laid
down by the Division Bench of this court in W.P.N0.5400/2000 (S.B.
Bhargave Vs. State of Madhya Pradesh and another) decided on
23-08-2011 Shri Shroti contends that the scope of judicial review available
under Article 226 of the Constitution of India does not permit this court to
re-appreciate the entire evidence as canvassed by Shri Manoj Sharma and
come to a conclusion different from the one recorded by the Inquiry Officer.
It was emphasized that the evidence on record do indicate that the petitioner
has committed the misconduct, the conspiracy and the guilt of the petitioner
and therefore, this court cannot now sit over the finding of the Inquiry Officer
by exercising further appellate jurisdiction, accordingly, Shri Shroti argued
that areasonable finding recorded by the Inquiry Officer on due appreciation
of evidence and material that came on record does not warrant any further
consideration or interference now in these proceedings under Article 226 of
* the Constitution of India.. Finally with regard to non compliance of provisions
of Rule 14(18) of M.P. Civil Services (Classification Control & Appeal)Rules,
Shri Shroti argued that after the prosecution witnesses were examined the
petitioner was given opportunity to examine his defence witnesses. The
petitioner examined two witnesses and thereafter the petitioner was given an
opportunity to record his defence statement, the petitioner refused to give his
own defence statement and having done so, he cannot now complain
_ about breach of rule 14(18). Finally Shri Shroti argued that the punishment
imposed being in accordance to law this court cannot interfere with the
_quantum of punishment in these proceedings under Article 226 of the

»
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Constitution of India. Apart from placing reliance on the judgment in the
case.of S.B. Bhargave (supra), in support of his contention Shri Shroti
placed reliance on the following judgments :

(2006) 7 SCC 180 (UP SRTC Vs. Mitthu Singh)

(1991) 2 SCC 716 (Maharashtra State Board of Secondary and
. Higher Secondary Education Vs. K.S.Gandhi and others)

(2010) 5 SCC 349 (Alok Kumar Vs. Union of India and others)

8. Having heard the learned counsel for the parties and after going
through the record, we are of the considered with that the. followmg questions
arise for consideration in this writ petition :

() - Whethernon supply of the documents of the preliminary inquiry
as claimed for by the petitioner vitiates the entire proceedings ?

(i) Whether in the facts and circumstances of the case and the
material adduced in the departmental inquiry , the allegation against
‘the petitioner can be said to have been conclusively proved oris the
evidence enough to make out a case of conspiracy warrantmg

actlon to be taken agamst the petitioner ? et sy

(m) Whether the proceedings stand vitiated due tonon comphance
with the provisions of Rule 14(18) of M.P. le Semces (Classification
Control & Appeal) Rules, 1966 2. .- 1o o nivion

(ivy  Whether the pumshment 1mposed is too harsh anid
disproportionate to the allegatlons lcvelled agamst the petmoner 9 .

9. Before adverting to consider the: rlval contentions for determlmng
the-aforesaid questions, it is thought appropriate to take note ofthefactiial
aspect of the matter. Fromthe allegations levelled against the petitioner-in the
charge sheet it is seen that in district Bhind atthe ‘'relevant time'i.e..inJune
1995 the summer vacation of the courts were in progress, as such regular

- court working was not going on.and Shri A.J.Jain, Additional District'&
.Sessions Judge was dealing with the bail matters and urgerit :criminal cases

during the vacation period as three of the judges were on'summer vacation

-and petitioner Shri GS.Thakur even though was available in the headquarters

was under orders of transfer and was to be rrelieved -on 16-06-1995. Shri

, Anll Kumar who is sa1d to have caused the a001dent by dashmg mto the
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scooter of complainant A.K. Jain is son of one Shri Rlshab Dev Sharma

against whom an offence under section 307 of the IPC was registered and it -

is the case of complainant A.K.Jain that the bail application of Shri Rishab
+ Dev Sharma who was absconding was to come up for hearing before him
on 13-06-1995. It is stated by Shri A.K. Jain that Shri Anil Kumar Sharma
went to the house of Shri G.S.Thakur, (petitioner), and the delinquent
employee on 13-06-1995 and the petitioner is said to have informed Shri
Anil Kumar Sharma that the bail application will come before Shri A.K.Jain
and if Shri A.K.Jain some how takes leave on 13-06-1995 and does not
come to the court, the bail application will be heard by the petitioner, .in

~ which event bail can be granted to the father of Shri Anil Sharma. It is the "

case of the complainant that the petitioner had advised Shri Anil Kumar Sharma

to.cause the accident so that Shri A.K.Jain gets injured and does not come

to the court. Shri A.K.Jain in his complaint has stated that the aforesaid
- information was received by him through some reliable sources and
subsequently after a period of more than 15 days, he submitted a written
complamt to the High Court alongwith affidavits of two persons namely PW-
6] Ramvir Singh Yadav and PW-8 Udaivir Singh. It was stated in this written
complamt by Shri A.K.Jain that Ramvir Singh Yadav and Udaivir Singh were
passing through aroad, near the house of the petitioner when they saw Anil
Sharma talking to an old person about the entire conspiracy, accordingly Shri
*- A K.Jain, the complainant had implicated the petitioner in his complaint by
contending that in the affidavits of Ramvir Singh Yadav and Udaivir Singh
have implicated the petitioner as the person who is behind the entire episode.
To prove this allegation in the charge sheet , 8 witnesses were examined in
_ the departmental inquiry, they are A.K.Jain, the complainant himself (PW-1),
Gangaram Solanki, a peon as (PW-2), another peon Ram Bahadur Singh
" (PW-3), Stenographer of petitioner G.S.Thakur Ramesh Kumar Shrivastava
(PW-4), PW-5 Anil Kumar Singh Tomar, PW-6 Ramvir Singh Yadav , PW-
. 7 Inder Sirigh Chouhan, Court Moharrir in the court of Shri A.K.Jain, PW-8
Udaivir Singh. On behalf of the petitioner, two defence witneses DW-1 and
DW-2 namely Man Bahadur Singh Bhadoria and Vishwa Bandhu Sharma
have been examined. Certain dccuments were brought on record they are

mainly affidavits submitted t,,; Jdaivir and Raghuvir, the complaint of Sh:i

A K.Jain and the court documents showing filing of the bail application on
: ,behalf of Rlshabh Dev Sharma and the orders passed in the same.

10. Itmay also be taken note of that on 13-06-1995 Shri A.K. Jam did
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notatténd the court because of the accident, the-bail application of Shri Rishabh
‘Dev Sharma came up for hearing before petitioner G.S.Thakur and in the
said case the petitioner called for the case diary and adjourned the matter for
'14-06-1995, on which date the application came up for hiearing befote Shri
A:K.Jain and it was'adjourned for 16-06-1995 and on 16-06-1995 it was
withdrawn. oo : ‘ : T

‘11. ;. Before referring to the statements of witnesses and the matgrial
adduced in the inquiry and before analyzing the report of the Inquiry Officer
‘with regard to the main contention of Shri Manoj Sharma with regard to the
dllegations not being proved, it is thought appropriate to consider the first
ground urged by Shri Manoj Sharma with regard to' procedural irregitlarity'in
theinquiry. o - S
12. .. The procedural irregularity pointed out by Shri Manoj Sharma isto
the effectthat at the time of filing reply to the . charge sheet and thereafter
during the course of inquity, report of the preliminary inquiry and the statements.
,of the witnesses recorded in the preliminary inquiry were not supplied to the
petitioner jn time to enable him to submit his reply to the charge sheet or
well before commencement of inquiry, eventhough the High:Court vide
Annexure P-7 dated 26-03-1998 rejected the prayer of the petitioner for
supplying the documents at the time of filing reply to the charge sheet. Records
indicate that the statements of all the witnesses' recorded in the inquiry were
supplied to the petitioner on 16-09-1998 i.e. at the time of examination of the
witnesses in the departmental inquiry. A perusal of the proceedings of the
inquiry indicate that all the witnesses* produced in the inquiry were effectively
cross examined by the petitioner and except for contending that the documents
were not supplied to him in time. The petitioner has not indicated: as to what
is the prejudice caused to the petitioner due to non su‘ppl\y of the- documents.
If the record of the inquiry is taken note of, it is clear that the petitionér has
elabor_ately cross examined the witnesses and at the time of heaﬁné of this
* petitioner he is unable to demonstrate the prejudice caused to him and is
also unable to say so as to how and in what manner the finding of the Inquiry
Officer would be ma.erially affected due to non grant of opportl:ul_i‘cy..quer‘
-such circumstances in the absence of prejudice being caused to 1he petitionier
and keeping in view the law laid down by the Supreme Court in the case of "
State Bank of Patiala and-others Vs. S.K.Sharma, AIR 1996 SC 1669, we
do not see any ground to hold the inquiry to be vitiated merely because the
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statements of some of the witnesses were not given to the petitioner before
commencement of the inquiry. The petitioner having effectively cross examined
the witnesses and having failed to demonstrate the prejudice caused before
us and in the absence of any statutory provisions being shown to be violated
in this regard, the aforesaid ground with regard to procedural irregularity in
the matter is found to be unsustainable and is accordingly rejected. Havitig
held so it is now proper to consider the second question with regard to
misconduct being proved in the inquiry and perversity if any in the findings.

13. Weare conscious of the limitation imposed under law and the fact
that we are not to ‘sit over the finding of the Inquiry Officer or the disciplinary
authority as if we are exercising the powers.of a appellate authority. The
judgment relied upon by Shri V.S.Shroti in the case of S.B.Bhargava(supra),
‘which is a judgment rendered by this Bench has to be taken note of the
“settled principle of law and keeping in view the aforesaid principle the question
of interference into the finding of the Inquiry Officer is to be considered . In
the case of Sher Bahadur (supra) relied upon by Shri Manoj Sharma in
para-7, the Hon’ble Supreme Court has laid down the principle with regard -
_ to meaning of the expression “sufficiency of evidence “. Similar principle
with regard to interference into the matter of judicial review are laid down in
the case of Narendra Mohan Arya (supra) relied upon by Shri Manoj Sharma,
it has been held that despite limited;jurisdiction available, this court is entitled
to interfere into the matter if the report of the Inquiry Officer is based on no
evidence or if it amounts to recording a finding so perverse in nature that no
prudent man would arrive at such conclusion . It is in the backdrop of the
aforesaid settled principles that we are proceedings to analyze the inquiry
record to find out asto whether the second ground canvassed by Shri
Manoj Sharma can be said to be sufficient enough warranting interference. In
this regard we may also take note of the principles laid down by the Supreme
Court in the case of Anil Kumar Vs. Presiding Officer and others AIR
1985 SC 1121. In the aforesaid case the principles with reégard to duties and
functions of the Inquiry Officer and the question of appreciation of evidence
by the Inquiry Officer and the application of mind by the Inquiry Officer are -
taken'note of and the principle is crystallized :

“It is well-settled that a disciplinary enquiry has to be a quasi-judicial
enquiry held according to the principles of naturai justice and the
Enquiry Officer hasa duty to act judicially. The Enquiry Officer did
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ot apply his mind to'the evidence. Save setting out the‘_ names of the

witnesses, he did not discuss the evidence. He merely recorded his
ipse dixit that the charges are proved. He did not assign a single
reason why the evidence produced by the appellant did not appeal

to him or was considered not credit-worthy. He did not permita -
peep into his mind as to why the evidence produced by the management

" appealed to him in preference to the evidence produced by the

appellant. An enquiry reportina quasi-judicial enquiry must show the
reasons for the conclusion. It cannot be an ipse dixit of the Enquiry
Officer. It has to be a speaking order in the sense that the conclusion
is supported by reasons. This is too well-settled to be supported by
a precedent. In Madhya Pradesh Industries Ltd. V. Union of India
(1966) 1 SCR 466: (AIR 1966 SC 671), this Court observed thata
speaking order will at best be a reasonable and at its worst be at least

‘a plausible one. The public should not be deprived of this only

safeguard. Similarlyin Mahabir Prasad V.State of Uttar Pradesh
(1971) 1 SCR 201 : (AIR 1970 SC 1302), this court reiterated that

" satisfactory decisionofa disputed claim may be reached only if it be

supported by the most cogent reasons that appealed to the authority.
It should all the more so where the quasi-judicial enquiry may result
in deprivation of livelihood or attach a stigma to the character. In this
case the enquiry report is an order-sheet which merely produces the
stage through which the enquiry passed. It clearly disclosed a total
non-application of mind and it is this report on which the General
Manager acted in terminating the service of the appellant. There could
not have been a gross case of non application of mind and it is such an
eqnuiry which has found favour with the Labour Court and the High
Court. :

6. Where a disciplinary enquiry affects the livelihood and is likely to
casta stigmaand it has to be held in accordance with the principles
of natural justice, the minimum éxpectation is that the report must be
a reasoned one. The Court then may not enter into the adequacy or

‘sufficienzy of evidence. But where the evidence is agnexed to an

order sheet and no correlation is established between the two showing -
application of mind, we are constrained to observe that itis notan
enquiry report at all. Therefore, there was no enquiry in this case worth
the name and the order of termination based on such proceeding



L

86 G.S. Thakur Vs State of M.P. (DB).  LL.R.[2012]M.P.

disclosing non-application of mind would be unsustainable.”

(Emphasis supplied)

14. . Thereisno direct evidence to implicate the petitioner with the accident
which was executed by Anil Kumar Sharma. A perusal of the report of the
" Inquiry Officer indicates that the Inquiry Officer after taking note of statements
of various witnesses in para 37 has discussed the evidence of PW-6 Shri
Ranvir Singh Yadav and Shri Udayvir Singh, PW-8 and has held that even
though these two persons who are alleged to have heard Anil Kumar Sharma
disclosing the conspiracy to his grand father have retracted from their
statement inthe departmental inquiry but after giving due. credence to their
affidavits Ex. P_10and P-12 available in the inquiry record a finding of guilt
isrecorded. The Inquiry Officer has held the petitioner guilt of the charge,
mainly on the basis of circumstances and the affidavits of these two witnesses
given to the complaint and the oral statement of Shri A.K:Jain, the complainant.
Inthe statement A.K.Jain, PW-1, complainant has narrated the fact about
vacation in the court, orders passed by the District Judge authorizing him to
hear the bail application and the manner in which the accident took place.
In para 8 of his examination in chief he comes out with a case thathe had
learned from the reliable sources that the entire accident took place because
:of the- consplracy ‘hatched between Anil Kumar Sharma and G.S.Thakur. In
para-8.0fhis evidence he says that he has promised to keep the name of the
person who disclosed these facts confidential, accordingly he has not disclosing
the name of the person through whom he got all these informations, he there-
after says:that it was this person who told him about PW-6 and P-8
Ramivir Singh Yadav and .Udaivir Singh overhearing the conversion between
Anil Kumar and his grand father. Even in his complaint to the High Court
Ex.P-7(22-07-1995) available in the record of inquiry Shri A.K.Jain does
not disclose the source from whichhe acquired the knowledge about the
conspn'acy, itisan admitted position, he did not acquire the information from
his personal knowledge His statement is based totally on some information
received by him fforn'a un known person as is made out from his examination
in chief. However, in his cross examination in para:29 for the first timeon 1 6-
09-1998 i.¢. after more than 4 years of the incident he came out with the
name of one Shri Radhe Shyam Agrawal, Professor (Geography) in
M.GS:College, Bhind as the person who disclosed the details of the conspiracy
hatched by Anil Kumar Sharma and the petitioner . From para 29 onwards it
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is stated by him that two students who were studying in M.G.S.College. -
informed Radhe Shyam Agrawal about Ramvir Singh Yadav and Udaivir
Singh over hearing the conversation between Anil Kumar Sharma and his
grand father and the students told Shri Radhe Shyam Agrawal about this who
in tumn informed the petitioner. But even though the story is unfolded in this
manner , exact date when Radhe Shyam Agrtawal informed about the con-
spiracy to the petitioner and further the exact date and time when the two
studerits informed Radhe Shyam Agrawal are not available on record. Even
the particulars and names of the two students are not available and it is not
known asto how these two students came to know Ramvir Singh Yadav
and Udaivir Singh and as to what was the circustancés under which PW-6
and PW-8 narrated the facts to the two students and when a question is put
to complainant Shri A.K.Jain, as to why he did not disclose about all these
facts to the High Court in his complaint, he simply says that he has promised
Shri Radhe Shyam-Agrawal that his name will not be disclosed. Therefore, - .
the story that is now unfolded from the cross examination of PW-1A K. Jain ,
is to the effect that one Shri Radhe Shyam Agrawal who is professor in 2
local college in Bhind was informed by two of his students that Ramvir Singh
Yadav and Udaivir Singh have told them( the two students) about hatching,
of conspiracy which was being disclosed ina openroad and therefore, the -
same was conveyed to the petitioner. The story is lacking in material jgarticu-'
lars as indicated hereinabove and seems to be total unconvincing and unbe-:
- lievable. ' ‘ . '

15.  Apart fromthe fact that neither Radhe Shyam Agrawal is examined

~ inthe departmental inquiry nor his statement is recoded. Even the so called

two witnesses 1. e. the students who have informed the fact to Radhe Shyam

are not available and theentire link about the conspiracy is very weak and '
is not reasonable established by the prosecution. That apart the incident is’
said to have taken place on 13-06-1 995, according to the complaiﬁant he

immediately got information with regard to the conspiracy in question’ involving -
the petitioner on the very next day Le. 14-06-1995. Even then till’
© 16-09-1998 i.e.for 4 years he did not disclose the marnner in which the-
conspiracy came ta his notice, it was for the first time as indicated herein-"
. above on 16-09-98 that the story of Radhe Shyam A grawal informing the-
petitioner about all these facts as indicated. In his complaint to the Registrar

of High Court made on 22-07-1995 i.¢. oné month after the incident which
is available in the original inquiry-filed as Annexure P-7 the complainant

v, N .
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_ does not say anything about the incident beingnarrated to him by Radhe
Shyam Agrawal, he only says that from reliable sources it has been informed
to him. Thereafier alongwith this complaint dated 22-07-1995 the petitioner
has submitted two affidavits Ex. P-12 of Udaivir Singh and PW-8 and Ex.P-10
of Ramvir Singh Yadav PW-6. The affidavits Ex.P-10 is dated 21-07-1 995
i.e. the day before the complaint was made to the High Court vide Annexure
P-7 and the affidavit of Ex.P-12 of Udaivir Singh Yadav is dated 06-07-1995.
In these affidavits also Udaivir Singh Yadav and Ramvir Singh did not say
anything about their disclosing the conspiracy to the two students as natrated
by the petitioner. It is surprising that the incident took place on 13-06-1995,
all the persons who came to know about the conspiracy like Udavir Singh
and Ramvir Singh and Radhe Shyam Agrawal were aware of the incident on
13-06-1995 but they chose to remain quite and it is only after more than
one month that these facts came to be put on record in writing by the
petitioner. That apart the conduct of.complainant A K. Jain in directly obtaining
the affidavits from Udaivir Singh Yadav and Ramvir Singh on 06-07-98 and
21-07-1998 castes a cloud of suspicion over the entire incident. If Shri A.K.Jain
came to know about the conspiracy he should have taken the ‘two witnesses
PW-6 Ramvir Singh and PW-8 Udaivir Singh to the District Judge or Registrar
of the High Court and it was for these authorities concerned to take steps in
the matter. The manner in which the affidavits are obtained by the complainant
and sent to the High Court after more than one month of the incident and the
conduct of the complainant in not disclosing the fact about Shri Radhe Shyam
Agrawal telling him about the conspiracy and not making any written complaint
on 14-06-1995 makes the entire incident of conspiracy suspicious. If the
statement of PW-1 complainant PW-1 Shri A K jain and the facts stated by
him in the cross examination are scrutinized , he does not give any explanation
as.to why in the complaint Annexure P-7 even to the High Court he did not
disclose the name of Radhe Shyam Agrawal is the person, who informed him
about the incident. In para-33 of the cross examination the complainant
discloses some relationship between him and Radhshyam. That apart in the
cross examination certain questions are put to the complainant about the
relation ship between the petitioner and professor Radhe Shyam Agrawal
which the complainant admits, the petitioner does not explain as to why he
kept quite from 13-06-1995 upto 21-07-95 and obtained affidavits only on
06-07-1995 and 21-07-1995 respectively. In para 34 of his cross examination
Shri.A.K.Jain admits that immediately on the next day of the incident i.e.
- 14-05-1995, he came to know about the conspiracy and the story narrated
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\ by Ramvir Singh and Udaivir Singh, stillhe does not give any satisfactory

explanatlon as to why on 14-05-1995 itself all these facts were not reported
to the High Court or the District Judge and why he had to wait for more
than one month to obtain affidavits and file a written complaint. Even in the
FIR fled by the complainant no such story is narrated. He only explains the
delay by stating that he had promised Radhe Shyam Agrawal that everything -
would be kept a secret. That apart from the cross examination of this
witness Shri A.K.Jain, it transpires that PW-8 Udaivir Singh is related to a
Accountant working in the court of Shri A.K.Jain and certain suggestions
have been put to him as to why these affidavits have been obtained accordingly.
If the entire evidence of Shri A.K.Jain is scanned , there are many crucial
questlons which remained unexplained, particularly his conduct in not
disclosing the entire facts in its totality with particulars of the persons who
told him about the conspiracy either to the District Judge or to the ngh Court
lmmedlately on'14-05-1995 or withina reasonable time. -

16. In the defence of the petitioner certam material has cocme onrecord
to indicate that in the District Court at Bhind there was some difference
amongst the judicial officers, . two groups were functioning, there was
infighting. Due to this groupism if the conduct of complainant Shri A.K.Jain
is examined in the backdrop of these facts, the story put forth by the
complainant become susp1c1ous and the benefit of this suspicion Hasto goto
the petitioner. That apart in the finding recorded by the Inquiry Officer all
these vital aspects have been ignored and is given a go by. The Inquiry
Officer has accepted the statement of Shri A.K.Jain in its totality and has
treated it to be a gospel truth without carrying to take note of certain vital
aspect of the evidence as is analysed by us hereinabove. If the entire
inquiry report is scanned it would be seen that the Inquiry Officer has held the
petitioner guilty of the charge only on the basis of the statement of Shri A.K.J ain
PW-1 complainant and the two affidavits Ex.P-10 and Ex.P-12 submitted by
Shri Ramvir Singh Yadav and Udayvir Singh before the High Court alongwith
the complaint of A.K .Jain Ex.P-7.

17. ©  After the statements of PW-6 Ramvir Singh and P-8 Udaivir Singh
were recorded in the inquiry is taken note of’, they have not supported the
case of the prosecution. They have stated that the affidavits were obtained
by them illegally, they were made to sign in blank paper by police
personnel and the court officials and they did not know anything about the
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incident. Inspite of this the Inquiry Officer has chosen to ignore their statements/”
given in the inquiry, declared them as hostile and recorded a finding that the
are not stating the correct facts before the Inquiry Officer and placed reliance
on their affidavits Ex.P-10 and Ex.P-12 and held the petitioner guilty itl)f '
charge leveled against him. It is therefore a case where the petitioner is held
guilty on the basis of two affidavits Ex.P10'and Ex.P-12 and the solita[ry
statement of Shri A.K Jain, PW-1, the statements of other witnesses doj hot
throw any lighton the conspiracy theory, PW-2 Gangaram Solanki a peon
says he does not know anything about the incident, he only says that nofBody
came to the house of the petitioner on the date of accident and he heard
about the accident from Shri A.K.Jain. Similar is the statement of PW-3 Ram
Bahadur Singh, who is also a peon and even though this witness is Qeclared
hostile, his evidence does not support the conspiracy theory. PW-4 esh
Kumar Shrivastava is Stenographer to the petitioner and he only says that "
after the order of transfer was received, the petitioner had not discharged .
any judicial function and did not pass any order. 5% witness is Anil Kumar -
Singh Tomar, whois a clerk in the court and his evidence is also not connected
with the conspiracy theory . 6% witness is PW-6 Ramvir Sing/h Yadav, 7t
witness is constable Indel Singh Chouhan who is an eye vyitness to the
accident. Accordingly in its totality the conspiracy theory betwe\;m the petitioner
and Anil Sharma is held to be proved by the Inquiry-Oﬁicel;,bn the basis of
statements of Shri A.K.Jain, PW-1, the affidavits of PW-6 Ramvir Singh and
P-8 Udaivir Singh and if the affidavits and the statement of Shri A.K Jain are
scrutinized in the backdrop of the reasons given by us in the preceding
paragraphs, we are of the considered view thatitis not valid piece of legal
evidence to hold the conspiracy theory as established, itis very suspicious
and weak piece of evidence, lacking in material partic}flar and various vital
links are missing. Accordingly on the basis of such a loose and weak nature
of evidence the petitioner cannot be held guilty ofthe charge leveled against
him; If the evidence as indicated hereinabove is scrutinized in the backdrop of
the principles laid down in the case of Sher Bahadur (supra) Narendra
Mohan Arya (supra) and further in the case of Anil Kumar(supra), we are
of the considered view that the same is not enough to prove the charge or
the misconduct alleged, hence the benefit of this has to go to the petitioner.

18.  Even though we have undertaken a detailed analysis of the material
as indicated hereinabove, we have only indicated the correct facts as they are
available on record and the same will not fall in the category of judicial

)
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review-amounting to re-appreciation of the entire evidence, we are of the
considered view thatifthe entire fact is taken on its face value, a, prudent

- manwill think hundred times before he records a finding to the effect that the

petitioner is guilty of conspiracy as alleged by complainant Shri A.K.Jain. It
is not a case where the evidence on the face of it suggests that the
conspiracy as put forth by Shri A.K.Jain is established. On the contrary, the
evidence led in the matter is weak and doubtful in nature, the same is not
sufficient enough to establish the guilt of the petitioner. Even though itis
settled principle of law that inthe departmental inquiry preponderance of
evidence is sufficient to bring home the guilt on delinquent employee. In the
case of Anil Kumar (Supra), it has been held that if the evidence on
record has no co-relation with the incident and does not establish the guilt of
the accused person, it is a perverse finding. That apart if the findings of the .
Inquiry Officer in the present case are scrutinized in the backdrop of prin-
ciples laid down in the case of Anil Kumar(Supra) it would be seen that the
Inquiry Officer has not given any cogent reason as to why the evidence
adduced before him in the departmental inquiry is being rejected, particularly
the statements of PW-6 Ramvir Singh and PW-8 Udaivir Singh and why he
has chosen to place reliance of their affidavits given to the complainant. No
reason is given for discarding the evidence which came in the departmental
inquiry in preference to the evidence that was collected by the complainant
himself. It is therefore, a case which shows total non application of mind by
the Inquiry Officer. The Inquiry Officer was discharging quasi judicial function
and no justification is given by the Inquiry Officer for accepting the evidence
which was collected by the complainant in the form of affidavits and rejecting
the statements of PW-6 Ramvir Singh Yadav and PW-8 Udaivir Singh in the
inquiry. In fact the Inquiry Officer has not given any cogent reason for doing
so. It is a case where if a prudent man approach is applied, or if the conclusion
arrived at by the Inquiry Officer and the finding recorded is scrutinized on
the basis of a reasonable approach theory the same can only be termed as
perverse. '

19. Thus the finding to the contrary recorded by the Inquiry Officer on the
basis of the evidence available onrecord is nothing but a n=rverse finding
and the action taken on the basis of such a finding cannot be permitted to
form the basis for taking disciplinary action and dismissing a Senior Judi-
cial Officer with 25 years of unblemished service and visiting him with'a
punishment of removal from service. The evidence to prove such a misconduct
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and for imposing such a punishment should be of such nature that it is
convincing enough and a prudent man approach, if adopted would lead
only toone conclusion i.e.. the guilt of the delinquent employee. Otherwise,
the benefit of doubt has to be given to the delinquent employee, as the
evidence in such cases would fall in the category of insufficient evidence and
the findings based thereon a perverse finding. Accordingly after detailed -
analysis of the evidence we are convinced that the that the conspiracy
theory putforth by Shri A.K.Jain for implicating the petitioner is nothing buta
very weak and unconvincing story which cannot be accepted.

. 20. The Inquiry Officer accepting the version of Shri A.K.Jain has held
that the petitioner visited A.K.Jain inthe evening on 13-05 -1995 and advised
him not to go to the court upto 16-05-97, on the basis qof this advise,
presumption is drawn that it was part of the conspiracy to ensure that Shri
A.K.Jain does not go to the court upto 16-05-1997 so that the bail application
. can be heard by the petitioner. There is no basis for drawing such a
presumption and in the backdrop of the reasons given by us hereinabove, we
are of the considered view that such approach cannot be adopted. In the
facts and circumstance of the present case, we are of the considered view
that even under the limited jurisdiction, if the material in its totality is found
to be not convincing enough to hold the delinquent guilty the same can
always be classified as a weak and insufficient piece of evidence, not
enough to record a finding of guilt and the finding recoded otherwise by the
Inquiry Officer, a perverse finding. Accordingly, the second ground canvassed
by Shri Manoj Sharma is found to be substantiated from the material available
onrecord and we have no hesitation in accepting the same.

21.  Asfarasthe ground with regard to non compliance with the provisions
of Rule 14(18) is concerned, on going through the original inquiry file we find
that this assertion of Shri Manoj Sharma cannot be accepted. In the original
inquiry file it is seen that after the defence witnesses were examined, the
Inquiry Officer has undertaken the procedure for generally examining the
petitioner DW-1 defence witness Man Bahadur Singh Bhadoria is examined
on 03-12-1998 and DW-2 Vishwa Bandhu Sharma is also examined on 03-
12-1998 frompages 78 onwards upto page 88 the statement of the peti-
tioner is recorded on 25-01-1998, wherein the Inquiry Officer has put 42
questions to the complainant, they are the questions, general in nature with
regard to the circumstances appearing against the petitioner and thisis
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nothing but compliance with the provision of Rule 14(18) therefore, Shri
Manoj Sharma is incorrect in contending that the statutory requirement of
Rule 14(18) has not been complied with. To that effect contention advanced
has to be rejected. Finally in view of the finding recorded by us to the effect
that the charges levelled against the petitioner are not proved and the finding
of the Inquiry Officer is noting but a perverse and illegal finding. Itisnot
necessary now by us to go into the question of propriety of the punishment -
imposed. Once it is found that the finding recorded by the Inquiry Officer are
perverse and the allegations levelled in the charge sheet and the misconduct -
are not proved then the charge has to be quashed.

:22.  Wehave also taken note of the fact that apart from the incident asis
made out against the petitioner in the charge sheet, nothing is brought to the
notice of this court with regard to the conduct, integrity etc. ofthe petitioner
. during his judicial career of more than 25 years to suggest that the petitioner
is a judicial officer with any adverse remarks conduct or material in his service
record. It seemsto bea case where the petitioner, a judicial officer having
put more than 25 years of unblemished service is proceeded against on the
basis of so called conspiracy and the extreme punishment of dismissal from
service imposed upon him, in the opinion of this court the same is wholly
unsustainable and cannot be permitied to stand .

23. In view of the above, this petition is allowed. Order impugned
Annexure P-1 dated 29-08-2000 and the appellate order are quashed. The
petitioner has already attained the age of superannuation and therefore, the
reinstatement of the petitioner may not be possible, However, in view of the
quashment of the punishment order, it is directed that the petitioner be deemed
to have been in service from the date of termination till the date ofhis attaining
the age of superannuation and treating him to have retired on attaining the
* age of superannuation all benefits of service including arrears of salary, pay
fixation, revision of pay etc. be granted to the petitioner and after the date of
" superannuation all consequential benefits on pension and post retrial benefits
be granted to the petitioner . The entire monetary benefits accruing to the
petitioner by virtue of this order be extended to him within a period of 3
months from the date of receipt of the certified copy of this order. ’

24.  With the aforesaid, the petition stands allowed and disposed of.
' - Petition Allowed
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Service Law — Termination — Petitioner working as 2 librarian
‘in the establishment of the respondent-school on probation for a period
of one year extendable by two years — Petitioner’s performance during
the period of probation was not found to be satisfactory and in spite of

issuing letters of counselling he did not show any improvement — A .

charge sheet was issued to the petitioner, the authorities on their own
accord did not proceed any further in the enquiry — Respondent issued
the order of termination in view of terms of appointment letter — Held
~No fault can be found in the action of authorities — Impugned order of
discontinuance amounts to termination simplicitor and is neither puni-
tive nor does it cast any stigma upon the petitioner. (Paras 11 & 16)
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- | ORDER L
- R.S.Jua,J:- The petitioner has filed this petition being aggrieved
by the order of termination dated'1-8-2011 by which his services, as a
Librarian, under the establishment of the respondent-school have been
dispensed with. '

2. | The brief facts leading to the filing of the present petition are that the
respondent-Sainik School is managed by a Society registered under the
provisions of the Societies Registration Act, 1860. It is submitted by the learned
counsel for the petitioner that the petitioner was appointed as a Librarian at
Sainik School, Rewa in accordance with the Sainik Schools Society Rules &
Regulations 1997 (hereinafter referred to as the “Rules™) by order dated
12-6-2010. The petitioner accepted the terms of appointment and submitted
his written acceptance to the terms thereof vide his letter dated 1-7-2010.
- The appointment of the petitioner was on probation for a period of one year
extendable by two years in accordance with the Rules. The respondentsissued
a letter of performance counselling to the petitioner on 17-3-2010 informing
him that his work during the period of probation was not found satisfactory
and that he should show substantial improvement in his performance. The
‘petitioner filed a reply to the letter of performance counselling on 28-3-2011
giving explanations for the shortcomings found by the authority in his.
performance. On 15-4-2011 the respondents again called for an explanation .
of the petitioner regarding delay in preparation of the result sheet of one of
* the students to which the petitioner submitted his reply on 25-4-2011.

3. . - Thereafter, the respondents served the petitioner with a charge sheet
on 3-6-2011 alleging that the petitioner had been negligent in the performance
of the duties as a result of which certain important parts of the computer were
'stolen from the library resulting in the loss of property worth Rs.11,900/-
and, therefore, his conduct was in violations of Rules 9.01(e) and 9.01(0) of
the Rules. Immediately on receipt of the charge sheet the petitioner submitted
a detailed reply on 26-6-2011 wherein the petitioner while giving his
explanation also brought on record the fact that the loss of computer parts
‘was on account of theft by one of the students, namely Abhishek Kumar
-Mishra, who had confessed his guilt and had also informed as to how the ram/
hard disc of the computer was sold in the market.

4. On 29-7-2011 the probation period of the petitioner was extended
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by two months up to 31-8-2011. On 1-8-2011 the respondents issued the
impugned order of termination of the petitioner in view of paragraph 3(a) of
the terms of appointment enshrined in the letter of appointment dated
12-6-2010 informing the petitioner that his services would stand terminated
with effect from 31-8-2011, being aggrieved by which the petitioner has filed
the present petition.

5. It is submitted by the learned counsel appearing for the petitioner that
the impugned order of termination is in fact punitive, stigmatic and malafide
and has been passed without following the procedure prescribed for
conducting a full fledged departmental enquiry and, therefore, the same
deserves to be quashed. It is submitted that the foundation for issuance of the
order is the impugned charge sheet against the petitioner alleging theft of
computer parts and, therefore, the petitioner’s service could not have been
terminated without conducting a full fledged enquiry as prescribed by Rule 10
of the Regulations. It is further stated that as the student who had stolen the
computer parts had confessed, apparently and admittedly no misconduct has
been committed by the petitioner and in such circumstances the impugned
order deserves to be quashed.

6. Per contra, the learned counsel appearing for the respondents submitted
that the petitioner was appointed on probation for a period of one year
extendable by two years. During the initial period of probation his work was
not found satisfactory and therefore a letter specifically directing the petitioner
to substantially improve his performance was issued on 17-3-2011, The
petitioner was again informed to improve his performance by letter dated
15-4-2011 but the petitioner failed to do so. It is specifically stated by the
respondents in the return that in respect of an incident of thefi of computer
parts the petitioner being the librarian was served with a charge sheet on
3-6-2011 to which he filed a detailed reply along with the confessional
statement of a student to the effect that he had stolen the computer parts and
had sold them in the open market and, therefore, no further steps were taken
in the enquiry by either appointing an enquiry officer or recording the statement
of any witness etc. in respect of the alleged charges, however, at the end of
the initial period of probation the petitionesr’s work was again reassessed and
the Registrar as well as the Head Master of the school found several deficiencies
- and shortcomings in the functioning of the petitioner in spite of which they
gave him a chance by recommending his case for extention of the period of
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probation and accordingly by order dated 29-7-2011 the period of probation
of the petitioner was extended by two months up to 31-8-2011 with a view
.to give the petitioner a chance to improve his performance.

7. It is submitted that as the petitioner failed to do so, the Head Master
and the Registrar again minutely assessed the petitioner’s performance and
recommended not to extend his probation beyond 31-8-2011, on 30-7-2011
. which was duly accepted by the competent authority and accordingly, the
impugned order dated 1-8-2011 has been issued terminating the petitioner
from services during his period of probation. The learned counsel for the
respondents has filed the relevant order sheets and note sheets wherein the
petitioner’s case was considered by the concerned authority for extention
and discontinuance as Annexures R-2-3 and R-2-4 along with the return.

8. It is further submitted that a full fledged enquiry was not conducted
against the petitioner and the matter was closed as the reply to the charge
sheet issued to him on 3-6-2011 was found to be satisfactory and, therefore,
the contention of the petitioner that the respondents have terminated the
petitioner’s services without conducting a full fledged departmental enquiry is
not factually correct. The learned counsel for the respondents has relied on
the decisions of the Supreme Court in the cases of : State of Punjab and
others v: Balbir Singh, 2004 AIR SCW 5248, State of Punjab and others
v. Sukhwinder Singh, AIR 2005 SC 2960 and Rajesh Kohli v. "High Court
of Jammu and Kashmir and another, (2010) 12 SCC 783 in support of his
submissions. :

9. On the basis of the aforesaid the learned counsel for the respondents

submits that the petitioner has been terminated during the period of probation
‘on account of unsatisfactory service on his part which did not show any
‘improvement in spite of repeated letters of counselling issued to him and in
such circumstances no case is made out for interference by this Court,

10.  Thave heard the learned counsel appearing for the parties at length
and perused the record. ' ' ' '

11.  Froma perusal of the documents on record it is clear that the petitioner
was working as a librarian in the establishment of the respondent-school on
probation for a period of one year extendable by two years. It is also clear
“from the initial order of probation that the respondent/authorities issued two
letters 'of performance counselling to the petitioner on 17-3-2011 and
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15-4-2011 in spite of which it is stated that the petitioner did not show any
improvement. It is also apparent that the charge sheet was issued to the
petitioner on 3-6-2011 in respect of the theft relating to certain parts of the
computer in the library to which the petitioner filed the reply, however, thereafter
no further steps in the said enquiry were taken by the respondents and in fact,
the respondents in paragraph 6 of the return filed by them have specifically
stated that :-

“However, since the cost of the stores lost was recovered from
the culprits students who exploited the opportunity created
due to dereliction of duty performed by petitioner, the authority
* was magnanimous to give petitioner yet another chance to
. improve his performance without reducing the same to writing.”

It is, therefore, clear that the petitioner’s performance during the period of
probation was not found to be satisfactory by the respondent/authorities and
in spite of issuing letters of counselling he did not show any improvement in his

-performance. It is also clear that while a charge sheet was issued to the
petitioner the authorities on their own accord did not proceed any further in
the enquiry as stated by them in paragraph 6 of the return. -

.12.  From a perusal of Annexure R-2-3 filed by the respondents along
with the return, which is a note sheet dated 27-6-2011 prepared by the
authorities concerned while scrutinizing the petitioner’s service during probation
for the purposes of recommending extention, that the authorities have recorded
that the petitioner’s performance was inadequate, that he did not adhere to
the 1aid down Code of Conduct and that he needed improvement, while
recommending his case for extention of probation. Ex.P-2-4 filed by the
respondents which is the note sheet wherein the petitioner’s case was not
recommended for extention of probation beyond 31-8-2011, indicates that
the Head Master has given as many as 8 reasons for not recommending his
case clearly recording therein that the performance of the petitioner as
probationer was found deficient and inadequate and he did not show any
improvement in spite of giving him many chances. The same has also been
reiterated by the Registrar. It is clear from a perusal of the-aforesaid note
sheets that the reason for not recommending the extention of the petitionér’s

.probation is not the initiation of the departmental proceedings against the
petitioner vide issuance of charge sheet dated 3-6-2011 or the theft of computer
parts, as alleged by the petitioner but is in fact the deficient, unsatisfactory



LLR.[2012]MP.  N.S.Pawar Vs Sainik Schools Society 99

~and 1nadequate performance of the petitioner which did not show any im-
provement in spite of being informed in writing by the authoritiesto do so by
performance counselling Ietters 1ssued on17-3 201 Tand 15-4-201 1.

. 1 3 . In the clrcumstances, the issue that reqmres adj udlcatlon by this Court
is as to whether the 1mpugned order is stigmatic or punitive as it has been
issued after issuance of the charge sheet or.an order of termination simplicitor
and as to whether a full fledged enquiry was required to be conducted by the
respondents before terminating the services of the probationer-petitioner.

14."  To determine the aforesaid issue it would be appropriate to take into
consideration the law laid down by the Supreme Court on this issue. In the
case of Radhey Shyam Gupta v. U.P. State Agro Industrtes Corporation,
Ltd. and another, (1999) 2 SCC 21 the Supreme Court has analysed the
entire case law relating to the aforesald issue in paragraphs 30 to 34 in the
'followmg terms - S ; co

' “30 We shall now refer to a d1ﬁ‘erent type of cases where a
departmental inquiry was started, then dropped and a s1mp1e order of
termination was passed. In State of Punjab vs. Sukh Raj Bahadur
[1968] INSC 45, [1968 (3) SCR 234], the -charge memo was served,

- reply given and at that stage itself, the proceedings were dropped and
a termination order was passed: The High Court felt that the ‘object
-+ of'departmental inquiry, being to punish the employee, the order of
* termination must be treated as punitive: This was not accepted by a
+ "three Judge Bench consisting of Justice Shah (as he then was) who
.-+ had laid down in Madan Gopal's case[1 9621 INSC 239 ; (AIR 1963
* ' " '8C531) the principle of ‘object of the inquiry’. This court reversed

* the High Court Judgment and held that neither Madan Gopal s case
nor Jagdish Mitter's case (AIR 1964 SC 449) applied. This was
because in the case before them the inquiry did not go beyond the
stage of the explanation. No findings were given and no inquiry report

- was submitted as in the above two cases. In that case (i.e.Sukh Raj
Bahadur) this Court felt that the decision in 4. G Benjamin vs. Union’
of India (Civil Appeal No (341 of 1966 dated 13.12.1966) (8C)

- was more direct. In Benfamin's case, a charge memo was issued,

. explanation was received and an Enquiry Officer was also appointed
. but before the inquiry could be completed, the proceedings were
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dropped stating that: ‘departmental proceedings will take a much
Jonger time and we are not sure whether after going through all the
formalities, we will be able to deal with the accused in the way he
deserves.” There also, the order was held not to be punitive. Following
the above case, this court in Sukh Raj Bahadur s case stated that the
position before them was similar to what happened in Benjamin’s case
and concluded as follows:

“the departmental inquiry did not proceed beyond the stage of
submission of a chargesheet followed by the respondent’s
explanation thereto. The inquiry was not preceded with, there
were no sittings of any inquiry officer, no evidence recorded
and no conclusion arrived at in the inquiry.”

31.  The italicised words are very important and demarcate the

line of distinction. If the inquiry officer held no sittings, did not take
evidence nor record any conclusions and if at that stage the inquiry
was dropped and a simple order of termination was, passed, the same
would not be punitive.

32.  In Nepali Singh vs. State of U.P. (1988 (3) SCC 370) a
three Judge Bench held the order to be punitive as it was passed af-

' ter issuing a charge memo, a reply received, even though no evidence

was adduced and no findings were given.But in a latter three Judge
Bench case in State of U.P. vs. Kaushal Kishore Shukla, [1991 (1)

- SCC 691], Nepali Singh’s case was not followed as being a judg-

ment rendered per incuriam as it did not consider Champak Lal's
case [1963] INSC 211; (AIR 1964 SC 1854). Of course, the above
case, i.e. Kaushal Kishore Shukla's case was one where there was
an adverse entry and only a preliminary report and then a simple order
of termination was issued. That order was upheld. Similarly, in
Commission of Food & Civil Supply vs. P.C. Saxena | 19941 INSC
293: [1994 (5) SCC 177]. the facts were that the departmental inquiry
was started and dropped and this Court held the order not to be pu-
nitive.

33. Tt will be noticed from the above decisions that the termination
of the services of a temporary servant or one on probation, on the
basts of e_ldversc entries or on the basis of an assessment that his work
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is not satisfactory will not be punitive inasmich as the above facts are
merely the motive and not the foundation. The reason why they are
the motive is that the assessment is not done with the object of finding
out any misconduct on the part of the Officer, as stated by Shah, J.
(as he then was) in Ram Narayan Das's case. It is done only with a
view to decide whether he is to be retained or continued in service.
The positionis not different even if a preliminary inquiry is held because
the purpose of a preliminary inquiry is to find out if there is prima facie
evidence or material to initiate a regular departmental inquiry. It has
been so decided in Champaklal s case. The purpose of the preliminary
inquiry is not to find out misconduct on the part of the Officer and ifa
termination follows without giving an opportunity, it will not be bad.
Even in a case where aregular departmental inquiry is started, a charge
memo issued, reply obtained, and an enquiry Officer is appointed - if
at that point of time, the inquiry is dropped and a simple notice-of -
termination is passed, the same will not be punitive because the en-
quiry Officer has not recorded evidence nor given any findings on the
charges. That is what is held in Sukh Raj Bahadur s case and in
Benjamin’s case. In the latter case, the departmental inquiry was
stopped because the employer was not sure of establishing the quilt
of the employee. In all these cases the allegations against the employee
merely raised a cloud on his conduct and as pointed by Krishna Iyer,
J. in Gujrat Steel Tubes case, the employer was entitled to say that
he would not continue an employee against whom allegations were
made the truth of which the employer was not interested to ascertain.
In fact, the employer, by opting to pass a simple order of termination
as permitted by the terms of appointment or as permitted by the rules -
was conferring a benefit on the employee by passing a simple order of
termination so that the employee would not suffer from any stigma
which would attach to the rest of his career if a dismissal or other
punitive order was passed. The above are 21l examples where the
allegations whose truth has not been found, and were merely the
motive.

34.  Butin cases where the termination is preceded by an inquiry
and evidence is received and findings as to misconduct of a definitive
nature are arrived at behind the back of the Officer and where on the
basis of such a report; the termination order is issued, such an order
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.. ‘will be violative of principles of natural justice inasmuch as the purpose

of the inquiry is to find out the truth of the ailegations witha viewto

punish him and not merely to gather evidence for a future regular

departmental inquiry. In such cases, the termination is to be treated as
based or founded upon misconduct and will be punitive. These are

. obviously not cases where the employer feels that there is a mere

cloud against the employees conduct but are cases where the employer
has virtually accepted the definitive and clear findings of the Inquiry
Officer, which are all arrived at behind the back of the employee -
even though such acceptance of findings is not recorded in the order

. of termination, That is why the misconduct is the foundation and not

merely the motive, in such cases.

The view taken by the Supreme Court in the aforesaid case has been affirmed
and reiterated in the case relied upon by the respondents i.e. State of Punjab
and others v. Balbir Singh, 2004 AIR SCW 5248 (supra) in paragraph 6
wherein paragraphs 34 and 35 of the judgment in the case of Radhey Shyam
Gupta (supra) have been reproduced and reaffirmed. Similar view has again
been taken by the Supreme Court in a decision rendered in the case of Stare
of Punjab and others v. Sukhwinder Singh, AIR 2005 SC 2960 (supra)
relying upon a decision in the case of Pavanendra Narayan Vermav. Sanjay
Gandhi PGI of Medical Sciénces and another, (2002) 1 SCC 520 wherein
the Supreme Coourt has held as under :-

Tt

“One of the judicially evolved tests to determine whether in
substance an order of termination is punitive is to see whether prior to
the termination there was (a) a full scale formal enquiry (b) into

* "allegations involving moral turpitude or misconduct (¢) which (c)
".culminated in a finding of guilt. If all three factors are present the

termination has been held to be punitive irrespective of the form of

" the termination order. Conversely if any one of the three factors is
'missing, the termination has been upheld.

Generally speaking when a probationers appointment is
terminated it means that the probationer is unfit for the job, whether

" by reason of misconduct or ineptitude, whatever the language used in

the termination order may be. Although strictly speaking, the stigma is
implicit in the termination, a simple termination is not stigmatic. A
termination order which explicitly states what is implicit in every order
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of termination of a probationers appointment, is also not stigmatic. The
decisions cited by the parties and noted by us earlier, also do not hold so.
In order to amount to a stigma, the order must be in a language which
imputes something over and above mere unsuitability for the job.”

The decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the case of Rajesh Kohli
(supra) relied upon by the learned counsel for the respondents is also in the
similar terms.

15.° Intheinstant case, it is an admitted fact that the petitioner who was
under suspension was served with a charge sheet on 3-6-2011, that he
submitted his reply thereto and thereafier no further proceedings in the enquiry
" took place and the respondents in the return have stated that they dropped
_the enquiry. Itis also undisputed that the petitioner’s performance as probationer
was assessed and extended by two months and théreafter it was again
reassessed and the impugned order of termination was issued.

16.  Inview of'the aforesaid as it is clear from the facts of the present case
that after issuance of charge sheet and submission of reply thereto, no further
proceedings were taken up i.e. enquiry officer has not been appointed,
evidence of witnesses has not been recorded, no enquiry report is submitted
and without taking any steps in the enquiry, the authorities on the basis of the
assessment of the service record of the petitioner decided to terminate the
services of the petitioner and not to extend the period of his probation, no.
fault can be found in the action of the authorities. It is also clear that the
impugned order of discontinuance amounts to termination simplicitor and is
neither punitive nor does it cast any stigma upon the petitioner as has been
held by the Supreme Court in the aforesaid cases. In the facts and
circumstances of the case the contention of the petitioner that a full fledged
departmental enquiry should have been conducted by the respondents isalso
rejected.

17.  Inview ofthe aforesaid, I do not find any infirmity in the impugned
order of termination dated 1-8-2011 which is accordmgly upheld. The petition
being meritless stands dismissed. . L

18. = Inthefactsand crrcumstances of the case there shall be no order as
to costs

. Petition Dismissed:
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WRIT PETITION ‘
Before Mr. Justice Krishn Kumar Lahoti & Mrs. Justice Vimla Jain

W.P. No. 3798/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on-1 December, 2011 .

SHRI RAM TRADERS (M/S) & anr. ...Petitioners
Vs. '
THE DIVISIONAL DY. COMMISSIONER & anr. ...Respondents

Commercial Tax Act, M.P. 1994 (5 of 1995), Section 69(2) -
Penalty — Penalty was imposed by Assessing officer on the ground that
the assessee furnished incorrect return of the sales tax, evaded the
tax — Held — No finding was recorded that there was deliberate
concealment of sale or the assessees were guilty of contumacious or
dishonest conduct, or acted in conscious disregard of its obligation —
Order imposing penalty can not be sustained. ~ (Para10)
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a1 PreffRd greargel a1 afarqef smerer 3 g o Ferar v i
aﬂmﬁwaﬁmaﬁ—aﬁmmﬁmmmmwwﬁ
@ AT qHT |

Cases referred:

' (1070) 25 STC 211, (1969) 2 SCC 627, 1980 SUPP SCC 13, 1970
(76) ITR 696, (2004) 2 SCC 783, (2008).11 SCC 617.

H.S. Shrivastava with Sandesh Jain, for the petitioners.
Vivek Agrawal, G.A. for the respondents.

ORDER

The. order of the «court was  delivered by:
K.K. LanoOT], J :- This order shall decide W.P. No0.3798 of 2004 (M/s Shri
Ram Traders and another vs. The Divisional Dy. Commissioner, Commercial
Tax & another), W.P. No.3783 of 2004 (M/s Shri Ram Traders and another
vs. The Divisional Dy. Commissioner, Commercial Tax & another) and W.P.
No. 3785 of 2004 (Ghanshyam Das through LRs vs. The Divisional Dy.
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Commissioner, Commercial Tax & another), involving similar legal issues based
on similar set of facts. For the convenience, facts-are takén from W.P.
No0.3798/2004.

2.°  Petitioner No.1 M/s Shri Ram Traders is a registered firm, registered
under the provisions of Commercial Tax Act and co-petitioner Suresh Rai is
the partner of the firm. Petitioners have assailed order Annexure P-2 dated
19.7.2003 passed by the Commercial Tax Department, Narsinghpur by which
a penalty of Rs.2,10,000/- was imposed upon the petitioners under Section
69(2) of the M.P. Commercial Tax Act, 1994 (hereinafter referred as the
Act) and order Annexure P-6 dated 17.8.2004 passed by the Additional Dy.
Commissioner, Commercial Tax, Jabalpur in appeal by which the order
Annexure P-2 was modified and penalty was reduced to Rs.1,25,000/-.

3. - Facts of the case are that the petitioners were assessed for the
assessment year 1.4.1999 to 31.3.2000 in which the Assessing Officer found
that on 10.8.2000 an inspection was carried out in the premises of the
petitioners and certain account books and loose papers were found and seized.
As. per the enquiry report the matter was referred to Assistant
Commissioner,Commercial Tax, J abalpilr by the Dy. Commissioner,
Commercial Tax, Jabalpur on 30.4.2001. The account books and the papers
which were seized were not tallying with the account books earlier produced
by the assessee, so assessment was not possible on such account book and
treating that the assessee had evaded the tax, best judgment assessment
order was passed. The assessing Officer had also found that certain entries
in the account books and loose papers were not explained by the assessee
and the assessment order was framed against the petitioners by which the
sale was enhanced, assessed at Rs.3,45,829/- and commercial tax was
imposed. Against the order Annexure P-1, an appeal was preferred by the
assessee which was decided vide order Annexure P-4 dated 25.6.2004. The
appeal allowed partly and by reducing the tax of Rs.4658/-, the assessment
order was modified. Itis stated at the Bar that the order Annexure P-4 has
attained finality.

4. As there was evasion of tax, a notice under Section 69 of the Act
was issued to the pet_itionérs for extending the petitioner an opportunity to
explain why penalty be not imposed. The assessee had not cared to give
response to the notice, so an ex parte penalty order Annexure P-2 was passed
by which a penalty of Rs.2,10,000/- was imposed on the petitioners. Against
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this order the petitioners had preferred a revision which was partly allowed
vide order Annexure P-6 dated 17.8.2004 (supra). These orders are chal-
lenged in this petition.

5. Learned counsel appearing for the petitioners submitted that before
imposition of penalty the officer ought to have recorded independent findings
that the petitioners had acted deliberately in defiance of law or were guilty of
conduct contumacious or dishonest, or acted in conscious disregard of their
obligation. The penalty cannot be imposed merely on the ground that in the
assessment year the sale was enhanced or some concealment was found. An
independent finding is required to be recorded by the assessing officer while
imposing the penalty. Reliance is placed to the Apex Court judgment in
Hindustan Steel Ltd. vs. State of Orissa [(1070) 25 STC 21 1] (1969) 2
SCC 627 and M/s Anantharam Veerasinghaiah & Co. Vs. CIT. Andhra
Pradesh [ 1980 Supp SCC 13] and submitted that the aforesaid penalty
orders may be quashed, as the authorities had failed to record the aforesaid
finding. That the petitioners were dealing mostly in the tax paid goods and in
this regard he has referred various orders in which it was held that the
‘petitioners were dealing with the tax paid goods and the taxable goods were
of very small amount.

6. Shri Vivek Agrawal, learned G.A. appearing submitted that in view of
the specific provision as contained in Sec.69(2) of the Act, the assessing officer
rightly initiated the proceedings for imposition of penalty after issuing a notice
and extending an opportunity of being heard. The petitioners had willfully
remained absent in response to the notice so the penalty order was passed
which is in accordance with law, needs no interference of this Court. It was
further submitted that it is a case in which tax was evaded so the petitioners
were rightly imposed penalty by the assessing officer.

7. To appreciate the rival contentions of the parties, it would be
appropriate if relevant provision is quoted. Section 69(2) of the act reads
thus:- ' '

69(2):The proceeding under sub-section (1) shall be initiated

by the Commissioner or the appellate or revisional authority as the
' case may be, by issue of a notice in the prescribed form for giving the
dealer an opportunity of being heard. On hearing the dealer, the
Commissioner or the appellate or the revisional authority as the case
may be, shall pass an order not later than one calendar year from the
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date of initiation of such proceeding or within such further time as

allowed by the State Govermnment, directing the dealer that (he shall in
addition to the tax payable by him pay by way of penaity as sum
which shall not be less than three times but shall not exceed five times
' of the amount of tax evaded].

8. . Theaforesaid provision specifically provides that if the assessing officer
finds that tax was evaded then the assessing officer can initiate proceeding
under sub section (1) by issuing a notice in the prescribed form for giving the
dealer an opportunity of being heard. After hearing the dealer the authority
can pass an order within one calendar year from the date of initiation of such
proceeding or within such further time as allowed by the State Government,
girecting the dealer that in addition to the tax payable by him, pay by way of
penalty a sum which shall not be less than three times but shall not exceed five
times of the amount of tax evaded. The Apex Court in Hindustan Steel Ltd.
considering the question of imposition of the penalty held that an order imposing
penalty for failure to carry out a statutory obligation is the result of
quasi-criminal proceedings and penaity will not ordinarily be imposed unless
the party obliged has either acted deliberately in defiance of law or was guilty
of contumacious or dishonest conduct, or acted in conscious disregard of its
obligation. A penalty will not also be imposed merely because itis lawful to
do so. Whether penalty should be imposed for failure to perform a statutory
obligation is a matter of discretion of the authority to be exercised judicially
and on a consideration of all the relevant circumstances.

9. The Apex Court in Anantaram (supra) considering the question held
that in the penalty proceedings the taxing authority is bound to consider the
matter afresh on the material before it and the burden to prove rest on the
Revenue. No doubt the fact that the assessment order contains a finding that
the disputed amount represent income constitute good evidence in the penalty
proceedings but the finding in the assessment proceeding cannot be regarded
as conclusive for the purposes of the penalty proceeding. The Apex Court
further held that before a penalty can be imposed the entirety of circumstances
must be taken into account and the order must point to the conclusion that the
disputed amount represent income and the assessee has consciously concealed
particulars of his income or deliberately furnished inaccurate particulars. In
respect of falsity of the explanation if given by the assessee it was observed
that it was insufficient without there being in addition cogent material or.
evidence from which the necessary conclusion attracting a penalty could be
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shown. Reliance was placed by the Apex Court to Anwar Ali [1970 (76)
ITR 696].

10.  Now in the light of the law laiddown by the Apex Court in Hindustan
Steel and Anantharam (supra), the orders passed by the authorities may be
looked into. By order Annexure P-2, the assessing officer found that the
assessee furnished incorrect return of the sales tax, evaded the tax on the
basis of which assessing officer assessed for the additional tax and on this
ground the penalty was imposed, and except this, no finding was recorded
even by the revisional authority that there was deliberate concealment of sale
or the assessees were guilty of contumacious or dishonest conduct, or acted
in conscious disregard of its obligation, failing which the aforesaid order
imposing penalty cannot be sustained.

11. AnAdministrative order imposing a penalty for failure to carry out a
statutory obligation is the result of quasi-criminal proceedings and penalty
will not ordinarily be imposed unless the party obliged has either acted
deliberately in defiance of law or was guilty of contumacious or dishonest
conduct, or acted in conscious disregard ofits obligation. A penalty will not
also be imposed merely because it is lawful to do so. Inspite of a minimum
penalty prescribed, the authority competent to impose the penalty may refuse
to impose the penalty if the breach complained of was a technical or venial
breach, flew from a bona fide though mistaken belief. See Karnataka Rare
Earth & anr. vs. Senior Geologist, Department of Mines & Geology [(2004)
2 SCC 783] and Bharjatya Steel Industrzes vs. Commissioner, Sales Tax,
UP. [(2008) 11 SCC 617]

12. Inview ofthe aforesaid, we find that the orders passed by the authorities
imposing penalty on the petitioners are not in accordance with the law laid
down by the Apex Court in Hindustan Steel Ltd. and Anantharam (supra)
and accordingly both the orders are not sustainable under the law and are
quashed. The matter is remanded back to the assessing officer to decide the
matter afresh after following the law laid down by the Apex Court in Hindustan
Steel and Anantharam (supra). As the matters .are old one , the authority is
expected to decide the matter expeditiously, as far as possible within a period
of six months from the date of communication of this order.

13.  Before passing the order of penalty, the assessing officer shall issue a
fresh notice to the petitioners by extending an opportunity of hearing. While
dealing the matter, the assessing officer shall also consider the fact that whether
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the petitioners were dealing in the tax paid goods and the taxable goods were
of small amount and the amount of penalty can be based on the aforesaid
facts also . Any amount deposited by the petitioners in compliance of the
penalty order shall be subject to final decision of the assessing officer. .

No order as to costé. ’
Order Accbrdingly
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: WRIT PETITION :
_ Before Mr. Sushil Harkauli, Acting Chief Justice
' & Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
W.P. No. 3487/2010 (Jabalpur) decided on 16 December, 2011

SAI KRIPA GRAMIN PRATHMIK SAHAKARI
UPBHOKTABHANDAR MARYADIT, NAINPUR ...Petitioner
Vs. -

, STATE OF M.P. & ors. .

A. Constitution — Article 14 — Article 14 of the Constitution
of India forbids class legislation but-does not forbid reasonable
classification — The classification in order to be reasonable must be
founded on intelligible differentia and that differentia must have rational
relation to the object sought to be achieved. : (Para 8)
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B. Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.P. 2009
— Clause (4) of the Annexure—II — It has a reasonable nexus with the
object sought to be achieved i.e. timely distribution of essential
commodities to the card holders — Clause (4) can not be said to be
either arbitrary or discriminatory — It appears to have been enacted in
the interest of public in general. ] , (Para 9)

-4 at® fraver gvnret (Fraaor anRey), 5.9, 2009 — FRANT—
II &7 &% 4 — zw&t 9@ W sqew A yff 3 W g wda @
Fola o1 aRel 3 AEET RGN B 9 ® frawr — =3 (4) Bt

. .Resi:ondents
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C. Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.P. 2009
— Clause 5(3) and clause 2(j) — Considering the nature of work to be
performed by the lead society ~ Clause 5(3) provides that in rural area,
marketing societies or primary agricultural cooperative societies shall
be appointed as lead societies — The constitution and functioning of
Primary Agricultural Credit Facilities Societies is different from other
societies — Therefore, challenge to clause 5(3) must fail. (Para 10)
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D. Public Distribution System (Control Order), M.P. 2009
~ Clause 6 of Annexure-II — Whether arbitrary or discriminatory —
Classification of the cooperative societies for the purpose of running
fair price shops in rural areas is based on intelligible differentia and

* has a reasonable nexus with the object i.e. availability of essential com- -

modities at controlled prices to public in general — Thus, the provisions
of clause (6) can neither be said to be arbitrary nor discriminatory.
(Paras 11 & 12)
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Cases referred:

(1989) 3 SCC 115,(1990) 1 SCC 176, AIR 2006 CHHATTISGARH
107, AIR 1958 SC 958, AIR 1981 SC 2001, 1981 MPLJ 528, (2008) 14
SCC 228.

N.S.Ruprah, Sanjay Patel, Atulanand Awasthy, Shashank Shekhar,
R.S. Maindirreta for the petitioners. ’
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P K Kaurav, Dy.A.G. for the respondents.
' ORDER

‘The order of the court was delivered by:
ALOK ARADIEE, J. :- In this petition the petitioner has challenged the validity
of clauses 4, 5(3) and 6 of Annexure-II appended to Madhya Pradesh Public
Distribution System (Control) Order, 2009 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Control Order 2009”). In order to appreciate the petitioners’ challenge to
the aforesaid clauses of the Control Order 2009, reference to few facts need
mention.

2. The petitioner is a Cooperative Society registered under the provisions
of M.P. Cooperative Societies Act, 1960 (for short * 1960 Act’). The petitioner
is classified under section 10 of the 1960 Act as consumer society. The
petitioner is engaged in the business of distribution of food stuff under the
Public Distribution System. The petitioner has been granted licence to run
the fair price shops in urban as well as rural areas. In exercise of powers
under Section 3 read with Section 5 of the Essential Commodities Act, 1955
the State Government has framed M.P. Public Distribution System (Control)
Order, 2009. Clause 4 of the aforesaid Control Order 2009 provides that in
urban areas no cooperative society shall be allotted more than one fair price
shop. Clause 5(3) thereof provides that in rural area marketing societies or

-.the primary agricultural cooperative societies shall be appointed as the leading
societies. Clause 6 of the Control Order 2009 provide that fair price. shopsin
rural areas shall be allotted to primary agricultural cooperative societies and
Laghu Vanopaj Sahakari Samiti, a society registered under the provisions of
1960 Act.

3. Learned counsel for the petitioners submitted that the action of the
State Government in grouping the societies, namely, Primary Agricultural
Cooperative Societies and Laghu Vanopaj Sahakari Samiti together to
exclusion of other societies for running the fair price shops in the rural areas is
arbitrary and discriminatory. The classification has no reasonable nexus with
the object which is sought to be achleved The exclusion of other cooperative
sotietiés to run fair price shops in rural areas offends constitutional guarantee
~ contained in Articles 14 and 19(1)(g) of the Constitution of India. The validity
of the impugned clauses of the Control Order 2009 has also been-assailed on
the ground that same are in direct conflict with the Public Distribution System,
2001 framed by the Central Government. It is urged that action‘of the State
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Government in discontinuing the fair price shops which are being run by the
societies for past several years is not justified. It is further urged that acting
on the assurance given by the State Government the petitioners got themselves
registered as cooperative societies. The State Government is bound by the
doctrine of estoppel. Our attention has been invited to the order passed by
this Court in W.P. N0.8810/2005. In support of aforesaid submissions reliance
has been placed on the cases of Vij Resins Pvt. Ltd. v. State of Jand K,
(1989) 3 SCC 115 and State of Madhya Pradesh and Others v. Orient
Paper Mills Ltd., (1990) 1 SCC 176

4. On the other hand learned counsel for the respondents has submitted
that the State Government is under a constitutional obligation to protect the
poor persons against malnutrition and hunger. In the light of orders passed by
the Supreme Court in Writ Civil Case No0.196/2001 dated 28.11.2001 ,
08.5.2002 and 02.5.2003 and to ensure compliance of Directive Principles
of State Policy, the State Government has framed Control Order 2009. The
classification of the societies to run the fair price shops is valid classification
and the same is based on intelligible differentia. It cannot be termed either
arbitrary or discriminatory. In fact, the classification of the societies to run the
fair price shops in rural areas has been done in public interest. It is further
submitted that primary agriculture cooperative societies and Laghu Vanopaj
Sahkari Societies are the cooperative societies which are basically controlled
and operated through organized structure and they have sufficient financial
viability to ensure compliance of the Control Order, 2009. The petitioners are
not registered merely for the purposes of running fair price shops and are
registered for many other objects and the petitioners are at liberty to pursue
other objects for which it have been constituted. The provisions of Control
Order 2009 do not contravene the provisions of Public Distribution System
Control Order, 2001 framed by.the Central Government in any manner. In
support of his submissions learned counsel for the respondents has placed
reliance in the case of Ambika Prasad Rajwade and Others v. State of
Chhattisgarh and Others, AIR 2006 Chhattisgarh 107.

5. We have considered the submissions made on both sides. The Central
Government in exercise of powers under Section 3 of the Essential
Commodities Act, 1955 (for brevity ‘1955 Act’) has framed Public Distribution
System (Control), 2001. Clause 2¢(k) defines the expressions “fair price
shop owner” to mean a person and includes a Co-operative societyoraa
Corporation or a Company of a State Government or a Gram Panchayat or

»
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any other body in whose name a shop has been licencsed to distribute essential
‘commodities under the Public Distribution System. Clause 7 of the Order
prov1des that the procedure for issue of licences or authorization to the fair
price shops for distribution of essential commodities under the public
distribution system and duties and responsibility of fair price shop owners
shall be as per paragraph 5 of the annexe to the Order. Paragraph 5 of the
annexe to the Order provides that the State Government shall issue an order
under Section 3 of the Act for regulating the sale and distribution of the essential
commodities and licence to the fair price shop owners shall be issued under
the said Order. Such licence shall lay down the duties and responsibilities of
fair price shop owners. Thus, from perusal of provisions of the Public
Distribution System (Control) Order 2001 the Central Government has left it
to the State Government to make an order under Section 3 of the Act for
regulating the sale and distribution of essential commodities through public
distribution system to vulnerable section of the society and to provide the
issue of licence under such Order made under Section 3 of the Act to the
persons. The Central Government left it to the State Government to decide
as to persons in whose the licence is to be issued to run the fair price shop.

6. The State Government in exercise of powers conferred by Sections 3
read with Section 5 of the 1955 Act has framed the Order for control of
Public Distribution System in the State of Madhya Pradesh, namely, M.P.
Public Distribution System (Control) Order, 2009. The aforesaid Control Order
has been framed with an object to secure availability of essential commodities
at the controlled price to the ration card holders of the State of Madhya
Pradesh. Clause 3 of the Order deals with issuance of ration card. The basic
entitlement of issuance of ration cards has been prescribed in such manner so
as to ensure that members of Below Poverty Line family, Above Poverty
_ families and Antodaya Families get the ration cards. Clause 4 of the Order
provides that the establishment of fair price shops, allotment thereof, issuance
of authority letter for operationalization of fair price shops and suspension/
cancellation thereof as per Annexure-II appended to this Order. Annexure-II
of the Order makes it clear that total number of fair price shops and their
location in the district shall be decided by the Collector of the concerned
district. Clause 2 of Annexure-II of the Order provides that Collector in so
. far as it is possible shall bear in mind while deciding the location and number
of fair price shops in each district, that there shall be one fair price shop for
population of 5000 members in urban areas. The fair price shops are set up at
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a place which is convenient to the card holders. Clause 2 of Annexure-II
further provides that the Collector shall ensure that there should be one fair

price shop for every Gram Panchayat. Proviso to Clause 2 of Annexure-II

provides that there shall be minimum of 200 ration cards of Below Poverty
Line and Antyodaya Anna Yojna categories in a fair price shop. Clause 5 of
* Annexure-II provides that Cooperative Society identity for fair price shop
shall have a credit margin of 200% of the amount required to purchase the
monthly allocation i.e. food:grain, kerosene, sugar, etc. under this Order and
shall have sufficient storage space and computer for date entry and accounting
purposes. Clause (7) of Annexure-II empowers the State Government to utilize
the fair price shop for installing computer with Bio-metric facilities and other
electronic identification equipment. Thus, from perusal of various clauses of
Annexure-]I it is apparent that various provisions have been made to make
available the essential commodities at a controlled price on ration card issued
- to card holders of the State of Madhya Pradesh.

1. After having noticed the relevant provisions of Control Order 2009,
at this stage we may reproduce the clauses which have been impugned in the
instant writ petition which read as under:-

“@ Inthe urban area, no co-operative society shall be
allotted more than one fair price shop. _

5(3) In rural areas, marketing soc1eties Or primary
agricultural co-operative societies shall be appointed as lead
societies in case of more than one application received from
the societies, the lead society shall be appointed on the basis
of recommendation made by District Registrar Co-operation
Society and District Supply Controller/District Supply Officer
and the identified lead society shall make arrangement in
Information Technology enabled devices like computers and
“electronic data base management.

(6)  Fair price shops in rural areas shall be allotted to primary -
agricultural cooperative societies and laghu vanopaj sahakari
societies registered under the Madhya Pradesh Co-operative

- Societies Act, 1960. The societies should have a credit limit
amounting to 2002% more than purchasing amount or credit
needed for monthly allocation (foodgrain, kerosene, sugar)
alongwith sufficient storage space and computer for data entry

&



LL.R.[2012]M.P. Sai Kripa Up. Bhandar. Vs State of M.P. (DB) 115

and accounting purposes. The societies shall run the shops
themselves and not operate through any agent or any private
person.” '

8. It is well settled in law that Article 14 of the Constitution of India
forbids class legislation but does not forbid reasonable classification. The
classification in order to be reasonable must be founded on intelligible differentia
and that differentia must have rational relation to the object sought to be
achieved. [See: AIR 1958 SC 958] The wider concept of equality before the
law and equal protection of law is that there shall be equality amongst equals.
Even amongst equal there can be unequal treatment based on intelligible
differentia having rational relation to the object sought to be achieved. [ M.P.
Ration Vikreta Sangh Society v. State of M.P., AIR 1981 SC 2001] The
Division Bench of this Court in M. P. Ration Vikreta Sangh Society v. State
of M.P., 1981 MPLJ 528 while dealing with the nature of right to run the fair .
price shops has held that fair price shops are established by the Government. ,
The Government can operate them by appointing their own agents. No person
has fundamental right to be appointed as agent of the Government for running
fair price shop. Itis open to the Government to devise the reasonable policy
for appointment of agent. Itisonly necessary that in making the appointment
of agents there should be no discrimination or violation of Article 14 of the - .
Constitution. The aforesaid decision of the Division Bench of this Court was
upheld by the Supreme Court in M.P. Ration Vikreta Sangh Society v.
State of M.P., AIR 1981 SC 2001 (supra)]

9. In the context of aforesaid well settled legal principles so far as
challenge to Clause (4) of the Control Order 2009 is concerned it is worth
mentioning that under Control ‘Order 2009 strictly requires advance lifting of
the commodities and 200% of credit margin of the amount required to purchase
monthly allocation. The distribution of food stuff in time can better be ensured
through different societies in urban areas. The time availability of food stuffto
card holders appears to be the primary object of Control Order 2009. The
object of clause 4 is to ensure that essential commodities are distributed to
public in general by a fair price shop and the economic restraint and financial
condition of the society does not become the impediment in tinely distribution
of the fair price shops. Thus, clause (4) of Annexure-II has a reasonable
nexus with the object sought to be achieved i.e. timely distribution of essential
commodities to the card holders. Thus, clause (4) cannot be said to be either
arbitrary or discriminatory. Clause (4) appears to have been enacted in the
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interest of public in general,

10.  The petitioners have assailed the validity of clause 5(3) of the Control
Order 2009 as discriminatory and arbitrary. From perusal of clause 5(3) and
clause 2(j) of Control Order 2009 it is apparent that the work of lead society
is to lift and transport the controlled esseritial commodities from the issue
centre to the designated fair price shop. In other words the distribution of
controlled éssential commodities from issue ¢entre to fair price shop is to be
regulated by the lead society. The State Government purchases various
commodities on storage prices and makes provision for its storage at the
godowns owned by the agencies of the State Government or acquired by the
State Government for the purpose of storage of the said commodities. From
godowns, the distribution takes place as per the demand of essential
commodities and the distribution is essentially required to be controlled and
regulated by the lead society. Considering the nature of work to be performed
by the lead society, clause 5(3) of the Control Order 2009 provides that in
rural area, marketing societies or primary agricultural cooperative societies
shall be appointed as lead societies. The constitution and functioning of Primary
Agricultural Credit Facilities Societies and is different from other societies.
Besides that, in the instant writ petitigns the petitioners do not have any locus
. to assail the validity of clause 5(3) of the Control Order 2009 as none of them
is running the lead society and none of them have been entrusted with the

functioning of operating as lead society. Therefore, challenge to clause 5(3) of ‘

the Control Order 2009 must fail.

11.  Wemay now deal with the challenge to clause 6 of Annexure-II of the
Control Order 2009. The Primary Agricultural Cooperative Society and Laghu
Vanopaj Sahakari Societies registered under the 1960 Act are the cooperative
* societies which are basically controlled and operated through the organized
structure and they have sufficient financial viability so as to ensure full compliance
of the provisions of Control Order 2009. A chart has been mentioned in
paragraph 25 of the return to show that Primary Agricultural Cooperative
Societies and Laghu Vanopaj Cooperative Societies are different classes of
the Societies than the societies which have been excluded from the purview of
* Clause (6) of Annexure-II are different kind of societies and, therefore, they
" form a separate classes. The Primary Agricultural Cooperative Societies are
- the members of District Central Cooperative Banks. Similarly, Laghu Vanopaj
Sahakari Samiti are the members of Jila Vanopaj Sahakari Sangh. The Primary
Agricultural Cooperative Societies and Laghu Vanopaj Sahakari Samiti

[\
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are functioning in rural and forest villages. The aforesaid societies have better:
financial viability and organized structure in rural areas and, therefore, the
have been chosen for allotment of fair price shops in comparison to other
societies in rural areas. The chart is reproduced here for facility of reference:

Features with regard to financial viability

S. NoJ| Pacs (Primary Laghu Vanopaj Other Socieites
Agriculture Co- Sahkari Samiti -

Operative Societies

1. Compulsory Compulsory Membership of
membership of membership of other societies is
District Central Jila Vanopaj not mandatory.
Cooperative Bank. | Sahkari Sangh

2. Cash Credit Limitis | Financial assistance No facility of

, obtained bythem from| from Jila Vanopaj cash credit limit
DCCB and DCCBin | Sahkari Sangh and is available.
turn get from Apex from Rajya Vanopaj
Bank. Sangh.

3. Control of D.CCB Laghu Vanopaj Sahkari| No direct
overthe PACSand | Samitiare controlled by] control of any
control over the Jila Vanopaj-Sahkari other Apex
DCCB by Apex Sangh and Jila.-Vanopaj| Societies.
Bank. Sahkari Sangh are

controlled by Rajya
Vanopaj Sangh.

4. Compensationinlien | Financial assistance by [No compulsory
of lossesincurredin | the District and State |compensation or
PDS servicestothe | level Society. financial
FPS as well as to lead assistance from
societies. any District

and State agency
or from any other
society.
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5. Multipurpose work Multipurpose function| No multipurpose
' like credit, extension | like collection and function but only
of loan for various sale of forest produce| torunPDS shops,
purposes like for and its sale, like however, various
fertilizer, seeds, Tendupatta, Aawla, other objects
pesticides, etc. Chironji, Mahuya, etc| areincluded in
| Income of interest : by-laws.
which is a significant
mode of revenue
generation.
6. Saving Movability | Nil Nil
Scheme in the name
of ‘Bachat Bank’.
Features with regard to organized structure
S. No.| Pacs (Primary Laghu Vanopaj Other Socieites
Agriculture Co- . Sahkari Samiti '
Operative Societies
1. 3 Tier Structure 3 Tier Structure No such
* a. PACS at Primary | a.Laghu Vanopaj organised
| leval Sahkari Samiti at structure
b.District Central Primary level
Cooperative Bank | b. Jila Sabkari Samiti
at District Ievel District level
c. Apex Bank of State| c. Rajya Vanopaj Sangh
level at State level
2. Situated at Villate/ Exclusively situated in | Maximum
Panchayat level numbef Rural and forest are society
| of PACS 4526, 99 number of societies is | situated in
percent PACS are 1066 Urban area.
situated in Rural areas. Number of
‘ societies including
Mahila Bahu

Udasye and
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Prathmik
Upbhokta
Bhandarare 5116
and 97 percent arg
situated in Urban
areas.
Society Managerare | Society Managerare | Selfemployed.
the employees of the employees of Jila
DCCB Sahkari Sangh.
Administrative and Administrative and No administrative]
Disciplinary control by | Disciplinary control | and Disciplinary
DCCB . by Jila Vanopaj control. Selfrun
Sahkari Sangh and society.

i Forest department. '
Availability of godown| Awailability of godown | Not necessary.
for the food grain for the food grain Few societies,
storage no. of availablgd storage 353 and 232 | have their privats

| godown is 5442 with Laghu Vanopaj | godown.
: | ‘Sanghtotat
353+232=585
Availability of man- Availability of Self appointed
power Sahayak Samiti| manpower. employees.
Prabhandhak and Manager, total no.
Salesman total No. are 1066
are 13932

Thus, the classification of the cooperative societies for the purpose of

running fair price shops in rural areas is based on intelligible differentiaand -
- has a reasonable nexus with the object i.e. availability of essential comiodities

at controlled prices to public in general. Thus, the provisions of clause (6) can

neither be said to be arbitrary nor dlscnmmatory

So far the submission made on behalf of the petitioners that tﬁe rule of

estoppel would bind the State Government, as the petitioners acting on the
representation made by the State Government have formed the cooperative
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societies, is concerned the same need mention only to be rejected. It is well

settled in law that principle of estopple does not operate against the law. [See: .

(2008) 14 SCC228] Thereliance placed by learned counsel for the petitioners

on the decision of the Supreme Court in Vij Resins Pvt. Ltd (supra) is of no

assistance to the petitioners as in that case the impugned Act was struck
down on the ground that the same was hit by Article 31(2) of the Constitution
of India as it took away the right to hold the property which is not the case
here. Similarly the case of Orient Paper Mills Ltd. (supra) is also
distinguishable. Under an executive order the State Government had granted
assurance that industries would be granted exemption from payment of
electricity duty. In the aforesaid context, it was held by the Supreme Court

that the State Government is bound by the doctrine of promissory estoppel.

Besides that no assurance was given by the State Government to the petitioners
. that the policy of allotment of fair price shops would never be changed.

14.  Sofaras the submission made by the learned counsel for the petitioners
that the provisions of Control Order 2009 are in contravention of the Order
framed by the Central Government is concerned, it is clear from perusal of the
provision of Public Distribution System (Control) Order, 2001 that the Central
Government has left it to the State Government to decide the person in whose
favour the licence should be issued to run fair price shops and it is for the
State Government to decide as to who should be granted the licence to run
fair price shop. There is no provision in Public Distribution System (Control)
Order 2001 directing that a particular individual oracooperative society has
to be granted licence to distribute the essential commodities through fair price
shop. Therefore, the submission that the provisions of Control Order 2009
are in contravention of the Control Order 2001 does not deserve acceptance
and accordingly, the same is rejected.

15.  Inview of the preceding analysis the impugned provisions of the
Control Order 2009 neither offend Article 14 nor Article 19(1)(g) of the
Constitution of India. However, in the cases where the petitioners have
challenged the order of cancellation of licence of fair price shops on merits,
such petitioners would be at liberty to challenge the order of cancellation of
licence of fair price shop in accordance with law. In the result, we do not find
any merit in the writ petitions. The same are accordingly dismissed.

Petition Dismissed
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A Ewdence Act (1 of 1872), Sectwn 90—Presumptmn—Perlod of
30 years has to be calculated from the date on which the document is
'tendered in evidence and not from the date of filing of the Slllt.

‘ : . (Para 13)
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B. | Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Sections 3,. 123 -

Registration of will — For a valid gift of immovable property, transfer .

must be affected by a registered instrument signed by or on behalf of
donor and attested by at-least two witnesses. (Para 14)
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C. Evidence Act (1 0of 1872), Section 90— Presumption — Rebuttable
—Presumption under Section 90 is rebuttable — Once, the execution of
the gift deed was denied by the defendants, then it was obligatory on
the part of the plaintiff to prove the gift deed in accordance with the
provnslons of 68/69 of the Act. _ (Para 14)
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D.. Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 123 — Gift - L

Receiver should also prove that donor was the absolute owner of the
property —Donor died prior to coming into force of Act, 1956, therefore
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she was having limited interest in the suit property and was not
competent to give the suit property to plaintiffs in gift even though
registered gift deed has been execiited by her in their favour. (Para 15)

¥ SR e SR (1882 BT 4), ST 123 — TAT — YT B AT
1 wifad s wfeg 5 <mar wfa &1 areafos w@eh o — sy
1956 P Yad< @ 4 <mar @ geog & w2, sufue e wwia ¥ gwer
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E. Custom — Custom is not only required to be pleaded but also to
be proved by leading evidence — Where a caste is admittedly governed
by Hindu law but it is asserted that there exists a special custom in
derogation of that law, the onus rests upon those who assert the custom
. to make it out.- (Para 18)
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Cases referred:

AIR (31) 1944 Nagpur 62, 1972 MPL] 95, S.A. NO. 464/1979
decided on 08.02.1985, AIR 2002 MP 112, AIR 1975 SC 733, (199711
SCC 310. .

Pranay Verma, for the appellants.
Janvi Pandit, for the respondents No. 1 & 2/Plaintiffs.
Akhilesh Singh, PL for the respondent No.3/State.

JUDGMENT

A.K. SHRIvASTAVA J :- This is defendants’ second appeal, who have
lost from both the Courts below. The suit of the plaintiffs has been decreed
by learned Trial Court and the first appeal which was preferred has been
dismissed by the impugned judgment and decree.

2. The facts necessary for the disposal of this Second Appeal lie in narrow
compass. Suffice it to say that a suit for possession on the basis of title and

for injunction was filed by the plaintiffs (respondent No.1 and 2) 31 years ago .

7]
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on 28.11.1980 against the defendants in respect of certain agricultural land,
which is the subject matter of the suit and description whereofhas been men-
tioned in the plaint. In the suit the State of M.P. was impleaded by way of
amendment as defendant No.7 according to the M.P. State Amendment under
Order I Rule 3(B) of CPC.

3. The plain and simple case of the plaintiffs is that the suit property was
owned by their mother namely Chamelibai, who gifted the same to them by a
registered gift deed dated 18.02.1953 and accordingly the defendants came )
into the possession of the suit property. Further their case is that after the
death of donor Chamelibai, the plaintiff No.1 went to another village and
from time to time she was coming back in the village where disputed property
is situated and both the plaintiffs were cultivating the land in question. The
plaintiffs being the ladies, the defendants by taking undue advantage of their

-weakness took illegal possession 6f the suit property and did not permit them

to sow the crop. The defendants do not have any right title and interest in the
suit property and they are possessing the suit property by using their muscle
power. Hence, the suit for possession on the basis of title (registered gift
deed)has been filed by the plaintiffs praying that their possession be restored
and further prayed to grant a decree of injunction restraining the plaintiffs not
to interfere in their possession.

4. The defendants filed their joint written statement and denied the pl:a:int

" averments. They also denied the title of the plaintiffs and further denied that

any pift deed was executed by donor (Chameli bai) in their favour. By amending
the written statement it has been further pleaded that the parties belong to
Gond community and according to their custom which is a recognized custom,
a daughter loses all interest in the property of her father after her marriage
and the property remains in the family only, and further there is a custom in
their community that a widow cannot gift the property left by her deceased
husband and therefore even if Chamelibai has gifted the suit property by
registered gift deed, since she was not having any right in the property of her
deceased husband, she was not competent to gift it to the plaintiffs. On these
pleadings, it has been prayed by the defendants that suit be dismissed.

5. The leamed Trial Court framed necessary issues and specifically framed
issue No.1 as to that whether the plaintiffs became owner of the suit property
by virtue of gift deed dated 18.02.1953. The parties thereafter led their
evidence and after recording the evidence, learned Trial Court found the suit
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of the plaintiffs to be proved and eventually decreed the same. The first appeal
which was filed by the defendants has beén dismissed by the impugned
judgment and decree.

6. In this manner, this second appeal has been preferred by the defendants.

7. This Court on 19.10.1994 admitted the appeal on the followmg
substantial questions of law :-

(1)  Whetherdue execution, attestation and validity of giﬂ- '
deed Ex.P/1 has been made out under section 90 of the
Evidence Act?

(2)  Whether, the donee, the plaintiffs are debarred from
acquiring absolute interest under section 14(1) of the Hindu
Succession Act, 19567

By pressing substantial question of law No.(2) Shri Pranay Verma, learned |

counsel for appellants submits that as per the case of plaintiffs Chamelibai
wd/o. Ramlal and mother of plaintiffs, gifted the suit property on 18.02.1953
vide gift deed (Ex.P/1). By inviting my attention to the testimony of plaintiff
No.1 Bandibai it has been put-forth by learned counsel that after the death of
Ramlal, his widow Chamelibai also died within three years of his death and
further he argued that after execution of the gift deed Chamelibai was alive for
two years only. Hence according to learned counsel somewhere in the year
1952 Ramlal died and thereafter in the year 1955 Chamelibai had died and
thus it is proved from the testimony of plaintiff No.1 herself that Chamelibai
died earlier to coming into force of Hincu Succession Act, 1956 (in short
“Act of 1956”) which came into force w.c.f. 17.06.1956, therefore the donor
(Chamelibai) who was having only limited interest of maintenance in the suit

property being widow of Ramlal (who was owner of the property) would not
become absolute owner of the suit property on coming into force of the Act of .

1956, therefore, the gift deed (Ex.P/1) which was executed by her in favour
of plaintiffs would not convey 4 valid title in the plaintiffs for the simple reason
that she was not owner of the suit property and she was having only limited
right of maintenance and therefore on account of death of Chamelibai in the

year 1955 the disputed property devolved in the defendants, who are the -

revisioners. Learned counsel further submits that Hindu law is appllcablc on
the Gond community.

8. Learned counsel for appellants further submits that there i no pleading

4
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of plaintiffs that in the Gond community to which the parties belong, thereisa
valid custom that on account of death of husband, his widow will become
absolute owner and in absence of pleading of valid and recognized custom
which was alleged to be prevailing and without proving the same, although the
parties are of Gond community the provision of Hindu law will be applicable
on them and therefore Chamelibai was having limited right in terms of Section
3 of the Hindu Women’s Rights to Property Act, XVIII of 1937 (in short
“Act of 1937”). Learned counsel submits that having failed to plead and
prove the custom that widow who was having limited interest under the Act of
1937 would become absolute owner of the property left by her husband in
absence of male issue and further she was having any right to give the property
in gift, it cannot be said that the gift deed (Ex.P/1) is a valid deed of convey-
ance. In support of his contention, learned counsel has placed heavy reliance
on the decision of Division Bench of this Court in Shamlal Shrikisan Mahesari

v, Mt. Jiyabai w/o. Shrikisan and others AIR (31) 1944 Nagpur 62. He

has also placed reliance on Sukhsen and another v. Shravan Kumar, 1972
MPLJ 95, an unreported judgment of this Court in S.A. No.464/1979
(Rupatiya Bai v. Sona Bai and another) decided on 08.02.1985 and Kailash
Singh v. Mewalal Singh Gond AIR 2002 Madhya Pradesh 112. These de-
cisions pertain to Gond community only. Learned counsel has also placed
heavy reliance on the decision of Supreme Court in Harihar Prasad Singh

* and others v. Balmiki Prasad Singh and others AIR 1975 SC 733 and

submitted that a custom is required to be pleaded and proved and burden of
proof lies on the existence of such a custom on a person who pleads it.

' 9, By pressing the substantial question of law No.(1) it has been

canvassed by learned counsel for appellants that in the present case, no
attesting witness to the gift deed has been examined and if that would be the
position, the gift deed which is a document of title of the plaintiffs is not proved
and plaintiffs stand nowhere.

10.  Onthe other hand Smt. Janvi Pandit, learned counsel for respondents
No.1 and 2 argued in support of the impugned judgment passed by learned

" two Courts below and submitted that since Chamelibai gifted the disputed

property to plaintiffs vide registered gift deed dated 18.02.1953, the plain-
tiffs on coming into the force of Act of 1956 became absolute owner because
under section 14(1) of the Act of 1 956, a widow will become absolute owner
irrespective of fact whether she had acquired property prior to coming into
force of the said Act or tpereafter and if that would be the position learned
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counsel submits that plaintiffs acquired a valid title in them by virtue of gift-
deed Ex.P/1 dated 18.02.1953 executed by their mother in their favour. In
support of her contention, learned counsel has placed heavy reliance on the
decision of Supreme Court Surjit Kaur (Mst.) and others v. Arjan Singh
and others (1997) 11 SCC 310.

11. By putting a deep dent on the submission of learned counsel for
appellants, it has been put-forth by Smt. Pandit that this second appeal has
been admitted only on the aforesaid two substantial questions of law and no
other question has been framed. Learned counsel has invited my attention to
para 10 of the impugned judgment and submitted that prior to filing of the suit,
the plaintiffs were in possession and for the cogent reasons First Appellate
Court decreed the suit of restoration of possession and because no substantial
question of law has been framed on this point, even if both the substantial

questions of law are answered in favour of appellants, the suit of the
respondents would not fail. By putting a hammer on the submission of learmed

counsel for appellants, it has been put-forth by Smt. Pandit that if Section 90
of the Evidence Act, 1872 (in short “Evidence Act”) is considered in its true
perspective because the document (Ex.P/1) is 30 years old when the suit was
filed there is a valid presumption of its attestation and execution. Hence, it has
been prayed by her that this appeal be dismissed.

12. Hav‘ing heard learned counsel for the parties,  am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be allowed.

Regarding substantial question of law No.(1) :

13.  The contention of learned counsel for respondents that where a
document purporting or proved to be 30 years old is produced from any
custody, the Court may presume that the signature and every other part of the
document which purports to be hand-writing of any particular person is that
person’s hand-writing and in case the document executed or attested that it
was duly executed or attested by the person by whom it purports to be executed
and attested. Thus, it is proved that gift deed (Ex.P/1) dated 18.02.1953
which is.a 30 years old document, therefore section 90 of the Evidence Act is
attracted. The suit was filed on 18.11.1980 and therefore on the date of filing
of the suit 30 years were not completed. But, according to me, the date of
filing of the suit is not the determining date to compute period of 30 years and
indeed this period should be computed when the document was tendered in
" the evidence. On bare perusal of the gift deed Ex.P/1 dated 18.2.1953 this

!
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Court finds that same was tendered in the evidence of plaintiff Bandibai on -
18.02.1983 when she was examined as PW1 and therefore on the date when

- this document was tendered 30 years were already completed. In this regard

Law of Evidence by Sarkar 17® Edition Page 1653 may be scen. But, section

- 90 of the Evidence Act speaks about presumptive value of 30 years old

document and niothing more. This presumption is a rebuttal presumption and
once the execution of the document of gift is denied by the defendants
specifically in their written statement by taking a firm stand that it was never
executed. The revenue record which has been filed by defendants it raises a
doubt about the execution of this document. Hence it was incumbent upon
the plaintiffs not only to prove the execution of the document of gift but the
attestation was also required to be proved. :

14, Under Section 123 of Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (in short “T.P.
Act”) which is in respect to the gift, it is clear that for a valid gift of immovable
property, the transfer must be affected by a registered instrument signed by
or on behalf of donor and attested by-at-least two witnesses. The term
“attested” is also interpreted in Section 3 of the T.P. Act and it-would be
condign to quote the said provision which reads thus;

“attested”, in'relation to an instrument, means and shall be
deemed always to have meant attested by two or more
witnesses each of whom has seen the executant sign or affix
his mark to the instrument, or has seen some other person sign
the instrument in the presence and by the direction of the
executant, or has received from the executant a personal
acknowledgement of his signature or mark, or of the signature
of such other person, and each of whom has signed t he
instrument in the presence of the executant; but it shall not be
necessary that more than one of such witnesses shall have been'
- present at the same time, and no particular form of attestation -
shall be necessary. - ‘

Thus, according to me, the attestation of the gift deed was required to be
proved according to the definition of the word ‘Attested’ in Section 3 of the
T.P. Act. Atthis juncture, Section 68 of the Evidence Act is required to be
taken into account which speaks about the proof of execution of a document
required by law to be attested and as per this section ifa document is required
by law to be attested, it shall not be used as evidence until one attesting
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witness atleast has been called for the purpose of proving its execution. Need-
less to say that a gift deed is required to be attested atleast by two witnesses
and therefore attestation is required to be proved by examining atleast one
attesting witness. It is not the case of the plaintiffs that attesting witnesses are
not alive. Even if they are not'alive, the legislature has taken note of this
situation and has enacted Section 69 in the Evidence Act which pertains to
proof where no attesting witness is found. Thus, Iam of the view that since
plaintiffs are basing their case and title on the basis of the registered gift deed
(Ex.P/1) dated 18.02.1953, they were duty bound to examine at-least one
attesting witness in order to prove the attestation of the gift deed and the
plaintiffs cannot take aid of Section 90 of the Evidence Act.

15.  Evenifthe presumption under Section 90 of the Evidence Act is drawn
in favour of the plaintiffs, until and unless it is proved by the plaintiffs that
. Chamelibai who gifted the suit property to them on 18.02.1953 (Ex.P/1) was
the absolute owner of the suit property on that date it cannot be said that
plaintiffs acquired a valid title in them by the said gift deed. Hence, itis to be
seen whether Chamelibai after the death of her husband would become the
absolute owner of the suit property or not. Admittedly the property was of
her busband Ramlal who died somewhere in the year 1952 and after his death
. Chamelibai was having only limited interest of maintenance in the suit property
under the Act of 1937. Had she been alive on coming into force of the Act of
1956, certainly she would have become absolute-owner of the suit property
under Section 14(1) of the Act of 1956. But, since she died much prior to
coming into force of the Act of 1956 and was having only limited interest in
the suit property, she was not competent to give the suit property to plaintiffs
in gift even though registered gift deed has been executed by her in their favour.

16.  The substantial question of law No.1 is thus answered that attestation
and validity of gift deed (Ex.P/1) is not proved because the attesting witnesses
have not been examined and Section 90 of the Evidence Act is having only
presumptive value and nothing more.

Regarding substantial question of law No.(2)

17.  On going through the judgment of learned two Courts below and
particularly the impugned judgment passed by learned First Appellate Court
para 6 this Court finds that a finding has been arrived at by the said Court that
on account of the death of Ramlal who was of Gond community, his entire
right in the suit property devolved upon his widow Chamelibai and this is a

»
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valid custom in the Gond community and therefore Chamelibai has rightly
gifted the suit property to plaintiffs by registered gift deed (Ex.P/1). However,
on bare perusal of the plaint nowhere it is gathered that any such custom has
been pleaded by the plaintiffs and it has also not been proved by plaintiff
(PW1) in her testimony. The plain and simple case of the plaintiffs is that by
virtue of gift deed dated 18.02.1953 executed by their mother Chamelibai,

they became the owner of the suit property. According to me, if a particular
valid custom is prevailing in Gond community, it should have not only been
pleaded but it was also required to be proved. Inabsence of any such pleading
no conclusion can be arnved at that a particular custom is prevailing i in that
commumty

18.  Inthe present case, the factual position which has been carved out
from the evidence of plaintiff No.1 herself'is that somewhere in the year 1952
. the husband of Chamelibai namely Ramlal had died and three years thereafter
i.e. inthe year 1955, Chamelibai also died. Thus, admittedly Ramlal and his
widow died prior to coming into force of Act of 1956. I do not find any
merits in'the contention of learned counsel for respondents that the burden of
proof was onithe defendants to prove that a particular custom is prevailing in
Gond community that on account of death of a husband the entire property
.would not devolve in his widow. According to me, if a particular party is
" pleading a particular custom in that situation that party is required to prove
that custom. In the present case neither any such custom has been pleaded
by the plaintiffs nor has it been proved by them. According to me, in absence
of proving any custom to the contrary that provisions of Hindu law are not
applicable in the Gond community, it would be deemed that Hindu law is
.applicable even on Gond community. The Division Bench of this Court in
Shamlal Shrikisan (supra) has laid down the law that where a caste is
admittedly governed by Hindu law but it is asserted that there exists a special
custom in derogation of that law the onus rests upon those who assert the
custom to make it out. The same view was taken by learned Single Bench of
_ this Court in Sukhsen (supra), wherein, it has been held that although Gond
community is not Hindu, but presumption is that they are governed by Hindu
law unless the contrary is shown. The Single Bench of this Court in
S.A.No.464/1979 (Rupatiya Bai v. Sona Bai and another . decided on
08.02.1985) has also laid down the same principle of law and I apt to quote
para 4 of the said judgment:- :

“4,  Itcannotbe counted, in view of the decision of this
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Court in Sukhsen v. Shravan Kumar, 1972 ML.P.L.J. 95, that
there is a presumption that Gonds-are governed by Hindu law,
unless the contrary is shown. Accordingly, it was for the
defendant to prove the gontrary, which has not been done and
the presumption of applicability of Hindu law to the parties is
‘clearly available. The contrary conclusion reached by the first

- appellate Court was, therefore, clearly erroneous.”

19. Inananother décision of learned Single Bench in Kailash Singh (supra)
it has been held that there should be a proper pleading and proof of such
custom and because there is no pleading in that regard, therefore, this Court
held that the provision of Hindu law would be applicable. Above all, the
Supreme Court also in Harihar Prasad Singh (supra) has held that in the first
instance it is for the plaintiffs to prove the existence of a particular custom and
. ifthey failed to prove it, they cannot succeed. Thus, in the present case it
was for the plaintiffs to plead and prove the custom. Even ifthe custom which
the defendants have pleaded by amending their written statement, has not
been proved by them, it would not strengthen the case of the plaintiffs because
first of all it was for the plaintiffs to prove the custom and then only the burden
would shift on the defendants to plead the custom which they pleaded. Since
plaintiffs have failed to prove the custom prevailing in Gond commumty, the
provision of Hindu Law would be applicable.

20. Ido not find any merits in the contention of learned counsel for -
respondents that under Section 14(1) of the Act of 1956 plaintiffs became
absolute owner of the suit property for the simple reason that when this Act
came into force on 17.06.1956 the donor Chamelibai had already died and

-therefore when the donor did not perfect any absolute title under Section

- 14(1), the plaintiffs who are stepping into the shoes of their donor Chamelibai
would also not become absolute owner. The decision of Surjit Kaur (supra)
placed reliance by respondents is not applicable because in the said decision
the widow was alive when the Act of 1956 came into force. However the
situation in the present case is otherwise.

21. - Ialso do not find any merits in the contention of learned counsel for
respondents that plaintiffs’ possession was found immediately before filing of
the suit and therefore their suit has been rlghtly decreed and because no
substantial question of law has been framed on this point, even'if both the
substantial questions of law are answered in favour of appellants, the suit of -
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plaintiffs would not be dismissed. The simple reason is that under Article 64
. of the Limitation Act a suit for possession would lie on account.of previous
-possession which is not basedpon the title and in that suit only the previoits
- possession of plaintiffs before filing of the suit is to be seen. But in the: present
case, the suit has not been filed on the basis of previous possession, on the :
contrary ithasbeen filed for r possession on the basis of tltle and in this regard
pa.ra 1 of the plaint is qulte clear

22 The substantial question of Iaw No 2 is thus answered that

donee-plamtlﬁ's are debarred from acquiring absolute interest. under seetlon
14(1) of Act of 1956. :

23.  Resultantly, this appeal succeeds and is hereby allowed. The impugned

judgment and decree of learned two courts below are hereby set aside.and -

the suit of the plalntlﬁ's is dlsmlssed withno ordersastocosts. . - -
. - - : oy Appeal allowed
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S A. No 144/ 1998 (Indore) declded on 21 September, 2011
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‘RATANLAL [ Appellant
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KISHANLAL & ors. - : . Respondents

A Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 90 — 30 years old

L "'docoment Presumption envisaged under Seetlon 90 is apphcable to

. the dociiment and not for its photocopy . e (Para 11)
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. B.' . .Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sectton 65 — Secandary
Evidence — Photocopy of a.will is.neither. a primary evndence nor
' *secondary evidence— Further more, the plaintiff is required to examine

the person who took out:the-photocopy 'of the original — As only
photocopy of the will was filed therefore, 1t is not proved “(Para‘12)
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C.  Adverse Possession — There are sufficient ple‘adings in
the written statement with regard to adverse possession — —Further the
defendants have filed revenue records to show their possession—One

.of the Defendant’s witnesses has admitted that plaintiff is possessing
the suit property as bataidar — His possession would be for the
defendants. : ' -(Para 14)
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Case referred :
AIR 1998 MP 46.

O.P. Solanki, for the appellant. )
S.K. Shastri, for the respondents No.1 &2.
Pramod Mitha, G.A. for the respondent No.3/State.

JUDGMENT
A.K. SHRIVASTAVA y o - This second appeal has been filed at the

instance of plaintiff against the judgment of reversal. The Trial Court decreed

the suit but in appeal the same has been reversed.

2. The facts necessary for the disposal of this second appeal licin a
narrow compass. Suffice it to say that a suit for declaration of bhumiswami
right and injunction has been filed by the plaintiffin respect to certain agricultural
Jands, the description whereofis mentioned in the plaint and which is the subject
matter of the suit. According to the plaintiff, the suit property was owned by
- one Chunnilal and having bequeathed the same by will dated 19.3.1961 in
favour of plaintiff, after his death he became bhumiswami of the suit property
and eventually he submitted an application for his mutation in the revenue
record which was ordered to be mutated. According to the plaintiff he is

vy
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possessing the suit property as bhumiswami and further because defendants
1 and 2 are trying to interfere in his possession hence, a suit for declaratlon
and injunction was filed by him on 21.6.1983.

3. The defendants 1 and 2 denied the plaint averments by filing a joint

written statement and also filed counter claim praying to declare them as
bhumiswami of the suit property on account of adverse possession and further
the order of mutation dated 9.7.1982 be set-aside.

4.  Thelearned Trial Court framed necessary issues and after recordmg
the evidence the parties decreed the suit.

5. The First Appeal which was filed by defendants has been allowed by
the impugned judgment and decree. In this manner this second appeal has
- been filed by plaintiff. .

6. This Court on 10.8.1998 admitted the second appeal on the followlng
substantial questions of law:-

1. "Whether the finding of the first appellate Court
below regarding Will is perverse being contrary to the evidence
onrecord ? and

2. "Whether the appellate Court below erred in law in
decreeing counter claim of the respondent Nos. 1 and 2 on the
basis of adverse possession when as per their own showing
they were in possession of the suit property in pursuance of an
agreement of sale? .

7. The contention of Shri O.P. Solanki learned Counsei for the appellant
is that having admitted the photocopy of the will in evidence by learned Trial
Court, the learned First Appellate Court erred in substantial error of law in
holding that Will is not proved. According to learned Counsel the copy of the

Will Ex. P/1 is dated 19.3.1961 and is a 30 year old document and, therefore, .

under Section 90 of the Indian Evidence Act it shall be presumed that not

only it was executed but the same was also duly attested, therefore, it was not-

incumbent upon the plaintiffto get the attesting witnesses examined to prove
the executlon and the attestation of the Will.

8. By addressmg substantial question of law No.2 it has been contended _

by learned Counsel for appellant that défendants have not perfected their
bhumiswami right by adverse possession for two reasons, firstly there is no

—
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proper pleadings of defendants in that regard in their counter claim and secondly
the plea has not been proved by placing cogent evidence on record. On these
premised submissions it has been put forth by leamed Counsel for the appellant
that this appeal be allowed and by setting-aside the impugned judgment and
decree passed by learned First Appellate Court judgment and decree passed
by learned Trial Court be restored.

9. Combating the aforesaid submissions put forth by learned Counsel for
the appellant Shri Shastri, leamed Counsel appearing for the respondent submits
that cogent reasons have been assigned by Iéamed First Appellate Court holding
- that the Will is not proved and further defendants have perfected their title on
the'suit property by adverse possession.

10.  Having heard learned counsel for the parties I am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be dismissed. :

) Regarding substantlal question of law No.1.

11.  Thecontention of learned Counsel for the appellant is that because a
copy of’ the document of Will Ex.P/1 dated 19.3.1961 was tendered in evidence
of plaintiff on 4.1.1995, therefore, 30 years were completed and hence from
the date when the copy of the document Ex.P/1 was tendered in evidence the
. period of limitation of 30 years should be computed. The arguments so
advanced by learned Counsel for the appellant at the first blush appears to be
quite attractive, however, on being scrutinized at length the same is found to
be devoid of any substance. Indeed, the presumption envisaged under Section
90 of the Evidence Act would be applicable to the document itself and not for
its copy. Since the document itself was not tendered in the evidence, there
cannot be any presumption for a copy of the document.

12. . According to me the photocopy is neither a primary nor secondary
evidence and in this regard decision of this Court Ramesh Verma and others
efc. v. Smt.- Lajesh Saxena and others etc. AIR 1998 M.P. 46 may be
seen, Apart from this even if it is stretched to the extent to bring the photocopy
of Will Ex.P/1 within the sphere of secondary evidence, the plaintiff was
required to satisfy the ingredients to Section 65 of the Evidence Act which
speaks about the secondary evidence. The plaintiff was further required to
examine the person who took out the photocopy of the original. This is very
much essential because, it is a matter of common knowledge that by putting .
another writing written on a separate paper if that paper is kept upon the
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* original document and photocopy is taken out,: the said photo copy cannot be
said to be a true photocopy of the original. document. Further it cannot be
said that Ex.P/1 is the photocopy of the original Will because it is very easy to
take outa photocopy from a document which itself was a photocopy. There-
fore, if the person who took out the photocopy Ex.P/1 would have been
examined, it could have been ascertairied whether he took out the photocopy

. . Ex.P/1 from the original décument, or Ex. P/1 is the photocopy of the docu-

mient which itself was a photocopy and further whether the document of which
the photocopy Ex.P/1 was taken out was not at all tampered Hence, I am of
the view that in absence of tendering in the evidence a document of Will itself, -
a photocopy Ex.P/1 cannot take place of the original document and, there- -
fore, Section'90 is not applicable and the finding of learned Ftrst Appellate
Court in'that regard is, hereby, affirmed.

13.7 The substantlal questlon of law No, 1 is thus, answered that Will on
the basis whlch the plaintiffis clanmng bhumiswami ri ight is not at all proved
and the ﬁndmg of learned F 1rst Appellate Court inregard to the Will is not
perverse. . :

Regardmg substantlal guestlon of law No.2.

14. On going through the written statement of the defendants th1s Court
ﬁn‘ds that they have also claimed the counter claim in respect to the suit property
pleading therein that they have acquired bhumiswami right by way of adverse
possession on the suit property because they are possessing the suit property
for last 35 years from the time of their predecessors as owner and in the

knowledge of plamtlff and hence they have perfected their bhumiswami right” .

by adverse possession. In this regard para 5 of the pleading of the counter
claim which is on page No.4 of the written statement may be seen. The written
statement in which counter claim has been claimed was filed on23.8.1984
and if the period of 35 years is computed it comes to year 1949 True the
defendants have not filed revenue record from the year 1949 but certainly
they have filed revenue record w.e.f. 1969-70 to 1983-84. In the revenue
record Ex. D/1, D/2 and D/9 the possession of defendants' predecessor .
‘Mangilal is mentioned and thereafter defendant's possession has been

mentioned. The evidence of defendants is also that they are possessing the - -

suit property for more than 12 years. I do not find any merit in the contention
of learned Counsel for the plaintiﬂ‘-'appell_ant that defendant's witness Yakub
Khan says that he is possessing the suit property since 1968-69. On bare
perusal of his statement this Court finds that he is the ‘bataidar’ of the



136 ' State of M.P. Vs Dinesh Singh LLR.[2012]M.P.

defendants and, therefore, his possession would be for the defendants.

15.  Thave gone through the reasonings arrived at by learned First Appellate
Court holding that defendants 1 and 2 have perfected their bhumiswami right
by adverse possession on the suit property. The findings are based on correct
appreciation of oral and documentary evidence on record and are pure find-
ing of fact which cannot be interferred in this appeal.

16.  The substantial question of law No.2 is thus answered that learned
First Appellate Court did not err in law in decreeing counter claim of
respondents 1 and 2 on the basis of adverse possession although they have
shown that they were in possession of the suit property in pursuance to the
agreement of sale.

17.  Resultantly, this appeal fails and is heréby dismissed with cost. Counsel
fee according to the schedule if pre-certified.

Appeal dismissed
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M.A. No 3800/2006 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 October, 2011

STATE OF M P. & ors. ...Appellants
Vs.
DINESH SINGH ... Respondent -

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908) — Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 —
Temporary Injunction — Temporary Injunction granted in a suit ceases
its effect after the dismissal of the suit — Appellate Court is required to
pass an order of injunction applying the same principle — After remand
by Appellate Court, order of revival of injunction must be passed during
the pendency of the suit otherwise, on dismissal of suit, the said order
ceases its effect. (Para 8)
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B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908) — Order 39 Rule 2A — Breach
of Injunction — Suit was dismissed by order dated 6-1-1992 refusing
leave to entertain the suit for granting interim injunction under Section
80(2) - Revisional Court passed an interim order and subsequently
disposed off revision with liberty to file regular suit with further
observation that the interim order passed by revisionzl court shall
continue to remain in force till application for temporary injunction is
decided by Trial Court - Suit filed by plaintiff was dismissed by order
dated 11-2-1992 — Appellate Court allowed the appeal and remanded
the case back to decide the suit afresh by order dated 25-3-1992 —
Appellate Court did not pass any order of revival of injunction which
was ceased on dismissal of suit — Trial Court granted temporary in- -
junction on 14-10-1998 whereas the wall was demolished on 10-6-1997
—As no injunction was on force on 10-6-1997 therefore, appellants no.
2 to 5 have not committed breach of injunction. (Para 10)
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Sarvashri R.D.Jain, A.G, Purushendra Kaurav, Dy.A.G. & Sanjay
K. Agrawal, for the appellants.
Manish Datt, for the respondent.

ORDER

J.K. MARESHWARI , J. :- The State Government along with their
officers have preferred this appeal under Order 43 Rule 1(r) of the Code of -
Civil Procedure, 1908 challenging the order dated 8.9.2006 passed by IV |
Additional District Judge, Rewa in MIC No. 25/1997 allowing the application -
under Order 39 Rule 2A of CPC and for the breach of i injunction, appeallant
No. 2 has been directed to undergo civil imprisonment for one month while
appellants No.3, 4 and 5 for 15 days. :

2. The relevant facts of the case are that respondent instituted a suif in
the Court of II Civil Judge Class-I Rewa on 6.1.1992 contending that he is
the owner of the land bearing Khasra No. 236/1 and constructed a house and
boundaty wall theron. It was alleged that Tehsildar, Nazul, Rewais trying to
demolish the boundary wall constructed by him. The application seeking leave .
. to entertain the suit and to grant the urgent interim relief was also filed under
Section 80 (2) of the CPC which was rejected as per order dated 6.1. 1992
Feeling aggrieved by the said order, a revision was preferred before the
Additional District Judge, Rewa which was registered as Civil Revision No.
-3/92 and on the same day an exparte interim order was passed directing that
the boundary wall situated in Khasra No. 236/1 shall not be demolished and
it be allowed to remain in the same position. The said revision was disposed
of vide order dated 29.1.1992 with the observation that the respondent may
institute a regular suit in the competent civil court along with an application for
grant of temporary injunction, however it was observed that the interim order
dated 6.1.1992 shall continue to remain in force till the application for
temporary injunction is decided by the Trial Court. Thé respondent insfituted
aregular suit in the court of I Civil Judge Class- [ Rewa which was registered
as Civil suit No, 9-A/92.On filing an application under Order 7 Rule 11 of
CPC by the other side, the suit was dismissed as per order dated 11.2.1992
with an observation that no orders are necessary on the application for
temporary injunction. Feeling aggrieved by the said order, a regular Civil Appeal
No. 13-A/92 was preferred which was allowed vide judgment and decree
dated 25.3.1992 setting aside the order of the Trial Court and the matter
- was remanded back to decide the same afresh in accordance with law . After
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remand, the application for temporary injunction was decided vide order
dated 14.10.1998 restraining defendants from demolishing the boundary wall
or to take any action in furtherance thereto. In the application under order 39
Rule 24, it is stated that the boundary wall has been demolished on 10.6.1997
by the appellants, at that time the order passed by the Additional District
Judge, Rewa dated 6.1.1992 was in existence, therefore the appellantsNo.2 to 5
have committed the breach of injunction for which they are liable to be punished.

3. The appellants in reply contended that the boundary wall of the
respondent was demolished on 6.1.1992 even prior to passing of interim order
by the District Judge, Rewa, however under the garb of injunction order the
respondent has again constructed boundary wall obstructing a public way
connecting the village Padra and Dheka. It is stated that the residents of these
two villages were using the said way, however by constructing a boundary
wall the right to use of the said passage of the villagers was being obstructed
by respondent, therefore the order under Section 133 of the Cr.P.C. was
passed by the Sub Divisional Magistrate, Tehsil Huzur District Rewa in the
proceedings instituted on 24.12.1991 much before filing of the suit. The -
obstruction by the said boundary wall was causing nuisance to the public at

large, however the SDM passed an order on 5.5.1997 in exercise of powers

conferred under Section 142 of Cr.P.C..directing the police personnel to

remove the obstruction, therefore the boundary wall was removed on

10.6.1997 and the thorough fair was made available for the residents of the

villages Padra and Dheka. It was not disputed that appellant No. 2 was posted

as Sub Divisional Magistrate while the appellants No. 3 to 5 were the police

personnel posted at the relevant point of time. It is said that on the date of
demolitioni.e. 10.6.1997 the order of injuntion was not in existence, however

question of breach of injunction do not arise. It is said that the suit itself was

decreed directing payment of compensation in favour of respondent and in
furtherance there to the State Government has compensated the respondent

by making such payment. In such a circumstances, the order of punishment

passed by the Trial Court for breach of injunction is liable to be set aside.

4, Shri.R.D. Jain, learned Advocate General for the appellants contends
that the effect of order dated 29.1.1992 passed in Civil Revision No.3/92
has ceased on 11.2.1992, on account of dismissal of the suit itself. Against
the said order an appeal was preferred which was decided on 25.3.1992
setting aside the order of dismissal of the suit and to decide it in accordance
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with law. While passing such order, the appellate court has not revived the
order of injunction. In absence of any order of revival, the injunction order
was not in existence on the date of alleged breach. The trial Court passed an
order of injunction on 14.10.1998 allowing the application for temporary
injunction. Thus as per the allegations alleged in the application for committing
the breach on 10.6.1997, the order of injunction was not in operation however
the punishment as directed for the breach of injunction is liable to be set aside:
Learned Advocate General has placed reliance on the Division Bench judgment
of this Court in the case of Madanlal Chhotelal and others Vs. Ramprakash
Ghasiram, AIR 1963 M.P. 329 wherein it was held that if the suit is dismissed
and an appeal is preferred then the suit would be at the stage of the appeal,
however unsuccessful plaintiff is required to invoke the power for revival of
the order of injunction which ceases its effect on dismissal of the suit. While

dealing with the said issue, the full Bench decision of the Madras High Court ‘

.in the case of Tavvala Veeraswami Vs. Pulim Ramanna and otehrs,
AIR 1935 Madras 365 has been distinguished and relying upon the Full Bench
judgment of Mysore High Court in the case of Gangappa V. Boregowda
and others, AIR 1955 Mysore 91- dissenting from the Full Bench decision of
Travancore-Cochin High Court in the case of Muhammad Abdul Khadir
Vs. Padmanabha Pillai, AIR 1952 Trav-C 414 (C) and relying upon the
Division Bench judgment of Andhra Pradesh High Court in the case of Kumaji

* Sare Mal Firm V. Kalwa Devadattam, AIR 1958 A.P: 216 upholding the
another Full Bench Judgment of Madras High Court in the case of Balaraju
Chettiar V. Masilamani Pillai, AIR 1930 Mad. 514, propounded that on
dismissal of the suit the interim order ceases its effect, and on filing the appeal
it would not automatically revive. It is submitted that the Full Bench of Allahabad
High Court in the case of 4bdul Hamid V. Karim Bux and others, AIR 1973
Allahabad 67 have taken the same view, and also relied upon the judgment of
Madhya Pradesh HIgh Court on the said issue. Subsequently the Single Bench
of Allahabad High Court in the case of Nagar Mahapalika Vs. Ved Prakash,
AIR 1976 Allahabad 264 has taken the same view. The Gauhati High Court
in the case of Smt Usha Rani . Banik Vs. Haridas Das and others, AIR
2005 Gauhati 1 has also approved the same principle. Considering the views
taken by various High Courts, it is apparent that the order of injunction ceases
its effect on dismissal of the suit. On filing the appeal, if the appellate court has
directed for remand, the order of injunction would not automatically revive
unless and until the order of revival of injunction is passed. In the present
case, while directing remand the ordér of revival of injunction was not passed

-~
:
1
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*and in the suit injunction was granted on 14.10.1998 prior to the same the
boundary wall was demolished on 10.6.1997, therefore there is no breach of
the order of injunction by the appellants, however prayed that the order of
punishment may be set aside. :

5. ., Percontra Shri Manish Datt, learned counsel appearing on behalf of
thé réspondent placing reliance on the Full Berch decision of Madras High
Court in the case of Tavvala Veeraswami (supra) contended that on
restoration of the suit the ancillary orders automatically revived. In the present
case, after dismissing the suit as not maintainable and on filing the revision the
revisional court first directed that the fresh suit may be filed by plaintiff and
the order of injunction. shall remain in operation till the decision on application
for temporary injunction. On filing a fresh suit, it was dismissed in second
round, but after passing an order of reménd by the appellaje-court, the order
of injunction would revive automatically, however on the date ie. 10.6.1997
the boundary wall was demolished in breach of the order of temporary
injunction, therefore the appeallants No. 2 to 5 have rightly been punished by
the Trial Court by passing the order impugned. In view of the foregoing, the
prayer is made to dismiss the appeal.

6. After having heard learned counsel appearing on behalf of the parties
. and to decide the issue whether on the date of breach i.e. 10.6.1997 the
order of temporary injunction passed by the revisional court would
automatically revive on passing the order of remand at a subsequent stage
and for the alleged breach to demolish the boudnary wall appellants may be
punished ? i ' - .

7. In facts of the present case and to deal with the said issue, the judgments
so relied upon and other judgment on the issue is required to be seen. Allahabad
High Court in the case of Ram Chand V. Pitam Mal, ILR 10 All. 506 laid
down that on an attachment before judgment like a temporary
injunction becomes functus officio as soon as the suit terminated. The
observations of Hon'ble Mahmood, J. were based on an earlier Division Bench
case of the Allahabad High Court in Chunni Kuar V. Dwarka Prasad, (1887}
ALL WN 297. In the case of Balaraju Chettiar (supra) the Full Bench of
Madras High Court followed the view taken by the Allahabad High Court
and further by the Allahabad High Court in the case of Dular Singh Vs. Ram
Chander, AIR 1934 All 165 and in Ghulam Dastgir V. Mohammad Amin,
" AIR 1937 All 682 reiterated the samie principle. The Division Bench of the
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Andhra Pradesh High Court in the case of Kumaji Sare Mal Firm (supra)
dissenting with the Full Bench of Travancore- Cochin's view held that once
attachment is ceased as a result of the dismissal of the suit by the trial Court it
would not get automatically revive when the suit is decreed in appeal. The full
Bench of Mysore High Court in the case of Gangappa (supra) while dissenting
from the Travancore- Cochin High Court have laid down as under :

“(10) An attachment before judgment is in the nature of an
interlocutory order. It is an extraordinary relief granted to a
plaintiff even before his claim is adjudicated upon and found
to be true and if a suit is dismissed either for default or on its
merits by the trial Court and the aitachment before judgment
has therefore to cease, he can certainly have not as much
grievance as a person who has obtained a decree and attached
property of the judgment-debtor whose right to attached
property has been questioned and decided in summary
proceedings and which are made expressly subject to a decision
in a regular suit. Moreover it cannot also be urged that all
‘interlocutory orders like say those passed on applications for
temporary injunction the operation of which would have to
cease on the dismissal of a suit, would automatically be revived
or can be deemed to be in force without any further orders by
an appellate Court or by the same Court after the suit is.
dismissed. To hold so would lead to obvious and real difficulties.
Itis notalso as though the plaintiff in such a case has no remedy.
He could always apply to the same Court if a suit which has
- been dismissed for default is restored to file or to an appellate
Court which has also ample powers to grant an order of
- attachment before judgment under the provisions of $.107(2),
Civil P.C. Inany event the possibility of hardship cannot warrant
the ignoring of the express provisions of 0.38, R.9 by which it
is specifically laid down that an attachment before judgment
shall cease by the dismissal of a suit. As observed by Mahmood,
J. in 10 All 506 (E), all interim orders cannof survive the
pendency of the main litigation.” '

8. The Division Bench of M.P, Hgh Court in the case of Madanlal
Chhotelal (supra) has considered the Full Bench judgment of Madras Hi gh
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Court in the case of Balaraju Cheettiar (supra). The learned Judges first

examined the question whether the attachment before judgment would
terminate, even though no formal order of withdrawal was passed by the trial
court while dismissing the suit. According to them, such a formal order would
not be ncessary and the attachment would terminate no sooner the suit is

 dismissed by the trial Court. The learned Judges thought that it would be too

wide a proposition to say that an appellate decree per se would restore all
the interlocutory orders passed in the original suit, as, in their opinion, the
object of attachment being merely to satisfy any decree which may be passed
in the suit. After reading the language of the Rules 5 and 6 to answer the issue
said that the attachment contemplated relates to a decree passed in the suit
by the trial Court alone and the appellate court, therefore opined that the
attachment evidently is for a purpose which depends on the décree of the trial’
Court, If the trial dismisses a suit, attachment ceases, although no formal order

* of-'withdrawal is required. The appellate court might have decreed the suit,

the order of attachment so terminated on dismissal of the suit would not be
revived. Further referring the judgment in the case of Pindiv. U. Thama, -
AIR 1931 Rang 281, Abdur Rahman V. Amir Sharif, AIR 1918 Cal 39,
held that the attachment before judgment terminates with the dismissal ofa
suit and the attachment itself did not survive after the dismissal of the suit.
Further referring the judgment of Dular Singh Vs. Ramchander (supra) held
on the analogy that the attachment before judgment terminated with the
dismissal of the suit, any transfer effected by the judgment-debtor subsequent
to the dismissal of the suit and before the passing of a reversing appellate
decree, it would not be void. In Ghulam Dastgir V. Mohammad Amin
(supra) the view taken by the Allahabad High Court in the case of Ram
Chand V. Pitam Mal (supra) by Mr. Mahmood, J and also referring the
another _]udgment of the Madras High Court in Jali Basappa V. Heerada
Rudrappa, AIR 1939 Mad 167 and also of the calcutta High Court in-the
case of Protap Chandra v. Saratchandra, AIR 1921 Cal 101 the same
view was propounded. Thus considering various judgments of Madras High
Court, Allahabad High Court, Andhra Pradesh High Court, Calcutta High
Court, Full Bench judgment of Mysore High Court in the case of Gangappa
(supra) accepted those views dissenting from the full Bench view: of the
Travancore Cochin High Court and the Madras High Court in the case of
Tavvala Veeraswami (supra). The Judges of this court have reached on the
same conclusion applying the different analogy. Mr. Tare, J relying upon the
principle of stare decisis approved the views of various High Courts as réferred
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herein above and Mr. Newaskar, J held that the view taken by the Madras
High Court in the case of Balaraju Chettiar (supra) and the Mysore High
-Court in the case of Gangappa (supra) is the only logical view on the question
under consideration. Thereafter, the Single Bench of the Allahabad High Court
has followed the same view in the case of Nagar Mahapalika Vs. Ved Prakash
(supra) and the Gauhati High Court in the case of Smt Usha Rani Banik
{(supra) has also propounded the same view on the issue holding that the order
of temporary injunction would be operative only till disposal of the suit, it
ceases its effect on dismissal of suit, the order of remand passed in appeal
would not be automatic revival of injunction order. Rule 1 of Order 39 of
CPC makes it clear that the temporary injunction may be granted in any suit
where the facts have been proved by the affidavit or otherwise showing that
_the property in dispute is being wasted or alienated by the defendant or by
-any party. It has further been clarified that the court-may pass an order
restraining such party until disposal of the 'suit' or until further orders. Thus
Rule 2 of Order 39 deals with the injunction to restrain repetition or continuance
of breach in a suit. In view of the language of Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 of CPC,
the court may pass an order until further orders as it things fit or until the
disposal of the suit. Thus, the word 'suit' enumerated in Rule 1 and 2 of Order
39 of CPC would not be read as 'appeal’ for grant of injunction, until
specifically directed. Thus after dismissal of suit the appellate court is required
to pass an order of injunction applying the same principle. After remand by
appellate court, order of revival of injunction must be passed during the
pendency of suit otherwise on dismissal of suit the said order ceases its effect.

9. In view of the foregoing discussion, this Court is bound by the view
taken by the Division Bench in the case of Madanlal Chhotelal (supra) and
in full agreement to the reasoning given by the Full bench of Mysore High
Court in the case of Gangappa (supra) and the Full bench judgment of the
Allahabad High Court in the case of Abdul Hamid (supra) and in my opinion
if an order of temporary injunction is passed in civil suit, it ceases its effect on
dismissal of the suit. On filing an appeal and on allowing the same by setting
aside the said order of dismissal of the suit by an order of remand the effect of
order of injunction would not automatically revive. The appellate court on
remand ought to have passed the order of revival of temporary injunction
during the pendency of a suit. If the order of revival has not been passed, on

the allegation of demolition of the boundary wall for the breach of injunction, °

" punishment ca.nnot__be directed as per the language of Order 39 Rule 1 and 2

&
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of CPC, however such language is not required to be used in a directory
manner particularly in a case of breach of injunction when the consequence is
of punishment of individual persons by sending them into the custody or for
civil prison.

10. Inview of the aforesaid legal position, the facts of the present case
are required to be analyzed. The suit filed by respondent was instituted on
6.1.1992, which was dismissed refusing leave to entertain the suit for granting
interim injunction. On filing revision, the revisional court in the first round
granted injunction on 6.1.1992 in Civil Revision No. 3/1992 restraining the
appellants to not to demolish the boundary wall. The said revision was disposed
of vide order dated 29.1.1992 with a liberty to the respondent to institute a
regular suit in the competent civil court dlrectmg that the interlocutory order
shall continue till the decision on the application for temporary injunction in
the suit. Thereafter, a Regular Civil Suit No. 9-A/92 was filed which was
dismissed by-allowing the application under Order 7 Rule 11 of CPC vide
order dated 11.2.1992 and it was obsefved that as the suit itselfis dismissed,
however the order on the application for temporary injunction is not necessary.
On filing an appeal, it was allowed as per order dated 25.3.1992 and the
Trial Court was directed to decide the suit afresh in accordance with law.'
While passing the said order of remand, the appellate court has not passed
any order of revival of the injunction which was ceased on dismissal of civil
suit, Admittedly, on the application for temporary injunction the trial Court
granted injunction on 14,10.1998 while breach of injunction by demolition of
boundary wall as alleged on 10.6.1997 during such period the appellate court
or trial court has not passed any order for revival of the injunction order of its
continuation. Thus the Trial Court was not justified to record the finding of
breach of injunction for an act committed on 10.6.1997, however the finding
of guilt for the said breach and to direct the punishment of appellants No.2 to

5 is wholly unsustainable in Jaw . ' :

11.  Inviewofthe foregoing discussions, the appeal filed by the appellants
is hereby allowed. The order dated 8.9.2006 passed by IV Additional District
Judge, Rewa in MJC No.25/97 holding the appellants No.2 to 5 guilty and to
direct to undergo the sentence, is hereby set aside. In the facts and
circumstances of the case, the parties are directed to bear their own costs

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. JusnceAlokAradhe

S A No. 278/1995 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 November, 2011

KULWANT KAUR (SMT.) & an. ....Appellants
Vs, | -
SUKHRAJE &ors. . ..-Respondents

, Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 4 - Pleadings —
"Suit for cancellation of Sale deed — Where it is pleaded by the plaintiff

" that sale deed was executed by way of security for the loan and was
' nominal in nature and was not intended to be acted upon, the Courts
. below have not committed any error in decreeing the suit filed by the
. plaintiff. : . _ . -(Para9)
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1 SCC 47, (2010) 4 SCC 518, AIR 1977 SC 1158, (2007) 5 SCC 614, .

- AIR 1976 SC 461, (1999) 6 SCC 337, AIR 1987 SC 1242, (2005) 12
: SCC 121, (2011) 7 SCC 639, -

Ravish Agrawal with Abhishek Singh, for the appellants
R.P. Agrawal with Anuj Agrawal, for the respondents.

ORDER

i " ALOK ARADHE, J. :- This appeal has been preferred by the defendants
- “'who have lost in both the courts. This Court vide order dated 08.8.1995

while adm1ttmg the appeal had framed the followmg substantial questlon of
law-

’ “Whéther in absence of plea that the sale Ex.D.1 dated -
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25.1.1983 was executed as a collateral security for repayment
of loan raised earlier by the plaintiff a decree for cancellation
of sale-deed on such a finding could be passed‘7”

- 2. The facts, giving risé to filing the appeal, briefly stated are that the
original plaintiff Late Kripal Verma filed the suit on the ground that the original .
-plaintiff was the owner of the suit house. The original plaintiff and-defendant
No.2 were neighbours and friends. The original plaintiff used to take loan
from defendant No.2 from time to time. On 25.1.1983 the defendant No.2 .
informed the Original Plaintiff that he has to repay a sum of Rs.5000/- to
defendant No.2 on account of loan taken by him and he should acknowledge
the same in writing. The plaintiff agreed to acknowledge the debt. It was
further averred that defendant No.2 gotthe original plaintiff drunk and obtamed
his signature on certain stamp papers, in the state of intoxication. However, in
pursuance of alleged sale deed possession of the house was never delivered .
to defendants and the plaintiff continues to be in possession of the suit house.
Later on, original plaintiff learnt that infact by misrepresentation the defendant
No.2 got the sale-deed executed in respect of suit house from him. on
25.1. 1983 in favour of his wife, namely, defendant No.1 which does not
convey any title. Accordingly, the relief of cancellation of the sale deed dated
25.1.1983 as well as permanent injunction was sought restraining defendants .
from interfering with his possession over the suit house. -

3. ' The defendants filed the written statement in which, inter alia, it was
pleaded that there was no loan transaction between the original plaintiff and
the defendants. The plaintiff after obtaining the sale consideration of Rs.5,000/
- had executed the sale deed infavour of the defendant No.1. The defendants
are in possession of the suit house. However, the plaintiff was permitted to
occupy the suit house as tenant as he had no alternative accommodatlon It
was further pleaded that the plaintiff had paid the rent upto June; 1983.
Thereafter he has stopped paying rent. An objection with regard to valuation
_ of the relief claimed in the suit was also taken on behalf of the defendants. .

4, The trial Court after recording the evidence of the parties, by judgment
and decree dated 07.10.1988 decreed the suit preferred by the plaintiff. The
trial Court on the basis of the meticulous appreciation of evidence on record,
inter alia, held that the relationship of landlord and tenant does not exist
between the parties to the suit. It was further held that the sale déed was
executed as a security for loan taken by the original plaintiff which was nominal

%
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and was not intended to be acted upon. Being aggrieved by the aforesaid
judgment and decree, the defendants preferred an appeal. The appellate Court
vide judgment and decree dated 05.1.1995 has affirmed the findings recorded ‘
by the trial Court,

5. Mr.Ravish Agrawal, learned senior counset for the appellants submitted
that there is no plea in the plaint that the sale in question is nominal and the
sale deed was executed to secure the loan which was allegedly advanced to
the original plaintiff. In the absence of any plea in this regard the courts below
have committed an error of law in decreeing the suit of the plaintiff. It was
further submitted that the trial Court did not frame any issue with regard to
character of the document in question, namely, the sale deed dated 25.1.1983,
Exhibit-D-1 being nominal. It was also submitted by learned senior counsel
that the judgment and decree passed by the trial Court as well as the appellate
Court are patently erroneous and illegal.

6.  Onthe other hand, Shri R.P.Agrawal, learned senior counsel forthe

respondents while drawing attention of this Court to the averments made in
paragraphs 3 to 13 of the plaint submitted that if the averments made in the
plaint are read as a whole, it is apparent that the plaintiff had taken loan from
the defendants from time to time and with a view to secure the loan he had
executed the document in question. It was further submitted that the plaintiff
. had executed the document in question as he wanted to acknowledge the
debt in writing however, there was misrepresentation on behalf of the
defendants with regard to nature of the document in question. Learned senior
counsel for the respondent while referring to finding of the trial Court as well
as the appellate Court submitted that the ﬁndmgs recorded by the trial Court
as well as the appellate Court are based on meticulous appreciation of evidence
on record. In support of his submissions learned senior counsel for respondent
has placed reliance on the decisions in the cases of Tyagaraja Mudaliyar
and another vs. Vedathanni, AIR 1936 PC 70 and Bundabai vs. Rama,
(1980) 1 MPWN 38, :

7. I have considered the submissions made on both sides. The object of
the pleadings is generally to see that each side is made aware to the questions
in issue in order to enable them to bring forward their proper defence. The
object relating to pleadings in civil cases are intended to give the intimation to
each side of the case of other, so that it may meet the case set up by the other
side and to enable the Court to determine what is real issue between the
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parties: [See Ganesh Trading Company vs. Moji Ram, AIR 1978 SC 484,
Virendra Kashinath Ravat and another vs. VnayakN Joshi and others,
" (1999) 1 SCC 47 and State of Maharashtra vs. Hindustan Construction

Company Limited, 2010) 4 SCC 518]. The pleadings have to be interpreted

not with formalistic rigor but with latitude or awareness of low literacy of

poor people. [See: Manjushri Vs. B.L.Gupta, AIR 1977 SC 1158 and

Hardesh Ores (P) Ltd. vs. Hede and Company, (2007) 5 SCC 614]. Even

if the pleadings are loosely drafted the Court should not scrutinize the plead-

ings with such meticulous care so as to result in genuine claim being defeated
on trivial grounds. [See: Madan Vs. Mamraj, AIR 1976 SC 461]. The Court
has to look into the pleadings with a view to do essential justice in the case
and to read the pleadings as a whole to ascertain its true import. The substance '
of the pleadings has to be seen and the intention of the parties is to be gathered
primarily from the tenor and the terms of the pleadings taken as a whole. In

Syed Dastagir vs. T.R.Gopalakrishna Setty,(1999) 6 SCC 337 it has been

held by the Apex Court in construing a plea in any pleading courts must keep

inmind that a plea is not an expression of art and science but an expression
through words to place fact and law of one’s case for arelief. To gather true
spirit behind a plea it should be read as a whole. In Ram Sarup Gupta

(dead) by L.Rs. vs. Bishnu Narain Inter. College and others, AIR 1987

SC 1242 it has been that whenever the question about lack of pleading is

raised the enquiry should not be so much about the form of pleadings, instead

the Court must find out whether in substance the parties knew the case and
the issues upon which they went to trial. Once it is found that inspite of
deficiency in the pleadings parties knew the case and they proceed to trial on
those issues by producing evidence, in that event it would notbe opentoa

. party to raise the question of absence of pleadings in appeal. [See also: Ram
Bhual vs. Ambika Singh, (2005) 12 SCC 121 and State of Madhya Pradesh
vs. Narmada Bachao Andolan and another, (2011) 7 SCC 639]

8. In order to answer the substantial question of law framed by this Court, :
the averments made in the plaint are required to be carefully scrutinized in the
context of well settled legal position with regard to pleadings. In paragraph 3
of the plaint, the plaintiff has stated that he and defendant No.2 are neighbors

. and friends. The plaintiff from time to time used to take loan from defendant
No.2. In paragraph 4 of the plaint the plaintiff has stated that he is low paid
‘employee and only knows to put his signature. In paragraph 5 of the plaint it °
is averred that on 25.1.1983 the defendant No.2 informed him that plaintiff
has to pay a sum of Rs.5000/- on account of loan taken by him and, therefore,
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. he should acknowledge the debt in writing. Thereupon, the plaintiff agreed to
acknowlcdge the debt in writing on stamp paper. In paragraph 6 of the plaint
itis stated that on 25.1.1983 the defendant No.2 took him to liquor shop and
got him drunk. In paragraph 7 of the plaint it is pleaded that defendant No.2
and another person took the plaintiff to the Court where he was made to sign
on certain blank stamp papers. It is also averred that contents of the document
were not read over to him and the plaintiff was only informed that his signatures
have been obtained on the stamp papers with regard to the loan taken by him.

In paragraph 8 the plaintiff has stated that he was thereafter taken to the office
of Sub Registrar where the query was put to him only about receipt of
- Rs.5,000/-. Since the plaintiff was in state of i intoxication, therefore, he
answered the query in the affirmative. In paragraph 9 the plaintiffhas stated
 that he is in possession of the suit house as the owner. On 18.5.1985 when
the plaintiff stored material for construction of the boundary wall, the defendant
No.2 prevented the plaintiff from raising construction and informed the plaintiff
. that he has already purchased the suit house. In paragraph 12 of the plaint it is
- stated that thereupon the plaintiff made enquiries and learnt that document

-, No.2 has got the sale deed executed in favour of defendant No.1 in lieu of _
.. . loan taken by the plaintiff by playing fraud. It is further stated in paragraph 12

"~ ofthe plaint that, in fact, the plaintiff has never sold his house to the defendants
:' and defendant No.1, in fact, never visited the office of Sub Registrar. In

- paragraph 14 of the plaint it is pleaded that the plaintiff is in possession of the
suit house and the possession of the same was never delivered to the defendants

' No.1 & 2. The original sale deed is in possession of the plaintiff and the value

: .. of the suit house is more than rupees thirty-thirty five thousand.

9. J. If the averments made in paragraphs 3 to 14 of the plaint are read in
entlrety it is apparent that, as per the case setforth in the plaint, the plaintiff
was not only kept under misrepresentation as to character of the document
but as well as to its contents. The sum and substance of the pleadings of the
plaintiff is that the plaintiff has not sold the suit house to defendants, However,
- bykeeping him in dark about the nature of document as well as its contents,
the sale-deed was got executed and the plaintiff was made to understand that
he is acknowledging his liability to pay the debt. The sale-deed was not acted
upon as the plaintiff continued to be in possession. Thus, the sale-deed was
nominal and was not intended to be acted upon. The parties knew the case
"and they proceeded to trial by producing the evidence. It is pertinent to mention
that in the first appeal the plea with re gard to deficiency in the pleadings was
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not taken by the defendants: For the aforementioned reasons it is held thatit. -
. is pleaded by the plaintiff that sale deed was executed by way of security for - .
the loan and was nominal in nature and was not intended to be acted upon. - '
Therefore, the Courts below have not cominitted any error in decreeing the -
suit filed by the plaintiff. The substantial question of law1s answered accordingly.

10. . In the result, the appeal fails and is hereby dlsmlssed with costs.

Appeal dismissed

I.L.R.[2_012]M.P. 151 -
APPELLATE CIVIL :
Before Mr. Justice K.K, Trivedi

. S.A. No. 242/1995 (Jabalpur) decided on 17 Noveml;'er",y 2011 -

LILAWATI (DECEASED) THROUGH LR’s ..Appellant
Vs. _ C ' S
_ VISHRAM & ors: o S Respondents

A..  Limitation Act (36 of 1 963) — Article 65 Smt for
possession — When may be  found beyond limitation — Plaintiff falled to . j
prove that suit Iand was mortgaged by her with the defendant and the ;
finding of trial Court was not challenged by herin FlrstAppellate Court o
— Plaintiff could not point out from which date the suit land was taken' |
in possession by defendant - Defendant claimed that hei 1s in possession !
of the suit land right from 1961-62 on basis of unregistered sale deed !
_ (Ex. D/4)—Held —- Finding of First Appellate Court that suit was barred
by limitation and that no decree of possession could be granted, donot - .
find any error— —Appeal dismissed. - - . (Para9,11) .
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B Regcstrattan Act (I 6 of 1 908), Section 49 - Unregtstered
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sale deed — Unregistered document not relied for settlement of a claim,
of the defendant/respondent by the lower appellate Court — There was
no question of making application of the bar of Section49.  (Para 9)
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Cases referred: ‘
2009 (4) MPLJ 315, 2010(1) MPHT 265, 2009 (1) MPLJ 176.

L.S. Gaharwar, for the appellant.
© Imtiaz Hussain, for the respondents,

JUDGMENT

K.K. TRIVEDI, J. :- This Second Appeal under Section 100 of the
Code of Civil Procedure is by plaintiff against the reversing judgment and
decree passed by the First Appellate Court. The appellant/plaintiff filed a suit
for possession of land bearing Khasra No. 95 Area 2.14 Dismil of village
Sonaura, Tehsil Rampur Baghelan District Satna against the respondents
alleging that in fact the aforesaid land was mortgaged with the respondent
No.1 and when the appellant tried to get the said mortgage redeemed, the
respondents refused to deliver the possession therefore, the suit was required
to be filed. It was contended that the respondents have started saying that the
suit Jand was purchased and, therefore, there was no requirement of returning
the possession after redemption of mortgage. It was further alleged that the
- respondent No.1 was trying to grab the land of the appellant therefore, suit
was required to be filed.

2. The respondents/defendants contested the suit categorically contending
that the suit land was in fact given in partition and the said land was purchased
by respondent No.1 by un-registered sale deed foran amount of Rs.225/-.

From the date of purchase the respondent No.1 was continuously in possession
of the said suit land and was cultivating the same. There was no question of
any acquisition of right by inheritance in favour of the appellant/plaintiff as the
suit land was already sold by the mother of the original appellant/plaintiff and
this fact was well within the knowledge of the appellant. Since the suit land
was purchased from the member of the family mutation of the land was not *
got done in the revenue papers. When the emergency was enforced in the
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_ country and instructions were issued by the Revenue Authontles, the respondent
' No.1 got his name mutated over the land in suit in the revenue records. It was

“categorically denied that the suit land was ever mortgaged with the respondent
No. 1. A plea of adverse possession was also raised.

3. .  Thetrial Court after framing of the issues recorded the evidence of
the parties. The definite finding was given by the learned trial Court with re-
spect to the plea of mortgage raised by the appellant as issue No.2 was spe-
cifically framed in the following manner :-

“2(a) Whether the plaintiff ‘has mortgaged the suit land with
respondent No.1 ?

(b) Whether the plaintiff is entitled to get the said mortgage
redeemed?”

4. The trial Court after recording the evidence categorically held that
this issue was not proved by the appellant/plaintiff. Admittedly no appeal was
filed against such finding of the learned trial Court by the appellant/plaintiff.
Such a finding is therefore final and binding on the appellant and she could not
travel beyond the same.

5. If the plea of mortgage raised by the appellant/plaintiff was not proved,
whether the suit for simplicitor possession was well within time or not, this
particular aspect was not examined by the trial Court. The appellant/plaintiff
has never disputed that the suit land was transferred by an un-registered sale
deed dated 09.03.1962 (Exhb. D-4). Though the same was not a registered
document but this has been used only for the purposes of demonstrating as to
how the respondent No.1 came in possession of the land in suit. This particular
aspect was also not disputed by the appellant/plaintiffthat the suit land was in
possession of the respondent No.1. However, no definite date could be given
by the appellant in her entire plaint, indicating as to how and when the appellant
was dispossessed from the land. Her plea was only this much that the land
was mortgaged with the respondent No.1 in the year 1973-74 and this
particular fact was not found proved by the trial Court. According to plaintiff,
respondents were in possession of the said land for a long time which according
to her were in fact ‘fisovarsh’. This itself is enough to demonstrate that in
fact deliberately the appellant/plaintiff has not given definite date on which the
respondent No.1 had taken possession of the suit land. Admittedly, the suit
was filed on 01.11.1980. If the plea that the suit land was purchased by
respondent No.1 is to be accepted then the possession of respondent No.1 -

7
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on the suit land would be right from the year 1962. The law of limitation
prescribes limitation for filing of suit for possession which is 12 years. From
1962 till 1980, no litigation was brought by the appellant/plaintiff and therefore,
the suit as filed by the appellant was barred by limitation. This particular aspect
was not examined by the trial Court and the suit for possession was decreed
in favour of the appellant, though a categorical finding was given that the suit
land was not mortgage by the appellant with the respondent No.1. '

6. Finding recorded by the trial Court in paragraph 20 and 21 in its
judgment categorically show that marshalling of evidence of the appellant/
plaintiff was rightly done. It was found that the appellant/plaintiff was though
stating to have best evidence available but failed to produce such evidence in
proof of the fact that the land in suit was ever mortgaged by her with the
respondent No.1. As has been mentioned hereinabove, the appellant/plaintiff
has not challenged such findings of the trial Court in the appeal and as such it
is not open to examine the validity of such ﬁndmgs ofthe trial Court.

7. As the suit was partially decreed by the trial Court in favour of the

~ appellant/plaintiff only with respect to the possession of the suit land, a regular

First Appeal was filed by the respondent No.1 before the lower Appellate
Court, Learned lower Appellate Court examined the entire evidence of the
patties and reached to the definite conclusion that the learned trial Court erred
in decreeing the suit in favour of the appellant/plaintiff for grant of possession
when the claim relating to mortgage of the suit land made by the appellant/
plaintiff was not found proved. The learned lower Appellate Court went to
examine as to whether the suit land was taken in possession by the respondents
/defendants in the year 1974-75 or prior to that. The lower appellate Court
reached to the conclusion that as per the document available on record it was

" to be held that the respondent No. 1 was put in possession of suit land some

time in the year 1961-62 and since the suit was filed in the year 1980 that is
after a period of 12 years, the suit itself was barred by limitation. Learned
lower Court thus reached to the conclusion that the finding recorded by the
learned Civil Court with respect to the issues No. 1,5,7 and 8 were not correct
and the said findings were set aside.

8. Learned counsel for the appellant/plaintiff has contended that the entire
findings have been given by the learned lower Appellate Court only on the
basis of one un-registered document (Exb.D-4) which is said to be a sale
deed for the suit land executed by the mother of the appellant. It is contended

by the learned counsel for the appellant that as per the provisions of Section



I.L.R.[2012]M.P. Lilawati (Deceased) Vs Vishram 155 .

17 of the Indian Registration Act, 1908, a document of transfer could not
have been treated to be valid document of transfer unless it is registered. It is

contended that the value of the suit property was said to be Rs.225/- on the

date of sale which is more than Rs.100/- and, therefore, the registration of a

document was necessary. It is further contended by the learned counsel for

the appellant that as per Section 49 of the Registration Act, such a document

could not have been read in evidence at all. Learned counsel for the appellant
has put his reliance heavily on a decision rendered by the Apex Court in the
case of Surqj Lamp and Industries Private Limited through Directors Vs.
State of Haryana and another 2009 (4) MPLJ 315. Learned counsel for -
the appellant has contended that in view of the specific law laid down by the
Apex Court in paragraph 8 of the report, the registration of such a document
of transfer was must.

9. True it is that registration of a document was necessary. However
only a defence plea was raised by defendant No. 1 that the land in suit was
- purchased by him and it was not mortgage by appellant/plaintiff as claimed.
He was not asking for any other thing except indicating that he was in
possession of the land in suit from the date the said document was executed.
Thus, if the appellant was of the view that such a document was not to be
accepted at all or that such was not a valid dociment, it was necessary for the
appellant to make amendment in the plaint and challenge the validity of such
document. This was not done. On the other hand, the appellant utterly failed
to prove the fact with respect to the mortgage of the suit land. The learned
lower Appellate Court has considered only one aspect whether the suit filed
by the appellant was within limitation, for the purposes of grant of decree of
possession, as was granted by the trial Court or whether the suit was liable to
be dismissed on this count. Factum of delivery of possession to the respondent
No.1 was not categorically proved by the appellant/plaintiff. On the other,
hand, the respondent No.1 firstly claimed that he took possession of the land
in suit when the un-registered sale deed (Exhibit D-4) was executed in his
favour and there was no question of any mortgage of the suit land by the
appellant/plaintiff with the respondent No. 1. In alternate, the respondent No.1
claimed that since he is in possession of the suit land right from tlie year 1961-
62, this fact was well within the knowledge of appellant/plaintiff and more
than 12 years of period has expired therefore, he has perfected his title over-
the land in suit by adverse possession. This particular aspect was examined
by the learned lower Appellate Court and it has been said that, if the appellant
was not in possession of the suit land as she herself was asking for decree of
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possession of the suit land, she could not point out from which date the land in
suit was taken in possession by the respondent No.1, it is to be inferred on
the basis of evidence of the parties that the respondent No.1 was in possession
of the land from the date when he alleges that the land was purchased by him
through Exhibit D-4. That being so, in the opinion of this Court un-registered
document Exhibit D-4 was not relied for settlement of a claim of the respondent
No.1 by the lower Appellate Court. Therefore, there was no question of
making application of the bar of Section 49 of the Registration Act for reaching
to this particular finding with respect to the possession of the suit land by
respondent No.1. The law laid down by the Apex Court as relied by the
learned counsel for the appellant does not help the appellant.

10.  Learned counsel for the appellant has further relied on the decision of
this Court in the case of Natthu Khan Vs. Komal and others 2010 (1) MPHT
265. It is contended that the Court below was required to decide the admis-
sibility of the document (Exhibit D-4) in terms of the provisions of Section 17
and 49 of the Registration Act and then only to record any finding. As has
been discussed hereinabove the Courts below were not relying on such a
document to grant any benefit to respondent No.1 on the strength of sucha
document. Therefore, it would not require to conduct an enquiry whether the
registration of such a document was necessary or not and whether such a
document was admissible in evidence or not.? The next contention ef the
learned counsel for the appellant is that unless the duty is paid on sucha
instrument it is not to be admitted in the evidence. For the said purposes the
learned counsel for the appellant has relied upon the decision of this Court in
the case of Narbada Prasad Agrawal Vs. Tarun Bhawasar 2009 (1) MPLJ
176. In view of the aforesaid discussion, the law laid down by this Court as
relied by the learned counsel for the appellant is not helpful to him.

11.  The learned Lower Appellate Court has very categorically examined
the statement of witnesses and has reached to the definite finding that the suit
of the appellant was barred by limitation and that no decree of possession
could have been granted to the appellant. In view of the specific finding reached
by the learned Lower Appellate Court, this Court do not find any errorin .
appreciation of the evidence of the parties and provisions of law by the learned
Lower Appellate Court. Resultantly, the appeal fails and is hereby dismissed
but with no order as to costs.

Appeal dismissed
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LL.R.[2012]M.P. 157
APPELLATE CIVIL
- Before Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi

S.A. No. 1574/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 November, 2011

SALIKRAM & ors. : _ ' ...Appellants
" Vs, . S .
KESHAV&ors. | —— - - ...Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 41, Rule 3-A, Limitation
Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 — Condonation of delay in filing appeal —
Application onr ground that the appellants were rustic village people -
- . and were having no knowledge of the fate of the civil suit in which they
were the defendants — It was contended in the application that the
appellant could know about the passing of the judgment and decree in
the civil suit only when the proceedings were initiated against them in
. the Revenue Court — Appellate Court has not accepted such a plea of
the appellants on the ground that they were being represented by the
Counsel and if they have not verified the fact about the suit from their
counsel, it could not be treated to be sufficient explanation of delay —
Held - Appeal should not be dismissed merely on technical ground of:
delay —In a tribal District, a lement view was possible.

(Paras 1, 2&6)
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Case referred:

(2009) 9 SCC 94.

Ashok Chakraworty, for the appellants.

Pradeep Naveriya, for the respondents No. 1 & 2.
Mukesh Tiwari, P.L. for the respondent No.3/State.

JUDGMENT

K.K. TrivED], J. :- This appeal under Section 100 of the Code of
Civil Procedure has been filed against the order dated 01.03.2008 passed in
First Appeal No.1/2007. The said appeal has been dismissed by the impugned
order holding that the same was barred by limitation. The appellants in fact
filed the first appeal against the judgment and decree dated 14.08.2006 passed

in Civil Suit No.380-A/2004 passed by the Civil Judge, Class-II, Sausar, _ ;

District Chhindwara, before the Il Additional District Judge, Chhindwara. Since
the appeal was barred by limitation, an application under Section 5 of the
Limitation Act was also filed for condoning the delay. It was contended in the
application that the appellants were rustic village people and were having no
knowledge of the fate of the civil suit in which they were the defendants. It
was conténded in the application that the appellants could know about the
passing of the judgment and decree in the civil suit only when the proceedings
were initiated against them in the Revenue Court. Thereafter, on verification
of the facts when they came to know that civil suit has already been decreed
against them, they obtained certified copy and filed the first appeal

expeditiously.

2. The lower Appellate Court has not accepted such a plea of the
"appellants only on the ground that they were being represented by the Counsel
and if they have not verified the fact about the suit from their counsel, it could
not be treated to be sufficient explanation of delay. It was further held that
there was nothing produced to indicate that the appellants could know about
the passing of impugned judgment and decree in the civil suit only when the
proceedings under Section 110 of the M.P. Land Revenue Code were initiated
against them. The lower Appellate Court has recorded the fact that the
information with respect to passing of the impugned judgment and decree
came to the notice of the appellants on 08.11.2008 on which date they appeared
before the Tahsildar where proceedings were initiated against them by the
respondents. Even after this, immediately no action was taken for obtaining
certified copy, which was ready on 08.12.2006 but was received only on
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22.12.2006. It is also recorded by the lower Appellate Court that the appeal
was filed on 04.01.2007 and, therefore, the Court below was of the opinion
that there was no sufficient bonafide reason mentioned for the delay caused in
filing the appeal. :

3. It is contended by the leamed Counsel for the appellants that since .
the appellants were residing in different villages, they were not informed by
their Counsel about obtaining of certified copy of the impugned judgment and
decree and this fact has been categorically mentioned in the application so
filed before the Court below. It is contended that the lower Appellate Court
should have taken a lenient view and instead of dismissing the appeal as barred
by limitation, the first appeal of the appellants should have been heard and
decided on merits. Learned Counsel for the appellants has relied on the case
of State of Bihar vs. Kameshwar Prasad Singh, (2009) 9 SCC 94 and has
contended that as per the law laid-down by the Apex Court, a lenient view
should have been taken by the learned lower Appellate Court.

4. Per contra it is contended by the learned Counsel for the respondents
No.1 and 2 that the appellants were grossly negligent in prosecuting their
claim. They have not taken any proper care to attend the case when the trial
was going on. Itis further contended by the leamed Counsel for the respondents
No.1 and 2 that the learned lower Appellate Court has not committed any .
error in law in'rej ectmg the application of the appellants under Section 5 of
the Limitation Act and consequently dismissing the first appeal as barred by
limitation. ‘

-5, Learned Counsel for the respondent No.3/State has also supported
the order passed by the Court bclow

6. . Inthe considered 0p1mon of this Cour:, looking to the circumstances
as are available in a tribal district, a lenient view was possible. Even otherwise
the first appeals are to be filed as of right provided under the Code of Civil
Procedure and merely on technical ground of delay, the appeal should not
have been dismissed. The law has been well explained by the Apex Court in
the case of Kameshwar Prasad Singh (supra) where it has been said that if
some cause is shown for the delay, the Court should accept the same and
merely because of delay or on technicalities the appeal should not be dismissed.

7. In view of the aforesaid, this appeal is allowed. The ilnpugnéd order
is set aside. The case is remitted back to the lower Appellate Court witha
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direction to treat the first appeal of the appellants as within limitation and to
hear and decide the same, preferably within a period of 6 months. Parties are
since represented before this Court, they are directed to remain present before
the lower Appellate Court on 12 December, 2011 along with a certified
copy of the order passed today.

8. The Registry is directed to send back the records of the Court below
immediately to the lower Appellate Court for the purposes of hearing of the
first appeal.

9. With the aforesaid, the appeal is allowed and finally disposed of.
Appeal allowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 160
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe

S.A. No. 829/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 December, 2011

SHAKUNTALA TIWARI (SMT.) ...Appellant
Vs. ' '
MOHAMMAD RAMJAN ...Respondent

A. Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 54 — Sale — Plea of
want of consideration —Recital contained in the registered sale deed
dated 02.03.1987 shows the receipt of consideration as well as delivery
of possession — The sale deed shows that the sale is complete — Merely
because the sale price is not paid, the sale deed car not be held io be
invalid — At the most, if the seller whe has sold the property and has
not received the sale consideration, may sue for recovery of the sale
consideration. (Para 9)
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— B.  Registered sale deed — Presumption as to — Registered sale deed
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has been executed by defendant No. 2 in favour of defendant No. 1,
which is prnma-facle valid and, therefore, a presumption arises with
regard to its genuineness — Even assuming that the sale deed was
executed without payment of any consideration and the defendant No.

2 was not in a fit physical and mental condition at the time of execution
of the sale deed, the same would be binding on defendant No. 2 and
would be voidable document — Since defendant No. 2 has not challenged
the same, it would bind her and it would be invalid only to the extent of
the share of the plaintiff. ' (Para9).
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Cases referred
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MPLJ 500, 2001(1) MPLJ 248, AIR 1971 SC 1028, AIR 1982 SC 84,
(1993) 4 SCC 38, ILR (2008) MP 3183, 2009(4) MPLJ 35,2007 (2) MPHT
145, (2011) 6 SCC 555, (2009) 7 SCC 444, (1999) 3 SCC 573, (2006) 5
SCC 353.

" Amresh Mishra, for the appellant.
' vitulanand Awasthy, for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

ALOK ARADEE, J :- This appeal has been preferred by the plamtlﬁ‘
This Court vidé order dated 13.4.1998 while admitting the ‘appeal had
formulated the following sub.:antial questions of law:- .

“A. © Whether the lower appellate Court was right in*
reversing the judgment and decree of the trial Courtonthe
ground-that the appellant was not entitled to a decree of entire
house even though the sale deed was found to be totally illegal
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- and without consideration ?

B. Whether the joint decree between the appellant and
the respondent No.2 could be granted ?

2. Facts giving rise to filing of the appeal briefly stated are that the plaintiff
* filed a suit inter-alia on the ground that suit house was constructed by her
father late Madan Mohan approximately thirty years ago. Admittedly, the
defendant No.2 is the mother of the plaintiff. It was pleaded in the plaint that
plaintiff and defendant No.2 have equal share in the suit house, therefore,

defendant No.2 alone had no authority to alienate the suit house. It was also’

pleaded that defendant No.2 was not in a fit mental condition after the death
of her husband and son and defendant No. 1 taking advantage of the situation,
got the sale deed executed in his favour on 2.3.1987 without payment of any
consideration. Since the sale consideration was not paid, a mortgage deed
on the same day Was executed in favour of defendant No.2. It was also pleaded
that on 1.3.1987, the defendant No.1 forcibly took possession of the part of
the suit house and on 5.5.1987 threatened the plaintiff with dispossession.
Accordingly, the plaintiff filed the suit seeking the relief of declaration that she
is owner of the suit house and the sale deed dated 2.3.1987 executed by
defendant No.2 in favour of defendant No.1 is null and void. The plaintiff
* sought adecree for possession.as well as permanent injunction restraining the
defendant No.1 from interfering with her possession over the suit house. -

3. The defendant No.1 filed the written statement in which inter-alia it
was pleaded that defendant No.2 was the owner of the suit house and she
had the authority to sell the suit house. The defendani No.2 was in a fit
physical and mental condition to execute the sale deed. The sale deed had
been executed by her voluntarily on receipt of consideration. It was also
pleaded that defendant No.2 placed defendant No.1 in possession of part of
the suit house and assured him that possession of the remaining portion shall
also be handed over to him. The defendant No.2 did not file any written
statement and was proceeded ex-parte.

4. The trial Court vide judgment and decree dated 29.3.1993 decreed
the suit preferred by the plaintiff. The trial Court on the basis of documentary
evidence on record namely Ex.P/2, P/3 and D/1 as well as the statement of
defendant’s witness namely Gulam Hussain DW-4 held that suit house was-
constructed by father of the plaintiff. It was further held that plaintiff and

fae
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defendant No.2 are the co-owners and were in possession of the suit house
being the legal representatives of late Madan Mohan. The trial Court on the
 basis of the statement of plaintiff namely PW-1 as well as Krishna Kumar
PW-2 and Praveen Kumar PW-3 held that sale consideration was not paid to
defendant No.2 as witnesses to the sale deed have stated in their statement
that the sale consideration was not paid to the defendant No.2. The trial Court
further held that there is inconsistency and contradiction in the statements of
DW-1 Mohd. Ramjan, DW-2 Ansarul Hag, DW-3 Ramesh Prasad, DW-4
Gulam Hussain and DW-5 Babu with regard to payment of sale consideration.
It was also held by the trial Court that defendant No.1 executed the mortgage
deed Ex.P/3 on the same day in favour of defendant No.2 as the sale
consideration was not paid to her. It was further held by the trial Court that
defendant No.1 has not been able to prove that the suit house was sold for
legal necessity. It was also held that defendant No.2’s son had died on
4.1.1987 and immediately thereafter, the sale deed dated 2.3.1987 was
executed. Accordingly, it was held that defendant No.2 was not in a fit mental
condition to execute the sale deed. Accordingly the suit was decreed.

5 Being aggrieved by the aforesaid decree, the deferidant No.1 preferred
an appeal. The appellate Court vide judgment and decree 9.9.1996 modified
the decree passed by the trial Couit. The appellate Court held that since the -
plaintiff was not a party to the sale deed dated 2.3.1987, therefore, she can -
challenge the sale to the extent of her share only: The defendant No.2 who
had executed the sale deed has not challenged the sale deed. Accordingly, it
was held that sale deed is valid to the extent of share of defendant No.2. It
was further held that since the sale deed executed in favour of defendant
No.1 is valid to the extent of share of defendant No.2, therefore, it cannot be
said that defendant No.1 is in unauthorised possession of the suit house.
Accordingly, the decree passed by the trial Court was modified and the sale
deed was declared void to the extent of plaintiff’s share in the suit house. The
appellate Court set aside the decree of the trial Court in so far as it granted
the decree for possession and permanent injunction in favour of plaintiff.

6. * Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the Courts below
have found that the sale deed was executed without any consideration.

Therefore, the appellate Court erred in reversing the judgment and decree of
the trial Court and in holding that the sale deed is void only to the extent of
plaintiff’s share. ‘It was also submitted that the sale deed ought to have been
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declared void in its entirety. In support of his submissions, learned counsel
for the appellant has placed reliance on Badriprasad Vs. Bhagwandas, AIR
1956 MB 117, Ehsanali Vs. Kikabhai, AIR 1956 MB 11 8, Puny Kalu and
another Vs. Sankar Kalu, AIR 1961 MP 348, Ramkrishna Maniram Lende
and others Vs. Vithalrao alias Baboo and others, [1978 MPLJ 500] and
Bhagwandas Vs. State of M.P. and another, 2001 (1) MPLJ 248.

7. Onthe other hand, learned counsel for respondent No.1 submitted
that respondent No.1 has filed the cross-objection in which the finding recorded
by the appellate Court that sale deed is void to the extent of share of the
plaintiff has been challenged. It was further submitted that the sale deed was
executed for legal necessity and the finding that the sale deed was executed
without any consideration has been set aside in appeal by the appellate Court.
Therefore, the appellate Court ought to have allowed the appeal in its entirety.
In support of his contention, learned counsel for respondent No.1 has placed
reliance on the decisions in Smt. Rani and another Vs. Smt. Santa Bala
Debnath and others, AIR 1971 SC 1028, Prasad and others
Vs. Govidaswami Mudaliar and others, AIR 1982 SC 84, Pannilal
Vs. Rajinder Singh and another, (1993) 4 SCC 3 8, Shivcharan
Vs. Mohanlal and another, 1.L.R. (2008) MP 31 83, Vimal Chand
Ghevarchand Jain and others Vs. Ramakant Eknath Jadoo, 2009(4)
M.P.L.J. 35 and Baba Saheb Nimalkar Vs. Laxmi Bai (dead) others, 2007
(2)M.PH.T. 145.

8. I'have considered the submissions made on both sides and have
perused the records. The recital in the sale deed about transfer of title, receipt
of consideration and delivery of possession are normally evidence of such
acts and event. On execution and registration of the sale deed, the sale is
normally complete even if sale price was not paid. See: Janak Dulari Devi
and another Vs. Kapildeo Rai and another, (2011) 6 SCC 555. In the
case of Ramdas Vs. Sita Bai (2009) 7 SCC 444, the Supreme Court has
held that if a co-owner executes a sale deed in respect of the entire property
and hands dver the possession to the third party, the sale deed would be
invalid to the extent of the share of the other co-owner without whose consent
and knowledge the property was sold, and who was party to the sale deed.
Actual payment of the price at the time of execution of the sale deed is not

Sine-qua-non for completion of the sale. The real test of sale is the intention

of the parties. See: Vidhyadhar Vs. Manikrao and another, (1999) 3 SCC
573. ' .

[
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9. In the context of aforesaid well settled legal position, facts of the
case may be seen. The recital contained in the registered sale deed dated
2.3.1987 (Ex.P/1) shows the receipt of consideration as well as delivery
- of possession. The sale deed Ex.P/1 shows that the sale is complete.
Merely because the sale price is not paid, the sale deed cannot be lield
to be invalid. At the most, if the seller who has sold the property and has
not received the sale consideration, may sue for recovery of the sale
consideration. In the case of Prem Singh Vs. Birbal, (2006) 5 SCC
353, it has been held by the Supreme Court that there is a presumption
that registered document is validly executed. A registered document
therefore prima-facie would be valid in law. A voidable document is"
required to be avoided whereas a void document is not required to be
avoided. In the instant case, the registered sale deed Ex.P/1 has been
executed by defendant No.2 in favour of defendant No.1, which is
prima-faice valid and, therefore, a presumption arises-with regard to its
genuineness. Even assuming that the sale deed was executed without
payment of any consideration and the defendant No.2 was not in a fit
physical and mental condition at the time of execution of the sale deed,
the samé would be binding on defendant No.2 and would be voidable
document. Since, defendant No.2 has not challenged the same, it would
bind her and it would be invalid only to the extent of the share of the
plaintiff, in view of the law laid down by the Suprere Court in Ramdas Vs.
Sita Bai, supra.

10.  Forthe aforementioned reasons, the first substantial question of law
is answered in the affirmative and against the appellant. From perusal of the
decree passed by the appellate Court, it does not appear that any joint decree
has been passed in favour of the appellant and the respondent No.2. Therefore,

the second substantial question of law framed by this Court infact does not _ . '

arise in the facts and circumstances of the case.

11.  Intheresult, the appeal as well as the cross-objection fail and are
hereby dismissed.

Appeal dismissed
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"APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice PK. Jaiswal & Mr. Justice 1.S. Shrivastava

Cr. A. No. 220/2000 (Indore) decided on 4 August, 2011

SHIVRAM ’ Appellant
. Vs, :
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Prevention of Corruption Act (49 of 1988), Sections 7,1 1 3(1-d),
13(2) — Illegal gratification — Appellant as Head Constable demanded
bribe for release of seized tractor— Currency notes given in bribe were

not treated with Phenolphthalein powder — Appellant alleged to have ‘

taken out money from the back pocket of pant — Pant which was seized

and produced before Court did not have back pocket — Giving and

recovery of money not reliable —Evidence shows that spot map was
prepared on the spot and FIR was lodged after returning to Police

- Station, however both the documents bear same time — Evidence also

disclosed that documents were tampered by 1.0.—Appellant acquitted
—Appeal allowed. (Para 16)

FETFIv [AareTr IR (1988 HT 49), snmf 7. 13(187), 13(2) —

ydg gRalyer — 99 IREs & w9 ¥ pfiareff ¥ SsaygEr dw @b

BIst @ fav Rega &) wir 9 — Ryga & R ™ A e W
femTepereli st T avmar AT o1 — arfiareff ¥ alela va @ ¥
N el o @ 39 fred — de R = fear T alk =EEE @
s & fear T swt fie @Y de ad @ — wud 3 el S
et farguda 5@ — e goiar @ % ges e J9wn, "o @
w dar fear T Ak gfaw arr dte? @ g vwand e, ol 9 e,
fpg <At SRS ¥ o @ @y <ular @~ wsr 9w ff yee sar
2 f o). g1 Tt @ arer 89T ¥ MY off — anfiareff qtwga
~ afiel Avx |
Cases referred:
AIR 1976 SC 91, 1993 JLJ 109.

S.K. Was with Harshwardhan Pathak; for the: appellant
Girish Desai, Dy. A.G. for the respondent.
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.JUDGMENT

The judgment of ‘the court was delivered by :
L.S. SHRIVASTAVA, J. :-This appeal has been preferred by the appellant being
aggrieved by the judgement dated 31.01.2005 passed by the Court of Shri
S.D.Ojha in Special Case No.3/99, by which the appellant Shivram has been
convicted under Section 7 and Section 13(1)(d) read with Section 13(2) of
the Prevention of Corruption Act and sentenced to rigorous unpnsonment of
three years along with fine of Rs.3,000/-.

2. According to the prosecution story, a report was made by Baliram to
Superintendent of Police, Khargone that on 18.04.1999 the Tractor No.M10-
8970 which was having a blasting machine was seized by the Police Oon
through Head Constable Shivram from his Driver Shobharam and a case was
registered. On receiving the information of this fact complainant Baliram went
to Police Station Oon where he met with Shivram, Head Constable and he
asked him that when his Tractor will be released then accused Shivram said
that ifhe will give him Rs.10,000/- as bribe then he will not beat his Tractor
Driver and will release the Tractor earlier, Hence, on this demand he gave
Rs.5,000/- to Shivram and promised to pay Rs.5,000/- on the next day in the
Khargone Court. On 19.04.1999 the complainant went to Superintendent of
Police, Khargone for complaint that he has brought Rs.1,000/- to pay accused
Shivram as bribe but he does not want to give him bribe but want to trap him,
hence suitable action be taken.

3. On receipt of this complaint the Superintendent of Police, Khargone
prepared a panchnama (Ex.P/4) of this report before the independent
witnesses Shri K.S.Solanki, Nayab Tehsildar and Shri Sumersingh Mujalda,
Nayab Tehsildar and thereafter a panchanama of notes (Ex.P/2) was prepared
in which numbers of notes of Rs.100/- each were noted down in the
panchanama and on the corners of each note Shri Rathore made his small
initials by green ball pen and thereafter, these notes were handed over to
Baliram and he was instructed that he should give it to Shivram at the agreed
place in the Court, Khargone and thereafter indicate by scratching his head.
Thereafter Baliram Patidar gave the above notes to appellant Shivram and

indicated as agreed by putting his hand on the head and scratching his head,
thereafter Shri Santosh Singh Rathore, $.D.0.P. along with independent
witnesses Shri K.S.Solanki and Shri Sumersingh Mujalda reached on the spot
and demanded the notes from Shivram which were given to him by Baliram.
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Then accused appellant Shivram took out the notes from the pocket of his full
pant and gave them to Shri Santosh Singh(PW - 7) and he seized them before
the witnesses and prepared the seizure memo Ex.P/5 the dress of the accised
was also seized and 39 notes of Rs.100/- and 50 notes of Rs.50/- each were
also given by Shivram from the right pocket of his dress which were also
scaled separately by the same panchnama. The dress full pant and shirt of full
sleeves, was seized and seizure memo Ex.P/6 was prepared. The spot map
Ex.P/18 was prepared and the appellant was arrested and arrest memo Ex:P/
17 was prepared and thereafter FIR Ex.P/19 at Crime No.134/99 was
registered at.Police Station Kotwali, Khargone under Section 7 and 13(1)( d)
of Prevention of Corruption Act and challan was filed after obtaining the
prosecution sanction Ex.P/7 After trial the appellant has been convicted and
sentenced as mentioned above. :

4. It has been argued by the learned Counsel for the appellant that the
appellant has been falsely implicated in this case. He was not having any domain
over the release of the Tractor which was seized in the Police Station because
it was seized by the Station Officer and it was to be released from the Court.
The investigation was defective. The independent witnesses were not procured
but they were Nayab Tehsildars and interested witnesses. There was serious
discrepancy in the evidence of the witnesses about the place from where the

" notes were recovered. The notes given as a bribe were not treated with
phenolphthalein powder. The full pant from which the notes are said to have
been recovered was not having any side pocket or hip pocket while the witness
has deposed that the notes were seized from his hip pocket. The spot map
and FIR was tampered as they were having the same time 16.20 p.m. while it
was not possible to prepare them at the same time, therefore, the prosecution
‘evidence was not reliable, hence the appeal should be accepted.

5. It has been argued by the Counsel for the respondent that the case
was proved from the evidence produced before the Trial Court. The demand
and recovery of the notes was proved. The contradictions in the evidence
was of minor nature which does not go to the root of the case. The appeal
being devoid of merit be dismissed accordingly.

6. Considered the arguments and record of the Trial Court perused. As
regard the recovery of the notes from the appellant it reveals from the statement
of Baliram (PW -1) that after reaching in the Court he called Shivram and
went to the canteen with him. They had a cup of tea ‘and thereafter coming

1«
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out from the canteen he gave him Rs.1,000/- which were kept by Shivram in
his pocket. At that time, Shivram was in his dress. After giving of the notes he
indicated by putting his hand on the head, thereafter S.D.O.P. Rathore,

Tehsildar and Nayab Tehsildar came to him and they asked to accused that
where are the notes of Rs.1,000/- which were given to him, thereafter appellant
took out the notes from the back pocket of his pant and gave them to S.D.O.P.

Rathore. They were the same notes. They were seized by panchnama (Ex. P/
5). During the cross-examination the pant was produced before the witness
in the court and he said that the accused was wearing this dress on the date of
incident and the accused tcok out the notes from his back pocket. After seeing
the same, the witness accepted this fact that the pant does not have any back
pocket. The court also observed that the pant was not having any back pocket.

Thereafter in further cross-examination though the complainant

Baliram(PW -1) has-deposed that he does not remember from where accused - )

took out the notes but in a police statement (Ex.D/1) it has been mentioned
that the accused took out the notes from his back pocket. In para 21 of the
cross-examination, after observing the pant the witnesses accepted that the
pant article D does not contain any side pocket. The witness again admitted
in para 22 that there is no side pocket in the pant, hence it is not possible that
Rs.1,000/- may be kept in it.

7. T this respect Sumer Singh(PW -6), who is an independent witness
deposed that the notes were taken out by S.D.O.P. Shri Rathore from the
pocket of the shirt of the uniform of the accused. In further cross-examination
in para 16 he has admitted that he does not saw the giving of the notes that to
whom they were given. He does not saw the S.D.O.P. while taking out the
notes from the pocket. First of all he saw the notes +in the hands of the S.D.O.P.
but he does not know that from where he received it. In this way, this witness
has given a different fact that the notes were recovered from the pocket of the
shirt of Shivram. The other independent witness Shri S.S.Mujalda was not
examined by the prosecution.

8. Shri Santosh Singh Rathore(PW-7), S.D.O.P,, the Investigating Officer
in thisrespect deposed that after the indication of complainant when he reached
to the accused and asked him about the notes that first of all he denied and
thereafter accepted the receipt of Rs.1 ,000/- as bribe. He was asked to give
‘the notes which he received then after taking out the notes from the back
pocket of his pant gave him the above 10 notes of Rs.1,000/-. The number of
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which were tallied with the numbers mentioned in the panchnama, hence the -
notes were seized and seizure memo Ex.P/5 was prepared. In cross-
examination in para 31 he deposed that accused gave him the notes after
taking out from the right hip pocket of his full pant. He did not see that where
the accused put the notes after their receipt from the complainant. In this way,
this witness also confirmed the fact that accused took out the notes from the
right hip pocket of the full pant.

9. But it is surprising that full pant article D of the complainant was not
- having any hip pocket or side pocket. This fact was observed by the Court
and also admitted by the complainant Baliram (PW -1), therefore, the evidence
of Baliram (PW -1) and Santosh Singh Rathore (PW-7) that the notes were
taken out from the hip pocket. of the pant is not believable. Sumersingh (PW -6)
in this respect has deposed that S.D.0.P. Rathore took out the notes from the
pocket of the shirt of the accused Shivram but this is not the statement of
Baliram (PW -1) and Santosh Singh Rathore (PW -7), therefore, the statement
of Sumersingh is not believable in this respect. There is no witness of the fact
that the notes were given before him, therefore, considering the above evidence
~ this fact was not proved that the notes were recovered from the hip pocket of
full pant of the accused.

10.  Itissurprising that the notes of Rs.1,000/- which were given as bribe
to accused were not treated with phenolphthalein powder to prove the fact of
receipt of the bribery. This was a major defect in the trap proceeding. In the
case of Raghuveer Singh V/s. State of Punjab AIR 1976 SC 91. It has
been held that,”whether a trap is laid for a public servant, it is desirable that
the market currency notes, which are used for the purpose of trap, are treated
with phenolphthalein powder so that the handling of such marked currency
notes by the public servant can be detected by chemical process and the
Court does-not have to depend on oral evidence which is sometimes of a
dubious character for the purpose of deciding the fate of the public servant.”
In the case of Balmukund V/s. State of M.P. 1993 JLJ 109, it has been held
that,” in the circumstances, ordinarily, in such type of cases powder treatment
is made, but the prosecution has not explained or placed any material on
record to show why such a process was not followed in the present case,
though the trap is said to have been arranged by experienced people like
Additional Collector and SDOP. It does not appeal to reason that the officers’
were not aware of the powder treatment, which is in vogue in the country for
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about four decades. If such powder treatment had been made, the passing of
the bribe and handling of the notes would not have been difficult to be proved.
Therefore, the story about the place and the manner of taking bribe is opposed
to natural human conduct. That is what has been said by the Apex Court in
case of Khilli Ram V/s. State of Rajasthan (AIR 1985 SC 79).”

11.  Ithasalso been argued by the appellant Counsel that the independent
. witnesses were not procured for this trap. Only the interested witness
K_S.Solanki, Nayab Tehsildar and Sumersingh Mujalda, Nayab Tehsildar were
made the independent witnesses in this case while they were not independent
witnesses but were interested witnesses being the Govt. servant. '

12.  Considered, the arguments. Though only Sumersingh (PW -6) has
been examined as independent witness in this case and his evidence is. not
reliable to prove the prosecution case because heé has deposed that the notes
were seized from the pocket of the shirt of the accused which is not the
prosecution case but being the Govt. Officers they can not be said to be the
independent witnesses.

13.  Ithasbeen argued by the Counsel for the appellant that the investigation
is defective because the spot map and FIR has the same time 16.20 p.m.
+ From the evidence it is clear that the spot map was prepared on the spot and
thereafter the FIR was lodged at the Police Station after the return of the trap
party, hence the time of both these documents should be different. From the
statement of Sumersingh (PW -6) it is clear that he does not sign on the spot
map on the spot but signed it in the evening. This shows that the documents,
were prepared arbitrarily by the Investigating Officer and the documents were
tampered because Shri Santosh Singh Rathore(PW -7) has admitted that he
_ mentioned the Crime No. on the spot map later on.

14.  Considered the arguments. From the spot map (Ex.P/18) it reveals
that it was prepared on the spot on 19.04.1999 which contains the Crime
No.134/1999. In this respect Santosh Singh Rathore (PW-7) deposed that he
prepared the spot map Ex.P/18 on the spot and thereafter returned to Pelice
Kotwali, Khargone wherc FIR Ex.P/19 was lodged. In cross-examination he
has admitted that before leaving the spot he prepared the spot map Ex.P/18
which does not contain the time but it is wrong to say that he prepared it after
registration of the crime. At the time of the preparation of the spot map he
was not knowing the crime number, therefore, he left the respective column
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blank and, thereafter he entered the crime number in it. This is his working
procedure. This shows that the spot map Ex.P/18 was atampered document.
Sumersingh (PW -6) in this respect has deposed that in the evening he was
called in the Police Station by S.D.0.P. Shri Rathore and he signed on.the
spot map. This shows that the spot map (Ex.P/18) is a tampered document
and it was prepared arbitrarily and the signatures of the witness was obtained
later on in the evening, hence it is not reliable.

15.  The FIR Ex.P/19 bears the time of registration of the it as 16.20 p.m.
while the arrest memo Ex.P/17 also bears the time of arrest as 16.20 p-m. Shri
Santosh Singh Rathore arrested the accused and registered the FIR, therefore,
the time of lodging of the FIR. and arrest could not be the same.
Sumersingh(PW -6) in this respect has deposed that the accused was arrested
and thereafter Shri Rathore took him to Police Station. Arrest memo Ex.P/17
bears his signature. Santosh Singh Rathore (PW -7) in this respect has deposed
that after the registration of the crime at Police Station he arrested Shivram
and prepared arrest memo Ex.P/17. This shows that arrest memo was not
prepared at the spot while Sumersingh(PW-6) said that the accused was
arrested on the spot. The similarity of time 16.20 p.m. on arrest memo Ex.P/17
and FIR. Ex.P/19 shows that both these documents could not be prepared at
the same time and it reveals that they have been prepared arbitrarily at the
sweet will of the Investigating Officer, hence these proceedings were not
reliable.

16.  Therefore, on the basis of the above discussion, we are of the view
that the evidence produced by the prosecution before the trial court was not
reliable. The notes given in bribe were not treated with the phenolphthalein
powder. The evidence about the giving and recovery of notes was not reliable.
It was the prosecution story that the notes were recovered from the pocket of
the full pant of the accused but the full pant article “D” was not having any side
pocket or back pocket, hence the statement of Baliram (PW -1) and Santosh
Singh Rathore (PW -7) was not reliable. In this respect Sumersingh (PW -6)
deposed that the notes were recovered from the pocket of the shirt, hence
this statement was not reliable in this respect. The spot map was a tampered
document on which Sumersingh(PW -6) si gned in the evening and Santosh
Rathore mentioned the Crime No. later on and the FIR and the arrest memo
were having the same time 16.20 p.m., hence it reveals that they were prepared
arbitrarily. The evidence about the arrest of the accused was also not reliable
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because according to Sumersingh(PW -6) after the arrest the trap party
.returned to Police Station while according to Arresting Officer, Santosh- Singh
Rathore (PW - 7) after the registration of the crime he arrested the accused.
Therefore, the prosecution evidence was not reliable and the fact of the
recovery of'the notes from the appellant accused was not proved. Therefore,
on the basis of the above discussion, we are of the view that the appellant
was not liable to be convicted, hence this appeal deserves to be allowed.

17. " Therefore, the appeal is allowed and the appellant is acquitted from
the charges under Section 7 and (13)(1)(d) read with Section 13(2) of the
Prevention of Corruption Act. His bail bonds are discharged. Fine if deposited
be returned. "

Appeal allowed
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice 1.S. Shrivastava

Cr. A. No. 322/1997 (Indore) decided on 10 August, 2011

RAZIYA ...Appellant
Vs. - ‘- o
STATEOFM.P. ,. ...Respondent .

A. . Narcofic Drugs and Psychotiopic Substances Act (61

of 1985), Section 50— Search and Seizure —Appellant took out a packet .
from her kurti and was in her hand when it was seized — Compliance
of Section 50 was mandatory — A separate notice should have been
given apprising her constitutional rights to be searched before .
Magistrate or Gazetted Officer or by police. (Para 6)
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B. ° Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act (61
of 1985), Section 55 ~ Custody of seized articles — No paging on
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malkhana register — No time of deposit of sealed packet in malkhana
register — No mention that impression seal was deposited with articles
'~ No mention that impression seal was sent along with articles to F.S.L.
—Provisions of Section 55 not complied. (Para7)

4 w@ras Iiafr gt grmardt yered ST (1985 #r 61),
81T 55 — WaTgar aegal’ @ afvar — waEr Rrex ¥ gored Td
— @ e ¥ YEvas 9T @ 9 ¥ @1 wa Tl — @iy

IeaE T8 f5 wgat @ W B JE WA Y 1 off — i S

5 aegal’ @ WY BT Y YH.UE.A. B Ao 1F M — =N 55 B
- QTEETET &7 Ui el fear @y .

C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 27
— Seizure Memo — Contraband was seized and appellant was arrested
- on spot and thereafter F.L.R. was lodged after coming back to Police
Station — Seizure Memo and Arrest memo bears the crime number -
Documents are tampered. ‘ (Paras 8 & 9)

7 qug Upar Wiear, 1973 (1974 T 2), oy 27 — G=dt 41
— Rifafyg =l sea fear stk ardfieneff &t e ® fRwar fear
T &ty derETd gfer o atet W ewand.aR. 7 @t 1 — o= At
mﬁmﬂmﬁﬁwmmﬁr@% aﬁﬁﬁ?a%mﬁmah
TH 21

D. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 21
—Seizure of Smack — Smack of light yellow colour was seized whereas
colour of powder was light grey as per F.S.L. report — Both the colours
are different therefore, it is doubtful that powder which was seized was
sent for analysis. : : (Para 17)
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ACR -1I (2006) 362, AIR 1994 SC 117, (2004) 10 SCC 562.

Sanjay Sharma with Anil Ojha, for the appellant.
C.R. Karnik, G.A. for the respondent/State.
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| JUDGMENT

LS. SHRIvASTAVA, J :- This appeal has been preferred by the appellant
Razia being aggrieved by the judgment dated 21/03/1997 passed by the Court
of Shri S. N. Sharma, 2nd Additional Sessions Judge, Neemuch in S.T. no.
140/1995, by which the appellant has been convicted under section 8/21 of
the NDPS Act and sentenced to rigorous imprisonment of ten years along
with fine of Rs.1,00,000/-.

2. According to the prosecution story, on 03/11/1 995, Shri G. S. Parmar,
ASI of police station- Neemuch received an information from the-informer
that accused Raziya is selling small packets of smack for Rs.20/- each near
her house and she may be trapped, hence on this information, he prepared a
panchanama about the information and sent constable Rajkumar with a note
of Rs.20/- having number 77 V 977850 with his signature and prepared
panchanama and sent the information under section 42 6fthe NDPS Act to
SDO(P), Neemuch through constable Arjun Soni. Thereafter, Shri G S. Parmar

* ASI alongwith constable Baban Mishra Krushnaram and lady constable Kiran

Sharma and other articles of investigation and independent witnesses proceeded
towards the house of the accused and waited for indication of constable
Rajkumar. Constable Rajkumar in civil dress went to the house of Raziya and
gave a note of Rs.20/- which she received:and took out a yellow colour-
packet from her kurti and took out a small packet and gave it to Rajkumar. At
the same time, Rajkumar indicated by putting the hand on his head. Seeing
this, accused Raziya ran towards her house, but she was stopped with the
help of police force. Thereafter, in presence of the witnesses and lady constable
Kiran Sharma, accused Raziya was iriformed that she has to be searched on
the basis of the information of the informer that she is selling smack.-Her
consent was obtained and she was apprised with her rights about her search
before Magistrate or Gazetted officer and accused Raziya consented for her
search before the police. Lady constable Kiran Shrama searched accused
Raziya and recovered a plastic bag from the hand of Raziya which contained

* 46 small packets. On opening of each packet, same type of powder was

found, which was collected in a single paper and by smelling testing and burning,
it was confirmed as smack prepared from opium. On weightment, its weight
found to be 5 grams. It was packed with polythene pack in small cloth-packet
and sealed by seal of Neemuch Police Station. It was seized and seizure

memo was prepared. A chit was applied on it. As the quantity of the smack
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was very low, therefore the sample was not taken out from it. Anote of Rs.20/-
was recovered from accused Raziya, which was also seized and she was

arrested. On return to police station, a report was lodged at crime no. 505/

1995 and the smack was sent to FSL for its examination and after receipt of
the report from FSL and after completion of investigation, challan was filed.
After trial, the appellant has been convicted and sentenced as mentioned herein
above.

3. It has been argued by the appellant's counsel that the appellant has
been falsely implicated in this case. The investigation was defective. The
independent witnesses did not support the face of seizure. The arrest memo
and seizure memo were tampered documents, on which crime no. 505/1995
was mentioned while they were porepared before the registration of the crime
no. 505/1995, The sample was deposited in the malkhana without impression
of seal and it was not sént immediately to FSL as per rules and there is no
explanation for this delay. The packet of smack was doubtful because at the
time of the seizure, colour of the powder was yellow while in the FSL, the
powder which was sent was found to be of light grey colour. The samples
were not prepared on the spot, while there is discrepancy of evidence in
between the statement of Shri G.'S. Parmar PW-3 and Kiran Sharma PW-9

in this respect. The. number of note which was taken out from the packetin.

the Court was different and it was different with the number of note of the

seizure memo, which was given by police to constable Rajkumar. There was

non-compliance of section 55 and 50 of the NDPS Act, hence the appellant
_was not liable to be convicted, hence the appeal be allowed.

4. It has been argued by the respondent’s counsel that there was ample
evidence before the Trial Court to convict the appellant and he has been rightly
convicted, hence the appeal being devoid of merit, be dismissed accordingly.

5. Considered the arguments and record of the trial Coun perused.

6.  Asregard the compliance of section 50 of the NDPS Act according
to the prosecution case, at the time of the raid, accused Raziya took out a
packet of smack from her Kurti and it was in her hand, when it was seized
“from her, therefore, it was necessary for the investigating officer that in
compliance of séction 50 of the NDPS Act, her consent for search should
have been obtained and she should have been apprised with her constitutional
rights for search before the Magistrate or Gazetted Officer, but no notice was

L4
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given to her. in Panchanama of proceeding Ex.-P/8, it has been, mentioned
that she was apprised that she can be searched before Gazetted Officer or
Magistrate and she consented for her search before the lady constable Kiran
Sharma. In this way, there is non compliance of section 50 of the NDPS Act.
A separate notice must have been given to the appellant apprising her
constitutional right to be searched before Magistrate or Gazetted Officer and
her consent must have been obtained, but no such proceeding was taken up
and consent was obtained. On Panchanama Ex.-P/8, nowhere it is mentioned
that consent of accused Raziya was obtained for her search to-police. Simply
mentioning in panchanama proceedings Ex.-P/8 that her consent was obtained;
does not fulfill the mandatory requirement of law. Under this circumstance,
she was not liable to be convicted.

7. As regard the compliance of section 55 of the NDPS Act, Shri G. S. |
Parmar PW-3 submitted that on return to police station, he registered the FIR -
Ex.-P/9 and he deposited the seized property in Malkhana. Khushalsingh
PW-8 in this respect deposed that he has brought malkhana'register of police
station, Neemuch in which it has been mentioned that at serial no. 218, on
03/11/1995, a sealed packet of crime no. 505/1995 has been deposited in
the malkhana register Ex.-P/11. It was given by Shri G. S. Parmar to him. It
was. sealed with the seal of police station- Neemuch, hence he deposited it in
the Malkhana and thereafter, on 08/11/1995, through constable Shersingh
sent this packet to FSL, Indore. In cross-examination, he has admitted that
there is no paging on the malkhana register and he has not entered any time of
deposit of the sealed packet in this register. From perusal of Ex.-P/11, a copy
of Malkhana register, it reveals that three packets were deposited in the
malkhana; one was sealed packet containing 46 small packets in a yellow
polythene bag, in which 5 grams yellow powder is collected in packet which
is 5 grams smack and second packet was containing a note of Rs.20/- and
third packet was containing notes of Rs.40/-. There is no mention that the
impression of seal was deposited with these articles. There is another entry of
8/11/1995 that these packets were sent to FSL through constable Shersingh.
In these entries, it is not mentioned that impression of seal was also sent with

these packets. There is no evidence that the property, which was deposited in

the Malkhana was again sealed at the time of deposit in the Malkhana with

the seal of in-charge of the police station, hence there was non-compliance of

section 55 of the NDPS Act. By non- depositing of impression of seal and

non-sending the impression of seal to FSL, therefore, the procedure was -
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defective and it shows non-compliance of mandatory provisions.

8. From perusal of the seizure memo Ex.-P/5, it reveals that crime no.
505/1995 has been mentioned on it while it was prepared at 15.55 hours on |
03/01/1995. From FIR Ex.-P/9, it reveals that it was registered at 16.40
hours after return of Shri G, S. Parmar to police station, therefore, at the time
of seizure of the smack, the offence was not registered at Crime no. 505/
1995, hence the seizure must be at zero crime number. Since the seizure memo -
Ex.-P/5 bears the crime number, this shows that it is tampered document,
either the crime was mentioned on it after registration of the crime or seizure
memo was prepared after the registration of crime no. 505/1995. In both
these situations, the seizure memo is not reliable.

9. From arrest memo Ex.-P/7, it reveals that it bears the crime no. 505/
1995 while it was prepared at 16.10 hours. Previously, crime no. 0/1995 was
mentioned on it. Later on, crime no. 505/1995 has been entered in the relevant
coloum. This shows that crime was mentioned on it by tampering it or it was
prepared later on, because tilt 16.10 hours, FIR was not registered. This also
‘'shows arbitrariness of preparation of the papers.

10.  Asregardthe incident, the seizure memo Ex.-P/5 was prepared before
the independent witnesses Omprakash PW-6 and Khushal PW-10 . They are
also the witnesses of PanchanamaEx.P/3, Ex.-P/4 and Ex.-P/8; they have
been declared hostile. According to Omprakash PW-6, he was called at police
station by Shri G. S . Parmar, the station officer and he told him that an
information, about the sale of smack by a lady has been received, hence he
signed on panchanama Ex.-P/3. He does not remember the name of the lady
accused. In cross examination he deposed that nothing happened before him.
He does not have any information about the aceused and he has denied all the
. prosecution story and said that Ex. -P/3 to Ex. -P/8 bear his signature, but he
- does not kriow anything about the incident. He did not go to spot. He has
further deposed that at about 8.10 am, he was passing throtigh the police
station and on the call of police officer, he signed on it. Kushal PW-10 did not
sign before him. ' '

. Kushal PW-10, second independent witness of these proceedings, -
deposed that he’does not know the accused. Ex.-P/3 to Ex.-P/8 bear his
signatures and he does not know that why he signed on these papers. The
police used to cali him during preparing challan of Thelewala, hence he signed
on these documents at the instance of police. He did not go to Kharikua with
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police. On contradiction of facts of the prosecution story, he denied each and
every steps of the prosecution story. In cross examination, he deposed that
he signed on the blank papers. His hotel is situated near the police station and
the police used to call him and get his signatures on the papers. Both these
witnesses have denied with their police statement Ex.-P/12 & P/13
respectively. In this way, both the independent witnesses did not support the
proceedings taken up by the investigating officer for the seizure of smack and
panchanama Ex.-P/3 to Ex.-P/8. C ‘

12.  Shri G. S. Parmar deposed that on receipt of the information of
the informer, he- prepared panchanama of this information vide Ex-P/3
and thereafter, he prepared panchanama Ex.P/4 and sent punter constable
Rajkumar with a note of Rs.20/- bearing no. 77-V-977850 for purchase
of smack from the accused Raziya. Thereafter, he sent the information of

_ this to SDO (P), Neemuch by letter Ex,.-P/1. Thereafter, with police force

head constable Baban Mishra; constable Krushnaram and lady constable

- Kiran Sharma and the independent witnesses proceeded t6 Kharikua,

where they sat and waited for indication of the punter. On indication by
the punter. they rushed towards the accused Raziya. Seeing the police,.
accused Raziya tried to run, but she was caught and thereafter, she was,
apprised with the information of the informer and after'her consent for

_ search, 'she was searched and in search, yeliow cqlou!r polythene bag

was recovered by lady constable Kiran Shrma from her, which contained
46 small packets. On opening, yellow colour powder was found in it,
which was collected on a paper. It was tested by the independent -
witnesses and the police force by testing and burning found it to be smack
from opium. Whole of the powder was found to be 5 grams on weightment
and it was sealed on the spot. As he was not having his own’ séal, hence

. a chit of paper was pasted on it and his own signature and the signature

of panch witnesses and the accused were taken on it. On search of the
accused, Rs.60/- was found including the note of Rs.20/- of the punter
Rajkumar, which was sealed with the seal of the police station, Neemuch.

.Seizure memo Ex.P/5 wasprepared and Ex.-P/6, a proforma of narcotic

drugs was prepared and the signature of the witnesses and the accused
was obtained on it and the accused was arrested vide arrest memo Ex.P/
7 and thereafter, panchanama of whole of the proceedings Ex.-P/ 8 was
prepared. The impression of the seal was impressed on these panchanamas
and the case was registered and the police station officer Shri Jatav was
informed. Thereafter, FIR Ex.P/9 was registered which bears his

~
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signatures and the signature of station house officer Shri Jatav. The seized .

property was deposited in the malkhana and report under section 57 of
the NDPS Act Ex.-P/2 was sent to SDO(P).

13.  Atthetime of evidence in the court, packet-k containing the punter’s
note was opened and number of the note was 77-V-966850 which bear
signature of Shri G.S. Parmar. In this respect, it has been argued by the
appellant’s counsel that this note was different from note, which was givento
the punter Rajkumar and seized by seizure memo Ex.-P/5.

14.  Considered the arguments. Number of the note which was taken out
from the packet in the Court was 77-V-966850 and the number of the note
which was seized on the spot was 77-V-977850; the same number was

‘mentioned in punter panchanama Ex.-P/4. This shows that the note which .

was produced in the court, was not the same, but it was different note having
different number. This situation goes in favour of the appellant and it was
proved that the note bearing number 77/V-977850 which was sent through
punter Rajkumar was not seized from the appellant and was not sealed in
packet Article- K.

15.  Asregard the sample, it has been argued by the appellant’s counsel
that no sample was prepared on the spot by G. S. Parmar ASI PW-3 and
whole of the quantity of the smack was sent to FSL for examination, but
constable Kiran Sharma PW-9 deposed that two samples were taken out on
the spot. Due this discrepancy, whole of the prosecution story is unreliable,

16.  Considered the arguments. Shri G. S. Parmar PW-3 has not deposed
that any sample was prepared on the spot, but whole of the quantity was
sealed in the packet but from the statement of Kiran Sharma PW-9, it reveals
that two samples were prepared from the seized smack, but she could not tell,
what was its weight. Again she has replied that after the weightment, sample
was prepared. About the weightment, she said that only smack was weighted

without paper, while according to G. S. Parmar, weight of the smack with -

paper was 5 grams and according to panchanama of proceedings Ex.-P/8, no

sample was taken out and weight of the smack was 5 grams. Therefore, the

statement of Kiran Sharma PW-9 is not reliable to support the prosecution
story.

17, Ithas also been argued by the appellant’s counsel that the powder
which was recovered from the appellant was of light yellow colour while colour

»
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of the powder was light grey as per FSL report Ex.-P/14. Both these colours

are different and hence it is doubtful that the powder which was seized on the

spot was sent for anlysis.

£

18.  Corsidered the arguments. There is lot of difference in the powder of
light yellow colour and light grey colour. There is no, explanation that how
this colour was different, hence it creates doubt that whether the powder
which was seized as smack was the same which was sent for examination for
FSL. Secondly, there is no. explanation that as the powder was deposited in
the malkhana on 03/11/1995, then why it was sent on 08/11/1995, why it
was not sent immediately. No explanation for this delay has been given by the
prosecution. Hence under these circumstances, tampering of sample cannot
be ruled out.

19.  Therefore, on the basis of the above discussions;, I conclude that
the seizure memo was not reliable; it was tampered document. There
was non-compliance of section 50 & 55 of the NDPS Act. The
independent .witnesses did not support the prosecution case. The
impression of the seal was not deposited in the malkhana. Sample was
sent to FSL with inordinate delay and for which, no explanation was given.
There was difference of colour of the powder, which was seized and sent
for FSL, hence it was doubtful that the same powder was sent for analysis.
Number of the note which was given to punter Rajkumar, was not the
same which was taken out from the packet in the Court. There was
difference of statements in between the members of the raid party about
preparation of the sample. According to Kiran Sharma, PW-9, two
samples were prepared, but according to G. S. Sharma PW-3, no sample
was prepared. Therefore, on the basis of the evidence produced before
the Trial Court, the appellant was not liable to be convicted as held inthe
case of Ritesh Chakarvarti Vs. State of M.P "ACR -II (2006 [ 362],
Valsala Vs. State of Kerala ( AIR 1994 SC 117) and Jitendra and
another Vs. State of M.P."2004(10) SCC 562.Hence, this appeal
deserves to be allowed. o '

20.  Therefore, on the basis of the discussions, this appeal is allovzed and
the appellant Raziya is acquitted from the charges under section 8/21 of the
NDPS Act. The appellant is on bail; her bail bonds are discharged. The fine,

if deposited be returned to her. ’ '

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL ) -
Before Mr. Justice PK. Jaiswal & Mr. Justice LS. Shrivastava - -
Cr. A. No. 988/2001 (Indore) decided on 16 August, 2011

BARITYA ...Appellant
Vs.

STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act (1 of
18 72), Section 6 — Relevancy of Facts — Hearsay Evidence — Section 6
is exception to general rule where hearsay evidence becomes
admissible — It should be contemporaneous with act and'there should
not be an interval which allow fabrication, (Paras 13 &14).

B TV FIZGT (1860 FT 45), &I 302, TG AP (1672 &T
1) OT 6 — @27 B} GEIHT — FTHT 9T — GRT 6 WA PrE BT
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 27 — Seizure of Weapon
— When there is a direct evidence, non- seizure of weapon is of no
consequence, ) . .~ (Para 19)

& TR AR (1872 BT 1), mwé-r—m'as?aa?—a'a-
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Cases referred:

1999 SC 3883, AIR 2006 SC 302, 309, AIR 1992 SC 881.
P. Newalkar, for the appellant. C
C.R. Karnik, G.A. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The judgment of the court was delivered by :
LS. SHRIVASTAVA, J. :- This appeal has been preferred by the appellant being
aggrieved by the judgement dated 10.01.2001 passed by the Court of Shri
A.R.Dhruv, Additional Sessions Judge, Sendhwa, West Nimad in S.T.No.84/
2000, by which the appellant Barjiya has been convicted under Section 302
- of the IPC and sentenced to life imprisonment with fine of Rs. 1 ,000/-, '

2. According to the prosecution case, on 27.08.1999 J; adiya along with

/
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Sarpanch Pohalsingh and Kalsingh lodged the report that in the night, at about
9,00 p.m., he was sleeping at his house and on hearing the cries of his brother-
Aapsingh and the children of Barjiya that “mar diya mar diya”, he reached
the house of Aapsingh and found Barjiya was caught hold by Aapsingh. He
told him that Barjiya has murdered his wife Kalibai by assaulting with an axe
on her head, thigh and hand. The dead body was lying inside the house. Pinta

‘the daughter of Barjiya told that Barjiya assaulted her younger brothet, on

which her mother objected, on this point accused Barjiya rushed with axe on
his mother, then Pinta and her mother ran towards the house of her uncle.
There Barjiya assaulted and killed her mother. Thereafter Sarpanch Pohalsingh
was called and he was informed with the incident and thereafter the report

" was lodged. Hence, on repott Crime No.122/99 under Section 302 of the

IPC was registered at Police Station Pansemal, District Badwani and after
investigation challan was filed. After trial the appellant has been convicted as -
mentioned above. T '

3.  Ithasbeen argued by the Counsel for the appellant that he has been
falsely implicated in this case. The independent witnesses Jadiya(PW-3),
Mohansingh(PW-4) and Bachcha(PW-5) did not support the prosecution case.
Aapsingh(PW-1) and Dedubai(PW-6) were not the eye witness but they

- reached on the spot after hearing the noise but the Trial Court has believed

- them erroneously. The Court has relied on the statement of Pinta(PW-2) while
 her statement was not supported by any independent witness. There were

serious omissions and contradictions in the prosecution evidence, hence the '
appeal should be allowed. - :

4. It has been argued by the Counsel for the respondent that t;ne appellant

“was rightly convicted by the Trial Courton the basis of the evidence produced

by the prosecution. The incident was witnessed by Pinta(PW-2), the daughter
of the deceased. The other witnesses Aapsingh(PW-1), Dedubai(PW-6) and
Bachcha(PW-5) are the eye witnesses of the incident, hence the case was
proved. This appeal should be dismissed being devoid of merit.

5"  Considered the circumstances and record of the Trial Coutt perused.
According to Pinta(PW-2) accused is her father and deceased Kalibai was
her mother. On the date of incident her father assaulted her motherbyaxeon -
her head at the house of Aapsingh. On her cries her Kaka Aapsinghreached -
there and snatched the axe from his hands. Her mother sustained bleeding .

injury in her head due to which she died. Her father beat Bahaduriya due to
which there was a quarrel, due to which the accused assaulted her mother. In
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crossexamination, she deposed that the house of her Kaka Aapsingh is near
to her house. In the morning her father assaulted Bahaduriya, Her mother and
father used to quarrel with each other. At the time of the incident her father
assaulted her mother at the house of her Kaka Aapsingh , at that time she
was present there. This incident took place at about 9.00 p.m.

6. Aapsingh(PW-1) supporting the statement of Pinta(PW-2) deposed
that accused is his brother and deceased Kalibai was his sister-in- law. On
the date of incident he was sleeping in his house. On the cries of Pinta(PW-2)
he awoke and saw Kalibai was lying dead in front of his house. Accused
Barjiya assaulted his wife with an axe on her head due to which she sustained
bleeding injury on her head and due to which she fell down. J. adiya was also
there. They caught the accused Barjiya. In cross-examination, he deposed
that he snatched the axe from the hands of accused and he handed over the
axe to police. Accused was running from there, then he chased him.

7. Jadiya(PW-3) deposed in this respect that accused is his brother and
deceased Kalibai was his sister-in-law. On the date of incident, at about 9.00
p.m., he was sleeping at his house and on hearing the cries he reached on the
spot and saw the dead body of Kalibai. Kailash, Bachcha, Aapsingh and
Pintabai all were present there. Pinta and Aapsingh told that Barjiya has killed
Kalibai. In cross-examination, he deposed that the house of Barjiya and
Aapsingh are adjacent to each other and Pinta told him the incident, At that
time, Mohansingh was also present there. He saw that Aapsingh was standing
caught hold of Barjiya. He saw the dead body of deceased Kalibai. Pintabai
was crying that her father has killed her mother.

8. Mohansingh(PW-4) deposed in this respect that, at about 9.00 p.m.,
he was at his field and on the cries of children he reached at the house of
Barjiya and then went to the house of Aapsingh. There he saw the dead body
of Kalibai. Kailash told him that Barjiya killed his wife. At that time, Barjiya
was out of the house.

9. - Bachcha(PW-5) sonof Aapsingh(PW-1) deposed that on the date of )
incident accused Barjiya killed his wife Kalibai. On the cries of Pinta he saw

the dead body. Though this witness has been declared hostile but he has

deposed that on the voice of weeping he awoke and saw the dead body of
Kalibai lying near the door. This is correct to say that his father caught Barjiya

and snatched the axe from him. '
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10.  Dedubai(PW-6), wife of Aapsingh(PW-1) deposed that accusedis .
his Jeth (elder brother of her husband). At the time of incident, she was sleeping.
Pinta was also there. Kalibai came there and Barjiya came with axe and he
assaulted by axe on the head of Kalibai due to which she sustained bleeding
injury and died. Her husband Aapsingh caught Barjiya. In cross-examination,
she deposed that there is only one room in her house where they were sleeping.
At the time of incident, she was sleeping and on hearing the noise she awoke
and saw that Kalibai was lying dead at the door and thereafter she started -
weeping. On specific question, she deposed that she saw the accused
assaulting Kalibai. Accused assaulted Kalibai by axe.

11, It has been argued by the Counsel for the appellant in this respect
that all the witnesses are not the eye witnesses because they reached
immediately on the spot after the incident and they deposed that they saw
Kalibai in dead condition, hence, their ev1dence is not rehable tothe fact that
appellant killed Kalibai.

12.  Considered the arguments. From the spot map (Ex.P/5)itis clear that

- the murder took place at the house of Aapsingh(PW-1). Deduba1(PW-6) is

his wife and Bachcha(PW-5) in his son and there presence is very natural. =
Just after the incident Jadiya(PW-3) and Mohansmgh(PW—4) reached on the
spot and they gathered the information from Pinta and Aapsingh that accused
assaulted and murdered Kalibai. Though they are not the eye witnesses of the
incident but they reached the spot immediately after the incident and learnt
from Pinta and Aapsingh that accused has murdered Kalibai, therefore, the
statement of these witnesses is adlmssxble in evidence according to Section 6
of the Evidence Act.

13. The Section 6 of the Evidence Act is an exception to the general rule
whereunder the hearsay evidence becomes admissible. But for bringing such
hearsay evidence within the provisions of this section, what is required to be
established is that it must be almost contemporaneous with the acts and there
should not be an interval which would allow fabrication. The statement sought
to be admitted, therefore, as forming part of res gestae, must have been made
contemporaneously with the acts or immediately thereafier.

14.  In the case of Sukhar V/s. State of Uttar Pradesh AIR 1999 SC
3883 it was held that,

“Para 6
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. Section 6 of the Evidence Act is an exception to the general rule
whereunder the hearsay evidence becomes admissible. But for bringing such
hearsay evidence within the provisions of Section 6, what is required to be
established is that it must be almost contemporaneous with the acts and there
should not be an interval which would allow fabrication. The statements sought
to be admitted, therefore, as forming part of res gestae, must have been made
_ contemporaneously with the acts or immediately thereafter. The aforesaid rule

- asitis stated in Wigmore’s Evidence Act reads thus :

“Under the present exception (to hearsay) an utterance is by hypothesm _
offered as an assertion to evidence the fact asserted (for example that a car-
brake was set or not set), and the only condition is that it shall have been
made spontaneously, i.e. as the natural effusion of a state of excitement. Now
this state of excitement may well continue to exist after the exciting fact has
ended. The declaration, therefore, may be admissible even though subsequent
to the occurrence, provided, it is near enough in time to allow the assumption,
that the exciting influence continued.”

Para7 .

Sarkar on Evidence (Fifteenth Edition) summarises the law relating to

apphcablhty of Section 6 of the Evidence Act thus

“l,  Thedéeclarations (oral or wntten) must relate to the act which

is in issue or relevant thereto; they are not admissible merely because

'they accompany an act. Moreover the declarations must relate to and
explain the fact they accompany, and not independent facts previous
or subsequent thereto unless such facts are part of a transaction which
is continuous.

2. The declarations must be substantially contemporaneous with
the fact and not merely the narrative of a past.

3. The declaration and the act may be by the same person, or
they may be by different persons, e.g., the declarations of the victim,

- assailant and by-standers. In conspiracy, riot & ¢ the declarations of
all concerned in the common object are admissible.

4, Though admissible to explain or corroborate, or to understand
the significance of the act, declarations are not evidence of the truth of
the matters stated.” :

-]
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Para 8

This Court in Gentela Vijayavardhan Rao V/s. State of A.P. (1996)
SCC 241 : (1996 AIR. SCW 3555 : AIR 1996 SC 2791 : 1996 Cri. L.J:
4151) considering the law embodied in Section 6 of the Evidence Act held
thus (Para 15 of AIR SCW, AIR & Cri. LJ) :

“The principle of law embodied in Section 6 of the Evidence Act is
usually known as the rule of res gestae recognised in English law. The essence
of the doctrine is that a fact which, though not in issue, is so connected with
the fact in issue “as to form part of the same transaction” becomes relevant by
itself. This rule is, roughly speaking, in excéption to the general rulé that
hearsay evidence is not admissible. The rationale in making certain statement
or fact admissible under Section 6 of the Evidence Act is on account of the
spontaneity and immediacy of such statement or fact in relation to the fact in- -
issue. But it is necessary that such fact or statement must be a part of the
same transaction. In other words, such statement must have been made
contemporaneous with the acts which constitute the offence or at least
immediately thereafter. But if there was an interval, however sli ghtit may be,
which was sufficient enough for fabrication then the statement is not part of
res gestae.” '

Para10

" ¥

. Applying the ratio of the aforesaid two cases to the evidence of PW-
2, we have no hesitation to come to the conclusion that his statement indicating
that the injured told him that his nephew has fired at him, would become
admissible under Section 6 of the Evidence Act.” '

150 Inthe case of Bishna alias Bhiswadeb Mahato & ors. V/s. State of
West Bengal AIR 2006 SC 302, 309 it was held that, “where the witnesses
came to place of occurrence immediately after the incident had taken place
and found the dead body.of deceased and other injured victim in unconscious
state also found the mother of the deceased weeping as also injured witness
present there, they heard about entire incident from injured and other witnesses -
including role played by each of the accused and others. The evidence of said
witnesses corroborate evidence of prosecution witnesses as also allegations
made in the FIR, was held to be admissible in evidence in terms of Séction 6
of the Evidence Act.”

- 16.  Therefore, in this case the.evidence of all such.above witnesses is
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admissible in evidence and therefore, it was proved that accused appellant
Barjiya killed his wife Kalibai.

17.  Dr. Durgasingh Chouhan(PW-8) conducted the postmortem of
~ deceased Kalibai wife of Barjiya on 28.08.1999 and gave the postmortem
report (Ex.P/15). He found incised wound 47x1” deep upto brain on the mid '
_ parietal region on head and one incised wound 3 47x1%2” deep upto brain at
the left parietal region on head and one incised wound 47x2”x3” deep oval
shaped on right inguinal region on thigh deep to vessels and muscles, deformity
in left mid 1/3 forearm, fracture of both radius and ulna bone. According to his
opinion the cause of death was, incised wound on the head and right thigh, the
injuries were ante-mortem and homicidal in nature, therefore, the statement of
witnesses was also supported by the medical evidence.

18. It has been argued by learned Counsel for the appellant that the axe
was not produced in evidence, hence it was not proved that the appellant
assaulted his wife by the seized axe. In reply it has been argued by the
prosecution that there is direct evidence of the incident. The seizure memo
was proved from the statement of the Investigating Officer Dharamveer Singh
Chouhan(PW-7). '

19.  Considered the arguments. Dharamveer Singh Chouhan(PW-7), the
Investigating Officer has deposed that on the production of axe by Aapsingh
he seized it by seizure memo (Ex.P/7). Aapsingh(PW-1) in this respect has
deposed that he handed over the axe to police and he put his thumb impression
on the seizure memo. In cross-examination, he has deposed that he told the
police that by this axe the accused assaulted Kalibai. When police came to'his
house, he handed over the axe at that time to police. This fact is mentioned in
the seizure memo(Ex.P/7) that at the house of Aapsingh he handed over the
axe to police which was seized by the police. Therefore, the'seizure memo.
- (Ex.P/7) was proved from the prosecution evidence. The fact remains that the
axe was not produced at the time of the evidence and its blood grouping was
not examined. But in the case of Pradimansinh Kalubha V/s. State of Gujrat
AIR 1992 SC 881, it has been held that,“in case where there is direct evidence,
the absence of blood on weapon of offence or even the non-seizure of weapon .
of offence is of no consequence.” Therefore, in this case non-production of
axe in the evidence is of no value because there is direct and reliable evidence
against the appellant.

20. Therefore, on the basis of the above discussion we reached to the
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conclusion that it was proved from the eviderice produced before the Trial
Court that the appellant Barjiya has murdered his wife, hence this appeal is
devoid of merit. : : .

L

21, 'I:herefort:a, on the basis of the above discussion this ép}ieél is
disallowed accordingly. ' -
' Appeal disallowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 189
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena

Cr. A. No. 1822/1996 (Jabalpur) decidgd on8 Novembef, 2011 -

CHALANIYA DHEEMAR i . ...Appellant
STATE OF M.P. c ...Respondent

A Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(i)(xi) — Proof of Caste — Neither
complainant nor any other witness deposed in the Court that_
contplainant belonged to Scheduled Caste — No Certificate of any

. competent authority to that effect was produced or proved before the

Court — Merely from the fact that in F.I.R., the name of complainant
has been mentioned with her caste, it can not be held that she belonged
to Scheduled Caste in the absence of legal evidence in Court. (Para 10)
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B Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section I.’;_'4

| - ELR. — F.LR. can not be treated as a part of substantive evidence.

) | (Para 10)
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Mohammed Ali with V.K. Shukla, for the appellant.
B.P. Pandey, Dy. G.A. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT
' RAKESE SAKSENA, J. :- Appellant has filed this appeal against the

judgment dated 18% September, 1996 passed by Special Judge (SC & ST

Act), Chhatarpur in Special Case No.161/95 convicting him under section
3(i)(xi) of Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities)
Act, 1989 and sentencing him to rigorous imprisonment for 3 years with fine
of Rs.2000/-. In default of payment of fihe further rigorous mpnsonment for
6 months.

2. ' Inshort, the facts of the case are that on 19.12.1995, at about 12 o"
_ clock in the day, when complainant Hiriya was going to fetch grass from her
field, on way accused/appellant suddenly came from behind and caught her
hand with a view to outrage hermodesty. She tried to get her hand released
but he did not allow her to do so, therefore, she dealt a blow of sickle to him
whereupon he left her. When complainant shouted, Malkhan Singh and Vaishali

reached there. On coming back to her house, she narrated tlie incident to her '

 father-ifi-law Girdhari. On the same day, her father-in-law went to lodge the

report at police outpost, but they asked him to bring the complainant. Onthe

next day, i.e. on 20.12.1995 complainant along with her father-in-law went to
police outpost Bachhaun and lodged report Ex.P/1. The said report was then
sent to police station, Chandala where the offence under section 354 L.P.C,
was registered. After requisite investigation, charge sheet was filed.

3. - Leamned Special Judge framed the charge under section 3(1)(xi) of
SC & ST (Prevention of Atrocities) Act. Accused abjured his guilt and pleaded
false implication. According to him, false report was lodged againsthim because
he had lodged a report against the husband and father-in-law of. complainant

4, Before the trial Court, prosecution examined Hiriya (PW- 1), Malkhan
Singh(PW-2), Vaishali (PW-3) and head constable Devideen (PW-4). Learned
trial Judge, upon trial and after appreciation of the evidence, held the appellant
guilty and convicted and sentenced him as mentioned above. Aggrieved by his
conviction and sentence, appellant has filed this appeal

-

i
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"5, Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the evidence of

complainant Hiriya (PW-1) was not reliable. It was discrepant and

contradictory to the evidence of Malkhan and Vaishali. First Information Report
Ex.P/1 was doubtful as complainant mentioned that a written report was given
to police. It was not established by the prosecution evidénce that complainant
was a member of scheduled caste or scheduled tribe. Counsel further
submitted that in the facts and circumstances of the case, the conviction under
section 3(1)(xi) of the said Act was not permissible. Learned counsel for the
State, on the other hand, justified the impugned judgment of conviction and
submitted that no interference was called for i in the findlng of conviction
recorded by the trial Court.

6. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the
1mpugned judgment and evidence on record.

7. Complamant Hiriya (PW- 1) categorically stated that whlle she was -
going to fetch greenery from her field, as soon as she reached inside the
Nala, dccused came after her running and caught her hand with a view to
outrage her modesty. When he did not leave her hand, she assaulted him with
asickle which she had in her hand and also shouted. Hearing her cries, Vaishali
and Malkhan reached there. Accused then ran away. She went to her house
and narrated the incident to her husband and father-in-law. Her father-in-law
went to police chowki Bachhaun to lodge the report, but police people called
her. Next day, report Ex.P/1 was recorded and her thumb i impression was
obtained. Though this witness was subjected to a lengthy cross-¢xamination,
but nothing material could be elicited out to indicate that she was not a truthful
witness. It is, however, apparént that Hiriya (PW-1) no where stated that she
was a member of scheduled caste or scheduled tribe or she belonged to
scheduled caste. : .

8. Evidence of Hiriya (PW-1) finds corroboration from the evidence of
Maikhan Singh (PW-2) and Vaishali (PW-3). Malkhan (PW-2) stated that at
about 12 o’clock when he was going towards his field, he heard shrieks of
Hiriya and saw accused grappling with her'in the Nala. Looking at h1m

accused ran away. Hiriya told to him that when accused grappled with her
she dealt a blow of sickle to him. He stated that Vaishali was also present
there. Similarly Vaishali (PW-3) stated that when he heard cries in the Nala,
~ herushed to that spot. He saw Hiriya shouting in the Nala and accused running
away from the spot. Hiriya narrated the incident to him. Thus, the evidence of
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complainant Hiriya finds corroboration from the evidence of Malkhan Singh -
- (PW-2)and Vaishali (PW-3).

9. Evidence of Hiriya (PW-1) stands further supported by the first
information report Ex.P/1 lodged by her at police outpost Bachhaun. It is true
that in the first information report Ex.P/1 and Ex.P/2, it was mentioned thata
written report was tendered by Hiriya at the police station and the same was
not produced before the trial Court with the charge sheet, but merely by its
non-production no adverse inference can be drawn since first information
report Ex.P/1 was got recorded by Hiriya herself and she had put her thumb
impression on it. The said reports Ex.P/1 and Ex.P/2 have been proved by
head constable Devideen (PW-4). o

10.  Onaclose scrutiny of the evidence of aforesaid witnesses, it is clearly

established that accused caught the hand of complainant Hiriya (PW-1) in the

Nala with a view to outrage her modesty while she was going to fetch greenery.

However, on scanning the evidence of all the prosecution witnesses, I find
that there is absolutely no legal evidence to establish that complainant Hiriya-
belonged to scheduled caste or scheduled tribe. No certificate of any
competent authority to that effect was produced or proved before the Court.

Neither Hiriya (PW-1) nor any other witness including head constable Devideen
(PW-4) deposed in the Court that she belonged to scheduled caste. Itistrue
that in the first information report Ex.P/1 and Ex.P/2 the name of complainant
has been mentioned as Hiriya Ahirwar, but merely from that it cannot be held
that she belonged to scheduled caste in the absence of legal evidence in the

Court. First Information Report cannot be treated as a part of substantive

evidence. It can be used only for corroboration or contradiction of its maker.

It is also important to note that police registered the offence under section
354 of Indian Penal Code only and not under the provisions of SC & ST

(Prevention of Atrocities) Act. Trial Court recorded the finding that it was
established that accused outraged modesty of the complainant who belonged
1o scheduled caste but it appears to have been based onno legal and substantive

evidence.

11.  Inview of the above circumstances, [ am of the definite view that
prosecution failed to establish that complainant Hiriya (PW-1) belonged to

scheduled caste, therefore, the conviction of appellant under section 3(1)(xi)

of SC-& ST (Prevention of Atrocities) Act was not justified, but since it has

been established that appellant outraged the modesty of complainant, he is
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liable to be convicted under section 354 of the Indian Penal Code by virtue of
Section 222 Cr.P.C., which can be said to be a minor offence. The ingredients

of offence under section 354 are similar in nature to the offence under section’
3(1)(xi) of SC & ST (Prevention of Atrocities) Act, therefore, it cannot be

held that any prejudice was caused to appeliant.

12.  Accordingly, the conviction of accused/appellant under section 3(1)(xi)
of SC & ST Act is modified/converted to one under section 354 of the Indian
Penal Code. The incident had since occurred in the year 1995 i.e. about 15
years back, his sentence of rigorous imprisonment for 3 years isreduced to a
period of rigorous imprisonment for two months. Sentence of fine is affirmed.
Appellant who is reported to be on bail shall surrender before the trial Court
forthwith to serve out the remaining part of sentence.

T

13. ;A‘ppeal partly allowed. _
Appeal partly allowed.

‘LL.R.[2012]M.P. 193
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice T.K. Kaushal

Cr: A. No. 1975/2001 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 November, 2011

RAMRAJ SINGH : ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. : ...Respondent

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 113A — Presumption under —
There should a link and nexus between the act of cruelty and suicide —
Law does not give any presumption for continuity of cruelty —It requires
definite and convincing evidence to prove the cruelty.

On the basis of letters Ex.P/1 & Ex. P/2 written2 2 years and 6
months prior to the incident, continuity of cruelty can not be presumed.

Not only soon before the incident, but in recent past also no act

of cruelty has been proved by the evidence of prosecution by the
_appellants towards the deceased, hence presumption under'Section
113A of the Act is not attracted. ' (Para 27)
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Case referred:
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K.K. Pandey, for the appellant.
Vinod Fouzdar, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

T.K. KAUSHAL, J ;- This judgment shall gov'emdisposal of aforesaid
both appeals arose out of common impugned Jjudgment dated 28/11/2001
passed by Additional Session Judge, Amarpatan, District- Satna in ST. no.

140/1994 convicting the appellants under section 306 of IPC for abatement

of suicide committed by deceased Saroj Singh and seritenced them to 7 yeﬁrs
R.I and with fine of Rs.1000/-, in default 6 months R.I to each.

2. Deceased Saroj Singh was wife of appellant Ramraj Singh, married
on 15/02/1989. Deceased died on 02/06/1994 by hanging herself after killing
two children, aged 4 years and 10 months. Appellant Raghunandan Singh and
appellant Leela Devi Singh are brother and sister-in-law of appellant Ramraj
singh. Chandrabhan Singh (PW-1) and Anurudh-Singh Hajari (PW-5):are
brothers of the deceased. Neeta Singh, wife of Chandrabhan Singh (PW-6) is

sister-in-law of the deceased. e

3. Facts of the case according to charge sheet, in short, are that at the
time of marriage deceased possessed degree of Master of Arts and was
resident of Sagar. Appellant Ramraj Singh husband of deceased was only BA
pass and was resident of village Chourhata and was posted as Clerk in irrigation
department at village-Devlong, District- Shahdol. Appellant Ramraj Singh used
to live alone at his place of posting and deceased live in village Chorhata
along with co-appellants Jeth-Jethani. Husband and his family members were
not happy and satisfied with the items given by brothers of the deceased in
marriage. Deceased was constantly subjected to harassment and torture by
her husband and his family members. At the time of marriage deceased was
assured regarding her service. Deceased was subjected to harassment and
torture by co-appellants by finding faults in herself and her daily house hold
work and by misbehaving with her. In 5 years married life, deceased gave

birth to one daughter and one son. On the date of incident, their agewas4

»
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years and 10 months respectively.'On 02/06/1994 in village Chorhata after
killing two children, bolted herself in a room in matrimonial house, hung herself
by neck through the roof. Raghunandan Singh and appellant Leela Devi Singh
came and knocked the door and somehow managed to open the door and
found her dead hanging herself from the roof leaving two children dead on the
floor. .

4. Neighbour Dharamraj Singh (PW-2) informed the incident to police-
Amarpatan. Marg Ex.P-4 was registered. Naksha Panchayatnama of dead
body Ex.P-6 of the deceased was prepared. Postmortem of deceased was
conducted by Dr.P.K Shukla (PW-11).

-5 Information of death of deceased was sent by the appellants to her
brothers at Sagar by telegram Telegram was received by brother after two
days of the incident i.e on 4t June, 1994, Prior to, they could reach the
village to see her dead body, funeral of the deceased was completed by the
appellants.

6. - 'On25/06/1994, Police Amarpatanregistered a case at crime no. 82/
1994 under section 304B IPC against the appellants. Police statements of
brothers of deceased and other witnesses were recorded. Letters written by
the deceased to her brothers were seized. For comparison of handwriting of
the deceased on letters, college note book Ex.P-18 was also seized. These -
were sent to handwriting expert for examination of handwriting of the
deceased. Visra of deceased was also sent for chemical examination to FSL.

7. After completing investigation, Police Amarpatan, citing 25 witnesses
submitted charge sheet against the appellants under section 304B IPC in the
court of concerned IMFC. Case was committed to the court of sessions for
trial. Trial court framed charges under section 306 and 304B of IPC on the

- appellants. Appellants abjured guilt. Defence of appellants i in the trial court
was that of false implication.

8. To substantiate the case of the prosecution, statements of Chandrabhan
Singh, brother of deceased (PW-1), Dharamraj Singh, neighbour of deceased
(PW-2), Phool Chand Mishra, Head Constable (PW-3), S.P. Chaturvedl

ASI (PW-4), Anurudh Singh Hajari, brother of deceased (PW-5), Neeta Singh,
wife of Chandrabhan Singh (PW-6), Mukesh Jain (PW-7), R.P. Suryavanshi
(PW-8), Mahendra Singh, Sub Inspector (PW-9), and Sukhilal Vishwakarma,
Head Constable (PW-10) and Dr.P.K. Sharma (PW-11) were recorded. To
substantiate defence of the appellants, statements of Yogendranath Tiwari (DW-
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1) and Rajendra Singh (DW-2) were recorded. Appreciating the aforesaid
evidence, trial court acquitted the appellants of the charge under section 304B
of IPC. However, convicted them under section 306 IPC and sentenced them
as above.

9. These appeals, challenging the findings of conviction and sentence,

have been preferred on the grounds that appreciation of evidence is not proper.

Statements of prosecution witnesses are suffering from material contradictions
and omissions. Prosecution failed to prove any ingredients of abatement. Trial
court has disbelieved the witnesses inrespect of demand of dowry. Conviction
of appellants is bad in law. Sentence is harsh. On the other hand, learned
Panel Lawyer supported the findings of conviction and senterice of appellants
and opposed the appeals. '

- 10. . To bring home the charges under 306 IPC, prosecution must prove
the fact of commission of suicide by a person and suicide was the result of
abatement committed by the appellants/accused persons.

11. Abatement has been defined under section 107 IPC which reads as
below:-

Section 107 Abatement of a thing-A person abets the doing -
of a thing, who—

r

First.— Instigates any, person to do that thing; or

Secondly.—Engages with one or more other person or persons
in afty conspiracy for the doing of that thing, if an act or illegal
omission takes place in pursuance of that conspiracy, and in
order to the doing of that thing; or

Thirdly— Intentionally aids, by any act orillegal omission, the
doing of that thing.

12.  Law of Evidence provides certain presumption regarding abatement
of suicide committed by a married woman. Section 113A of the Indian Evidence
Act, 1872 reads as below:- ‘

113 A. Presumption as to abetment of suicide by a married

woman.- When the question is whether the commission of
suicide by a women had been abetted by her husband or any
relative of her husband and it is shown that she had committed
suicide within a period of seven years from the date of her

»
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marriage and that her husband or such relative of her husband
has subjected her to cruelty, the court may presume, having
regard to all the other circumstances of the case, that such
suicide had been abetted by her husband or by such relative
of her husband.

Explanation

For the purposes of this section, “cruelty’ > shall have the same
meaning as in section 498-A of the Indian Penal Code (45 of
1860). '

13.  Accordingto Section 498A of IPC cruelty means:-
Explanation
'For the purpose of this section, “cruelty” means—

(a) any wilful conduct which is of such a nature as is likely to
drive the woman to commit suicide or to cause grave injury or
danger to life, limb or health (whether miental or physical) of
the woman; or

{b) harassment of the woman where such harassment is with a
'view to coercing her or any person related to her to meet any

unlawful demand for any property or valuable security or is

on account of failure by her or any person related to her to
-meet such demand.] '

14.  Inview of the evidence of Ex.P-3 Postmortem report, Ex.P-6 Lash
Panchnama of the deceased, Ex.P-24 F.S.Lreport of clothes and visra of the
deceased, Ex.P-25 Spot Map, and statement of Dr. P.K. Sharma (PW-11),
it remains no longer disputed that death of the deceased was of homicidal
nature occurred within period of 7 years of the marriage in his matrimonial
house. It further remains undisputed that at the time of the commission of
suicide by the deceased, her husband (appellant Ramraj Singh) was not present
in the house rather he had gone to his place of posting, which is about 60-70
kms away from the village.

15.  Learned counsel for the appellants placing reliance on AIR 2002 1)
MPLJ 274 (Dwarika Prasad Soni Vs. State of MP) and submitted that
instances of cruel treatment in the long past cannot be treated as abatement
and further submitted that no evidence has been produced by prosecutionto -

1
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prove any act of cruelty whatsoever attributable to the appellants committed
by them soon before the suicide or in the recent past of the suicide. In the
present case it has to be appreciated whether deceased was subjected to
cruelty by the appellants prior to the incident or not.

16.  Oncareful examination of evidence of Chandrabhan Singh, brother of
deceased (PW-1), Anurudh Singh Hajari, brother of deceased (PW-5)and
Neeta Singh (PW-6) wife of Chandrabhan Singh, it is revealed that deceased
sent letter Ex.P-1 on 23/12/1991 narrating the instances of mis-behaviour
and ill-treatment of the appellants in respect of her work and method of cooking
and other house hold job. In Ex.P-1 there is mention that deceased might
think for committing suicide also, but this letter has.been written about 2 %
years prior to the incident.

17.  Anurudh Singh Hajari (PW-5), brother of the deceased visited the
matrimonial house of deceased 15-20 days prior to the incident. He had gone -
to take the deceased with him to visit to her parent’s house, but she was not
permitted to go with him because as per religious perceptions that time was
not be fitting to travel in that direction.

18.  Ithasalso come in evidence of Chandrabhan Singh, (PW-1), Anurudh
Singh Hajari (PW-5) brothers of the deceased that information regarding death
of deceased was received by telegram after two days of the incident. Anurudh
Singh Hajari (PW-5) stated that he could not see dead body of his sister
because appellants have performed the funeral prior to that. Then he reported
the matter at police station Amarpatan.

19.  Insofar as evidence of letters Ex.P-1 and Ex.P-2 are concerned, it
can be understood that it indicates the facts, circumstances and mind set of
the deceased on 23/12/1991 and on 02/12/1993 respectively. These letters
show frustration of deceased regarding her life in the house of village and her
helplessness inrespect of not getting proper service. At the same time Ex, D-2
to D-14 letters written by either PW-1 or PW-6 to the appellants before or
after aforesaid letters showing everything normal and fine are also onrecord.,
Trial court has rightly appreciated the evidence in respect of demands and .
held evidence to be not sufficient regarding demand of dowry from her soon
before the death of the deceased. ’

20.  According to Chandrabhan (PW-1) deceased did not visit her house
for last about 1 ¥ -2 years from the date of death because appellants used to
discourage such meetings. Anurudh Singh Hajari (PW-5) also visited the house
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of deceased 15-20 days back of her death, but nothing has been complained
by the deceased to him to show whether she was living in adverse or hostile
atmosphere. -

21.  Oncareful perusal of the evidence of PW-1, PW-5 and PW-6, it is
clear that there had been a considerable gap between the mind sets and
educational standard of the deceased and her husband appellant Ramraj Singh.
Deceased was MA pass and was forced by circumstances to live in the house
of village, tolerating regular instructions and criticism of her Jeth and Jethani
. inrespect of daily house hold work. Fact that her husband also does not take
interest to keep her with him at his place of posting saying that quarter is
small, was another cause of her frustration. Deceased was deprived of due
response and status by the appellants as she was expecting in view of her
educational and family back ground both. It is true that deceased succeeded
to sustain such poor life style and treatment of appellants for a period of 5
years after marriage and in the meantime, she was blessed with two children
also, but at last she ended her life in such manner.

22.  Forrebutting presumption of cruelty, defence and evidence of the
appellants in the trial was that deceased was never subjected to any physical
torture by them. At the most appellants can be held liable for not arranging
service for her despite her educational qualifications. The deceased was not
allowed to live with her husband at his place of posting. Such behaviour,
attitude and response of the appellants are the acts of cruelty or not has to be
decided. )

23.  Theappellant in his statement of accused persons recorded under
section 313 of Criminal Procedure Code stated that his house was very small
as he was living in rented private house. Whereas, Yogendra (DW-1) stated
that appellant Ramraj Singh was living in a government quarter, it was one
room quarter only, but any government quarter allotted to a government servant
is never so small so that a husband and wife can not live together. It was a
decision of the appellant to not to keep the deceased with him at the place of
posting. According to DW-2 neighbour of matrimonial house, at the time of
the incident appellant Raghunandan Singh and appellant Leela Devi Singh
were watching T.V in his house. It was a shock to them also that deceased
ended her life like that.

24. - Inview of the aforesaid it has been revealed that frustration of the
deceased began from the date of marriage when a MA pass girl of Sagar
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University was sent in a village having no facility of good kitchen and toilet
even. Constant instructions and criticism of Jeth and Jethani aggreviated the
situation. Even after period of 4-5 years she could not get deserving service,
was the breaking point. She did not find appropriate support from her husband
to live with him at his place of posting along with two children. Disapproval of
quality and style of deceased by Jeth and Jethani and non- appreciation of
wish of the deceased by husband to live with her at the place of posting, were
the acts of cruelty and harassment as per definition of Section 498 A IPC is
the main question before this court to be decided. Not to have caring and
supportive husband, brother in law and sister in law is a different thing, but
subjecting constant harassment and cruelty in matrimonial house is a quite
different thing.

25.  For present case, necessary element of cruelty is causing physical or
" mental pain or suffering to any one by showing such conduct which may drive
the lady in matrimonial house either to commit suicide or to cause injury or
danger to her life, limb or health. No doubt in present unfortunate case after
eliminating two children the deceased committed suicide. It is also true that
unlikely of dowry deaths it is not necessary for abatement of suicide, that
cruelty should have been committed soon before the suicide. But there should
be a reasonable link between the act of suicide and act of cruelty committed
by the accused. If requirement of “soon before” is not expected in case of
abatement of suicide then at least a reasonable link between these two should
always be there.

26.  After happening of this henious and unfortunate incident, to remind
each and every past incident or instance, caused inconvenience and trouble
~ to the deceased, for deciding that to be an act of cruelty, is neither a correct
preposition of fact nor the intention of the law. Letters Ex.P-1 dated 23/12/
1991 and Ex.P-2 dated 2/12/1993, would not be sufficient evidence for
presuming the cruelty on the part of the appellants, resulted in suicide of the
deceased on 2/06/1994. Trial court acquitted the appellants of the charge
under section 304B of IPC, however, convicted them observing continuity of
torturous act of the appellants, right from the date of marriage of deceased till
the date of suicide.

27.  Itistrue that cruelty will be presumptive for abatement of suicide in
such case, but there should a link and nexus between the act of cruelty and
suicide. Law does not give any presumption for continuity of cruelty. It requires
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Ex.P-1 and Ex.P-2 written 2 % years and 6 months prior to the incident,
continuity of cruelty cannot be presumed.

28.  Fact that information of death of the deceased was sent by the
appellants to brothers of the deceased by telegram, is a circumstance showing
lack of sincerity of appellants towards the relationship. Fact that funeral was
performed without waiting for arrival of brothers of deceased is indicative of
guilty mind of appellants, but in view of the fact that brother PW-5 reached
the village after two days of the death of deceased, such circumstance alone
cannot take a place of proof of act of cruelty.

29. In my considered opinion, trial court has erred to presume the
continuity of acts of cruelty for driving the deceased for commission of suicide.
Not only soon before the incident, but in recent past also no act of cruelty
has been proved by the evidence of prosecution by the appellants towards
the deceased, hence présumption under Section 113A of Evidence Actis not
attracted. Evidence is not sufficient to hold the appellants guilty of cruelty
thereby abatement of suicide. Appellants are entitled for benefit of doubt.
Conviction of appellants under Section 306 IPC is not proper and deserves
to be set aside.

30.  Asdiscussed above, conviction and sentence of the appellants under
section 306 IPC is not sustainable and hereby set aside.

Appeals are allowed and appellants are acqultted of the charge
Appeal allowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 201
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice T.K. Kaushal

Cr. A. No. 1287/2006 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 November, 2011

SHAFAT ' ...Appellant
Vs. -
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A, Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 — Rape — Consent *
under promise to marry — It is not clear whether offer of Nikah was
made by the appellant first and then committed intercourse or
intercourse committed by first and then as a consolation offer of Nikah
was n;ade — It is difficult to understand that intercourse has been
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committed under promise of the Nikah. (Para 12)

F TS wizar (1860 FT 45), €T 376 — FAKPIY — [9F &
g7 & Favad weala — ag e T8 & 7@ apfiareff grr gt Frow a7
geaIa T AT AR ey gt wiRa frar ar gsd 9T Pk faar T
R fyv Wica=m @ WY } e & v1d &1 T4 — 98 95T o §
f5 fFree @ 999 @ Iauid ST SIRd fear T

B.  Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 — Rape — Proof —
Previous seven statements of prosecutrix, at different point of time
make the story of prosecution less reliable — Statement of the
prosecutrix does not inspire the confidence and she is not a witness
worthy of credence — No conviction can be based on her such testimony
— Conviction set aside. _ -(Para 14)

. TvS wiear (1860 T 45), ST 376 —~ TAlcHI¥ — GId —
=1 wrr W R T afmifea @ gdadl 9 wem st @ s
Ft B9 fazawig 9@ & — afEife o so9 fazaw sa= -1 @war
R gz fagawfa weEl 4€ € — sadl o uRurew w <dsfifg =t
areia €T fear w1 gdar — siufifa s |

Case referred:
AIR 2007 SC 30359.

S.C.Datt with GP. Patel, for the appellant.
Chandrakant Mishra, G.A. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

T.K. KausHAL, J :- This appeal has been preferred against judgment
dated 03.07.2006 passed by 5t Additional Sessions Judge (FTC) Chhatarpur
in S.T. No. 49/2004 convicting the appellant under section 376 of IPC for-
committing rape on prosecutrix aged 28 years (PW-6) and sentenced to 7
years R.I. and with fine of Rs. 1,000/-.

2. Facts of the case, in short, are that on 23.04.2003 at about 10:00
p-m. that appellant called the prosecutrix in his house for searching showing a
match for her Nikah. While appellant was going on'motorcycle to leave the
prosecutrix at her house back, diverting the route, took her in forest and
committed rape on her. The appellant was a Police Constable and posted at
Police Station Gulganj District Chhatarpur. The prosecutrix was divorced by
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her husband 4 years back, after 10 years of marriage.

3. On 24.04.2003 the prosecutrix (PW-6) approached the police next
day of the incident along with report in writing. Later on submitted some
more such reports. A case was registered on 27.05.2003 against appellant
and his brother under section 376 and 506-B of IPC at Crime No. 01/2003
vide FIR Ex.P-6.

4. On 28.05.2003 vide Ex.P-4 case was registered at Crime No, 0/03
at Police Station Gulganj. On 28.05.2003 prosecutrix was sent for her medical
examination. Lady doctor prepared slides her vaginal swab Vide Ex. P-7 is
her MLC report and was also sent for recording her statement by Sub
Divisional Magistrate Bijawar. Slides of vaginal swab of prosecutrix was sent
for FSL Sagar for chemical examination, Ex.P-13 is FSL report. Appellant
was arrested on 11.06.2003 and was sent for his medlcal examination Ex.

P-14 is his MLC report. :

5. Completing the investigation, citing 16 witnesses, police Gulganj
submitted a charge-sheet against appellant and his brother lllayas urder section
376 and 506-B of IPC in the Court of Judicial Magistrate First Class Bejawar.
Case was committed to the Court of Sessions for trial. Trial Court framed
charges under section 376 and 506-B of IPC and on his brother Illayas.
Appellant along with his brother Illayas abjured guilt. Defence of the accused
persons in the trial was that of false implication.

6. ' To substantiate the case of prosecution statements of Hardayal
Chourasia (PW-1), Bhagwati Yadav (PW-2), Tulsi (PW-3), Raghuveer Prasad
(PW-4), Lakhan Lal Yadav, Sainik (PW-5), Prosecutrix (PW-6), Ramesh
Kumar, A.S.I. (PW-7), Najim Khan (PW-8), Dr. Nidhi Khare (PW-9), R.D.
Singh Kushwaha (PW-10) and Tehjeeb Kazi (PW-11) were recorded. To
substantiate the defence of appellant statement of Selagram, Aaarakshak
(DW-1), Purushotam Das Tiwari, Constable (DW-2) and Anil Tiwari, Head
. Constable (DW-3) were recorded.

7. Appreciating the aforésaid evidence Trial Court acquitted the appellant
and his brother of the charges under section 506-B of IPC, however, convicted
the appellant under section 376 of IPC and sentenced as above.

8. Challenging the aforesaid findings of conviction and sentence this
appeal has been preferred on the grounds that appreciation of evidence is not
proper. The FIR has been lodged with a delay of a month without any
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reasonable explanation. Evidence of prosecutrix is self contradictory and is
not corroborated by either medical evidence or by any independent evidence.
On the other hand, it is submitted by Government Advocate that evidence of
prosecutrix is worthy of credence and has been rightly believed by the Trial

Court.

9. According to prosecutrix (PW-6) rape was committed on 23.04.2003
in respect of the incident her previous statements are available on record as

follows:-

Sr.No.
®

)
(i)
(iv)

™)
D

(vi)

Date
24.04.03

.12.05.03

On or before
26.05.03
27.05.03

28.05.03
28.05.03

29.05.03

Ex.
P-10A

D-3

D-4

P-5

Description

Written typed report addressed to
Superintendent of Police Chhatarpur
received by police on 02.05.2003. It was
not produced along with charge-sheet.
In pursuance of order dated 04.02.2005
passed on application  of prosecutrix
under section 91 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, it was brought on record in
Trial Court.

Affidavit brought on record by appellant
during cross examination of the
prosecutrix.

Statement recorded by police during
enquiry in respect of affidavit Ex.D-3. -

Written report addressed to
Superintendent of Police on the basis of
which Ex. P-6 FIR was recorded.

-FIR registered at Police Station Gulgan,.

Statement of prosecutrix recorded by
SDM Bijawar during investigation.

Police statement of prosecutrix recorded
by under section 146 of the Code or
Criminal Procedure.

.



i

L.L.R.[2012]M.P. Shafat Vs. State of M.P. _ 205

10.  On careful perusal of statements of prosecutrix recorded on
21.06.2004 in Trial Court along with the aforesaid 7 documents of the
prosecutrix it has been revealed that the prosecutrix was a divorcee aged 28
years was left by her husband 4 years prior to the incidence. She-used to live
alone in her house at Gulganj. Appellant was interested in her. Nikah to be
settled with some one. They developed acquaintance for last about a period
of one year. Appellant had a background of physical relations with the
prosecutrix frequently for last one year. According to the prosecutrix appellant
had assured her to have Nikah with her. Rape was committed by the appellant
stating that she had become his wife. Since appellant was a Police Constable,
the prosecutrix found it difficult to convince the police to take any action
against him. :

11. In trial the prosecutrix was subjected to a very lengthy cross
examination. She had changed many houses to live in Gulganj within a period
of 2 years for some or other reasons. Prosecutrix has disowned her previous
statement recorded by SDM, Ex. D-1, saying that she had never been a
consenting party to physical relationship with the appellant. Initially appellant
was helping for her Nikah with some other person. They had been in physical
relationship for last about more than one year on regular basis. Later on
prosecutrix herself showed undue keen-ness in Nikah with the appellant.

12.  Since the case was registered after a period of more than a month"
hence there remains no significance of medical report and FSL report. These
reports do not support the prosecutrix at all. On careful perusal of the whole
statement of prosecutrix. It is not clear whether offer of Nikah was made by
the appellant first and then committed intercourse or intercourse committed
by first and then as a consolation offer of Nikah was made. Considering these
facts either way, it is precipitated from the statement that condition of Nikah
was introduced later on by the prosecutrix in the relationship. In aforesaid
background on the basis of statement of prosecutrix it is difficult to understand
that intercourse has been committed under promise of the Nikah by the
appellant.

13.  Learned counsel for the appellant placed reliance on AIR 2007 SC

3059 Pradeep Kumar Verma v. State of Bihar and another and submitted

' “that perception of the prosecutrix that she might have a Nikah with appellant

at the time of intercourse will not amount to rape committed by the appellant
under promise of the marriage. It has been observed in para 20 and 21:-
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“20.The firsttwo sentences in the above passage need
some explanation. While we reiterate that a promise to marry
without anything more will not give rise to misconception of

- fact within the meaning of Section 90, it needs to be clarified

that a representation deliberately made by the accused with a
view to elicit the assent of the victim without having the intention
or inclination to marry her, will vitiate the consent. If on the

. facts it is established that at the very inception of the making of

promise, the accused did not really entertain the intention of
marrying her and the promise to marry held out by him was a
mere hoax, the consent ostensibly given by the victim will be
of no avail to the accused to exculpate him from the ambit of
Section 375 clause second. This is what in fact was stressed
by the Division Bench of the Calcutta High Court in the case
of Jayanti Rani Panda’s case (supra) which was aprovingly
referred to in Uday’s case (supra). The Calcutta High Court
rightly qualified the proposition which it stated earlier by adding
the qualification at the end —unless the court can be assured
that from the very inception the accused never really intended
to marry her. (emphasis supplied). In the next para, the High
Court referred to the vintage decision of the Chancery Court

which Jaid down that a misstatement of the intention of the -

defendant in doing a particular act would tantamount to.a
misstatement of fact and an action of deceit can be founded

. onit. This is also the view takén by the Division Bench of the

Madras High Court in Jaladu case (vide passage “ed supra).

By making the solitary observation that a false promise isnot a

fact within the meaning of the Code, it cannot be said that this
Court has laid down the law differently. The observations
following the aforesaid sentence are also equally important.
The Court was cautious enough to add.a qualification that no
strait-jacket formula could be evolved for determining whether
the consent was given under a misconception of fact. Reading
the judgment in Uday’s case as a whole, we do not understand

. the Court laying down a broad proposition that a promise to

marry could never amount to a misconception of fact. That is
not, in our understanding, the ratio of the decision. In fact,

+ there was a specific finding in that case that initially the accused’s

It}
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intention to marry cannot be ruled out.

21.These aspects have been elaborately dealt with in
Deelip'Singh’s case (supra). The stage of analyzing the factual

. Materials was yet to be undertaken, But as rightly contended .

. . by the appellant if on a bare reading of the FIR, it shows that o
'no offence had been made out for proceeding situation would -

- be different. It would have been proper for the High Court as
noted above to deal with the matter. elaborately, That apparently
has not been done. .

14.  Inview of the totality of facts and circumstances of the case, incident
0£23.04.2003 appears not to be an act of rape committed by the appellant
on the prosecutrix. Statement of the prosecutrix in this regard does not inspire
~the confidence. Her previous seven statements at different point of time make
the story of prosecution less reliable. Prosecutrix; in present case, isnota
witness worthy of credence. No convxctlon can be based on her such

. testimony.

15. Conv1ct10n of appellant under section 376 of IPC deserves tobeand.
is hereby set' a31de Appeal is allowed . -

Apj')eal alloive.:}l '
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. APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mrs, Justice Sushma Shrivasfava & Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra

" Cr.A.No.1089/1993 (J abalpur) dec1ded on11 November, 2011

RAMDAS KACHHI . -..Appellant
b Vs, , : ’
STATE OFMP. ~ - - T _ ...Respondent

A.  Wordsand Phrases Res Gestae — Eye-witness informed
‘B’ about the incident — Information conveyed by eye-witness to ‘B’ is
. admissible as part of res-gestae, : S (Para 19)

@ WWW—WMMWW wcaerseff weh
#‘B’aﬁma}aﬁ#ﬁﬁam—umwﬁmmm‘wﬁﬂ
ﬁwwafﬁammmﬁﬂma%mﬂmum- :

B, Maxim - Falsus in uno, Salsus in omnibus - Nelther a
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sound rule of law nor a rule of practice (Para 21)

& qﬂ—wm#‘ﬁwm‘w#ﬁw—qmﬁﬁrmm'

frag 2 9 @ ggfa &1 )

C Evidence Act (1 of 1872) Section 3 — Witness — Relative
—No impediment to convict a person on sole testimony of single witness
provided he is wholly reliable — Relationship is not a factor to affect
the credibility of a witness — Foundation has to be laid if plea of false
implication is made. : (Para 22)

T arEy AT (1872 ®7 1), GNT 3 — Wit — R#dqre —
T AIEN @ geara uRwE ) wfa e atwfify e @ fag i
argaq T u¥q 9% 99 wafs q€ Yol feain @ - el @1 s

# gifia o 3 fAv ARE $Re TE  — AER GFRT ST B

uﬁﬁwmmwﬁﬂmﬁmwél

D. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1 974), ecmm 164 -
Statemént of a witness cannot be discarded simply because their statements
were recorded by the Magistrate under Section 164. (Para 25)

=7 gvg YiFgr wlear, 1973 (1974 &7 2), ST 164 — WIE &1
Waﬁ‘qﬁmqﬂmmmmmﬁmﬁﬁaﬁﬁmmam
-srm1s4$am1faaiﬁfaﬁaﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁl

E. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1 974), Section 378
—Power of Appellate Court — Law discussed. (Para 35)

s. TvS yfrar wizar, 1973 (1974 T 2), €T 378 — il

~rgrd w1 wfem — Rfr fRdfay
Cases referred:

(1985) 1 SCC 422, (2010) 10 SCC 123, AIR 1065 SC 277, AIR
1968 SC 1270, AIR 1968 SC 938, (2007) 4 SCC 415 .

Amit Jain, for the appellant.
R.K. Kesharwani, P.L. for the respondent/ State

JUDGMENT

The judgment of the court was delivered by:
R.C. MisHRA, J. :- These appeals, though arising out of two different trials
before the same Judge, relate to the same incident of murder and, therefore,

w
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are interlinked. However, each appeal has to be decided on the evidence led
in the corresponding trial.

2. The appeal, registered as Cri. Appeal No.389/1994, is State’s appeal
against acquittal of seven accused/respondents in respect of the offences
punishable under Sections 148 and 302 read with 149 of the IPC and Brij
Bhushan (since dead), who was impleaded as respondent no.3. The
corresponding judgment was passed by Second ASJ, Tikamgarh on
28.10.1993 in S.T. No.29/88. In that case, cognizance of the offences was
taken upon the complaint made by Khunni, the brother of Gantha (since
deceased). It was upon the FIR lodged by Khunni only that police registered
a case against as many as eight persons viz. all the seven respondents and one
Ramdas for the above-mentioned offences yet, after investigation, charge sheet
was filed against Ramdas only. After conclusion of the trial, registered as S.T.
No.10/87, the same Additional Sessions Judge delivered simultaneously the
judgment convicting Ramdas under Section 302 of the IPC and sentencing
him to undergo life imprisonment. Against this judgment only, the appeal,
numbered as Cri. Appeal no.1089/1993, has been preferred by Ramdas.

3. For the sake of convenience, Session Trial Nos.10/87 and 29/88 shall
be referred to as the police case and the complaint case respectively and the
witnesses as well as the exhibited documents shall be referred to by placing
/P’ or ‘/C’ (as the case may be) after their respective numbers in each case.
Further, the accused persons shall be referred to by their respective names.

4. Needless to point out that the State’s appeal, so far as it concerns
Brij Bhushan, has abated consequent to his death on 03.03.1999.

5. Contents of the FIR (Ex.P-7/P), said to have been lodged by Khunni
(PW9/P), at 3.15 p.m. on 8.11.1985 and scribed by Sub-Inspector S.K.
Goswami (PW13/P) at Digoda Outpost, may be summarized as under —

(a) - On08.11.1985 at about 9 a.m. in village Bilgaon, Ramdas
along with Gorelal, Mulua and Parmanand @ Sukka came to the Well
belonging to Gantha and Khunni and persuaded Gantha to move
‘towards their Well which was situated at a short distance. Immediately
thereafter, Parwatia and Beti Bai (PW10/P), respectively the mother
and wife of Gantha, arrived at his Well to give breakfast. On being
informed that Gorelal and his companions had taken Gantha to their
Well, Parwatia directed Khunni to bring him back.
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(b)  AsKhunni reached near Gorelal’s Well, Munnu and Kalloo,
who were standing there, asked him to return, saying that Gantha was
not there. At this point of time only, Khunni looked around and noticed
that (i) Gantha, being overpowered by Gorelal, Parmanand, Mulua,

" Brij Bhushan, Kailash and Ramdas, was lying on the ground near a
Mahua tree (ii) Kailash, while saying that inspite of an axe blow given
by him, Gantha had not died, had exhorted Ramdas to deal yet another
blow and (fii) Ramdas had then struck a blow with axe on Gantha’s
neck.

(v) Shouting for help, Khunni started running away towards the
village and in the meanwhile, Parwatia and Beti Bai also rushed to the
spot but Ramdas and his companions fled away.

(d)  Onreaching the village, Khunni (PW9/P) informed Swami
Prasad (PW6/P), the Chowkidar and co-villagers namely Kuttu Lalla,
Sobran Singh, Vishal Singh and Brijbhan Ghosi about the incident. All
of them accompanied Khunni upto the spot located in Gorelal’s field
wherein Gantha was lying dead.

6. As indicated already, upon the FIR, a case under Sections 147, 148
and 302 read with 149 of the IPC was registered against as many as 8 accused
persons including Ramdas. After inquest proceedings, dead body of Gantha
was sent for post-mortem examination. Autopsy Surgeon Dr. J.K. Jain (PW2)
opined that cause of Gantha’s death was syncope due to haemorrhage. He
also preserved a half shirt and a dhoti worn by the deceased for chemical
examination.

7. During investigation, S.K. Goswami (PW13) inspected the place ¢.
occurrence and seized control and bloodstained soil, axe and bloodstained
Safi therefrom. Ramdas surrendered at the police station on 10/11/1985 and
from his possession; bloodstained white terry-cot shirt and towel were seized.
The investigating officer also seized Mulua‘s bloodstained shirt, said to have
been worn by him at the time of incident. All these articles were forwarded to -
FSL, Sagar for chemical examination. Corresponding report (Ex. P-23)
indicated that except the ordinary soil, all the seized articles contained blood.

The Chemical Examiner transmitted the exhibits to Serologist for further
examination. However, the Serologist could only determine presence of human
blood on the shirts, axe, safi & dhoti and was not able to determine the origin
of bloodstains found on the earth and towel.
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8. Upon completion of the investigation, charge sheet was submitted on
24.12.1985 against Ramdas only in the Court of IMFC, Jatara, who committed
the case to the Court of Session for trial. In that Court only, on 13.12.1985,
Khunni filed a complaint arraigning all the eight persons named in the FIR as
accused. Complaint contained almost the same allegations as were recorded
in the FIR. It was further alleged that in order to save themselves from
prosecution, all the co-accused had not only produced Ramdas before the
SHO but also persuaded him not to'disclose identity of his associates in the
murder.

9. After making an inquiry into the complaint, the Magistrate, for the
reasons recorded in the order-dated 21.03.1987, proceeded to issue process
against all the seven persons impleaded as co-accused and vide order-dated
21.04.1988, committed the case to the Court of Session for trial.

10.  Letus first deal with merits of the appeal against conviction in question.

11.  Onbeing charged with the murder, appellant Ramdas abjured the guilt
and pleaded false implication due to enmity in view of the fact that the
complainant party belonged to rival political group in the village. However, no
evidence was led in defence. Prosecution sought to prove the charge by
examining as many as 13 witnesses including Gorelal (PW1/P) and Mulua
(PW7/P), who were named as members of an unlawful assembly having a
common object to kill Gantha.

12.  Legality and propriety of the impugned conviction have been challenged
on the following grounds -

) The trial was vitiated due to violation of mandate of Section
210 of the Code of Criminal Procedure (for short ‘the Code’), requiring
the Judge to club both the cases, though arising out of the police report
and the private complaint and hold a common trial.

(i) Evidence of Gorelal and Mulua, who were prosecuted by
Khunni as the persons involved in the murder of his brother Gantha,
could not be taken into account for recording the finding of guilty
particularly when they had contradicted each other on material points.

@)  Testimony of Khunni (PW9/P) was not worthy of credence
particularly when his presence at the spot, was not accepted by Mulua
(PW7/P) and Gorelal (PW1/P) and his version was not corroborated
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by Swami Prasad (PW6/P), the Chowkidar.

(iv)  Existence of as many as eight incised wounds on Gantha’s
body supported recitals of the FIR, suggesting involvement of at-least
six persons in the murder.

In response, while making reference to the incriminating pieces of
evidence on record, learned Panel Lawyer has submitted that the conviction
is well founded on merits,

13, Atthe outset, it may be observed that the objection as to validity of
trial is apparently misconceived in view of decision of the Supreme Court in

Harjinder Singh v. State of Punjab (1985) 1 SCC 422, that has been

reaffirmed in Pal @ Palia v. State of U.P. (2010) 10 SCC 123. Accordingly,

in the peculiar facts and circumstances of the case, indicating that Gorelal and

Mulua, though cited as eyewitnesses in the charge sheet, were arraigned as
accused in the complaint, the learned Judge was required to hear the cases

and take evidence separately.

14, Before entering into merits of the other contentions, it would be
necessary to first advert to the medical evidence on record. Dr. J.K. Jain
(PW2/P), the Autopsy Surgeon proved existence of the following injuries on
the dead body of Gantha'—

) Incised wound 12 cm x 3 cm x 3.5 cm over left side face over
mandible, cutting the lobule of ear. Underlying BVS, MS, nerves and
bone (mandible) is cut, exposed, direction towards downwards and
posterior.

(ii) Incised wound 10 cm x 2.5 cm x 3 cm below the injury (i}
direction towards downwards and backwards underlying BVS, MS,
* bone exposed.

@) Incised wound 4.5 cm x 2 cm x 3.5 cm cutting MS, BVS,
nerves, vertebral and spinal cord at level of C3/C4 direction downward
and backward.

(v)  Incised wound 4 cmx 2 cm x 2 em, 3 cm below injury (iii);
MS, BVS cut seen in the floor forward direction toward downwards
posterior.

(v)  Incised wound 3ecm x 1.5 cm x 2 cm over posterior aspect
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right side of the neck 2” above supra scapular region transversaily
forward downwards. :

(vi) Incised wound 3 cm x 1.5 cm x 1.5 cm over left scapular
region medial border middle direction longitudinal downwards laterally.

(vii)  Incised wound 3 cmx 0.5 cm x 0.5 cm over left supra scapular
region downward laterally.

(viii) Incised wound 3 cm x 0.5 cm x 0.4 cm over posterior aspect
at left side base of the neck downwards laterally.

In the opinion of Dr. J.K. Jain, the death was caused as a result of
syncope due to haemorrhage. According to him, injury no.(iii) [above] was
sufficient in the ordinary course of nature to cause death whereas other injuries
were also of the same magnitude as they had resulted into extensive
haemorrhage. He further admitted that all the aforesaid injuries could be caused
by means of a single weapon/ multiple weapons having sharp edge.

15.  Thus, inthe light of the medical evidence, learned trial Judge rightly
held that death of Gantha was homicidal in nature.

16.  Coming to the other evidence on record, it may be seen that Gorelal,
Mulua, Khunni and Beti Bai were examined as eyewitnesses to the murder.
Out of them, Gorelal and Mulua, admittedly, were tried in the complaint case
upon charges of the offences punishable under Sections 148 & 302 read with
149 of the IPC. In this background, before re-analyzing the evidence of Gorelal
and Mulua, we would prefer to first re-appreciate the testimony of Khunni
and Beti Bai.

17.  Khunni (PW9/P) substantially reiterated the version recorded by Sub-
Inspector S.K. Goswami (PW13/P) in the FIR (Ex.P-7/P) at his instance
only. As per his statement, - (a) While searching his brother Gantha, as he
reached near the Well belonging to Gorelal, Kalloo and Munnu misinformed
him that Gantha had not come there but he was able to witness that inside the
Badi, Ramdas, Mulua, Gorelal, Kailash, Brajbhushan and Parmanand were
not allowing his brother Gantha to rise from the ground and were assaulting
him with axes, (b) Kailash, while saying that Gantha had survived even after
sustaining his blow with axe, insisted upon Ramdas to strike further blow, ()
he could not save Ramdas from further assault because he was chased out by
Munnu and Kalloo, (d) raising alarms, he rushed to the village and on the
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way, apprised Beti Bai of the assault on Gantha and on reaching the village,
informed Chowkidar Swami, Kalloo and others about the incident, () Kuttu
Lala, Bhujbal and Swami came, along with him, to the spot located near
Gorelal’s Well where bloodstained dead body of Gantha was lying and (f)
thereafter, he proceeded on foot to the Police Outpost at Digeda to lodge the
FIR,

18.  After deposing in Para 2 of the chief examination that it was Ramdas,
who was having axe, Khunni further asserted in Para 16 of the cross-
examination that he had seen only Ramdas dealing axe blows on the person of
Gantha who, according to him, was overpowered by Kailash, Parmanand,

Brijbhushan and their companions by pushing down. He was cross-examined

at length but nothing could be elicited so as to suggest that he was, in any way,
interested in securing conviction of Ramdas on false grounds.

19.  Beti Bai (PW10/P) supported the facts, as stated by Khunni, that
while running away from the spot, he had informed her about the incident.
Although, she claimed to have witnessed the later part of the occurrence yet,
asrightly concluded by leamed trial Judge, her claim did not inspire confidence
for the following reasons —

) Khunni clearly admitted that the place where she had met him was
situated at a distance of one furlong from the spot and at an equal distance
from the village whereas, according to him, Gorelal’s well was located at a
distance of one Kilometer from the Village.

(i) Her assertion that she had seen Ramdas and Kailash assaulting Gantha
with respective axes and four persons namely Brijbhushan, Gorelal, Parmanand
and Mulua, constraining him, did not find place in her case diary statement
(EX.D-4/P) that only suggested that she had seen Ramdas and his companions
fleeing away from the place where her husband was lying dead.

Still, the information conveyed by Khunni to her was admissible as
part of res gestae.

20.  Investigating Officer S.K. Goswami (PW13/P) could not recover any
other axe than the one found lying near Gantha’s dead body at the spot. He
was not cross-examined on the point of seizure of a terrycot shirt and towel
from the possession of Ramdas, As indicated in the report of the Serologist
(Ex.P-22), shirt belonging to Ramdas was found stained with human blood
and non-explanation therefor, also lent assurance to the prosecution version.

iw

L
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21.  Evidence of Khunni, so far as it related to the complicity of Ramdas in
the murder, could not be disbelieved on the ground that in the FIR as well as
in the complaint, he had alleged involvement of seven other persons in the
crime. The maxim *falsus in uno, falsus in omnibus’ is neither a sound rule
of law nor a rule of practice. Hardly one comes across a witness whose
evidence does not contain a grain of untruth or at any rate exaggerations,
embroideries or embellishments. It is, therefore, the duty of the couit to
scrutinize the evidence carefully and, in terms of the felicitous metaphor,
separate the grain from the chaff. But, the doctrine does not apply when grain
is not separable from chaff because the truth and falsehood are inextricably
mixed up. The Court cannot obviously disbelieve the substratum of the
prosecution case or the material parts of the evidence and reconstruct a story
of its own out of the rest (Ugar Ahir v. State of Bihar AIR 1965 SC 277
relied on). :

22.  Thereisno legal impediment in convicting a person on the sole testimony
of a single witness provided he is wholly reliable. Further, relationship isnota
factor to affect credibility of a witness. Foundation has to be laid if plea of
false implication is made. Being the younger brother of the deceased, Khunni
was not likely to spare the real assailant and implicate an innocent person. As
pointed out already, his testimony as against Ramdas drew ample support
from res gestae evidence of Beti Bai, recitals of the FIR and a consistent
medical as well as forensic evidence. The Autopsy Surgeon also did not rule
out possibility of use of a single weapon in causing the injuries found on the
dead body. In the light of the overwhelming evidence on record, non-
corroborative evidence of Swami Prasad, the Chowkidar (PW6/P) did not
assume-any significance. '

23.  In such a situation, even if the testimony of Gorelal and Mulua is
excluded from consideration, the remaining prosecution evidence, being cogent,
consistent and creditworthy, would be sufficient to uphold the conviction of
Ramdas as justified.

24.  Reverting to the evidence of Gorelal (PW1/P) and Mulua (PW7/P), it
may be observed that both had deposed to have witnessed the murderous
assault. They were unanimous in saying that Gantha was killed by Ramdas
only. According to them, at the behest of Gantha, liquor was consumed near
Mulua’s Well by them, Gantha and Ramdas together and immediately
thereafter, they had seen Ramdas inflicting axe blows on Gantha and as Mulua
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tried to catch hold of Ramdas, he ran away but was chased by Mulua, who
caught him at a short distance. Their statements suffered from inconsistency
on the point as to why Ramdas was not taken to the village. Mulua asserted
that he had let Ramdas off at the instance of Gorelal whereas Gorelal clearly
stated that Ramdas was able to extricate himself from the clutches of Mulua.
However, this minor discrepancy could not be a ground for rejection of their
testimony.

25.  Evidence of Gorelal and Mulua could not be discarded simply because
their statements were recorded by the Magistrate under Section 164 of the
Code (Ram Charan v. State of U.P. AIR 1968 SC 1270 referred to).

26.  Furthermore, Gorelal and Mulua did not, in any way, confess their
involvement in the murder whereas in Laxmipat Choraria v. State of
Maharashtra AIR 1968 SC 938 (relied on by learned trial Judge for taking
into account their evidence), objection as to admissibility of testimony of
even a self-confessed criminal, who admitted her role in conspiracy to smuggle
gold, as a witness, was rejected and it was held that she was a competent
witness but her evidence, if subjected to scrutiny and the usual checks for
corroboration, could be received with due caution.

27.  Asadmitted by Beti Bai, Brijbhushan and Gandharva Singh were rival
contestants in the election for the office of Sarpanch and her husband (Gantha)
and brother-in-law (Khunni) supported Gandharva Singh whereas Ramdas,
Parmanand, Gorelal and Mulua were in the political group led by Brijbhushan.
Against this backdrop, mere fact that Gorelal and Mulua were named by
Khunni in the FIR and in the complaint as persons from amongst the assailants
of Gantha was not sufficient to make their evidence unworthy of credit. The
eyewitness account given by them could be acted upon as it was corroborated
in material particulars by the other evidence on record.

28.  To sumup, even without going into question as to whether Gorelal.
_ and Mulua were accomplices, it could safely be concluded that they had
- ‘witnessed the assault leading to Gantha’s death.

29.  Thus, viewed from any angle, the appeal preferred by Ramdas has no
merit or substance. In the light of the overwhelming evidence on record, his
conviction deserves to be affirmed as well merited.

30.  Thisbringsus to the State’s appeal against acquittal of Gorelal, Mulua, -
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Kailash, Parmanand, Munnu and Kalloo. It is relevant to note that complainant
Khunni (PW1/C) has not preferred any revision against the order of acquittal.
As such, the appeal against the acquittal of seven persons who, though named
in the FIR lodged by Khunni as members of the unlawful assembly involved in
the murder of Gantha, were not prosecuted for the offences on its behalf,
discloses a self-contradictory approach on the part of the State.

31. At the trial, all the seven accused persons were charged with the
offences punishable under Sections 148 and 302 read with 149 of the IPC as
per the allegations contained in the complaint and the supportive evidence
brought on record. They denied the charges and pleaded that group rivalry
had led to their prosecution on totally false grounds. In the examination, under
Section 313 of the Code, they further pleaded that the natives of the village
were divided into two factions; one led by Brijbhushan and the other by Sobran
Singh/Gandharva Singh (PW10/C) who also enjoyed support of complainant
Khunni, his brother Gantha, Indal (PW3/C), and Jahari (PW4/C). Two co-
villagers namely Hardas (DW1/C) and Jasrath (DW2/C) were examined to
support the plea of false implication due to internal rivalry. Both of them clearly
deposed that their false implication was an off-shoot of the election for the
office of Sarpanch in which Brijbhushan had defeated Sobran Singh.

32.  To bring home the charges, the prosecution called 11 witnesses in all.,
Amongst these, complainant Khunni (PW1/C), Beti Bai (PW2/C), Indal
(PW3/C) and Jahari (PW4/C) were examined as eyewitnesses to the incident.
The other witnesses were —

@) S.K. Goswani (PW6/C), the then in-charge of Digoda
Outpost, who registered the case upon the FIR (Ex.P-1/C) lodged
by Khunni and investigated thereinto.

(@) Ramswaroop (PW5/C)and Gyan Singh (PW9/C), the panch
witnesses to the seizure memo (Ex.P-3C/C) evidencing seizure of
bloodstained shirt of Mulua by S.K. Goswani (PW6/C).

(i) Harinarayan (PW7/C), the Patwari, who prepared the spot
map (Ex.P-10/C).

(iv)y  Chandrashekar (PW8/C), the then SHO of Police Outpost
Digora, who registered the case at the Outpost.

(v)  Gandharva Singh (PW10/C) as witness to inquest panchnama



218 Ramdas Kachhi Vs. State of M.P. (DB) L[.L.R.[2012]M.P.
(Ex.5C/C) and memo seizure (Ex.P7C/C).

(vi)  Dr. J.K. Jain, the Autopsy Surgeon and scriber of the
corresponding report (Ex.P-6C/C).

33.  Khunni (PW1/C) came forward to corroborate the recitals of the FIR,
as already reproduced above, indicating involvement of Gorelal, Mulua,
Brijbhushan, Kailash, Parmanand, Munnu and Kalloo in Gantha’s murder. In
the complaint case, Beti Bai (PW2/C) claimed to have seen the murderous
assault on her husband Gantha. These relatives of the deceased further
introduced Indal and Jahari as eyewitnesses to the incident. According to
Khunni, when he returned to the spot along with Swami and the other co-
villagers, he had found Indal and Jahari standing there. Both Indal and Jahari
vividly described as to how they were able to witness the assault on Gantha in
the course of which Brijbhushan, Parmanand, Gorelal and Mulua had pressed
"down upon him and Ramdas as well as Kailash had inflicted injuries with
respective axes on his person.

34.  Abare perusal of the judgment would reveal that finding of not guilty
was recorded for the following reasons -

] Khunni (PW1/C) clearly admitted that his mother Parwatia
and sister-in-law Betibai were not able to witness the assault leading
to death of his brother Gantha and, therefore, the eyewitness account
given by Beti Bai to the effect that she was able to view the spot from
the hillock did not inspire confidence.

(i)  Testimony ofIndal (PW3/C) and Jahari (PW4/C), who claimed
to be eye-witnesses was apparently unworthy of credence in view of
a candid admission made by Khunni in para 18 of his statement that
he had to run away from the spot as none else was present to witness
the incident or to render assistance to him.

(iii) Indal categorically admitted that he was prosecuted for

- attempting murder of Mulua by firing a gunshot whereas Jahari also
acknowledged that in a criminal case ending in conviction Kailash had
appeared as a witness against him.

(iv)  S.K. Goswami, the Investigating Officer, clearly explained as
to why charge sheet was filed against Ramdas despite the fact that as
many as 8 persons were named in the FIR as the persons involved in
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35.

the murderous assault.

(v)  The FIR was lodged more than 6 hours after the incident and

no plausible explanation was given for the delay.

(vi)  Eveninthe statement of so-called eye-witnesses including the

complainant, no active role of Kallu and Munnu was reflected.

On a conspectus of all the leading decisions on the subject, the Apex
Court, in Chandrappa v. State of Karnataka (2007 (4) SCC 415), culled
out the following general principles regarding powers of the appellate court

while dealing with an appeal against an order of acquittal -

(1) An appellate court has full power to review, re-
apprec1ate and reconsider the evidence upon which the order

- of acqu1tta1 is founded.

(2)  The Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 puts no
limitation, restriction or condition on exercise of such power
and an appellate court on the evidence before it may reach its
own conclusion, both on questions of fact and of law.

(3)  Various expressions, such as, “substantial and

compelling reasons”, “good and sufficient grounds”, “very
strong circumstances”, “distorted conclusions”, “glaring:

mistakes”, etc. are not intended to curtail extensive powers of

an appellate court in an appeal against acquittal. Such

phraseologies are more in the nature of “flourishes of language™

to emphasise the reluctance of an appellate court to interfere

with acquittal than to curtail the power of the court to review

the evidence and to come to its own conclusion.

(4)  Anappellate court, however, must bear in mind that in
case of acquittal, there is double presumption in favour of the
accused. Firstly, the presumption of innocence is available to
him under the fundamental principle of criminal jurisprudence
that every person shall be presumed to be innocent unless he
is proved guilty by a competent court of law. Secondly, the
accused having secured his acquittal, the presumption of his
innocence is further reinforced, reaffirmed and strengthened
by the trial court.
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(5)  Iftworeasonable conclusions are possible on the basis
of the evidence on record, the appellate court should not disturb
the finding of acquittal recorded by the trial court.

36.  Taking into consideration the reasons assigned for arriving at the
findings in the face of evidence on record, the view taken by the trial Court
was apparently a possible view. As such, no interference, with the order of
acquittal, is called for.

37. Intheresult, both the appeals are dismissed. Conviction of appellant
Ramdas under Section 302 of the IPC and consequent life sentence are hereby
affirmed and acquittal of Gorelal, Mulua, Kailash, Parmanand, Munnu and
Kalloo for the offences under Sections 148 and 302 read with 149 of the IPC
in the complaint case is also upheld. The bail bonds furnished by Gorelal,
Mulua, Kailash, Parmanand, Munnu and Kalloo shall stand discharged.

38.  Appellant Ramdas is on bail. He is directed to surrender to his bail
bonds before the trial Court on or before 11.01.2012 for being committed to
custody for undergoing the remaining part of the sentence.

39.  Copy of the judgment be retained in the connected criminal appeal.
Appeal dismissed
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra

Cr. A. No. 1037/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 17 November, 2011

RADHELAL & anr. ...Appellants
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 306 — Abetment of Suicide —
Report of Chemical Examiner indicating that on examination at the
F.S.L., no chemical poison was detected in the viscera of the deceased
— Commission of the suicide was not established with reasonable
certainty — Conviction under Section 306 of the IPC could not be
recorded — Conviction set aside. (Paras 6 & 8)

70T UIRar (1860 ¥T 45), ST 306 — JTHEAT ST 90T — CATET
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Cases referred:
AIR 1989 SC 378, AIR 1984 SC 1622,

A.M. Trivedi with Sanjay Patel & Sushil Mishra, for the appellants,
Amit Kumar Sharma, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

R.C. Misnra J :-This appeal has been preferred against the
judgment-dated 26.04.1996 passed by Second Additional Sessions Judge,
Seoni in 5.T.N0.59/92, whereby each one of the appellants, though charged
with the offences punishable under Section 306 and in the alternative under
section 498A of the IPC, was convicted under Section 306 of IPC and
sentenced to undergo R.I. for 7 years and to pay fine of Rs.5,000/- and in
default, to suffer R.I. for 6 months.

2. Prosecution story, in short, may be narrated thus -

@ Savitri Bai (since deceased), a resident of village Padhera,
was the daughter of Gorelal (PW1). Her marriage was solemnized
with appellant no.1 Radhelal (hereinafter referred to as *A1°) nearly
four years prior to her untimely death. In the wedlock, they were
blessed with a son.

(i) At the relevant point of time, A1 was residing separately from
his parents as, being a gambler, he had been thrown out of the parental
house. Savitri had a happy married life for a period of about 3 years.
Thereafter, she had been subjected to cruelty and harassment not only
by A1 but also by his relative appellant no.2 Seetaram (for short ‘A2”)
for her failure to bring an amount of Rs.5,000/- from her father. In
such a situation, she was compelled to leave her matrimonial home.
However, in the wake of assurance given by-Sevaram (DW1), the
brother-in-law of A1, that the ill-treatment would not continue any
further, Savitri was sent to A1’s house only one-and-half months prior
to the incident in question. '
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3.
4.

on the following grounds —

5.
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@)  Ultimately, in the night intervening 2™ and 3™ of May 1992,
Savitri committed suicide presumably by consuming a poisonous
substance.

(iv)  Upon intimation given by A1 to the effect that Savitri died due
to dehydration, a morgue (death case) was registered. After inquest
proceedings, the dead body was sent to Community Health Centre at
Ghansour. The post-mortem was conducted by a panel of doctors
comprising Dr. Arjun Saxena (PW3) and Dr. Hemant Chandravanshi.
Expressing inability to give any definite opinion as to cause of Savitri’s
death, they preserved her viscera for histo-pathological and chemical
examination.

(v)  Gorelal produced a letter (Article “A’) containing instances of
cruelty meted out to Savitri at the hands of both the appellants. In the

" light of the findings of the morgue inquiry, ASI O.P. Vinodia (PW4)

registered a case under Section 306 of IPC by scribing the FIR
(Ex.P-7).
The appellants abjured the guilt and pleaded false implication.

Legality and propriety of the impugned conviction have been challenged

(§1)] There was nothing on record to sﬁggest that Savitri had
committed suicide.

()  Letter (Article ‘A’) that was taken into account as one of the
incriminating pieces of evidence was not proved to have been written
either by the deceased herself or by any identifiable person at her

T nstance.

In response, learned Panel Lawyer has submitted that the conviction
is well founded.

Although, Dr. Arjun Saxena (PW3) proved existence of an ante-

mortem bruise 2” x 2” on the left upper buttock region of Savitri yet, he
clearly admitted that the injury could be caused due to fall on or friction against
hard surface. Further, the post-mortem report indicated (Ex.P-5) that Savitri’s
stomach, large intestine and bladder were empty and the Autopsy Surgeon
did not rule out the possibility that continuous vomiting and loose motion could
be the cause for the aforesaid condition of the abdomen. He clearly admitted
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that the improperly treated victim has a high probability of dying due to
dehydration. In such a situation, the core question was as to whether any
poisonous substance was consumed by or administered to Savitri ?

6. The disturbing feature of the case is that the report of Chemical
Examiner indicating that on examination at the FSL, no chemical poison was
detected in the viscera of the deceased, escaped consideration. Neither the
Public Prosecutor nor the defence counsel bothered to bring the report to the
notice of the trial Judge, who also missed this material aspect of the matter
through carelessness. It is relevant to note that the memo of appeal does not
contain any reference to the FSL report. Needless to say that, by virtue of
sub-section (4) of Section 293 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, the
Chemical Examiner’s report can be read in evidence without any formal proof.

7. Contents of the report available on record are sufficient to answer the
question posed above in the negative. In other words, Savitri’s death was not
caused due to poisoning.

8. In these circumstances, learned trial Judge erred in holding that it was a
case of suicide. Since commission of the suicide was not established with
reasonable certainty, conviction under Section 306 of the IPC could not be
recorded (Wazir Chand v. State of Haryana, AIR 1989 SC 378 referred to)..

9. *Lawis well settled on the point that even in a case of suicide, letter
written by the deceased, which is directly connected with or related to death
in question would fall within four corners of Section 32 of the Indian Evidence
Act (Sharad Biridhichand Sarda vs. State of Maharashtra AIR 1984 SC
1622 relied on). However, even if it is assumed that Savitri had committed
suicide, the inland letter (Article ‘A%), relied on by learned trial Judge, could”
not have formed basis of the impugned conviction as its authenticity was in
cloud in view of the following facts -

D A bare perusal of the letter, reflecting that Savitri was
persistently subjected to cruelty and harassment due to non-satisfaction
of demand for a sum of Rs.20,000/- by both the appellants, would
reveal that it was not written by Savitri herself,

@)  The letter appears to have been posted on 02.05.92 and
delivered on 13.05.92 whereas, according to Gorelal (PW1),
transmission of the letter from Dhanwai to Sukti by post requires only
3 days.
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()  Gorelal candidly acknowledged that he had not made any

- complaint regarding the dowry harassment meted out to Savitri in her
matrimonial home to any person or authority at any earlier point-of
time. '

(iv)  Sevaram (DW1), cited in the charge sheet as the witness, who
had brought Savitri back to her matrimonial home nearly one-and-half
months prior to her untimely death, did not substantiate the prosecution
version as to cruelty at the hands of the appellants.

10. . Thus, the assertions made by Gorelal to the effect that the letter was
written by Savitri and further that even prior to her death, it had reached his
hands, were not acceptable.

11.  Forthesereasons, the appeal is allowed. The impugned conviction
and consequent sentences are hereby set-aside. Instead, the appellants are ‘
acquitted of the offence. Fine amount, if deposited, be refunded. )

12. The appellants are on bail. Their bail bonds shall stand discharged.
Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
- Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra
Cr. A. No. 239/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 November, 2011

BAJAALIAS BAJASINGH ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ..-Respondent

Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(1)(xi) — Assault to a woman —
Where the accused being a stranger knows and has reason to believe
that the victim of the offence is a member of such a caste or tribe, the
offence would squarely fall under Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act and it would
not be necessary to establish further that the offence was committed
on the ground that she belongs to such a Caste or Tribe.  (Para 17)
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Cases referred:
2005 (1) MPLJ 449, (2004) 1 SCC 215, (2006) 3 SCC 771.

R K. Samaiya and 1 K. Dwivedi, for the appellant.
Amit Kumar Sharma, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

R.C. MisHRrA, J :- This appeal has been preferred against the
judgment dated 16/1/96 passed by Sessions Judge [designated as Special
Judge under the Scheduled Castes and the Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Afrocities) Act, 1989] (for short ‘the Act’), Sehore in Special Case No.135/
93, whereby the appellant was convicted under Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act
and sentenced to undergo R.I. for 6 months and to pay a fine of Rs.200/- and
in default, to suffer S.I. for 1 month.

2. Prosecution story, in short, may be narrated thus -

(i)  On 21/8/93, the prosecutrix (PW1), a resident of Village
Bandariya Haat and member of a Scheduled Caste, had gone to graze
her bullocks in the Jungle of Badli. At about 4 p.m., the appellant, a
native of Village Dhand, whose lands were contiguously situated, came
from behind and after catching hold of her neck, fell her down near
Khakra (Palasa) tree. She started shouting but the appellant not only
pressed her mouth but also gave slaps while giving threat to kill.
Hearing the commotion, Ganpat (PW4), who was grazing cattle ata
short distance, came to the spot and the appellant then fled away.

()  Uponthe FIR (Ex.P-1)lodged by the prosecutrix, a case under
Sections 354 of the IPC and 3(1)(xi) of the Act was registered at
Police Station Ashta. The prosecutrix was sent to CHC, Ashta where
Dr. Suresh Shrimal (PW7) examined her. After due investigation,
charge-sheet for the offences under Sections 323 & 354 of the IPC
and 3(1)(xi) of the Act was submitted before the Special Court.

- 3. On being charged with the offence punishable uﬁder Section 3(1)(xi)
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only, the appellant pleaded false implication due to prevailing animosity. In
the cross-examination of the prosecutrix (PW1), her husband Puran (PW2)
and Ganpat (PW4), it was suggested that relations between the prosecutrix
and the appellant were strained for the following causes -

)] Despite being objected to, the prosecutrix used to drive her
cattle to a nearby rivulet through his field.

(i)  The prosecutrix was inclined to encroach upon a piece of
Government Land, possessed by Mitha Bai, sister of the appellant.

However, no evidence was led in defence.

4, Legality and propriety of the conviction have been challenged on the
under-mentioned grounds -

- (a) " There was no cogent evidence to establish that the apiaellant
. had used force to outrage modesty of the prosecutrix.

(b) No evidence was adduced by the prosecution to prove that
the prosecutrix belongs to a Scheduled Caste. - .

(©) . No offence under Section 3(1)(xi) would be made out as the
act in question was not committed on the ground that the prosecutrix
was a member of Scheduled Caste.

To buttress the contentions (b) and (c) [above], learned counsel for
the appellant has cited decision of a co-ordinate Bench of this Court in
Shankarlal v. State of M. P. (2005 (1) MPLJ 449).

In response, learned Panel Lawyer has submitted that the appellant
has been rightly convicted in the face of trustworthy incriminating evidence on
record.

5. The prosecutrix (PW1) substantially reiterated the contents of the FIR
(Ex.P-1) recorded by Sub-Inspector Om Prakash Singh (PW3) at her instance.
As per her statement, at the time when she was grazing cattle, the appellant
caught hold of her neck from behind; caused her to fall down; gagged her and
also slapped her. She further deposed that the appellant had fled away only
after arrival of Ganpat (PW4). Her evidence drew support from the statement
of Ganpat to the'effect that while grazing cattle in a nearby field, he had seen
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the prosecutrix hurling abuses at the appellant.

6. " Dr. Suresh Shrimal (PW7) proved existence of two abrasions on
lower lip of the prosecutrix. Though the medical expert admitted that the injuries
could be sustained due to fall or on account of friction against a tree yet, there
was nothing on record to support such a probability. The acts of holding her
neck in throwing the prosecutrix on the ground and pressing her mouth were
clearly suggestive of sex. In Shankarlal’s case (supra) also, on facts suggesting
that after catching hold of her hand, he had tried to drag the prosecutrix towards
anearby temple, he was held guilty of the offence under Section 354 of the
IPC. t :

7. The defence of false implication due to animosity was refuted
categorically by the prosecutrix (PW1). Ganpat (PW4) also denied the
suggestion that at an earlier occasion, the appellant had complained about
damage to his crop by the cattle belonging to the prosecutrix. Further, no
suggestion was put to Karan Singh (PW5), the Village Chowkidar, and
Virendra Thakur (PW6), the Investigating Officer, in their cross-examination
regarding the plea of defence and, as pointed out already, no supportive
evidence was adduced. The plea also deserved rejection as no married lady
would put her character at stake by making a false charge of indecent assault
simply because there existed bitterness of feelings between her and the
appellant, . : ’

8. Thus, ground (a) [ibid] is not tenable on facts as on one hand, there
was overwhelming evidence on record to prove that the appeliant had outraged
modesty of the prosecutrix and on the other, probability of the defence was
also not established.

9. Reverting to the grounds (b) and (c) [above], it may be mentioned
that learned counsel for the appellant has placed implicit reliance on the
following observations made in Sharnkarial s case -

“6.  In the testimony of prosecutrix (PW1), it is said
that she is Chamar by caste and the appellant has admitted
this fact. She has not said that she is a member of SC or °
ST or whether her caste is included in the list of SC caste.
Her husband (PW2) has deposed that he is “Suryavanshi (
Chamar” by caste. The prosecution has not led any
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evidence to the effect that “Suryavanshi Chamar” is the
caste which has been included in the list of SC or ST. In
the absence of any such evidence, this fact cannot be taken
for granted that prosecutrix belongs to the SC or ST
community. As being one of the essential ingredients, this
fact was required to be proved beyond any reasonable
doubt by the prosecution.

7. Assuming that it is established that the prosecutrix
belongs to SC or ST, still it is difficult to hold that the
offence under Section 3(1){(xi) of the Act is established.
There is no evidence to show that the appellant used
criminal force to the prosecutrix to outrage her modesty
only because she belonged to a particular caste or
community. There is no such circumstance to suggest that
her modesty was intended or tried to be outraged, simply
because she belonged to a particular community. It is thus
clear that the ingredient of section 3(1)(xi) of the Act is
not proved and conviction of the appellant under section
3(1)(xi) of the Act deserves to be set aside”

10.  The Constitution (Scheduled Castes) Order must be read as it is. It is .
not even permissible to say that a caste, sub-caste, part or group of any caste
or community is synonymous to the one mentioned in the Order if they are not
so specifically mentioned in it. The aforesaid observations are to be understood
in the context of Shankarlal’s case wherein the prosecutrix claimed to be a
member of Suryavanshi chamar caste. Hence, the decision in Shankarlal’s
case cannot be treated as an authority for the proposition that non-production
of caste certificate issued by the Competent Authority would always be fatal
to the prosecution.

11.  The assertion made by the prosecutrix (PW1) that she belongs to
Balai caste was not subjected to challenge in her cross-examination. Moreover,
it was candidly admitted by the appellant in his examination, under Section
313 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. In such a situation, judicial notice
could be taken of the fact that Balai caste has been included in the list of |
Scheduled Castes in the State of M.P. In other words, no further proofin the
form of caste certificate/notification or otherwise to show that the prosecutrix
is amember of Scheduled Caste was required.
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12.  This apart, the Supreme Court in Vidyadharan v. State of Kerala
(2004) 1 SCC 215) has pointed out the distinction between the offences
punishable under Section 354 of the IPC and Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act in
the following terms -

“Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act deals with assaults or use of force
to any woman belonging to a scheduled caste or scheduled
tribe with the intent to dishonour or outrage her modesty is an
aggravated form of the offence under Section 354 IPC. The
only difference between section 3(1)(xi) and section 354 is
essentially the caste or the tribe to which the victim belongs. If
she belongs to a scheduled caste or scheduled tribe, section
3(1)(xi) applies. The other difference is that in section 3(1)(xi)
dishonour of such victim is also made an offence.”

However, neither the offence under Section 354 nor the one under
Section 509 of the IPC is punishable with imprisonment for a term of 10
years. As such, the ingredient that it is committed on the ground that the victim
belongs to a Scheduled Caste or a Scheduled Tribe, which is sine quo non
for applying the provision of Section 3(2)(v) of the Act, is not attracted (See.
Dinesh v. State of Rajasthan (2006) 3 SCC 771)

I 3.  Itistrue that there may be cases where'the accused bemg a stranger,
may not be aware of the fact that the complainant belongs to a Scheduled
Caste ora Scheduled Tribe but if he knows and has reason to believe that the
victim of the offence is a member of such a caste or tribe, the offence would
squarely fall under Section 3(1)(xi) of the Act and it would not be necessary
to establish further that the offence was commmed on the ground that she
belongs to such a Caste or Tribe.

14.  For these reasons, none of the grounds (b) and (¢) [above] has any
merit or substance. -

15.  To sum up, the conviction deserves to be affirmed as well merited.
The minimum prescribed sentence for the offence also does not call for any
interference.

16. ~ Inthe result, the appeal stands dismissed. The 1mpugned conviction
and consequent sentences are hereby affirmed

Appeal dismissed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Mr. Justice M.A. Siddiqui

Cr. A. No. 2144/1997 (Jabalpur) decided on 29 November, 2011

SUSHIL KUMAR ...Appellant
Vs. :
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Deceased was .
sitting in his ration shop —Appellant came armed with a knife and dealt
blow on his abdomen, back, hand and leg ~ Four injuries found on body
by sharp edged weapon — Held — From dying declarations and the
medical evidence establish that deceased repeatedly caused injuries
to deceased by knife —Injuries caused on the lumbar region and on the
abdomen were deep up to abdominal cavity — Intention of appellant to
cause death of deceased established — Appeal dismissed. '

(Paras 2,3,21,22 & 23)
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Case referred:
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Surendra Singh with Shivam Singh, for the appellant.
Amit Pandey, PL for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The judgment of the court has delivered by:
RAKESH SAKSENA J. :- Appellant has filed this appeal against the judgment
dated 30% September, 1997 passed by Il Additional Sessions Judge, Jabalpur
in Sessions Trial No.254/1985 convicting him under section 302 I.P.C. and
sentencing him to imprisonment for life.
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2. In short, the facts of the case are that there had been enmity between -
acquitted accused Shyam Kesarwani and Shankerlal @ Bhola, the deceased.
Appellant Sushil Yadav was the friend of Shyam Kesarwani. On 15.3.1985,
at about 6:00 p.m., when deceased was sitting on his ration shop for selling
sugar, appellant came armed with a knife and dealt its blow on his abdomen,
back, hand and leg and ran away. Deceased believed that appellant assaulted
him on the move of Shyam Kesarwani. Deceased was taken to police station
Kotwali, Jabalpur where he lodged first information report Ex.P/12, thereafter
he was shifted to Victoria Hospital for treatment.

3. DrSheelaAgrawal (PW-5) examined the injuries of injured Shankerlal
and found four injuries on his body. The injuries were deep and bleeding.

4, On the requisition by police, G.P.Gonthiya, Tehsildar (PW-13) went
to Victoria Hospital and recorded dying declaration Ex.P/10 of Shankerlal.

5. On 17.3.1985, at about 11:55, Shankerlal died. His dead body was
sent for postmortemn examination to Medical College, Jabalpur. Dr. T.Mohan
(PW-17), demonstrator of Forensic Medicines Department conducted the
postmortem examination and found six injuries on the body of deceased. The
injuries were caused by some sharp pointed weapon. Injury on the abdomen
was sufficient to cause death of deceased in the ordinary course of nature.

6. ‘The case, after the death of deceased, was converted under section
302 of Indian Penal Code. During investigation, police arrested appellant on
23.3.1985 and on his information under section 27 of the Evidence Act
recovered a knife from his possession. Though the said knife was sent to
Forensic Science Laboratory, but no report was produced in the Court. After
investigation, charge sheet was filed against six accused persons.

7. On charge being framed against the appellant under section 302 LP.C.
he pleaded false implication.

8. To substantiate its case, prosecution examined 17 witnesses. Appellant
did not adduce any evidence in his defence. The eyewitnesses examined in
the case though did not support the prosecution case, but relying on the
“evidence of dying declaration Ex.P/12, the F.L.R. lodged by the deceased
and Ex.P/10, dying declaration recorded by Tehsildar, learned trial Judge
held the appellant guilty and convicted and sentenced him under section 302
LP.C. Finding the evidence insufficient against rest of other accused persons,
learned Judge acquitted them of the charge under section 302 read with section
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34 and seciion 109 I.P.C. Aggrieved by his conviction, appellant has filed this
appeal. . '

9. Learned Senior Counsel Shri Surendra Singh submitted that in the
absence of corroboration the evidence of dying declarations was not reliable
or sufficient for holding the appellant guilty. None of the eyewitnesses
supported the prosecution case. In the first information report and in the dying
declaration Ex.P/10 recorded by Tehsildar, deceased merely named ‘Sushil’
without giving out the name of his father. Correct address of the assailant was
also not given to fix the identity of the culprit. He submitted that in these
circumstances trial Court committed error in convicting the appellant. In the
alternative, learned Senior Counsel submitted that in the facts and
circumstances of the case and in view of the nature of injuries found on the
body of deceased, the conviction of appellant under section 302 LP.C. was
not justified. At the most the case against the appellant might fall under section
304 Part Il LP.C. Appellant had already served out the sentence of 5 years
imprisonment. On the other hand, Amit Pandey, learned Panel Lawyer for
the State submitted that the evidence of dying declarations adduced by the
prosecution was sufficient to indicate that it was appellant only who caused
the death of deceased. In the circumstances of the case, trial Court was justified
to hold appellant guilty under section 302 I.P.C.

10.  We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the
impugned judgment and evidence on record carefully.

11.  Itisnotdisputed that the eyewitnesses namely Umashanker Soni (PW-
2), Prakash Agrawal (PW-3), Mohanlal Burman (PW-4), Ganesh Prasad (PW-
7) and Dashrathlal Gupta (PW-12) examined in the case, did not support the
prosecution case. It is also not disputed that death of deceased was homicidal
in nature. In the first information report Ex.P/12 lodged by deceased himself,
it was clearly mentioned by the deceased that Sushil Yadav Chandal Bhatawala
dealt knife blows to him as a result of which he suffered injuries. This first
information report was recorded by Sub Inspector Vishwanath Dubey (PW-
15). Dr. Sheela Agrawal (PW-5) of Victoria Hospital stated that she examined
the injuries of Shankerlal who was brought to hospital by constable Darshan
Singh of City Kotwali, Jabalpur. She found four incised injuries on his body.
Dr. R.S.Chakrawarti (PW-16) stated that on 17.3.1985, Shankerlal died in
Victoria Hospital. Dr. T.Mohan (PW-17) deposed that on postmortem
examination of the body of Shankerlal, he-found six incised injuries on his
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body. The cause of death of Shankerlal was peritonitis due to injury on caecum.
This injury alone was sufficient to cause death of deceased. The postmortem
examination report Ex.P/12 was written and signed by him. It is thus established
that deceased met with a homicidal death.

12.  Since the eyewitnesses of the occurrence examined in the case did
not support the prosecution case, the case rested mainly on the evidence of
dying declarations. Learned Senior Counsel for the appellant argued that in
the two dying declarations namely the first information report Ex.P/12 lodged
by the deceased and dying declaration Ex.P/10 recorded by Tehsildar, no
paternity of assailant Sushil was given. In Ex.P/12, deceased stated that Sushil
Yadav Chandal Bhatawala, who ran a tea shop near the petrol pump of Cherital,
dealt knife blows to him whereas the appellant was resident of Bhandhiya
Mohalla, P.S. Gobalpur, therefore, it could not be held that the person Sushil
~ Yadav named in the first information report was the appellant. There was no
" other corroborating evidence on record to indicate that appellant assaulted
deceased. In the first information report Ex.P/12, which has been proved by
Sub Inspector Vishwanath Dubey (PW-15), it has been mentioned that the
deceased himself was resident of Miloniganj (Bandhiya Mohalla) P.S.
Gohalpur. From seizure memo Ex.P/8, it is apparent that appellant Sushil
Kumar S/o Kandhilal Yadav was resident of Bandhiya Mohalla, opposite to
. Chandal Bhata Hospital, P.S. Gohalpur and from his house the knife was
recovered by Sub Inspector Vishwanath Dubey (PW-15). Vishwanath Dubey
categorically stated that on 23.3.1985 he went at the address given by the
- appellant and seized a knife from the house. The fact of knife being seized
from the house of appellant situated in Bandhiya Mohalla Chandal Bhata was
not challenged by the appellant in the cross-examination of Vishwanath Dubey
(PW-15). It can be gathered from Ex.P/8 that Bandhiya Mohalla and Chandal
Bhata are situated in the same locality within the jurisdiction of police station,
Gohalpur. We are also unable to accept that if the paternity of accused was
not given in the dying declaration, the dying declaration would necessarily
become doubtful. Tt was not challenged by the defence that the first information
report, which was treated as dying declaration, made by the deceased was a
concocted or fabricated document.

13.  As farasdying declaration Ex.P/10 recorded by Additional Tehsildar
G.P.Gonthiya (PW-13) is concerned, GP.Gonthiya clearly stated that on being
called by Sub Inspector he went to Victoria Hospital for recording the dying
declaration of Shankerlal who was admitted in the hospital. Shankerlal was in
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a fit condition to give his statement. Though he was speaking slowly but he
was capable of speaking. Shankerlal told to him that Sushil Yadav, on being
exhorted by Shyam Kesarwani, came at his shop and dealt knife blows on his
abdomen, back, hand and leg. Sushil Yadav had a tea shop in Cherital. There
had been enmity between him and accused Shyam Kesarwani, and Shyam
Kesarwani was the friend of Sushil Yadav, therefore, Sushil Yadav had stabbed
him. G.P.Gonthiya (PW-13) stated that after recordin g the statement of
deceased he signed Ex.P/10. Learned counsel for the appellant pointed out
that in the cross-examination this witness admitted that some persons were
sitting around the bed of Shankerlal but he did not know that they were his
relatives. He admitted that those persons asked Shankerlal to name Sushil as
assailant because he was friend of Shyam Kesarwani, but he rebuked them
and asked them to not to interfere and let Shankerlal speak himself. Thereafter
those persons kept quiet. It is true that deceased might have been influenced
by his near relatives and friends, but the statement given by him in the instant
case to Naib Tehsildar finds sufficient corroboration from the first information
report Ex.P/12 which was treated as a dying declaration, as such it cannot be
held that deceased named Sushil Yadav on the prompting of the persons present
near him. It has not been challenged by the defence that at the time of recording
of dying declaration deceased was not in a fit condition to give his statement.

14.  Itisalsoimportant to note that in the cross-examination of investigating -
officer Vishwanath Dubey (PW-15), or on any other occasion in the trial,
accused/appellant no where challenged that he was not the person who was
named by the deceased in the dying declaration. Nothing was stated by the
accused in his examination under section 313 Cr.P.C. disputing his identity as
accused. In these circumstances, we find no substance in the argument
advanced by the learned Senior Counsel for the appellant that the appellant
was not the person who was named by the deceased in the dying declarations
Ex.P/10 and Ex.P/12.

15.  Itistrue that dying declaration which does not contain complete names
and addresses of the persons charged with the offence, may not be of such
nature on which conviction can be based in the absence of corroboration
[Gopal Singh and another Vs.'State of M.P. and another- AIR 1972 SC
1557], but in the instant case, the fact that the person named as Sushil Yadav
in the dying declaration was the appellant has been corroborated by the
evidence of investigating officer Vishwanath Dubey (PW-15) who recorded
first information report Ex.P/12 and also recovered a knife from the house of
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appellant vide seizure memo Ex.P/8. The main feature of the case remains
that appellant did not challenge his identity as accused all through the trial.
We are, therefore, of the view that the trial Court committed no error in
accepting the evidence of dying declarations Ex. P/10 and Ex.P/12.

16. Leamed Senior Counsel for the appellant argued that from the facts
and circumstances of the case and the nature of injuries found on the body of
deceased, no offence under section 302 I.P.C. was made out. The cause of
death of deceased was peritonitis due to injury on the caecum (lower portion
of large intestine). The incident had occurred on 15.3.1985 and the deceased
had died on 17.3.1985. Injury No.5 and injury No.6, which were respectively
found on the abdomen and lumbar region of the deceased, were found meeting
inside the body, as such the possibility that it was one through and through
injury could not be ruled out. Therefore, it could not be held that appellant
caused two stab injuries on the vital parts of the body of deceased and that
appellant intended to cause death of deceased. We are unable to accept the
argument advanced by the learned counsel.

17. D SfleelaAgrawal (PW-5) found following four injuries on the body
of deceased:-

@ Incised wound 1%” x % on right side of anterior abdominal
wall in hypochondrium region. Bleeding present.

(i) Incised wound 14” on the back on right lumbar region and
haematoma around the wound 3” x 2”,

Gi) Incised wound %” x 1/8” x skin deep on right leg anterior
side. Bleeding present.

(iv)  Incised wound 1”x %4” x skin deep onright hand.

In her opinion, all the injuries were caused by sharp edged
weapon. Injury No.3 & 4 were simple in nature. The opinion in respect
of Injury No.1 & 2 could be given by the treating doctor. MLC
report is Ex.P/5.

18.  After death, Dr.T.Mohan (PW-17) found following injuries on
postmortem examination on the body of deceased:-

§y] Stitched wound over lateral aspect of rmddle right lég.
(i) Stitched wound over the base of thiner eminence of right hand
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4emx 1/2cmx lem.

()  Stitched wound over upper part medial aspect of right thigh
3ecmx 1/2cm x 2cm.

(iv)  Stitched wound over anterjor part of abdomen slightly right to
midline,
(v)  Stitched wound over right side of abdomen 4.5cm x lcm

entering into abdominal cavity. Margins show infected granulation
tissues. Purulent material was coming out through the wound.

(vi)  Stitched wound present over back of trunk on right side
obliquely S5cm x 1cm entering into abdominal cavity,

19.  Doctor (PW-17) found that on inserting a probe through injury No.5
it was coming out through injury No.6 indicating that they were communicating.
However, it was not stated by doctor (PW-17) that injuries No.5 & 6 were
one and the same and not caused by two different blows. Merely because
those injuries met inside the abdominal cavity it could not be held, in the absence
of specific medical evidence, that they were one and the same. Postmortem
examination report is Ex.P/12.

20.  Merely because deceased died after two days of the assault and there
had been peritonitis in the wound, it could not held that assailant did not intend
to cause the death of deceased or did not intend to cause such bodily injury to
deceased as he knew to be likely to cause the death of deceased. Where
death is caused by bodily injury, the person who causes such bodily injury is
to be deemed to have caused the death, although by resorting to proper
remedies and skillful treatment, the death might have been prevented. Dr. T.
Mohan categorically stated that even the sole injury caused on the caecum of
deceased was sufficient in the ordinary course to cause his death.

21.  Fromthe evidence of dying declarations and the medical evidence, it
has been amply established that deceased repeatedly caused injuries to
deceased by knife. The injuries caused on the lumbar region and on the
abdomen were deep up to abdominal cavity, Therefore, it was established
beyond doubt that appellant assaulted deceased by knife with the intention of
causing his death. In our opinion, trial Judge committed no error in holding
the appellant guilty under section 302 LP.C.

22.  Accordingly, the order of conviction of appellant under section 302
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LP.C. and sentence of imprisonment for life awarded to him is affirmed.

23.  Appeal fails and is dismissed. - - .
Appeal dismissed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL ‘
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Mr. Justice M.A. Siddiqui

Cr. A. No. 244/1994 (Jabalpur) decided on 30 November, 2011

BHARAT SINGH & anr. - ...Appellants
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. . ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/304 Part-I — Murder or
Culpable homicide not amounting to murder — Deceased went to a
shop to eat eggs where appellant was present — Altercation ensued
between them — While deceased was going back appellants. caused
injuries by means of Gupti and Ballam — Held — Incident erupted from
a sudden altercation or guarrel — Cause of such altercation also not
disclosed by witnesses — Incident of assault took place just in
continuation of quarrel and not after a long time — Case fall within the
ambit of exception 4 of Section 300 of IPC, but since appellant wielded
deadly weapon and caused injuries which cut the lung and heart of the
deceased, was sufficient in ordinary course of nature to cause his death
— Liable to punished under Sectlon 304-1 of the IPC — Appeal partly
allowed

(Paras 2,3,21,22 & 23)
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" Siddharth Datt, for the appellants.
Umesh Pandey, G.A. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The - judgment of the court was delivered by :
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellants have filed this appeal against the judgment
dated 14.12.1993 passed by Il Additional Sessions Judge, Sehore, in Sessions
Trial No.98/1990, convicting appellant No.1 Bharat Singh under Section 302
of the Indian Penal Code and appellant No.2 Babulal under Section 302/34
of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing them to imprisonment for life with .
fine of Rs.1000/- each. In default of payment of fine, further rigorous
imprisonment for six months.

2. The prosecution case in nutshell is that on 7.1.1 990, at about 8.45 in
the night, Hari Om (deceased) and Kishorilal went to eat eggs at the shop of
Kallu. Accused Bharat Singh was also present there. For some reason, an

altercation ensued bétween them. When Hari Om was going back to his .-

house, Bharat Singh and Babulal came armed with Gupti and Ballam. Acquitted
accused Ramesh and Pannalal also reached there. Ramesh had a Lathi in his
hand. Onway, in front of the shop of Narayan, accused Babulal caught Hari
Om from the back side and Bharat Singh dealt 3-4 blows of Gupti in his
abdomen. Babulal and Ramesh also assaulted him and Pannalal exhorted
them to kill him. On hearing noise, Rajendra Kumar (PW-1), brother of Hari
Om and Kaluram (PW-4), his father also reached there and saw occurrence.
Kallu, Kishorilal, Ram Singh and some other persons were also present there.
After assaulting Hari Om, accused persons ran away.

3. Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) rushed to Police Kotwali, Sehore and lodged
the first information report (Ex.P/1) at 9.00 pm. Acase under Section 307/
34 of the Indian Penal Code was registered against four accused persons.
Station Officer, R.S. Chudawat (PW-15) rushed to spot and carried Hari Om
to District Hospital, Sehore, however, Hari Om succumbed to his injuries.
The case then converted under Section 302/34 of the Indian Penal Code.

4, Dr. Laxmi Narayan Namdeo (PW-16) conducted postmortem
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examination of the body of deceased and vide his report Ex.P/26 found six
incised wounds on his body. In his opinion, injuries found on the body of
deceased were sufficient in ordinary course of nature to cause his death. On
the same day, during investigation, statements of prosecution witnesses were
recorded and accused were arrested. On the information given by accused
Bharat Singh, 2 Gupti was seized from the bushes near Sindhi Dharamshala.
Similarly, on the information of accused Babulal a Ballam was seized. Seized
weapons were sent to Forensic Science Laboratory for examination and its
report Ex.P/24 was obtained.

5. Accused Bharat Singh had also lodged a report on the same day i.e.
on 7.1.1990 at Police Kotwali, Sehore, at 22.00 Hrs, which was recorded in
Rojnamcha Sanha No.594/7.1.1990 by Head Constable Shiv Gopal (DW-
2). Accused Bharat and Babulal were sent for medical examination and their
MLC reports (Ex.D/3 & D/4) were received. On the basis of aforesaid
Rojnamcha report, Crime No.15/1990 under Section 324 of the Indian Penal
Code was registered. However, due to lack of evidence, final report was
submitted.

6. After completion of the investigation, charge sheet was filed and the
case was committed to the court of sessions for trial.

7. During trial, accused persons abjured their guilt and pleaded false
implication. In their statements, recorded under Section 313 Cr.P.C., they
merely pleaded false implication without putting forth any particular defence
version. They however examined Dr.A.B. Niyazi (DW-1), Head Constable
Shiv Gupta (DW-2) and Station Officer R.S. Chudawat (DW-3).

8. To substantiate its case, prosecution examined 16 witnesses.

9. Learned trial judge, relying mainly on the evidence of eyewitnesses
viz. complainant Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4) and finding
their evidence corroborated by the evidence of Durga Prasad (PW-2),
Kishorilal (PW-3), Satpal (PW-9), Hitesh (PW-10) and Dr. Laxmi Narayan
Namdeo (PW-16) held the appellants/accused guilty and convicted and
sentenced them, as mentioned above. However, finding the evidence not
sufficient against accused Ramesh, acquitted him. Since accused Pannalal
had died during pendency of the trial, case against him stood abated. Aggrieved
by the impugned judgment of conviction, appellants have preferred this appeal.

10.  Shri Siddharth Datt, learned counsel for the appellants, submitted that
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the evidence of eyewitnesses was not reliable. Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) and
Kaluram (PW-4), respectively, were the brother and father of the deceased.
They being close relations of the deceased, their evidence was not reliable.
Independent eyewitnesses did not support the prosecution case and did not
explain the injuries found on the persons of accused. He submitted that since
the incident occurred suddenly upon a sudden quarrel, the conviction of
appellants under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code was not justified. At
worst, they could have held liable under Section 304-1 or 304-1I of the Indian
Penal Code. On the other hand, Shri Umesh Pandey, learned Government
Advocate, submitted that the evidence of Rajendra Kumar and Kaluram was
reliable. It stood corroborated from the evidence of other eyewitnesses, though
declared hostile for not supporting the prosecution case wholly. He justified
and supported the finding of conviction recorded by the trial Court.

11.  We have heard learned counsel for the parties at length and perused
the impugned judgment and record carefully.

12.  Ithasnot been disputed that deceased met with a homicidal death. It
has been clearly stated by Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4)
that deceased was assaulted by accused persons by Gupti and Ballam and he
died due to injuries received by him. Investigating Officer, R.S. Chudawat
(PW-15) conducted the inquest proceedings and carried deceased to hospital,
where he died. The postmortem examination of the body of deceased was
conducted by Dr. Laxmi Narayan Namdeo (PW- 16), who, vide his report
Ex.P/26 found following injuries on his body:-

“1. One oblique incised wound on the abdomen right side, at the
‘level of umbilicus, size 3% cm x 1 cm, omentum coming out from the

wound.

2. One oblique incised wound on chest 3%2 ¢cm x 1 cm, just left

from the sternal border at the level between 5t and 6 ribs. Depth of

wound was very deep, about 8 cm and profuse blood was coming out

from the wound on pressing chest or changing the position of body.

3. Incised wound 2 x 1/2 x cm superficial on left shoulder.
4, One incised wound on the thumb of left hand 2%2cm x 1 cm.

5. One incised wound on head of left temporal region muscle
deep, size5cmx 1 cm, ‘

iy
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6. One.incised wound, size 1 cm x 1/2 ¢m at the level of iliac
crest right side.

Due to injury No.2, which had pierced the left lung and
cavity of right ventricle, sudden severe haemorrhage and shock
was produced, which was responsible for the death. All the
injuries were ante-mortem in nature. Injury No.2 was sufficient
in ordinary course of nature to cause death of deceased.”

From the above evidence, it is amplyestablished that the deceased
died of a homicidal death. ¢

13.  Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4) r=spectively were,
the brother and father of deceased. Learned counsel for the appellant
submitted that their evidence was not reliable because they were close relatives
~ of deceased and were interested in the conviction of accused. It is well settled
~ that the testimony of eyewitnesses cannot be ignored merely because they are
either partisan witnesses or close relatives of the deceased. There is no rule
of law that the evidence of partisan witnesses cannot be accepted. The fact
that the witnesses are associated with the deceased by itself do not render
their evidence false. It is common knowledge that neutral witnesses are
reluctant to come forward to give testimony to support one or the othert side.
Therefore, merely because the eyewitnesses dre associated with one side,
their evidence canrot be discarded. However, it should be subjected to a -
careful scrutiny and accepted with caution (State of U.P. ¥. Ram Swarup
and others AIR 1988 SC 1028). '

14. Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) deposed that while he was standing in the
verandah of his house, he heard some noise of quarrel at the egg shop of
Kallu. Out of curiosity, when he went out of the house and tried to know
about the quarrel, he saw that an altercation was going on between bis brother
(deceased) and accused. All the accused then went to their house, which was
situated about 10-15 ft. from the shop of Kallu and came back armed with
weapons. Accused Bharat had Gupti, Babu had Ballam, Ramesh had Lathi
and Pannalal had an iron rod. When deceased tried to run away, in front of
the shop of Narayan, accused Babu held him from the back side and accused
Bharat dealt blows with Gupti on his abdomen and hand. - Accused Babu
then left deceased and assaulted him by his Ballam. He shouted and rushed

‘to the spot. In the meantime, his parents also reached there. Accused then ran
away from the spot. Deceased fell down on the spot and became unconscious.
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He rushed to police station and lodged the report (Ex.P/1). This witness was
subjected to'a gruelling cross-examination, but he stood firm. Learned counsel
for the appellants drew our attention to some omissions in his statement, but,
we find them not of substantial nature. It was not mentioned by this witness'in
‘the FIR (Ex.P/1) that accused went to their house and came back at the spot
armed with weapons. He however, explained that at the time of lodging report
he was disturbed and was not in fit mental condition due to serious condition
of his brother. Therefore, this fact could not be mentioned in the FIR. Itis
important to note that incident had occurred at 8.45 pm and the first information
report was lodged at 9.00 pm i.e. within 15 minutes of the occurrence. The
omissions about the fact that this witness shouted, hearing which, his parents
. came on the spotor the fact that accused Bharat dealt a blow with Gupti on
the hand of his brother, in our opinion, do not appear of material nature. The
facts that accused Bharat was armed with a Gupti, Babu was armed with a
Ballam and that Babu caugﬁ_’t hold of deceased and Bharat dealt blows with
Gupti in the abdomen of deceased, as stated by witness in the court, were
clearly mentioned by this witness in the first information report. Therefore, his
evidence finds sufficient corroboration from the first information report (Ex.P/
1), which was lodged by him within 15 minutes of the incident. The evidence
of Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) finds support from the evidence of Kaluram (PW-
4), who categorically stated that hearing the cries of Hari Om (deceased) and
. Rajendra Kumar, when he came out ofhis house, he saw the occurrence. The
house of Narayan, in front of which the incident occurred, was about 25-30
ft. away from his house. He saw accused Bharat assaulting Hari Om with
Gupti. Accused Babu canght Hari Om from the back side. After causing
injuries to Hari Om, accused persons ran away. In cross-examination, this
witness was confronted with his police statement (Ex.D/2) wherein he did not
disclose that he heard cries of deceased and Rajendra Kumar, but, in our
opinion, merely on the basis of such omission, the evidence of this witness
cannot be discarded especially because it was not disputed that the assault on
deceased was made in front of the house of Narayan, whmh was about 25-30
paces away from the house of this witness.

- 15, Itistruethat other eyewitnesses viz. Durga Prasad (PW-2), Kishorilal
(PW-3), Satpal (PW-9) and Hitesh (PW-10) were declared hostile, as they
did not support the prosecution case fully, but, on perusal of their evidence, it
isrevealed that they substantially corroborated the evidence of Rajendra Kumar

(PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4). Durga Prasad (PW-2) deposed that he saw
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altercation between deceased and accused Bharat at the hand-cart of Kallu.
Bharat went to his house and brought Gupti, but thereafter this witness stated
that he went to his house and did not see the incident. Kishorilal (PW-3)
deposed that he and Hari Om had goné at the egg shop of Kallu. Accused
Bharat was also present there. There had been an altercation between Hari-
Om and Bharat. He stated that he left the place, but, from a distance about
10 paces, he saw Bharat and Babu bringing something like sticks, but he did

- not see the Maar-Peet. Satpal (PW-9) stated that when he and Hitesh were
going to see movie, they saw an altercation between accused Bharat and Hari
Om at the egg shop of Kallu. Thereafter, Bharat went to his house and came
back with a Gupti. When Hari Om tried to run away, Ramesh caught him and
Bharat dealt 3-4 blows with Gupti on his abdomen. Hari Om fell down.
Since this witness did not name accused Babu and Pannalal, he was declared

. hostile. Similarly, Hitesh (PW-10) stated that he saw an altercation and scuffle
between Hari Om and accused Barat at the shop of Kallu. Bharat had a
Gupti and Babu had a Ballam. According to him, he did not see the complete
incident and went towards Sanjay Talkies. Thus, these witnesses though did
not give the complete account of the incident, but they substantially supported
the evidence of Rajendra Kumar (PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4).

16.  After aclose and careful scrutiny of the evidence of Rajendra Kumar

(PW-1) and Kaluram (PW-4), we find their testimony reliable. Their evidence -

finds further support from the evidence of Dr. Laxmi Narayan (PW-16), who,
on postmortem examination of the body of deceased, found six incised injuries
on his body. In our opinion, it was clearly established that accused Babulal
caught hold of deceased with a view fo facilitate accused Bharat to assault
him with Gupti, and accused Bharat inflicted injuries with Gupti on the abdomen
and other parts of the body of deceased, as a result of which he died.

17. Leamned counsel for the appellant next submitted that since the
prosecution witnesses did not explain the injuries found on'the person of
deceased, the genesis of occurrence was doubtful and that since a sudden
quarrel ensued between deceased and accused Bharat and accused persons

" also suffered injuries, though minor in nature, it could not be held that accused
intended to commit murder of the deceased. At the most, they could be held
liable of the offence under Section 304-I or 304-11 of the Indian Penal Code.

18.  Learned counsel for the State submitted that the accused persons did
not advance any specific plea either in their statements under Section 313
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Cr.P.C. or by way of suggestion to eyewitnesses of the occurrence that
deceased or any of the prosecution witness caused injuries to them.

19.  Nodoubt that accused persons did not suggest to any of the prosecution
witnesses that deceased initiated the quarrel or assaulted accused persons,
but it is revealed from the evidence of Head Constable Shiv Gopal (DW-2)
that on 7.1.1990 i.e. on the day of occurrence at about 8.55 pm accused
Bharat Singh, Pannalal and Babulal appeared at the police station and lodged
areport, which was recorded in Rojnamcha Sanha No.594. The said report
was Ex.D/5. On the basis of that report, an offence u/s 324 of the Indian
Penal Code was registered. Similar statement was given by Station Officer of
Kotwali, district Sehore viz. R.S.Chudawat (DW-3), who was also examined
as Investigating Officer of the case as PW-15. He stated that he had registered
Crime No.15/1990 under Section 324 of the Indian Penal Code on the report
lodged by accused Bharat Singh. This crime was registered on the basis of
Rojnamcha Sanha No.594 recorded on 7.1.1990 at 8.55 pm. The first
information report registered by him was Ex.D/7. He stated that he obtained
MLC reports (Ex.D/8 & D/9) in respect of the injuries of accused Bharat
-Singh and Babulal. According to him, a final report in respect of this crime
was filed because Hari Om, against whom the crime was registered, had died.
Dr.A.B.Niyazi (DW-1) proved the injuries of accused Bharat Singh and Babulal.
He deposed that on examination of the person.of Bharat Singh, he found
following injuries on his body: .

“l. " Abrasion 4%4” in length on right thigh.
2. . Contusion onthe left thigh 2” in diameter.

Injury No.1 was caused by hard and pointed weapon and injury No.2
was caused by some hard and blunt weapon. Both the injuries were
simple in nature.”

Dr. Niyazi found following injury on the body of accused Babulal:
- “l. . Incised wound 1%” x 1/ 47x 1/4” on left palm.

Injury was simple in nature and was caused by hard and sharp
weapon.” ‘

The aforesaid injuries were recorded by Dr. Niyazi in Medico Legal Register.
Copies of the reports were proved as Ex.D/3 and Ex.D/4.
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20.  From the evidence of all the eyewitnesses examined by the prosecution,
it is apparent that the incident, which culminated in the assault by accused
persons on deceased, erupted from a sudden altercation or a quarrel: Neither
prosecution witnesses disclosed the cause on which the altercation started
nor accused persons disclosed the genesis of the occurrence in their statements
under Section 313 Cr.P.C., yet something can be gathered from the Rojnamcha -
report (Ex.D/5) and the first information report (Ex.D/7) lodged by accused
Bharat at about 10,00 pm on the same day. The narration given by accused
Bharat in the report was that at about 8,30 pm when he and his cousin were
eating eggs at the shop of Kallu, deceased reached their and asked to give
eggs to him. When he told that he had come first and Kallu was preparing
eggs for him, deceased suddenly abused him. When he objected to it, he
brought a knife from his tea shop and assaulted with it on his thi gh. When his
elder brother Babu came there to intervene, deceased caused injury to him
also. In the meanwhile, his brother Ramesh and father Pannalal also reached
there. He admitted in the said report that he also beat deceased. This report
might not be wholly true, yet it gives some indications about the genesis of the
" occurrence: It can be safely inferred that the incident occurred on the spur of
the moment, when accused Bharat and deceased wanted to have eggs first.
There is absolutely nothing on record to indicate that there had been any past
enmity or bad-blood between them. i .'

21.  No-doubt, the prosecution case is that accused Bharat, in the course
of quarrel, rushed to his house and brought Gupti for assaulting deceased, but
it has come in evidence that the houses of both the parties were not away
from the place of occurrence. The incident of assault took place just in
continuation of the quatrel and not aftera long gap, which could have provided
opportunity to accused to give up their heat of passion. In our opinion, in
these circumstances, the case of accused/appellants would squarely fall within
the ambit of Exception 4 of Section 300 of the Indian Penal Code, but, since
accused Bharat wielded deadly weapon like Gupti and caused as many as six
injuries out of which Injury No.2, which cut the lung and heart of the deceased,
was sufficient in ordinary course of nature to cause his death, it has to be held
that accused intended to cause death or to cause such bodily injury as was
likely to cause death of deceased. As such, they would be liable to be punished
under Section 304-I of the Indian Penal Code. :

22.  Accordingly, the conviction of appellants under Section 302 and 302/ -
34 of the Indian Penal Code and sentence of imprisonment for life awarded
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to them is modified to under Section 304-Iand 304-1/34 of the Indian Penal
Code, respectively, and their sentences are reduced to rigorous imprisonment
for 10 years, especially in view of the fact that at the time of occurrence
appellant Bharat was a young boy of about 1 8 years and that both the appellants
have already remained in jail from 7.1.1990 to 28.8.2000. Sentences of fine
are affirmed.

23.  Appeal partly allowed.
' Appeal partly allowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 246
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena

Cr. A. No. 2108/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 December, 2011

INDAL SINGH ~ " ...Appellant
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. , ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 —~ Rape — Appellant
alleged to have taken away the prosecutrix on the false pretext of illness
of her mother and committed rape— Held — Prosecutrix travelled with
appellant to various places and stayed at Bhopal for 10 days without
making any sort of complaint — Prosecutrix had written letters to
appellant to take her away from her parents or else she would end her
life — Prosecutrix was consenting party — No offence made out.

(Paras 11 to 13)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 363 & 366 -A
Kidnapping — Prosecutrix aged about 16 years and 6 months — Where
the minor leaves her father’s protection knowing and having capacity
to know what she is doing voluntarily joins the accused person, no

~
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offence under Section 366-4 is made out — As prosecutrix was
consenting party therefore, no offence under Section 363 is made out.
(Paras 17 to 19)
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Case referred:
AIR 19645 SC 942,

S.K. Gangrade, for the appellant. -
Amit Pandey, P.L. for the respéndent/State.

JUDGMENT

RAKESH SAKSENA, J :- Appellant has preferred this appeal against the
judgment dated 6™ November 1996, passed by Sessions Judge, Mandla, in
Sessions Trial No.66/1987, convicting the appeliant under Sections 366-A
and 376 of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing him to rigorous imprisonment
for three years, on each count respectively. Both the sentences have been
directed to run concurrently.

2. In short, the prosecution case is that on 14.6.1985 appellant went to
the house of prosecutrix when her parents were not present and told to her
that her mother was seriously ill and her father had taken her to Jabalpur. He
also told her that her father had called her with money. Father of the prosecutrix
viz. Sudarshan, who was a Patwari, had kept Rs.30,000/- in a box for the
marriage of the prosecutrix. Prosecutrix took that money and went with the
appellant. He took her by bus to Niwas, Shahpura and kept her in a lodge.
In the morning, he took her to Shahdol in a bus. Thereafter, he took her to
Maihar and told to her that he would marry her. In the night, they stayed at
Maihar and then went to Jabalpur. On the next day, he took her to Bhopal
and kept her in arented room,-He told to other people that she was his wife.
While they stayed at Bhopal, he committed sexual intercourse with her.
Sudarshan, father of the prosecutrix, gave a written report on 21.6.1985 to
Station Officer of Police Station, Tikariya, that appellant enticed away his
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minor daughter and also took away Rs.30,000/-.

3. In search of prosecutrix, Sudarshan reached Bhopal and found her
with appellant. On 28.7.1985, then first information report (Ex.P/7) under
Section 366 of the Indian Penal Code was registered at Police Station, Tikariya,
Appellant and the prosecutrix were subjected to medical examination.

4. Investigating Officer seized a school certificate from the father of the
prosecutrix, and after completing the investigation, filed charge sheet in the
court.

5. Trial Court framed charges under Sections 366-A and 376 of the Indian
Penal Code against the appellant.

6. Appellant abjured his guilt. Though no specific plea was put forth by
- the appellant in his statement under Section 313 Cr.P.C., however, it was
suggested to witnesses that prosecutrix herself abandoned guardianship of
her father and insisted appellant to take her, and that she was not under the
age of 16 years. He also tendered Ex.D/1, D/2 and D/3 in his defence
evidence.

7. Prosecution examined 7 witnesses in the case to prove the charge
against the appellant.
8. Upon trial and after appreciation of the evidence learned trial judge

though impliedly found prosecutrix to be a consenting party, however, finding
her under 16 years of age, held the appellant guilty, convicted and sentenced
him on both the counts. Aggrieved by the impugned judgment ofhis conviction,
appellant has preferred this appeal.

9. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that learned trial Judge
committed serious error in holding that prosecutrix was a girl under the age of
16 years and that appellant had taken/enticed her. He submitted that the
evidence of Sudarshan (PW-6), the father of prosecutrix, about her age was
not reliable. It was established by the evidence of school record that the
prosecutrix was above 16 years of age on the day of occurrence. He further
submitted that from the documents tendered by the appellant in his defence, it
was clear that prosecutrix persuaded appellant to take her with him. Appellant
at the time of occurrence was a young boy of about 19-20 years of age. On
the other hand, learned Penal Lawyer supported and justified the finding of
conviction recorded by the trial judge.
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10. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the
impugned judgment and the evidence adduced by both the parties in the case.

11.  Prosecutrix (PW-2) deposed that while she was at her house at village -
Majhgaon, appeliant came to her and informed that her parents had gone to
Jabalpur because her mother was ill and that they called her to bring the
money. Since she had no money, appellant broke open the lock of the box in
which Rs.30,000/- were kept by her father. Appellant took her to J abalpur
and said that her mother had been sent to Bhopal. He then took her to Bhopal
inatrain. Her mother was not there. Appellant took her to the house of a
friend. In the night, they stayed there. Next day, he took her in a different
room and intimidated her. In the night, he forcibly committed sexual intercourse
with her. He kept her there for about 10 days and committed rape on her
daily. When her parents reached Bhopal, they took out her from the room,
Appellant then ran away. She was then taken to village Majhgaon where she
was subjected to medical examination. Inthe cross-examination, prosecutrix
admitted that letters (Ex.D/2, D/3 and D/4) were written and signed by her,
though, according to her, these letters were got written by her under intimidation
by accused. She also admitted that the photograph, in which she was shown
with the appellant, was snapped at Bhopal. From these letters, itisrevealed
that she insisted appellant to take her from her house, otherwise, she would
hang herself or jump in the Well. The fact that appellant intimidated her to
write letters was not mentioned by the prosecutrix in her police statement
(Ex.D/5) with which she was duly confronted. She was further confronted
with her police statement in which she mentioned that she went with the
appellant to Shahpura and stayed in the lodge of Agrawal Seth. She also
denied to have mentioned in the said statement that she went to Shahpura,
Shahdol and Maihar with the appellant. According to her, at the time of

occurrence she was studying in Class VIII. She denied the suggestion put by .

the defence that she had sexual relations with the appellant and as a result of
which she conceived and that her pregnancy was got terminated.

12.  From the evidence of Dr. (Mrs.) P. Singhai (PW-1), who examined

the prosecutrix on 7.9.1985, it is revealed that pro secutrix was habituated to

sexual intercourse and that she got her pregnancy of more than 22 months
terminated. . ’

13.  Onaclose scrutiny of the evidence of prosecutrix (PW-2), it clearly
transpires that she was a consenting party. She moved from her house with
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the appellant, travelled to several places and lived with him for about 10 days
at Bhopal without making any sort of complaint to anybody. Admittedly she
wrote letters to appellant persuading him to take her with him else she would
end her life.

14.  Learned counsel for the appellant contended that the evidence of
Sudershan (PW-6), father of prosecutrix, that the date of birth of prosecutrix
was 9.9.1969, was false and unreliable. It was proved by the evidence of
school record adduced by the Headmaster of school viz. Raghuveer Singh
(PW-5) that the correct date of birth of prosecutrix was 1.1.1969. Learned
Panel Lawyer, on the other hand, submitted that the evidence of father regarding
date birth of prosecutrix was more reliable.

15.  Sudershan (PW-6) deposed that the date of birth of his daughter was
9.9.1969 and the same date he got recorded in the school and Kotwari Register.
According to him, if 1.1.1969 was recorded in the school record, it was not
correct.

16.  Investigating Cfficer, A.K. Samadhiya (PW-7), stated that vide seizure
memo Ex.P/6 he seized a school certificate in respect of the date of birth of
prosecutrix from Sudershan Prasad. However, this certificate was not
produced in the court. Similarly no Kotwari register, in which the date of
birth of the prosecutrix was said to have been recorded, was produced. This
gives an indication that if the said documents would have been produced, they
would have gone against the prosecution. Ifthe evidence of Sudershan Prasad
(PW-6r) is seen in juxtaposition to the evidence of Raghuveer Singh (PW-5),
the Headmaster of Primary School, Majhgaon, it is found that the date of
birth of prosecutrix in the admission register (Ex.P/4) was recored as 1.1.1969.
Raghuveer Singh (PW-5) categorically deposed that in the admission register
of the school entries of the admissions and date of birth were recorded right
from 25.12.1954 t0 30.6.1994. At S1.N0.482, the date of birth of prosecutrix
was recorded as 1.1.1969. He deposed that the dates of birth of the children
were recerded on the basis of the information given by their parents. Sudershan
(PW-6) also admitted that he got recorded the date of birth of prosecutrix in
the school, however, he stated that he had given the date of birth of prosecutrix
as 9.9.1969. The evidence of entry of the date of birth in the admission
register of the school appears more reliable. It appears that with a view to
" make out a case under Section 376, father of prosecutrix deliberately gave
the date 9.5.1969 as date of birth. If the age of prosecutrix on the date of

h
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occurrence i.e. on 14.6.1985 is calculated from 1.1.1969, it comes around
16 years and 6 months. Thus; in view of the fact that prosecutrix has been
found to be a consenting party, the charge under Section 376 of the Indian
Penal Code against the appellant fails.

17.  As far as the conviction of appellant under Section 366-A. of the Indian
Penal Code is concerned, an essential ingredient of the offence is that a minor
girl underage of 18 years is induced to go from any place with intent that such
girl may be or is likely to be forced or seduced to illicit intercourse with another

" person. Since it has been found that the prosecutrix was a consenting party

1o the sexual intercourse, no charge under Section 366-A of the Indian Penal
Code is made out.

18.  Now the question before this Court would be whether appellant is liable
to be convicted under Section 363 of the Indian Penal Code, since the age of

" prosecutrix at the time of occurrence, inthe instant case, was around 16 years

and 6 months. Learned counsel for the appellant placing relianceonS. Varadarajan
v. Staste of Madras-AIR 1965 SC 942 submitted that since the prosecutrix was
a girl of mature understanding and was on the verge of majority and that she
herself persuaded appellant to take her away from her house, no offence under

Section 363 of the Indian Penal Code was made out against him.

19. TheApex Courtin S. Varadarajan (supra) observed that “there isa
distinction between “taking” and allowing the minor to accompany a person.
The two expressions are not synonymous though it cannot be laid down that
in no conceivable circumstances can the two be regarded as meaning the
same thing for the purpose of Section 361. ‘Where the minor leaves her father’s
protection knowing and having capacity to know the full import of what she is
doing voluntarily joins the accused person, the accused person cannot be
said to have taken her away from the keeping of her lawful guardian.
Something more has to be shown in a case of this kind and that is some kind
of inducement held out by the accused person or an active participation by
him in the formation of the intention of the minor to leave the house of

© guardian.......ceceeees when the girl (who though a minor had attained the age

of discretion and is on the verge of majority and is a senior college student)
from the house of the relative of the father where she is kept, herself telephones
the accused to meet her at a certain place, and goes there to meet him and
finding him waiting with his car gets into that car of her own.accord, and the
accused takes her to various places and ultimately to the Sub-Registrar’s
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Office.....cuee....... » the accused by complying with her wishes can by no
stretch of imagination be said to have “taken” her out of the keeping of her
lawful guardianship.”

20.  Intheinstant case also, the prosecutrix was a student of Class VIIL
She wrote letters to appellant persuading him to take her away from her parents’
house or else she would end her life. The last letter was written by her on
13.6.1985 and she went with the appellant on 14.6.1985. It clearly indicates
that whatever appellant did, was to fulfill the wishes of prosecutrix. It was
also established from her medical evidence that she got terminated her
pregnancy, though she denied to have sexual relations with anybody.

21.  On appraisal of the above circumstances in the light of the above
proposition laid down by the Apex Court, in my opinion, no offence, even
under Section 363 of the Indian Penal Code, is made out against the appellant.
As such, he'is entitled to be acquitted. - '

22. Inviewofthe foregoing discussion, this appeal is allowed. Conviction
and sentence of appellant under Section 366-A and 376 of the Indian Penal
Code are set aside. He is acquitted.

23.  Appeal allowed.
.  Appeal allowed
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CIVIL REVISION -
Before Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari
C.R. No. 377/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 13 October, 2011

HAJIABDULAZIZ ANSARI ...Applicant
Vs.
M.P. WAKF BOARD, BHOPAL & anr. ...Non-applicants

A. Wakf Act (43 of 1995), Section 3(1) — Mutawalli — After

the death of Mutawalli, petitioner was discharging the functions of -

Mutawalli and was managing the affairs and property of Maszid for
the last 13 years — Also paying annual contribution to the Board —
Petitioner can be treated as Mutawalli. (Para 8)
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B.  WakfAct (43 of 1995), Section 64— Removal of Mutawalli
— Opporiunity of Hearing — Inquiry under Section 64 of the Act ought

to have been conducted — Petltloner can be said to be aggrieved person..__
i (Para 14)
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C. Wakf Act (43 of 1995), Sections 64 & 67 — Appointment
of Committee — Committee can be appointed for the Supervision or
management of Board — Power can be exercised for suppression of
Committee —-As removal of petitioner as Mutawalli was in violation of
Section 64(S), therefore appointment of Committee also not in
accordance with law. . (Para14) -
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Cases referred:
. 2000(2) MPLJ S.N. 25, 1995 MPLJ 463, 2009(4) MPLJ 646.

S.P. Tripathi, for the applicant.
R.B. Patel, for the non-applicant No. 1.
Ishtiyaque Hussain,for the non-applicant No.2.

ORDER

J.K. MAHESHWART, J. :- In both these revisions, the order dated 315t
of October, 2009 passed by the Wakf Tribunal has been challenged by both -
‘the parties, however, they are being decided by this common order

2..  Asperorderdated 5.10.2009 passed by the Wakf Board, a cgmmittce
was appointed in exercise of powers conferred under Section 67 of the Wakf
Act, 1995 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) by which Mubarak Ansari
was appointed as Chairman of the said committee consist with 10 other
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members. The said order was challenged by Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari. By the
order impugned Tribunal found that appellant was having no locus to challenge

the order of supersession because he was not duly appointed Mutawalli of -

Masjid known as Wakf Masjid Yasin, Katra, Rewa (for short “the Masjid”).
It has further been held that an opportunity of hearing is not required to be
afforded to petitioner, but by the same order it is also held that appointment of
the committee by the Board as per order dated 5.10.2009 is not fair and
reasonable, therefore, order of appointment of committee was also set aside.
Being aggrieved by the order dated 5.10.2009 and also of Tribunal, Haji
Abdul' Aziz Ansari filed CR No.377/09 and President of Committee Mubarak
Ansari filed CR No.393/2009 as his committee was not recognised, raising
common questions of law and facts for adjudication.

3. Shri S.P. Tripathi, learned cousnel representing Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari
contends that the Masjid was registered with Wakf from 1988 and Kuvar
Noshad was the Mutawaili. The said Masjid was having no deed and
instrument of Wakf. Kuvar Noshad died on 12.04.1996 since then petitioner
is working as Mutawalli and managing the affairs of Wakfand property of
Masjid. He is also paying Chanda Nigrani to the Board annually in view of
provisions contained in Section 72 of the Act. Thus, by virtue of managing the
affairs of said Masjid he has become the Mutawalli as defined under Section
3(i) of the Act. The Tribunal committed an error by recording the finding that
applicant was not appointed as Mutawalli, however, having no right to
challenge the appointment of the committee. He has placed reliance on the

- judgment of this Court in the case of Jardar Ali s/o Ban Ali and others vs.
Wakf Intajamiyan Committee, Khandwa and Ors. 2000 (2) MPLJ Short

_Note 23, and urged that if petitioner is working as Mutawalli since last more
than 13 years, he cannot be removed without following the due procedure as
specified under Section 64 of the Act and affording reasonable opportunity of
hearing, however, finding as recorded by Tribunal is unsustainable in law. It is
further contended that appointment of committee headed by Chairman
Mubarak Ansari is unfair and unreasonable as apparent from the findings of
the Tribunal, however, such committee cannot be continued as Mutawalli to
look after the affairs of said Masjid, however, Tribunal has rightly reduced
the period of appointment of the committee and directed the appointment of
fresh Mutawalli or committee as the case may be.

4. Shri Ishtiyaq Hussain, learned counsel representing Janab Mubarak
Ansari has strenuously urged that Janab Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari has no locus

1Sl
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to challenge the appointment of committee constituted by Board because he
was not duly appointed As Murawalli. It is further contended that as per
Section 63 of the Act, Board is having power to appoint Mutawalli or
committee. As per Section 67 if such appointment is directed by Board in
exercise of powers under Section 63 and 67 of the Act, appointing a
committee, it cannot be said to be arbitrary or unreasonable. Placing reliance
on two judgments of this Court in the case of Haji Moosakhan and others
Vs. M.P. Wakf Board and others 1595 MPLJ 463 and Syed Masood Ali
Vs. Md.P. Wakf Board 2009 (4) MPLJ 646, it is submitted that no opportunity
of hearing deserves to be granted to Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari as he was nota
validly appointed Mutawalli. 1t is also submitted that if appointment of
Mutawalli was made by Board in exercise of powers as conferred under the
law, the said committee may be continued to work for the period so specified.

5. . Learned counsel appearing for Wald Board conte'lds that order dated

5.10.2009 appointing a committee has been passed by Wakf Board in exezcise

of powers under Section 63 of the Act because some complaints regarding

financial irregularities were received along with the letter of Collector, District-

Rewa against Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari, however the order of appointment of

new committee is in the interest of wakfand also of community. Itis further

submitted that Janab Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari has not been appointed as a

Mutawalli by the Board, however, assuming the vacancy the order of
appointment of the committee has rightly been passed.

6. After baving heard learned counsel appearing on behalf of parties and
on perusal of record, it is not in dispute that the Masjid was registered with
Wakf'in the year 1988 and Kuvar Noshad was the Mutawalli of said Masjid.
Kuvar Noshad died on 12.04.96 and since then Janab Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari
was manging the affairs of the Masjid till passing the orders dated 2.9.09
and 5.10.09. It is also not in dispute that Wakf Board was receiving annual
contribution from Janab Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari raising demand by every
year which was deposited by him. On perusal of record, it reveals that some
complaints regarding financial irregularities and mis-management of said
Masjid were submitted before the Collector whereupon reply was sought for
and the order dated 2" September, 2009 was passed appointing one
Tahsildar as a receiver. A copy of the said order was also sent to Board,

however, in consequence thereto the Wakf Board has passed the order on
5.10.09 appointing a committee headed by Janab Mubarak Ansari. Inthe
said fact, it is clear that action has been taken against Janab Haji Abdul Aziz
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Ansari on account of allegation of financial irregularities and mis-management
of Masjid. This Court while considering the issue of removal of Mutawalli
without holding an enquiry in the case of Jardar Ali (supra) held that even if
appointment is prior to commencement of the Wakf Act, 1995, the principle
of natural justice has to be observed prior to-displacement of person. As the
question has been posed by other side that Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari does not
fall within the definition of Mutawalli, however, an opportunity of hearing is
- not required to be afforded to him. As he was not appointed as Mutawalli,
however, on appointment of fresh committee, he is having no Zocus to challenge
the said order of appointment.

7. The argument so advanced is required to be dealt with in the context
of definition of Mutawalli and in the context of power to appoint a Mutawalli
by the Wakf Board. To deal with the said argument, the definition of
Mutawalli is ‘required to be referred which is reproduced as under :-

“3(i) “mutawalli” means any person appointed, either verbally

or under any deed or instrument by which a wakf has been

created, or by a competent authority, to be the mutawalli of a

wakf and includes any person who is a mutawalli of a wakf by

virtue of any custom or who is a naib-mutawalli, khadim,

mujawar, sajjadanashin, amin or other person appointed by a
mutawalli to perform the duties of a mutawalli and save as

otherwise provided in this Act, any person, committee or

corporation for the time being managing or administering any

wakf or wakf property.

\

8. On going through the aforesaid provisions, it is apparent that if any
vacancy in the office of Mutawalli of a Wakf arises and no one is appointed

under the deed or instrument of a Wakf or where the right of any person to act

as Mutawalli is disputed, the Board is having power to appoint any person to
act as Mutawalli for such period and on such conditions as it may think fit. In
the context, no other provision has been shown in the matter of appointment
of Mutawalli. In the facts of the present case, Kuvar Noshad was the
Mutawalli of the said Masjid who died on 12.04.96, since then Abdul Aziz
Ansari is discharging the functions of Mutawalli and managing the affairs and
property of the Masjid. He is paying annual contribution on raising such demand
by the Board. The documents thereof are available on record however by
unrebutted facts, he can be treated as a Mutwalli appointed verbally of the

5
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said Masjid and discharging his duties continuously since last more than 13
years. Thus, in the opinion of this court he can be called as Mutawalli as per
the said definition.

9. In the present case, the Board by passing an order dated 5.10.2009
appointed a committee. The said order of appointment was passed because a
group of the person submitted an application to the Collector indicating some
irregularities of the Mutawalli. On such application, by issuing a notice reply

- was filed by Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari thereafter the order was passed by the

Dy. Collector on behalf of the Collector District Rewa on 284 September,
2009 appointing Mr. Balveer Raman Singh, Tehsildar as a receiver of the said
Masjid. Copy of the order has been sent to the Wakf Board. The Board on
receiving such order exercising power under Section 67 of the Act appointed
a committee. Thus, by appointment of a new committee by the Board Haji
Abdul Aziz Ansari was removed. As per section 64 of the Act, procedure for
removal of Mutawalli has been specified which is relevant for the purpose of
this case, however it is reproduced as under:-

64, Removal of mutawalli :- (1) Notwithstanding
anything contained in any other law or the deed of wakf, the
Board may remove a mutawalli from his office if such mutawalli-

(@  has been convicted more than once of an offence.
punishable under section 61; or

(b)  hasbeen convicted of any offence of criminal breach
of trust or any other offence involving moral turpitude,
and such conviction has not been reversed and he has
not been granted full pardon with respect to such
offence; or

(¢) isofunsound mind or is suffering from other mental or
physical defect or infirmity which would render him
unfit to perform the functions and discharge the duties
of amutawalli; or

(d)  isanundischarged insolvent; or

(e}  isproved to be addicted to drinking liquor or other
spirituous preparations, or is addicted to the taking of
any narcotic drugs; or
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(@

®)

)

)

&)

@)

€)

@

is employed as a paid legal practitioner on behalf of,
or against, the wakf; or

has failed, without reasonable excuse, to maintain
regular accounts for two consecutive years or has failed
to submit, in two consecutive years, the yearly
statement of accounts, as required by sub-section (2)
of section 46; or

is interested, directly or indirectly, in a subsisting lease
in respect of any wakf property, or in any contract
made with, or any work being done for, the wakf or is
in arrears in respect of any sum due by him to such
wakf; or

continuously neglects his duties or commits any
misfeasance, malfeasance, misapplication or funds or
breach of trust in relation to the wakf or in respect of
any money or other wakf property; or

willfully and persistently disobeys the lawful orders
made by the Central Government, State Government,
Board under any provision of this Act or rule or order
made thereunder; ’

misappropriates or fraudulently deals with the property
of the wakf.

The removal of a person from the office of the mutawalli
shall not affect his personal rights, if any, in respect of
the wakf property either as a beneficiary orin any other
capacity or his right, if any, as a sajjadanashin.

No action shall be taken by the Board under sub-
section (1), unless it has held an inquiry into the matter
in a prescribed manner and the decision has been taken
by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the members
of the Board.

A mutawalli who is aggrieved by an order passed under
any of the clauses (¢) to (i) of sub-section (1), may,
within one month from the date of the receipt by him of

LLR.[2012]M.P.
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the order, appeal against the order to the Tribunal and
the decision of the Tribunal on such appéal shall be
final.

(5)  Where any inquiry under sub-section (3) is proposed,
or commenced, against any mutawalli, the Board may,
if it is of opinion that it is necessary so to do in the
interest of the wakf, by an order suspend such
mutawalli until the conclusion of the inquiry;

Provided that no suspension for a period exceeding
ten days shall be made except after giving the mutawalli
a reasonable opportunity of being heard against the
proposed action.

' (6) . Where any appeal is filed by the mutawalli to the
Tribunal under sub-section (4), the Board may make
an application to the Tribunal for the appointment of a
receiver to manage the wakf pending the decision of
the appeal, and where such an application is made,
the Tribunal shall, notwithstanding anything contained

.in the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 (5 of 1908),

~ appoint a suitable person as receiver to manage the |
wakf and direct the receiver so appointed to ensure
that the customary or religious rights of the mutawalli
and of the wakf are safeguarded.

(7)  Where amutawalli has been removed from his office
under sub-section (1), the Board may, by order, direct
the mutawalli to deliver possession of the wakf property
to the Board or any officer duly authorized in this behalf
or to any person or committee appointed to act as the
mutawalli of the wakf property. '

(8)  Amutawalli of a wakfremoved from his office under
this section shall not be eligible for re-appointment as
amutawalli of that wakf for a period of five years from
_ the date of such removal.”

10.  Fromthe bare reading of the aforesald it is clear that the Wakf may
remove a Mutawalli from his office if there are allegation as specified under
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sub clause (1)(2) to (k). It further appears that prior to passing an order of
removal of a Mutawalli an enquiry into the matter in a manner prescribed is to
be held and the decision may be taken by a majority of not less than 2/ 3rd
members of the Board, and he cannot be continued as a Mutawalli up to 5
years if removed once, and person aggrieved may prefer an appeal. In the
facts of the present case, the order of appointment of the committee was
passed pursuance to the order of Collector dated 27 September, 2010
appointing a receiver on a complaint received to him. The said power can be
exercised by the Collector after approval of the Board as enumerated under
Section 28 of the Act. It is true that there are certain allegations against Haji
Abdul Aziz Ansari , however as contemplated under sub-section (3) of Section
64 of the Act an inquiry ought to be conducted prior to passing an order of
removal or otherwise the recourse as specified under sub-section (5) may be
taken. The Board ignoring the aforesaid procedure exercising the power under -
Section 67 of the Act appointed a committee. In such circumstances the -
petitioner may be a person aggrieved and having locus to challenge the

appointment of the committee and its management. It is to be further held that

the action as taken by the Board or by the Collector is not in conformity to the

provisions of Section 28, 64 (3), (5) and (6) of the Act and also against the

procedure prescribed. ‘

11.  Learned counsel representing the Wakf Board laid much emphasis
that the power has been exercised by the Board under Section 63 of the Act,
which confers power of appointment of Mutawalli on the Board. To deal with
the said argument, Section 63 of the Act is required to be quoted which is
reproduced as thus :

“63. Power to appoint mutawallis in certain cases — When

there is a vacancy in the office of the mutawalli of a wakf and

there is no one to be appointed under the terms of the deed of
the wakf, or where the right of any person to act as mutawalli

is disputed the Board may appoint any person to act as

mutawalli for such period and on such conditions as it may -
think fit.”

Bare reading of the said, it is apparent that when there is a vacancy in
the office of Mutawalli of a Wakf and there is no one for appointment under
the terms of the deed and instrument or where the right of any person to act
as mutawalli is disputed then the Board may appoint a person to act as mutawalli
for such period and on such conditions as it may think fit. In the context of the
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said provision, it is contended that in the present case, the right of Haji Abdul
Aziz Ansari to act as Mutawalli is in dispute, however the Board has rightly
exercised the power appointing a committee for managing the affairs of the
Masjid. In the opinion of this Court, there is no substance in the said argument ~
and it is liable to be repelled because the action against the Mutawalii has
been taken on the basis of an application submitted by a group of the persons
showing mismanagement, misfeasance, malfeasance, misapplication of the
funds showing breach of trust. Thus in the facts of the present case, it is
apparent that Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari was not removed because his right to
act as Mutwalli was in dispute.

12. By the impugned order Tribunal has recorded the finding that
appointment of committee without due publication in newspaper is not fair
and reasonable. In the said context the provisions of Section 67 of the Act
which deals with the supervision and supersession of committee of management
is relevant which reproduced thus :- :

67. Supervision and supersession of committee of
management. - (1) Whenever the supervision or management
of a wakf'is vested in any committee appointed by wakf, then,
notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, such commitiee
shall continue to function until it is superseded by the Board or
until the expiry of its term'as may be specified by the wakf,
whichever is earlier;

Provided that such committee shall function under the
dlrectlon control and supervision of the Board and abide by
such directions as the Board may issue from time to time; '

Provided further that if the Board is satisfied that any
scheme for the management of a wakf by a committee is in
consistent with any provision of this Act or of any rule made
thereunder or with the directions of the wakf, it may, at any
time, modify the scheme in such manner as my be necessary
to bring it in conformity with the directions of the wakf or of
the prov1sxons of this Act and the rules made thereunder.

2 Notmthstandmg anythmg contained in this Act and in
the deed of the wakf;, the Board may, if it is satisfied, for reasons
to be recorded in writing, that a committee, referred to in sub-
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section (1) is not functioning properly and satisfactorily, or
that the wakf is being mismanaged and that in the interest of its
proper management, it is necessary so to do, by an order,
supersede such committee, and, on such supersession, any
direction of the wakf, in so far as it relates to the constitution
of the commiittee, shall cease to have any force;

Provided that the Board shall, before making any order
superseding any committee, issue a notice setting forth therein
the reasons for the proposed action and calling upon the
Committee to show cause within such time, not being less than
one month, as may be specified in the notice, as to why such
action shall not be taken.

" (3)  Every order made by the Board under sub-section (2) -
shall be published in the prescribed manner and on such publication
ghall be binding on the mutawalli and all persons having any interest
in the wakf,

(4)  Anyorder made by the Board under sub-section (2)
shall be final:

Provided that any person aggrieved by the order made
under sub-section (2) may, within sixty days from the date of
the order, appeal to the Tribunal:

Provided further that the Tribunal shall have no power
to suspend the operation of the order made by the Board
pending such appeal.

(5)  TheBoard shall, whenever it supersedes any committee
under sub-section (2), constitute a new committee of
management simultaneously with the order made by it under
sub-section (2).

(6)  Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing
sub-sections, the Board may, instead of superseding any
committee under sub-section (2), remove any member thereof
if it is satisfied that such member has abused his position as
such member or had knowingly acted in a manner prejudicial .
to the interests of the wakf, and every such orderfor the removal
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of any member shall be served upon him by registered post;

Provided that no order for the removal of the member
shall be made unless he has been given a reasonable opportunity
of showing cause against the proposed action:

Provided further that any member aggrieved by any order for
his removal from the membership of the committee may, within
a period of thirty days from the date of service of the order on
him, prefer an appeal against such order to the Tribunal and
the Tribunal may, after giving a reasonable opportunity to the
appellant and the Board of being heard, confirm, modify or
reverse the order made by the Board and the order made by
the Tribunal in such appeal shall be final.”

13.  Bare readmg of the aforesaid, it is apparent that whenever the :
supervision or management ofa wakfis vested in any committee appointed
by the wakf;, it may continue to function until it is superseded by the Board or
until the expiry of its term as may be specified by the Board whichever is
earlier on having satisfaction that the action of the committee is inconsistent to
the scheme for the management of the Wakf. The power of Section 67 of the
Act can be exercised for supersession of a committee. Thus, as per the
language of the said provision it can safely be accepted that the Board is
having a power to appoint a committee for management of the affairs of the
Wakfand as per the definition specified under Section 3(i), it may be treated
as a Mutawalli, however, the power is vested with the Board to appoint a
committee. Under Section 65 of the Act, the Wakf'is having a power to take
the direct management if there is a mismanagement, misfeasance, malfeasance, -
misapplication and also that function of the Wakf is inconsistent to the object
of the scheme of the Wakf and deed or instrument of the said Wakf. The
State Government is also having power of removal of Mutawalli as conferred
by Section 66 of the Act. In the scheme of the Act, it is clear that if the Wakf
is registered it may function through Mutawalli as defined under Section 3(i)
of the Act. In case of mis-management, action may be taken for removal as’
per the procedure prescribed under Section 64 of the Act. The Board may
directly take the management as per Section 65 of the Act while the power of
supervision and supersession of the committee is with the Board as per Section
67 of the Act. ~

14.  Inview of the foregoing discussion, it is to be examined whether the
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removal of Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari on the allegation as revealed from the record
isin accordance to law and the appointment of the committee without having
any order of removal or without taking recourse as specified under sub-section
(5) of Section 64 of the Act is justifiable. In the present case the committee
was appointed as per order dated 5.10.2009 and by virtue of such order Haji
Abdul Aziz Ansari has been superseded though there are certain allegations of
mismanagement, misfeasance, malfeasance and financial irregularities. In the
opinion of this Court, without following the procedure specified under Section
64 of the Act, he cannot be removed; and without his removal the order of
appointment of the committee by the Board is not in accordance to law.

15.  Inthe facts of the present case, it is not out of place to observe here
that if any application has been filed before the Board disputing the right of
Haji Abdul Aziz Ansari to act as Mutawalli, the Board is at liberty to take the
recourse as specified under Section 63 of the Act otherwise for his removal
the action is required to be taken by following the procedure as prescribed
under Section 64 of the Act and thereafter only the appointment of the
committee may be ordered by the Board.

16.  In view of the foregoing discussion, the order dated 5.10.2009
appointing a committee by the Board and the order impugned dated
31.10.2009 passed by the Wakf Tribunal are hereby set aside. The Board is
at liberty to take recourse of law in view of the foregoing observations. Both
the revision petitions stand disposed of accordingly. In the facts and
circumstances of the case, parties are directed to bear their own costs.

Revision disposed of

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 264
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
Cr. Rev. No. 850/2006 (Gwalior) decided on 3 October, 2011

MUKESH ...Applicant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ‘ : ...Non-applicant

Excise Act, M.P. (2 of 19135), Section 34(2) — Possession of illicit
liguor — Prosecution has to prove that accused was in possession of
illegal liquor excee}ding 50 bulk litres — Seized liquor was not measured
cither on the spot or during investigation — Container in which illicit
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liquor was kept were not produced before Court — Prosecution failed
to prove that liquor which was seized was exceeding prehibited limit -
Revision allowed. (Paras 9 &10 )

eIt AR TaT, a7 (1915 FT 2), SNT 34 (2) — JF3T T o
ool — atAte ot aifag & S 5 afgaw @ ot d 50 9w
dex o1 7= @ aftre ader Afawr off — SregwgaT afewr ot 7 6 ueErea
R A T & aduer @ FARE A fear ar — g9, et ade afesy el
R off, Ay ¥ wWea wEgd siE) feur - aftatee afyg v A
Fawa e fF wfexr Ot wi=a fear o g fafafrg oo @ aftres oft
— gEeT AV

J.P. Mishra, for the applicant.
R K Shrivastava, P.L. for the non-applicant/State.

ORDER

G.D. SAXENA, J :- This revision petition under Section 397/401 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure 1973, preferred by the petitioner is directed
against a judgment dated 18% September 2006 in Criminal Appeal No. 341/
2006 passed by the Sessions Judge, Guna, confirming thereby the judgment
dated 8% August 2006 in Criminal Case No. 167/2006 by the Chief judicial
Magistrate Guna (M.P.), convicting the petitioner-accused for commission of
offence punishable under Section 34 (2) of the M.P. Excise Act, 1915 and
sentencing him to a term of one year’s simple imprisonment with a fine of
Rs.25,000/-(Rs. Twenty Five Thousand only) with default punishment of six
months' in the event of non-payment of fine.

2. The facts, in brief, just for the decisicn of this revision are that on 10®
February 2006 on receiving reliable information through informer that one
person is selling an illicit liquor at Katra Mohalla, raid was arranged under the
supervision of Har Narayan, Head Constable with Police Force of Police
Station Raghogarh and in furtherance of their action, they found the accused
petitioner carrying 55 liters of illegal liquor in two plastic cans. Accused was
arrested on the spot and the said illegal liquor in two plastic containers were
seized. Thereafter, the seized illegal material was sent for examinationto R.R.
Dubey, Sub Inspector, Excise Department at Raghogarh (Guna). After due
examination, by him, the seized material was found country-made liquor. After
investigation, the charge-sheet was filed against the accused before the court
of Judicial Magistrate First Class, Raghogarh from where the proceedings
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alongwith his opinion were forwarded to the court of Chief Judicial Magistrate
under Section 325 of Cr.P.C. The trial Magistrate after recording the
prosecution and defence evidence passed the Judgment of conviction and
sentence against the accused as mentioned above. Being aggrieved by the
said Judgment of the trial court, an appeal was preferred by the accused
before the Sessions Judge Guna. The appellate court by affirming the judgment
of conviction and sentence passed by the trial Magistrate, dismissed the appeal,
hence, this revision.

3. The contention of the learned counse] appearing for the petitioner/

accused is that the impugned judgments passed by the trial Magistrate as well

as appellate court both are not in accordance with the law and the facts of the
case, hence, they deserve to be set aside. It is submitted that in this case, the
persecution has utterly failed to prove the guilt against the accused beyond
reasonable doubits. It is submitted that the seized liquor was not chemically

examined by the recognized agencies and further the prosecution was not

able to prove the capacity of the containers seized from the possession of the
accused having a liquor. It is contended that the petitioner/accused after
judgment of trial/appellate court had spent more then nine months in custody.

Therefore, it is prayed that by allowing the revision petition the conviction and

sentence recorded against the petitioner by the trial Magistrate and maintained

" by the learned Sessions Judge in appeal be set aside. -

4. The learned Panel LaWyer for the State, on the other hand, opposed
the prayer of the petitioner and supported the impugned judgment.

5. Heard the learned counsel appearing for the parties and also perused
the record of the courts below and the law applicable to the present case.

6. The question for consideration in this case is that whether the courts
below (i.e., trial court and the appellate court) overlooked the measurement
of the illegal liquor and without chemical examination of the seized article, fell
in error to convict the petitioner/accused?

7. On perusal of the statements of prosecution witnesses Narayan Bunkar
. (PW-1), Sonu (PW-5) Hari Narayan Sharma Head Constable of the Police
Station Raghogarh (PW-6), it is.clear that on receiving information, raid was
arranged and when it proceeded to -play its role, the accused was found on
the spot standing with two plastic canes, having approximately 35 and 20 .
liters of country-made illegal liquor in each container. However, during their
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chief and cross examination, none of the witnesses had deposed about the
capacity of the container in which the liquor was filled in and further no attempt
was made by the prosecution either on the spot or at any later stage of
investigation to get the seized liquor measured to have ascertained the fact
that same was 55 liters or above 50 liters, though in the F.I.R. (Ex.P/7) it is
mentioned that the liquor was approximately 55 liters. It is further noted that
the containers, in which the illegal country-made liquor was kept were not
produced before the trial court at the time of trial neither were they shown to
the prosecution witnesses and nor were they exhibited.

8. The relevant pll'ovision of law under the Excise Act speaks in the
manner below:-

Sec -34.-(1) Whoever, in contravention of any provisions of
this Act or of any rule, notification or order make or issued
thereunder or of any condition of a licence permit or pass
granted under this Act,

(a) manufactures transports,imports, collects, or possesses any
intoxicants;

(b) save in the cases provided for in Section 38 sells any
infoxicants; or

shall subject to the provisions of sub section (2) be pumshable
for every such offence with imprisonment, for a term which
may extend to one year and fine which shall not be less than
five hundred rupees but which may extend to five thousand
rupees:

Provided that when any person is convicted under this
section of any offence for second or subsequent time he shall
be punishable for every such offence with imprisonment fora
term which shall not be less than two months but which may
extend to twenty four months and with fine which shall not be
less than two thousand rupees but which may extend to ten
thousand rupees.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in Sub Section (1), if
aperson is convicted for an offence covered by clause (a) Or
_ clause (b) of sub section (1) of Sub Sectlon (1) and the quality
of the intoxicant being liquer found 4t the time or in the
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course of detection of the offence exceeds fifty liter, he
shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall
not be less than one year but which ‘may extend to three years
and with fine which shall not be less than twenty five thousand
rupees but may extend to one lac Rupees:

Provided that when any person is convicted under this Section
for an offence for second or subsequent time, he shall be
punishable for every such offence with imprisonment for a term
which shall not be less than two years but which may extend
to five years and fine which shall not be less than fifty thousand
rupees but may exiend to two lac rupees.

9. To prove the guilt for commission of offence punishable under Section
34 (2) of the Act, the prosecution in-case of recovery of illegal liquor in open
container from the accused was bound to prove by some cogent material that.
the recovered illegal liquor exceeded 50 bulk litres. Hence upon consideration
of the totality of the facts in the case, it has not been satisfactorily established
that the objects recovered from the possession .of the accused-petitioner were
exceeding the prohibited strength. In other words, the prosecution by placing
ocular evidence of prosecution witnesses, utterly failed to show that the illegal
liquor seized from the accused exceeded 50 bulk liters. Hence, the charge for
commission of offence pumshable under Section 34 (2) of the Act is not proved
beyond reasonable doubt against the accused.

10.  Consequently, the revision is allowed and the judgments of the trial
Magistrate and of Appellate Court are hereby set aside.

Revision allowed.

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 268
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice S.N.Aggarwal & Mr.Justice Anil Sharma
Cr.Rev.No.413/2001 (Gwalior) decided on 11 October, 2011

ANITAKUSHWAH ...Applicant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Non-applicants

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 217 —
Arsendment of Charges — Further Evidence - Accused persons were
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being tried for offence punishable under Section 376 of LP.C. -
Prosecutrix was examined and thereafter the charge was amended to
Section 376(2)(g) of L.P.C. — Held- It was obligatory on the part of the
Trial Court to gave an opportunity to the prosecution and also to the
defence to lead such further evidence as they deem proper on the
amended charge — Non-grant ef such opportunity to the prosecution
by the trial Court amounted to manifest error of law and procedure—
Matter remanded back to the Trial Court permitting the prosecution
to lead such further evidence zs it may consider necessary with an
equal opportunity te the accused person to further cross examine the
witnesses. (Para 5)
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Cases referred: .
AIR 1962 SC 1788, 1973 CAR 343 (SC), 1998 CAR 436.

R.P.Singh, for the applicant.
Pramod Pachori, P.P.for the non-applicant No.1/State.
None for non-applicants No.2 & 3.

CRDER

The  order of the «court was delivered Dby:
S.N. AGGARWAL, J. :- The respondents No.2 and 3 were tried on charge of
rape under Section 376 IPC. The charge under Section 376 IPC was framed
against them by the trial court on 24™ October 1996. The charge was lateron
amended vide order dated 1% July 1999 and respondents No. 2 and 3 were
charged for gang rape of the proscutrix under section 376 (2)(g) of IPC. The
trial court vide its impugned judgment has acquitted the respondents No. 2
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and 3 of charge of gang rape against them. The prosecutrix aggrieved by the
acquittal of the respondents No. 2 and 3 has filed the present revision peti-
tion. This revision petition was filed in 2001 as at that time there was no
provision for appeal by the complainant against the judgment of acquittal of
the accused persons.

2. In XK. Chinnaswamy Reddy v. State of Andhra Pradesh and another,

AIR 1962 SC 1788, it was held by the Hon'ble Supreme Court that an order
of acquittal can be set aside by the High Court even in revision against the
judgment of acquittal filed by the private party even if the state has not filed
any appeal. It was, however, held by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the said
judgment that the High Court should exercise its jurisdiction in revisional
jurisdiction to set aside the judgment of acquittal only in exceptional cases
when there is some glaring defect in the procedure or manifest error on the
point of law and consequently a flagrant miscarriage of justice.

3. In Akalyu Ahir and others Vs. Ramdeo Ram, 1973 CAR 343 (SC),
it was held by the Hon'ble Supreme Court that the High Court should not set
aside the trial lightly and may interfere in judgment of acquittal in exercise of
its revisional jurisdiction only if it finds that the acquittal is not in accordance
with rules of criminal jurisprudence.

4.~ In Vimal Singh Vs. Khuman Singh and another, 1998 CAR 486, it
was held by the Hon'ble Supreme Court that the powers of the Hi gh Court in
Criminal Revision is limited and that it should not convert the order of acquittal
into an order of conviction unless there is a manifest error of law or procedure,

5. We have examined the present revision on the touchstone of law
regarding powers of the High Court in criminal Revision laid down by the
Hon'ble Supreme Court in the aforementioned judgments. This revision filed
before us is by the prosecutrix. She has alleged gang rape with her by
respondents No.2 and 3 in the incident that took place on 5% November '
1994. The FIR of the incident was lodged by her promptly on next day of the
occurrence. The respondents No.2 and 3 were initially charged by the trial
court vide order dated 24 October 1996 for offence under Section 376
IPC. Ata stage when trial was at last stage of prosecution evidence, the trial
court on its own amended the charge vide order dated 1% July 1999 and
converted the charge from Section 376 to Section 376 (2)(g) of IPC. On the
day the charge was amended by the trial court, an application was filed on
behalf of the accused persons for permission to recall the prosecutrix for further
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cross-examination, which permission was granted by the trial court to them.
A perusal of order of the trial court dated 1% July 1999, by which charge was
amended would show that no opportunity was, given by the trial court to the
prosecution to lead evidence on amended charge and this amounts to violation
of mandatory provisions contained in Section 217 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure 1976. A perusal of the impugned judgment particularly para 16
thereof would show that the respondents No.2 and 3 have been acquitted by
the trial court only because the evidence of the prosecutrix was not
corroborated either by medical evidence or by any other independent
evidence. The trial court has noted in its impugned judgment that the
prosecution has not produced medical evidence to prove rape upon the
prosecutrix or to prove potency of respondent No.2 that he was capable of
doing act of sexual intercourse. We have found from the record of the trial
court that the charge was amended by the trial court on 1* July 1999 ata
stage when the prosecution had not yet closed its evidence. Assuming arguendo
that even if the prosecution had closed its evidence at a time when charge
was amended by the trial court still in view of provisions contained in Section
217 of Code of Criminal Procedure 1976, it was obligatory on the part of the
trial court to have given an opportunity to the prosecution and also to the
defence to Jead such further evidence as they deem proper on amended charge.
Non grant of such an opportunity, in our opinion, amounts to manifest error of
law and procedure in the impugned judgment acquitting respondents No.2
and 3 of the charge. In our opinion, the impugned judgment suffers from manifest
error of law which needs to be corrected by us in exercise of our revisional
jurisdiction. We have taken note of the fact that the incident in this case is of
the year 1994 and also the fact that the impugned judgment of acquittal in
favour of respondents No.2 and 3 is of the year 2001. However, we find that
not granting an opportunity to the prosecution to lead further evidence on
amended charge is an error on the part of the trial court for which the victim
of the incident can not be made to suffer. Accordingly, we deem it appropriate
to remand the case back to the trial court for permitting the prosecution to
Jead such further evidence in the case as it may consider necessary with an
~ equal opportunity to the accused person to further cross-examine the witnesses
of the prosecution including their right to produce their evidence in defence.

6. For the foregoing reasons, the impugned judgment of acquittal,
whereby respondents No. 2 and 3 have been acquitted of charge under Section
376 (2) (g) IPC against them is hereby set aside, the case is remanded back
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to the trial court with directions to proceed further with the trial against the
accused persons in accordance with law. Since respondent No. 2 being one
of the accused persons has died during pendency of the present revision, the
trial against him stands abated. The remaining trial shall now proceed only
against respondent No. 3. '

7. Having regard to the fact that the incident in this case is of the year
1994, we direct the trial court to conclude the remaining trial as expeditiously
as possible but not later than four months of receipt of certified copy of this
order. Lest we may be misunderstood, we make it clear that our remand
order should not be misconstrued by the trial court as any suggestion by us for
convicting respondent No. 3 being the lone accused person left in the case.
Trial court on the basis of evidence shall be free to form its independent
opinion regarding the guilt of respondent No. 3 in the case. This revision is
disposed of accordingly. '

Revision disposed of.

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 272
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
Cr. Rev. No. 786/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 14 October, 2011

AJAY SHARMA ...Applicant
Vs.
SMT.ARCHANA SHARMA ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 125 & 127
~ Payment of Maintenance amount — Petitioner was directed to pay
interim maintenance — Application for alteration of interim maintenance
amount on the ground of delay tactics being adopted by wife filed by
husband is pending — Held — Unless the interim order of maintenance
passed earlier is amended/altered or maintained same will be
enforceable — Petitioner bound to pay interim maintenance amount —
Revision is dismissed with direction to dispose of the petition of
petitioner within tiwd months from date of order. (Paras 8 & 9)
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Kamal Jain, for the applicant.
Manish Nayak, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

G.D. SAXENA, J :- Being aggrieved by an order dated 2~ Aungust 2011
in Criminal Case No. 47/2010 by the Additional Principal Judge of the Family
Court, Gwalior, directing thereby the petitioner to pay the arrears of interim
maintenance amount to respondent till decision on the application under Section
151 of Cr.P.C,, filed by the petitioner to set aside the order of interim
maintenance, this revision petition under section 397/401 of Cr. P.C. has been
submitted.

2. The facts, in short, just for the decision of the aforesaid cases, are
that petitioner Ajaya Sharma was married to respondent Mrs. Archana Sharma
on 16/2/97 at Gwalior and a child Ekansh was born on 10"F ebruary, 2000
out of their wedlock. The petitioner Ajay Sharma was working as AGM in
Larsen and Toubro Company in USA. It is alleged that there the petitioner
developed an illicit relations with another lady and he used to torture and
threatened the respondent and was also trying to get divorce from her. She
was forced to leave for her parental house. Accordingly, the complaint was
lodged by her at police station Mahila where a Crime No. 121/09 for
commission of offence punishable under sections 498-A and 506-B of L.P.C.
against the petitioner husband was registered. Ultimately, the respondent-wife
decided to take shelter in the house of her parents with her son. The petitioner-
husband did not take care of her'and her son and deprived of her from basic
amenities. For redressal of her grievance, the respondent filed the application
under Section 12 of the Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act -
2005. The trial Magistrate vide order dated 12 November 2010, in Criminal
Case No.1290/2010 granted a. sum of Rs.15000/- towards monthly interim
maintenance to respondent-wife. Then, the petitioner-husband filed the appeal
under Section 29 of the said Act. The Appellate court vide order dated 3 .
January, 2011 in Criminal Appeal No. 615/2010 reduced the monthly interim
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maintenance amount up to Rs. 7000/-. Aggrieved by the said order both the
parties have filed the petitions against each other, bearing Misc. Cri. C. Nos.
1939/11 and 2470/11 Whl(fhh came up for hearing and decided by this court
by a common order dated 9 May 2011. The relevant portions of the: said are
extracted below-

"6) In Criminal Rev1s10n No. 966/2010 filed by respondent
Ajay Sarma vide dated 25™] anuary 2011 another bench of
this court passed the order to the following effect:- '

"After taking into consideration facts and circumstances of
the case, this revision is dismissed as withdrawn and it is directed
to the learned Trial Court that if any application is filed by
applicant alongwith relevant documents concerning source of
income of respondent, then after taking into consideration facts

- and circumstances of the case and social and economic status
of the parties and standard of living and also considering the

" facts that whether respondent has any independent source of

income sufficient for her maintenance, pass appropriate order
as per law.

It.is also directed to the trial court that before

. considering the application, ifany filed on behalfofthe applicant,

the trial court shall make sure that the amount of interim

maintenance awarded in favour of respondent as per order
dated 27/10/10 is to be paid to respondent."

(7)  Inthat view of the matter and the liberty granted by

the aforesaid order, the petitioner vis-a-vis the respondent in

both the petitions shall have a legal recourse to apply before

the concerning Magistrate seeking alteration, modification or

revocation of the order impugned in view of the provisions:of
Section 25 of the said Act. Thus, at this stage, this'court does

not feel it proper to interfere in the impugned order. Even:
otherwise, the power under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. has to be

exercised sparingly depénding upon the facts and circumstances

of each case and no straitjacket formula can be laid down for

exercise of such power. Accordingly, both petition have no

force and are dismissed hereby. "
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(3)  ltisthereafter that the order was passed by the frial court challengcd _
in the revision. . .

(4)  The contention of the leamed counsel appearing for the petitioner is
that in compliance of the directions of this court contained in the order dated
25% January 2011 in Cri. Rev. No. 966/2011, the petitioner moved an
application before the trial court on 3™ of February, 2011 and also paid Rs.
30,000/- towards arrears of interim maintenance to the respondent. It is
contended that the respondent is responsible for causing delay in the disposal
of his application by not filing reply despite giving various opportunities.
Therefore, it is requested that by allowing the revision the order passed by
the court below directing the petitioner to pay the arrears of interim maintenance
before disposal of his application be set aside.

.(5)  Thelearned counsel for the réspondent on the other hand, opposed
the prayer and prayed for dismissal of the revision. . :

(6) Heard the learned counsel for the parties and also perused the
impugned order and the documents annexed with the revision memo.

(7)  After marriage, it is the duty of the husband to provide shelter and
maintenance to the wife. If he neglects, the wife is legally entitled to have it
from the court by moving a petition under the provision of Section 125 of
Cr.P.C. The section gives effect to the natural and fundamental duty of a man

- tomaintain his wife, children and parents so long as they are unable to maintain -
themselves. At this juncture, it would be proﬁtable to quotc the relevant
provisions under the Code.

S.125(1) If any person having suﬁt:lent means neglects orrefuses
to maintain-

(@  hiswife, unable to maintain herself, or

M) ' his legitimate or illegitimate minor child/ whether married
or not unable to maintain itself or

(c) ' his legitimate or illegitimate child (not being a married
-daughter) who has attained majority, where such child is, by reason

of any physical or mental abnormallty or mjury unable to mamtam
itself, or - g -

(d) ~ his father or mother, unable to méu'r_;taih himself or herself,
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a Magistrate of the first class may, upon proof of such neglect or
refusal, order such person to make a monthly allowance for the

. maintenance of his wife or such child, father or mother, at such
monthly rate/ as such Magistrate thinks fit and to pay the same to
such person as the Magistrate may from time to time direct:

Provided further that the Magistrate may, during the pendency of
the proceeding regarding monthly allowance for the maintenance
under this sub section/order such person to make a monthly
allowance for the interim maintenance of his wife or such child,
father or mother, and the expenses of such proceedings which the
Magistrate considers reasonable,and to pay the same to such
person as the Magistrate may from time to time direct:

Provided also that an application of the monthly allowance for the
interim maintenance and expenses for proceeding under the second
proviso shall, as for as possible / be disposed of within sixty days
from the date of the service of the notice of the application to such
person.

Sec.127(1)- [On proof of a change in these circumstances of any
person, receiving under Section 125 a monthly allowance for the
maintenance or interim maintenance or ordered under the same
section to pay a monthly allowance for the maintenance or interim
maintenance to his wife child, father or mother as the ‘case may
be, the Magistrate may make such alteration, as he thinks fit in the
allowance for maintenance or the interim maintenance as the case
may be]

QXXXX XXX XXXX ~— XXXX
G)XXXX XXXX XXXX  XXXX
@HXXXX XXXX XXXX — XXXX

(8)  Aperusal of the provisions of Section 127 of Cr.P.C. makes it clear
that where once an order for maintenance is passed under Section 125 of
Cr.P.C., the amount can be increased or decreased by change of circumstances
of the person receiving, or of the person paying, the amount. Change in
circumstances envisaged by this section is of pecuniary or other circumstances
of the party paying or receiving maintenance allowance which would justify an
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increase or decrease of the amount originally fixed. Change in circumstances
would also mean change in the circumstances of the husband. An application
for alteration in maintenance allowance on ground of change in circumstance
can be filed by either party. As discussed above, by way of directions dated
25" January 2011 in Cri. Rev.No. 966/2010, this court granted the petitioner-
husband a liberty to move an appropriate application for alteration of monthly
interim allowance originally granted to his wife and child on proof of change
of circumstances, which is said to be pending consideration before the court.
Suffice it to say, until the interim order of maintenance passed earlier on dated
27% October 2010 is amended/altered or maintained, as the case may be,
same will be enforceable on the date of pronouncement of such order or the
date as the trial Judge may direct in his order and under the circumstances,
the petitioner is bound to pay the interim maintenance amount as ordered by
the Court. :

(9)  Consequently, this court does not find any merit in this revision. Same
is hereby dismissed with a direction to the trial court to dispose of the petition
of the petitioner-husband within a period of two months from the date of
communication of the order of this court.

Revision dismissed

-

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 277
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 1144/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 11 November, 2011 °

PUSHPATHAKUR (SMT.) & anr. ...Applicants
Vs.
BHAGWANDAS BHAVEDI _ ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125 —
Reasonable sum of Maintenance —If the husband like the respondent .
is healthy and able bodied person then, on account of less income, he
can not escape from his liability to pay the reasonable sum of
maintenance to his wife and children. -

Maintenance awarded by the trial Court enhanced from
Rs. 600/- per month to Rs. 1500/~ per month for wife and from Rs, 200/-
per month to 900/- per month for child. (Paras 9 & 11)
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Manish Tiwari, for the applicants.
Brijesh Verma, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

U.C. MaunesawARl, J :- The applicants/wife and the son of the
respondent have preferred this revision for further enhancement of the sum
being dissatisfied with the order dated 25.4.2011 passed by IInd Principal
Additional Judge of Family Court Jabalpur in MJC No. 35/07, whereby
allowing their application filed under Section 125 of Cr.P.C., the respondent
has been directed to pay only Rs. 600/- per month to the applicant no.1 and'
Rs. 200/- per month to applicant no.2.

2. The applicant no.1 being wife of respondent on her own behalf and on
behalf of minor son, the applicant no.2, filed an application against the
respondent under Section 125 of Cr.P.C. with a prayer to direct the respondent
to pay them the sum of monthly maintenance for their livelihood. As per
averments of the application, the applicant no.1, got married with the respondent
no.1 in accordance with Hindu rites and rituals on 27.1.2004. Out of such
wedlock, the applicant no.2 was borne on 20.6.2005. As per further
averments, subsequent to marriage, the applicant no.1 was subjected to
harassment and cruelty in the matrimonial home by the respondent where she
was also treated to be the servant of the family and even in her pregnancy
period, she was subjected to same harassment and cruelty by the respondent
and his other family members. In continuation of such activities, by taking all
her belonging she along with the applicant no.2, the minor son was ousted
from the matrimonial home without any sufficient cause and since then under
compulsion, they were residing in the parental home of the applicantno.1. Itis
also stated that the respondent did not make any effort to bring them back to
his home and in such premises, they have neglected and refused by the
respondent. It is further stated that the applicant no.1 being household lady, is
not having any source of income and the applicant no.2 being minor, is not in

b
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a position to earn. In such prem_ises,llthey are in need of surh for maintenance
from the respondent. As per furtherjaverments, the respondent is involved in
the business of contractor of furniture, and of maintenance of the houses.
Besides this, he is having the house property and agricultural land and from
all sources, he is earning near about Rs.10,000/- to Rs. 12,000/- per month.
With these submissions, the prayer for appropriate direction to the respondent
to pay the maintenance at the rate of Rs. 3000/- per month to the applicant
no.1 and Rs. 2,000/- per month to applicant no.2, is made.

3. In reply of the respondent, the factum of the marriage and birth of the
applicant no.2 from such wedlock are admitted while, the allegations regarding
harassment and cruelty committed by the respondent with the applicant have
been denied. It is also stated that the applicant no.1 along with her son-applicant
no.2, is residing, separately from the respondent, in her parental family without
any sufficient cause while, the respondent was always remained reédy and
willing to keep them with him in his family. It is stated that he did not have any
business of the contractor-ship or maintenance of the houses and in such
premises, he is not having any 1ncome from such alleged business. The
averments regarding income from the agncultural field is also denied. As per
further averments, the respondent is working as daily wage labour at Bhopal
and out of which, his income is not so high to pay the amount of maintenance
as prayed by the applicants. Some other. allegations have also been made
against the applicant no.1 in the reply and the prayer for dismissal of the
application was made.

4.,  Inview of the aforesaid pleadings of the parties, some issues were
framed by the trial Court on which, the evidence was adduced by the parties.
On appreciation of the same, by allowing the applicants’ application in part,
the respondent was directed to pay them Rs.600/- per month and Rs.200/-
per month respectively to the applicant no.1 and applicant no.2 for their
maintenance. Being dissatisfied with the impugned order, the applicants have
come to this Court with this revision for further enhancement of such sum in
accordance with their prayer made in the apphcatlon filed under Section 125
of Cr.P.C.

5. Applicants’ counsel after taki_ng me through pleadings of the parties,
evidence led by them along with the impugned order said that, on appreciation
of the evidence even after holding the applicants have been neglected and
refused by the respondent, without considering the present price index of the
~ food stuffs and other necessary things in the market, has allowed their
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application for the sum at very lower side, which is not sufficient to fulfill the
regular necessity of the applicants. So far income of the respondent is
concerned, by referring para 10 of the cross-examination of respondent
Bhagwandas (DW-1), said that he is having the sufficient property and the source
of income to pay the reasonable sum of the maintenance to the applicants and
prayed to enhance the sum awarded by the trial Court by allowing this revision.

6. On the other hand responding the aforesaid arguments, Shri Brijesh
Verma, learned appearing counsel by justifying the impugned order said that
the same is based on proper appreciation of the evidence and also taking into
consideration the monthly income of the respondent i.e. near about Rs.2,700/
- per month hence, it does not require any interference at this stage for further
enhancement of the sum. In continuation, he also argued that besides the
liabilities of the applicants, the respondent is also having the liabilities of some
other family members i.¢. mother and younger brother. He also said that the
respondent was ready and willing to keep the applicants with him in his family
but without sufficient cause, they are residing separately and in such premises,
the applicants are not entitled for further enhancement of the sum and prayed
for dismissal of this revision. ' '

7. Having heard the counsel at length, keeping in view their arguments,
after perusing the record along with the impugned order, I am of the considered
view that this revision deserves to be allowed in part.

8. It is apparent that after passing the impugned order holding the
applicants are neglected and refused by the respondent without any sufficient
cause with a findings that they did not have any source of income for their
livelihood, such findings of the trial Court have not been challenged on behalf
of the respondent by filing any revision or any other proceedings. So in such
premises, such findings of the trial Court have got finality between the parties
and the same does not require any interference at this stage. So, only question
remains in this revision whether the applicants are entitled for further
enhancement in the monthly sum awarded by the trial Court or not.

9. Itis settled law that if the wife and children like applicants are non-
earning members and have been neglected and refused by the husband/father
like the respondent then, it is the duty of the husband like the respondent to
pay them the appropriate sum for their livelihood and maintenance. It is also
settled proposition that if the husband like the respondent is healthy and able
bodied person then, on account of less income, he cannot escape from his
liability to pay the reasonable sum of maintenance to his wife and children.
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10.  Although, in the available circumstances and evidence of the case at
hand, the respondent is not having the less income, on the contrary in view of
para 10 of his deposition recorded in the trial Court, he is having the house
along with the agricultural land. In such premises, it could not be deemed that
the respondent is having only income Rs.2,700/- per month. His income
appears to be of that level on which he may give sufficient and reasonable
sum to the applicants for their livelihood. Looking to the current price index
of the market regarding food stuffs and other necessary things for human
being, Rs. 600/- per month and Rs.200/- per month for applicant no.1 and
applicant no.2 respectively, is apparently at very lower side. Whenever the
amount of maintenance is awarded to the wife and children then, the Courts
are bound to consider all the probable circumstances, that on receiving the
sum awarded by the Court, the wife and children may maintain themselves
properly by taking the necessary food of both the times. Keeping in view
such aspect, on examining the case of applicants, in the present scenario of
market and price index of food stuffs, Rs.800/- per month even for one
person either the applicant no.1 or applicant no.2 is no sufficient and in such
they cannot survive by fulfilling their necessity. In such premises, itis held that
they are in need of more sum of maintenance from the respondent. In the light
of the present price index of the food stuffs in the market and also looking to
the status of the parties, I am of the considered view that now-a-days, minimum
Rs.50/- per day for applicant no.l and Rs.30/- per day for a minor son
applicant no.2 are required for their maintenance, It is needless to state here
that wife and children are also entitled to live in equal status of the respondent
and respondent is bound to pay that much amount as maintenance according
to his status.

11.  Inview ofthe aforesaid discussions and keeping in view the status of
the applicants as well as the respondent and their family circumstances, I
deem fit to enhance the sum of the maintenance awarded by the trial Court
from Rs. 600/- per month to Rs. 1500/- per month for the applicant no.1 and
from Rs. 200/- per month to Rs. 900/- per month for the applicant no.2.

12.  Therefore, by.allowing this revision in part, the respondent is directed
to pay Rs.1,500/- per month to the applicant no.1 and Rs.900/- per month to
the respondent no.2 from the date of the impugned orderi.e. 25.4.2011. Till
this extent the impugned order is modified while other findings of the same are
hereby affirmed.

Revision partly allowed
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I.L.R.[2012]M.P. 282
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 1380/2007 (Jabalpur) decided on21 November, 2011

SURESH CHANDRA ...Applicant
Vs.
‘N.C. JAIN ...Non-applicant

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 500 — Defamation —
Respondent filed complaint against applicant before State Bar Council
alleging professional misconduct which was dismissed —Applicant filed
complaint alleging that respondent has criticized the applicant thereby
adversely affecting his practice — Trial Court took cognizance on the
ground that respondent had stated that  “he will get his black coat

- of” — Such allegation did not find place in complaint but was stated in
evidence — Revisional Court rightly dismissed the complaint on the
ground that allegation of taking off the black coat was not alleged in
complaint — Application dismissed. ©© (Paras2,5 & 6)

Zvs §iXar (1860 &7 45) SRT 500 —FrTErfv-a<aAhl d IdeE I
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M. Shafiqulla, for the applicant.
Rajnish Jain, for the non-applicant.

‘ORDER

U.C. MAHESHWARI, J :- The applicant/complainant has filed this
revision under section 397/401 of the Cr.P.C, being aggrieved by the Judgment
dated 11.06.2007 passed by the Sessions Judge, Jabalpur in Cr.R.No.16/07
setting aside the order dated 29.11.06, passed by the ACIM, Jabalpur in
Private complaint Case initiated by the applicant taking the cognizance against
the respondent for the offence of section 500 of the IPC, and dismissed the

F
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aforesaid complaint of the applicant.

2. The facts giving rise to this revision in short are that the applicant
herein, being Advocate, was engaged by the respondent in some pending
case before the Court. Subsequently, as per allegation of the respondent in
his mater some professional misconduct was committed by the applicant, on
which, the respondent has filed a complaint under section 35 of the Advocate

.Act, 1961 ( in short ‘the Act’) before the State Bar Council of Madhya

Pradesh. Later, in accordance with the procedure, the same was s forwarded
to the Bar Council of India under section 36(b) of the Act and, ultimately, on
consideration, such complaint was dismissed by the Bar Council of India vide
dated 8.8.04 holding that the respondent had failed to prove any professional
misconduct on the part of the present applicant. Subsequent to such order of
Bar Council of India, the applicant has filed the impugned private complaint
against the respondent contending that on several occasions, in presence of
various Advocates and clients, the respondent has criticized the applicant and
pursuant to such act the prestige of the applicant has been adversely affected
atlarge. Due to this reason, he also suffered the loss in his profession because
so many clients had taken away their cases from his office. Insuch premises,
the applicant had prayed to prosecute the respondent for the offence under
section 500 of the IPC. Subsequent to filing the complaint, at the initiate
stage, the statement of the applicant and his witnesses were recorded under
section 200 and 202 of the Cr.P.C. On appreciation of such statement and
the other papers placed before the trial court, the cognizance of the aforesaid
section 500 of the IPC was taken against the respondent. The same was
challenged by the respondent before the subordinate revisional Court. On
consideration , taking into consideration the record of the trial court, by
allowing such revision, the aforesaid order of the trial court taking the
cognizance in the matter, was set aside, on which, the applicant has come to
this court with this revision.

3. Shri M.Shafiqulla, learned appearing counsel of the applicant aﬂcrtakmg
me through the averments of the complaint, depositions of the applicant as well
as the witnesses recorded under section 200 and 202 of the Cr.P.C along with
the papers placed with the complaint and also the impugned order of both the
courts below, argued that on appreciation of the available circumstances and
the evidence, the trial court has rightly took the cognizance against the respondent
for the offence. The revisional court, in its turn, contrary to the record, has set
aside the order under wrong premises. In continuation, he said that criticism of
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the Advocate by any client alleging something against his bonafide professional
activities, is a outright defamation of the counsel. With these submissions, he
prayed for restoration of the order of the trial court and set aside the order of
the revisicnal court by admitting and allowing this revision.

4. Having heard the counsel, keeping in view his arguments, I have carefully
examined the record of the trial court. It is apparent from the impugned order
that the same has been passed by the Sessions Judge in a very elaborate
manner and also taking into consideration the entire facts stated by the applicant
in the complaint as well as the aforesaid depositions recorded at the initial
stage of the complaint and also after perusing the papers annexed with the
complaint. It appears from the complaint itself that initial complaint was filed
with the allegation against the respondent that in presence of various Advocates
and the clients, the respondent asked the applicant that “he will get his black
coat off”. Some after formal allegations are also stated in the complaint.

5. On the basts of the aforesaid allegation of the respondent that “he will
get his black coat off”, the trial court took the cognizance of section 500 of
the IPC in the matter while the revisional court after examining the case
categorically stated that in the initial complaint filed before the trial court the
aforesaid allegation stating that respondent will “get his black coat off” was’
not stated anywhere in the entire complaint and after filing the complaint, such
version was stated by the applicant and his witnesses at first time in their
deposition recorded under section 200 of the Cr.P.C 202 of the Cr.P.C and
in view of such material omission in the complaint, so also the inconsistency .
between the complaint and the deposition of the complainant and his witnesses
by invoking the vested jurisdiction under section 397 of the Cr.P.C, the order
of the trial court taking cognizance of the aforesaid offence against the
respondent was set aside and the complaint was dismissed.

6. Even on re-appreciation of the available circumstances from the
complaint as well as the aforesaid deposition of the applicant and his witnesses,
I have not found any perversity, infirmity or illegality and appreciation of the
same by the Sessions Court in passing the impugned order setting aside the
order of the trial court taking the cognizance against the respondent in the

‘matter. Consequently, this revision being devoid of any merit, is hereby
dismissed at the initial stage of motion hearing,

Revision dismissed

b
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LL.R.[201Z]M.P. 285
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 2014/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 November, 2011

DEEPAK RAIKWAR & anr. ...Applicants
Vs. o
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 311 — Recall
of Witress ~Doctor who conducted posimortem was examined at earlier
stage — He was sought to be recalled in the light of subsequent evidence
which has come on record — Held — Accused should be extended the
ample opportunity to defend his case and such right should not be
curtailed on account of minor technical grounds and specially in those
cases in which capital punishment has been provided under the law —
Applicants facing trial of Section 302 of IPC in which the maximum
punishment till death is provided — Doctor directed to be recalled —
Revision allowed. (Paras 1,2,5,6,7,8)
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Pranay Gupta, for the applicants.
Pramod Kumar Chourasia, PL for the non-applicant/State.

ORDER

U.C. MAHESEWARI, J :- The applicants/accused have preferred this
revision under Section 397/401 of Cr.P.C. being aggrieved by the order dated
3.11.2011, passed by Vith Additional Sessions Judge Bhopal, in Sessions
Trial No.16/11, whereby their application filed under Section 311 of Cr.P.C.

- torecall the examined prosecution witness Dr. M. Lalwani (PW-17) for further
cross-examination, has been dismissed. .
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2. Applicants’ counsel after taking me through depositions of Dr. M. Lalwani
(PW-17) and Imtiaz Ali (PW-21), which was recorded on 2.10.2011, subsequent
to examination of the aforesaid Dr. M.Lalwani along with the impugned order and
the applicants’ application filed under Section 311 of Cr.P.C., said that as per
settled proposition of law, the accused like applicants should be extended sufficient
opportunity to defend the case and in such premises, if the Doctor of criminal
case, who carried out the post-mortem of the deceased, was examined at earlier
stage and thereafter, some other witness relating to the material facts is examined
then, the accused like applicants, have a right to recall the earlier examined
prosecution witnesses to carry out his further cross-examination in the light of
material factual circumstances came in the deposition of subsequent examined
witness/witnesses. In continuation, he said that as per para 4 of the deposition of
Imtaiz Ali (PW-21), the deceased Saad after stepping down in front of the hospital
from the auto rickshaw, went inside the hospital by walking while, the aforesaid
earlier examined expert witness Dr. M.Lalwani (PW-17) in his post-mortem report
and paragraph 3 & 10 of his deposition has categorically stated that the deceased
sustained multiple fractures in his head and his brain material had also come out. In
such circumstances, subsequent to recording the depositions of Imtiaz Ali (PW-
21), the further cross-examination of the Doctor on behalf of the applicants is
necessary. Otherwise, the right of applicants to defend the case may be prejudiced
at large and prayed to allow his application and extending the opportunity to
cross-examine the Doctor M. Lalwani (PW-17) by recalling him in the trial Court
by allowing this revision., '

3. On the other hand, by justifying the impugned order, the learned Panel
Lawyer Shri Chourasia said that in the available factual matrix of the case the
trial Court has not committed any error in dismissing the impugned application
of the applicants, As such Dr, M. Lalwani (PW-17) has already been cross-
examined at length and prayed for dismissal of this revision.

4. Having heard the counsel, keeping in view their arguments, I have
carefully gone through the copy of application filed by the applicants under
Section 311 of Cr.P.C., the aforesaid depositions of the witnesses and the
impugned order.

5. It is settled proposition of law that accused should be extended the
ample opportunity to defend his case and such right should not be curtailed on
account of minor technical grounds and specially such right could not be
curtailed in those case in which capital punishment has been provided under
the law. Itis undisputed fact that applicants are facing the trial of Section 302

.
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of L.P.C. also in which the maximum punishment till death is provided.

6. At this stage, I do not want to express any opinion on merits with
respect of the depositions of Dr. M. Lalwani (PW-17) and Imtiaz Ali (PW-
21) recorded by the trial Court for adjudication of matter as the same is to be
appreciated but after going through both the depositions, in view of para 4 of
the depositions of Imtiaz Ali (PW-21) and in view of para 3 & 10 of the
deposition of Dr. M.Lalwani (PW-17), who was examined earlier to Imtiaz
Ali, the further cross-examination of Dr. M. Lalwani, on behalf of the defence
appears to be necessary. Hence, by allowing this revision, the impugned order -
is hereby set aside. Pursuant to it, by allowing the applicants’ application filed
under Section 311 of Cr.P.C., the applicants are extended an opportunity to
recall the examined prosecution witness Dr. M. Lalwani (PW-17) for his
further cross-examination.

7. Consequently, the trial Court is directed to take appropriate steps to '
recall the abovementioned Doctor M. Lalwani (PW-1 7) and extent an
opportunity to the applicants for his further cross-examination. |

8. The revision is allowed as indicated above.

Certified copy as per rules.
Revision allowed

LL.R.[2012]M.P: 287
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 1998/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 November, 2011

A

RAGHURAJ SINGH & ant. o ...Applicants
Vs. ' .
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 306 — Abetment to commit
suicide — Applicant and co-accused used to demand money from
deceased Sarpanch by making-criminal intimation and complaints -
Secretary of Gram Panchayat also withdrew some money by playing
fraud with deceased — Held — Prima facie offence punishable under
Section 306 IPC made out—Charge rightly framed.  (Paras 2 & 12)

. 5vS gfkar (1860 @1 45), T’ 306 — STECHT @ ford gEer —
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Case referred:
AIR 2005 SC 359.

Deepak Okhade, for the applicants .
Pramod Kumar Chourasia, PL for the non-applicant.

ORDER

U.C. MauesawaRi, J :- The applicants/accused have filed this revision
under section 397/401 of the Cr.P.C, being aggrieved by the Judgment dated
3.10.2011 passed by the Addl.Sessions Judge, Satna in S.T.No.124/11 framing
the charge against them along with other co-accused for the offence of section
306/34 of the IPC. '

2. The facts giving rise to this revision in short are that on 6.7.2009 at
about 6.10 O’ clock in the morning the information regarding unnatural death
of Hiralal Singh was received at Police Station Civil Lines, Satna from the
informer Dhiru Singh, according to which, the deceased left his home at about
10 in the night 0f 5.7.09 and on 6.7.09 at 5 O’ clock in the morning when his
mother went outside to answer the call of nature then she saw said Baba Hira
Lal Singh was hanging dead on the tree, on which, the Marg intimation No.30/

09 was registered at such police station. In its inquiry, the interrogatory °

statements of Surendra Singh and Nagendra Singh were recorded. Besides
this, the dead body panchnama and the spot map was also prepared. In inquiry
one suicidal note written by the deceased on the letter-pad of the Gram
Panchayat showing the reason for committing suicide was also found on the
dead body of said Hira Lal Singh, according to which, Raghuraj Singh and
Rishi Kumar Garg, the applicants, subsequent to the election of the deceased
as Sarpanch of the village, by giving criminal intimidation and making
complaints, use to demand the money from him. Besides this, the Secretary of
the Gram Panchayat also withdrew the money by practicing fraud with the
deceased and that is why, he is committing the suicide. On the basis of such
interrogatory statements and the suicidal note, it was revealed that the applicants
and the Secretary of the Panchayat, had abetted the deceased for committing
suicide, on which, the Dehati Nalishi No.0/09 was drawn-up by the Police
Officer on 6.7.09 at about 11 O’ Clock in the morning. The same was sent to
-the Police Station where the original offence was registered at Crime No.285/
09 on the same day. In further investigation, the interrogatory statements of

i»
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Surendra Singh, Nagendra Singh, Kamlesh Singh, Narendra Sing and Dhiru
were recorded. On completion of the investigation, it was established that
the applicants and the Secretary of the Gram Panchayat had abetted the
deceased Hira Lal Singh for committing the suicide, on which they all were
charge sheeted for the offence of section 306/34 of the IPC.

3. After committing the case to the Sessions Court on evaluation of the
charge sheet, the charge of the aforesaid offence of section 306 of the IPC
was framed against the applicants and other co-accused. They abjured the
guilt and thereafter the applicants have come to this court with this revision.

4. Shri Deepak Okhade, counsel for the applicants after taking me
through the papers of the charge sheet placed on the record along with the
order dated 18.12.08 passed by the SDO and the competent authority in
Case No.4/A-89/07-08 along with some inquiry report, the FIR of Crime
No.276/09 registered on dated 3.7.09 against the deceased and some other
five persons including the Secretary of the Gram Panchayat for the offence
under section 420,467,468 and 471 of the IPC, which are not part of the
charge sheet; and also the impugned order, argued that keeping in view the
aforesaid FIR of Crime No0.276/09 registered at the same Police Station before
two days from the date of committing the suicide by Hira Lal Singh and the
aforesaid order of the SDO with the inquiry report if the evidence collected
by the investigating agency placed before the Court with the police report
under section 173(2) of the Cr.P.C is taken into consideration as accepted in
its entirety even then the ingredients of the alleged offence of section 306 of
the IPC are not made out against any of the applicants for framing the impugned
charge. In continuation, he said that froim the averments of the suicidal note
or the case diary statements of the above mentioned witnesses, any of the
ingredients of section 107 of the IPC defining “abetment of thing” are not
made out and, in such premises, it could not be inferred even for framing the
charge that any of the applicant has abetted the deceased to commit suicide
or at their instigation, he proceeded and committed suicided. With these
submissions he prayed for discharging the applicants from the aforesaid charge
by admitting and allowing this revision. ‘

5. Having heard the counsel at length, keepirig in view his argument, I
have carefully gone through the papers of the charge sheet as well as the
papers placed on behalf of the applicants with this revision which are not part
of the charge sheet along with the impugned order and the charge framed.

6.  Itissettled proposition of the law laid down by the Apex Court in the

!
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matter of State of Orissa Vs. Devendra Nath Padhi-AIR 2005 SC-359
that at the stage of framing the charge only the material placed by the
prosecution along with the police report filed under section 173 of the Cr.P.C
could be considered and taken into consideration. The papers which are not
part of the charge sheeted placed by the accused like applicants in their defence,
could not be taken into consideration at the stage of framing the charge. In
view of such law of land, it is held that the FIR of Crime No.276/09 registéred
at the same police station on dated 3.7.09 against the deceased and the
Secretary of the Gram Panchayat along with four others for the offence of
section 420,467,468 and 471 of the IPC and the order of SDO dated 18.12.08
along with the inquiry report, could not be taken into consideration at the
stage of framing the charge in the case at hand.

7. It is apparent fact on record that immediately after re glstratlon of the
inquest report, the police went to the place where the dead body of deceased
Hira Lal Singh was hanging on a tree in dead position for which the inquest
panchnama and the spot map were also prepared. In the course of such
process, a suicidal note written on the letter pad of the Gram Panchayat, as
alleged written by the deceased, was also recovered from the dead body.
The same was seized and in further i inquiry of the Marg, the interrogatory
statements of two persons, namely, Surendra Singh and Nagendra Singh were

.recorded. On the basis of the suicidal note, it was revealed that the deceased
in his life-time, subsequent to becoming Sarpanch of the village, was subjected
to demand of money with criminal intimidation and complaints to the authorities
by the present applicants Raghuraj Singh, Rishi Kumr and one Rudra Pratap
Singh. From the averments of the suicidal note, prima facie it is made out that
the deceased was subjected to offence of extortion, by the applicants and
said Rudhra Pratap Singh because by creating fear and making demand of
money without any sufficient cause, the deceased was extorted by them.
Accordingly, prima facie, it could be said that the applicants by their criminal
activities created the atmosphere against the deceased, on which, the deceased
was instigated to commit suicide and committed the same.

8. True itis that as per further averments of the suicidal note, the deceased
also committed suicide because his Secretary of the Gram Panchayat was
used to withdraw the money after taking his signature on the cheque by
practicing fraud for which the criminal case was also registered against the
deceased including the Secretary and other persons as stated above. The
. averments of the suicidal note are further supported by the interrogatory
statements of Surendra Singh, Nagendra Singh, Kamlesh Singh, Narendra
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Singh and Dhiru Singh. -

9. Undisputedly, the word “abetment” mentioned in section 306 of the
IPC has not been separately defined under such section so, as per practice
and settled proposition, for the purpose of its interpretation, section 107 of
the IPC defining the words “the abetment of thing” is always taken into
consideration. InSection 107 of the IPC to define “the abetment of a thing”
following three material ingredients have been stated. The ingredients are; A
person abets the doing of a thing, who (a) instigates any person to do that
thing or, (b) Engages with one or more person or persons in any conspiracy
for the doing of that thing if an act or illegal omission takes place in pursuance
of that conspiracy and in order to the doing of that thing, or (c) intentionally
criminal aids by any act or illegal omission the doing of that thing. Out of the
aforesaid if any of the ingredients is found in the matter then it could be said
that such thing was abetted by the person.

Keeping in view the aforesaid ingredients of section 107 of the IPC
on examining the case at hand, then from the available evidence in the charge
sheet, as per the aforesaid discussion, prima facie it is established that prior
to committing suicide by Hira Lal Singh, on account of illegal demand of money .
was subjected to extortion with criminal intimidation, complaints to the various
authorities by the applicants and, due to such activities of the applicants Hira
Lal Singh, after writing the suicidal note mentioning all the aforesaid things,
proceeded to commit suicide and committed the same by hanging himself on
atree. So, in such premises, there is a prima facie evidence in the charge
sheet showing the deceased was instigated and abetted by the applicants to
commiit suicide.

10.  Ttisalso settle proposition of the law that whenever on evaluation of
the charge sheet even if slight prima facie evidence with respect of the alleged
offence is found against the accused like the applicants then there is no option
with the Court except to frame the charge of such section against the accused
like the applicants. It is needless to state here that at the stage of framing the
charge, the court has not to consider the question whether on framing the
charge and holding the trial the accused like applicants could be convicted in
the matter or not.

11. It also appears from the charge sheet that besides the aforesaid
instigation of the applicants and said Rudra Pratap Singh, the deceased also
proceeded to commit suicide because of some instigation given by the Secretary
of the Gram Panchayat by practicing fraud with him. But the present revision
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has not been preferred by said Secretary of the Gram Panchayat, therefore, 1
do not find fit to consider such aspect in the present matter at this stage.

12.  Inview of the aforesaid, I have not found any perversity, infirmity, illegality
or anything againstthe propriety of the law in the orderimpugned, framing the aforesaid
alleged charge of section 306/34 of the IPC against the applicants, requiring any
interference under the revisional jurisdiction of this Court, hence this revision being
devoid of any merit is hereby dismissed at the stage of motion hearing.

Revision dismissed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 292
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 1936/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 25 November, 2011

PUSHPENDRA SINGH THAKUR ' , ...Applicant
Vs. .
SMT. MAMTA THAKUR ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125,
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 — Medical Examination — Applicant
took a defence that wife is having character of Hermaphroditism
(Ubhaylingata) and prayed for her karyotype medical test — Held —
Person can not be insisted contrary to her wish to examine herself for
any medical examination — Such direction would be violative of Article
21 of Constitution — Revision dismissed. (Paras 3,5, & 8)

TUE YB3 GIeTT, 1973 (1974 BT 2). €T 125, G FRHVIT (1872
BT 1) GT 45 — [AfFy gdgor — adess X @@ fagar 65 o=h &
sgfdTar @ amor ¥ gl Sue sty Rafveln waw @ @
urﬁmaﬁ—aﬁﬁﬁﬁa—wﬁaﬁﬁﬂnﬁhﬁﬁuqﬁmﬁmﬁ
TNEvT @1 SuBl 3981 3 favg smus il fear w1 wear — ¢wr
e @ Ige8T 21 &1 IedEIHR T — AT iRk |
Cases referred:

1923 SC 2295, AIR 2010 SC 1974.

Ajay Kumar Jain, for the applicant.

ORDER

U.C. MAHESAWARL, J :- Thie applicant/husband has directed this
revision under Section 397/401 of Cr.P.C. against the order dated 17.10.2011



L.L.R.[2012]M.P. P.S. Thakur Vs. Smt. Mamta Thakur 293

passed by Judicial Magistrate First Class Budhni, District Sehore in MJC
No. 47/03, whereby, his application filed under Section 45 of the Evidence
Act for appropriate direction to carry out the “karyotype” investigation of the
respondent through some expert of the medical filed, has been dismissed.

2. The facts giving rise to this revision in short are that the respondent
herein filed an application under Section 125 of Cr.P.C. contending that she
got married with the applicant in the year 1994 in accordance with the rites
and rituals of Hindu community. Subsequent to marriage she has been neglected
and refused by the respondent without any sufficient cause and under such
compulsion, she is residing separately. In this regard by stating some other
averments, the prayer for monthly maintenance is made.

3. Inreply of the respondent by denying the averments of the application in
addition, it is stated that the respondent is not a lady as such she is having the
character of Hermaphroditism [Ubhaylingata] and in such premises, the alleged
marriage being null and void, she could not be treated to be the wife of the applicant
and in such premises, is not entitled to get any relief of maintenance as prayed.

4. Inthe course of trial, on behalf of the respondent as many as four
witnesses namely Mamta Thakur (PW-1) herself, her father Ramesh Thakur
(PW-2), Madanlal Yadav (PW-3) and Dr. Sunita Pandey (PW-4) have been
examined while, on behalf of applicant herein, as many as six witnesses namely
Pushpendra Singh Thakur (NAW-1), applicant himself, Dr.(Smt.) Archana
Baser, (NAW-2), Dr. R K. Sodani NAW-3), Dr. Ranjana Hawaldar (NAW-
4), GK. Yadav, (NAW-5) and Ajay Garg (NAW-6), have been examined.

5. After examining the aforesaid witnesses, out of some circumstances
made out from the deposition of respondent herself (PW-1) and her witness
Dr. Sunita Pandey (PW-4) so also from the deposition of Dr.(Smt) Archana
Baser (NAW-3) and Dr. R.K. Sodani (NAW-3), along with Dr. Ranjana
Hawaldar (NAW-4), on arising the situation on behalf of the applicant, an
application under Section 45 of the Evidence Act for appropriate direction
to carry out the karyotype medical test of the respondent for confirming the -
aforesaid diecease of Hermaphroditism, was filed. On consideration, such

- application of the applicant has been dismissed by the impugned order. On
which, the applicant has come to thus Court with this revision.

6. Shri Ajay Kumar Jain, learned appearing counsel of the applicant after
taking me through copy of the impugned application filed under Section 45 of
the Evidence Act along with the other papers including the recorded
depositions of the abovementioned witnesses and the impugned order, argued
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that in the available circumstances specially in view of depositions of
abovementioned doctors examined by the parties, the aforesaid “karyotype”
medical test of the respondent is necessary to adjudicate the present matter.
Unless such test is carried out, the impugned case could not be effectively
adjudicated between the parties. In continuation, he also said that if, he is not
permitted to get examined the respondent from the expert for the aforesaid
test then, he would be deprived of his valuable right to prove his defence
stated in the reply. In continuation, he said that unless the respondent is directed
for such test and such direction is not complied with by her, on this issue
adverse inference against the respondent could not be drawn in the matter. So
in such premises, the appropriate direction for the alleged test is necessary.
He fairly pointed out that besides the present litigation, at the instance of present
applicant, an application under Section 12 of the Hindu Marriage Act, declaring
the impugned marriage of the applicant and respondent ab-initio void, is also
pending as Civil Original Suit No.01/11 in the Court of Additional District
Judge Sohagpur, District Hoshangabad in which till some extent, identical
application was filed on behalf of the applicant. The same was opposed by
the respondent and on consideration, the same was dismissed vide order dated
28.4.2011 by such Court holding that the respondent cannot be insisted to get
her examine from the medical practitioner without her wish. On which, the
applicant has challenged such order before this Court through Writ Petition
No0.8032/11. By entertaining such petition vide order dated 22.6.2011, the
further proceedings of such Civil Suit has been stayed till next date of listing
and the same is yet to be listed and heard for it’s adjudication. But
simultaneously, he also argued that every case either it is a civil case or criminal
case, is always decided on the basis of evidence recorded in the concerning
case and not by the evidence recorded in the other case, as such the order/
judgment of the Court should not be influenced by the evidence of the other
case and prayed for allowing his application and setting aside the impugned
order by admitting and allowing this revision.

7. Having heard the counsel, keeping in view his arguments I have
carefully gone through the papers of the impugned case along with the impugned
order placed on the record so also the aforesaid order dated 28.4.2011 passed
in Civil Original Suit No.1/11, along with the order of this Court dated
22.6.2011 passed in writ petition No0.8032/11. After perusing the same, I am
of the considered view that this revision at this stage, does not have any material
question requiring any interference under the revisional jurisdiction of this Court
specially on the question raised by the applicant’s counsel. In this regard the
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Civil Court has already expressed it’s opinion against the applicant vide order
dated 28.4.2011 and such order is still sub-judice in the aforesaid writ petition.
Itis also apparent fact that in such writ petition, the operation of such order
dated 28.4.2011 has not been stayed. Thus, at this juncture, in view of the
settled proposition of law that the order passed by the Civil Court, till some
extent is binding against the Criminal Court but the order of the Criminal Court
is not binding against the Court dealing with the Civil matter of the same dispute
between same parties. So, in such premises, the aforesaid interim order of
the Civil Court is binding between the parties and, therefore, firstly this revision
could not be entertained even for admission on this count.
8. Apart the above, in view of the law laid down by the apex Court in
the matter of Goutam Kujju vs. West Bangal 1993 SC 2295 and also in
the matter of Smt. Selabi and others vs. State of Karnataka reported in
AIR 2010 SC 1974, the person like respondent the wife of the applicant
could not be insisted contrary to her wish to examine herself for any medical
investigation as prayed by the applicant’s counsel. In the case at hand, contrary
to the fundamental right of the respondent vested under Article 21 of the
Constitution of India, she could not be insisted by the trial Court as'well as
by this Court to get examined herself for the abovementioned test as prayed
by the applicant’s and it is apparent from the impugned order that the same
has been passed by taking into consideration the aforesaid law of the land
laid down by the apex'Court, thus on this count also the impugned order
does not have any question which could be interfered for any interference
under the revisional jurisdiction of this Court.
9. In view of the aforesaid discussions, I have not found any perversity,
infifmity, illegality or anything against the propriety of the law in the order
impugned dismissing the applicant’s application under Section 45 of the
Evidence Act. Consequently, this revision being devoids of any merits, is
hereby dismissed at the stage of motion hearing.
10.  However, it is made clear that any observations made in this order
shall not affect the right of the applicant to prosecute petition filed by the
applicant under Section 12 of the Hindu Marriage Act or it’s aforesaid writ
petition. The same shall be decided by the Court on it’s own merits without
influencing from any findings or observations of this order. It is also made
clear that subject to decision of said writ petition, on arising the occasion, the
applicant shall be at liberty to file the fresh application in this regard.
11. Rewsmn is d1smlssed at the stage of admission in motion hearing.

) Revision dismissed
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MISCELLANEOUS APPEALINCOME TAX
Before Mr. S.R. Alam, Chief Justice & Mr.Justice Alok Aradhe
M.A.LT. No. 17/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 1 August, 2011

COMMISSIONER OF INCOME TAX ...Appellant
Vs.
M/s D.P.R. CHARITABLE TRUST, SATNA ...Respondent

Income Tax Act (43 of 1961), Section 1244 — Procedure for
Registration of Charitable Trust — While deciding the application for
registration, the authority has to examine whether the application has
been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 12A, Rule 17-
A and form No. 10A — Commissioner is not required to examine whether
the income derived by the trust is being spent for charitable purposes
or the trust is earning profit— Activities of the trust must be genuine
which should be in consonance with object of the trust—Commissioner
is not required to examine the application of income—He has to examine
whether the object of the trust are charitable or not. (Para 8)
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Cases referred: . )
247 ITR 18, 82 ITR 704, 163 Taxman 19, 246 ITR 532, 135 ITR
634, (1939) 7ITR 415(PC), 185ITR 634, (1999) 239 ITR 528(GUJ.)‘

Sanjay Lal, for the appelle{nt. '
‘G.N. Purohit with Abhishek Oswal, for the respondent.
. ORDER

The order of the court has  delivered by
S.R. ALaMm,C. J. :- This appeal under Section 260-A of the Income Tax Act
has been preferred by the Revenue against the order dated 30.9.2002 passed
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by the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (in short ‘the tribunal”).

2. Facts shorn of unnecessary details are that the respondent is a Trust
registered under the provisions of the M.P. Public Trust Act, 1951. The
aforesaid Trust was created vide trust deed dated 22.8.2001 for public
charitable purposes which include providing education and medical reliefs.
etc. to the weaker sections of the society. The Trust has set-up an engineering
college. Vide Communication dated 8.2.2002, Commissioner, Income Tax
required the respondent to give details with regard to the admission procedure
and also to state whether in the college run by the respondent, free education-
would also be imparted. The respondent submitted a reply to the aforesaid
communication vide letter dated 6.3.2002. The respondent trust filed an
application for registration under Section 12-A of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The Commissioner of Income Tax vide order dated 15.3.2002 inter-alia held
that since the rules and regulations of granting admission/education facilities
have not yet been decided therefore, it is not clear as to whether there would
be any restriction for admission to any particular category of students. It was
further held that mere establishment of an engineering college does not
constitute a charitable activity. Accordingly, the application preferred by the
respondent under Section 12-A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 wasrej ected.

3.  Therespondent preferred an appeal against the order passed by the
Commissioner of Income Tax before the tribunal. The tribunal vide order
dated 30.9.2002 inter-alia held that Section 10(2AD), Section 12A and
Section 11 have to be read along with Section 2(15) of the Income Tax Act,
1961. The purpose of seeking registration is to get récognition under the Act
for exemption for charitable purposes subject to fulfillment of other conditions.
It was further held that while considering the application for registration under
Section 12A of the Act, the Commissioner of Inpdme Tax has to examine
whether formalities for registration are satisfactorily complied with or not and
that the purpose of institution is charitable. Accordingly, the order passed by
the Commissioner of Income Tax was set aside and the Commissioner was
directed to register the respondent under Section 12-A of the Act.

4. This Court while admitting the appeal vide order dated 10.8.2006

- formulated the following substantial question of law:

“Whether on the facts and circumstances of the case, the
learned Income Tax Appellate Tribunal was justified in
canceling the order of CIT dated 15.3.2002 refusing the
assessee for registration as a charitable trust under Section
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12-A of the Act of 1961 read with Section 12AA of the Act of
19617

5. Mr. Sanjay Lal, learned counsel for the Revenue submitted that finding
recorded by the appellate authority i.e. the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal is
based on additional evidence. Rule 29 of the Rules framed under the Act
provides that the reasons have to be recorded by the authority while permitting
additional evidence to be adduced. It was also submitted that the tribunal
erred inrelying on 256 ITR 277(MP) as the ratio laid down in the aforesaid
case had no bearing on the controversy involved in the appeal pending before
the tribunal. It was also urged that as the additional evidence was permitted
to be adduced, the matter should have been remanded by the tribunal. It was
further submitted that there was no material on record to show that the
respondent is engaged in charitable work. In support of his submissions,

learned counsel has placed reliance on the decisions rendered by Kerala High

Court in the case of Self Employer Service Society Vs. Commissioner of
Income Tax, 247 ITR 18.

6. On the other hand, Mr. GN. Purohit, learned senior counsel for the

respondent has drawn our attention to Section 2(15) of the Act and has.

submitted that charitable purposes include education. It was also submitted
that-unti] and unless the trust is registered under Section 12-A of the Act, the
trust is not entitled to the benefit of Sections 11 and 12. It was further submitted
that trust deed was filed before the Commissioner of Income Tax and therefore,
there was material on record to show that the trust is engaged in charitable
activities. It was argued that objects of the trust are in tune with Section
2(15) of the Act. While referring to clauses 15 and 16 of the trust deed,
learned senior counsel submitted that from perusal of aforesaid clauses, it is

apparent that income of the trust has to be applied for the purpose of the-

objects for which the trust was constituted, and even if application for adducing
additional evidence is ignored, then also there was material on record to show
that the trust is engaged in charitable activities. It was urged that while deciding
the application under Section 12-A of the Act, the procedure for admission in
the institution run by the respondent-trust was not required to be gone into.
The Commissioner, Income Tax, while dealing with the application did not
properly appreciate the scope and ambit of Section 12-A of the Act. In
support of his submissions, learned senior counsel has placed reliance on the
decisions rendered in the cases of Akmedabad Rana Caste Association
Vs. Commissioner of Income Tax, 82 ITR 704. Commissioner of Income
Tax Vs. Red Rose Schoeol, 163 Taxman 19, New Life in Chris¢

o
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Evangelistic Association Vs. Commissioner of Income Tax, 246 ITR
532, Fifth General Foundation Society Vs. Commissioner of Income
Tux, 135 ITR 634, the Trustees of the Tribune In Re, (1939).7 ITR 415
(PC), Fifth Generation Education Society v. Commissioner of Income
Tux, 185 ITR 634 and Shantagauri Ramniklal Trust v. Commissioner
of Income-tax {1999] 239 ITR 528 (Guj).

7. ‘We have considered the submissions made on both sides. Before
proceeding to deal with the Controversy we deem it appropriate to notice
relevant provisions, namely, Sections 2 (15), 12A and 12-AA of the Act.
Sections 2 (15) and 12A, as they stood at the relevant time, read as under:

%2. Definitions.

2 (15) “charitable purpose” includes relief of the poor, education,
-medical relief, and the advancement of any other object of general
public utility; “ :

12A. Conditions as to registration of trusts etc.

The provisions of Section 11 and Section 12 shall not apply in
relation to the income of any trust or institution unless the following
conditions are fulfilled, namely:-

(a)  theperson inreceipt of the income has made an application
for registration of the trust or institution in the prescribed form
and in the prescribed manner to the Commissioner before the Ist
day of July, 1973 or before the expiry of a period of one year
from the date of the creation of the trust or the establishment of
the institution whichever is later and such trust or institution is
registered under Section 12AA:

Provided that where an application for registration of the trust or
institution is made after the expiry of the period aforesaid, the
provisions of Section 11 and Section 12 shall apply inrelation to
the income of such trust or institution, -

)] from the date of creation of the trust or the establishment
of the institution if the Commissioner is, for.reasons to be recorded
in writing, satisfied that the person in receipt of the income was
prevented from making the application before the expiry of the
period aforesaid for sufficient reasons;

(i)  Where the total income of the trust or institution as
computed under this Act without giving effect to the provisions of
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Section 11 and Section 12 exceeds fifty thousand rupees in any
previous year, the accounts of the trust or institution for that year
have been audited by an accountant as defined in the explanation
below sub-section (2) of Section 288 and the person in receipt of
the income furnishes along with the return of income for the relevant
assessment year the report of such audit in the prescribed form
duly signed and verified by such accountant and setting forth such
particulars as may be prescribed.”

Section 12AA which was inserted by the Finance Act, 1 996 w.e.f,
1.4.1997 reads as under: ,

“12AA. Procedure for registration.

(1)  The Commissioner, on receipt of an application for
registration of a trust or institution made under clause (a) or clause
(aa) of sub-section (1) of Section 124, shall -

(a)  Call for such documents or information from the trust or
institution as he thinks necessary in order to satisfy himself about
the genuineness of activities of the trust or institution and may also
make such inquiries as he may deem necessary in this behalf: and

(b)  after satisfying himself about the objects of the trust or
institution and the genuineness of its activities, he -

()] shall pass an order in wrltlng registering the trust or
institution;

(i) shall, if he is not so satisfied, pass an order in writing refusing
to register the trust or institution, and a copy of such order shall
be sent to the applicant: :

Provided that no order under sub-clause (ii) shall be passed unless
the applicant has been given a reasonable opportunity of being
heard.

(1A) All applications, pending before the Chief Commissioner .

on which no order has been passed under clause (b) of sub-section

" (1) before the 1% day of June, 1999, shall stand transferred on

that day to the Commissioner and the Commissioner may proceed
with such applications under that sub-section from the stage at
which they were on that day.

(2)  Every order granting or refusing registration under clause
(b) of sub-section (1) shall be passed before the expiry of six

I-‘
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months from the end of the month in which the application was
received under clause (a) or clause (aa) of sub-section (1) of
Section 12A. )

(3)  Whereatrust oran institution has been granted registration
under clause (b} of sub-section (1) and subsequently the
Commissioner is satisfied that the activities of such trust or
institution are not genuine or are not being carried out in accordance
with the objects of the trust or institution, as the case may be, he
shall pass an order in writing cancelling the registration of such
trust or institution:

Provided that no order under this sub-section shall be passed unless
such trust or institution has been given a reasonable opportunity
_of being heard.”

8. Section 12A of the Act prescribes conditions for registration of the
trust whereas Section 12AA of the Act prescribes the procedure for
registration. A 'careful reading of the relevant provisions would reveal that
application for registration under Section 12A has to be made in form No.10A
prescribed by Rule 17-A before the expiry of one year from the date of creation
of the trust or establishment of the institution whichever is later. The application
has to be made by a person in receipt of income of the trust. Thus, while
dealing with the application for registration the Commissioner of Income Tax
has to examine whether the application is made in accordance with Section
12A read with Rule 17-A and whether form No.10A has been properly filled
up. He may also examine whether objects of the trust are charitable or not.
Section 12A Anowhere provides that Commissioner of Income Tax while
considering the application for registration is also required to examine whether
the income derived by the trust is being spent for charitable purposes or the
trust is earning profit. The language employed by the Legislature in Section
12AA only requires that activities of the trust or institution must be genuine
which should be in consonance with the object of the trust. At this stage, the
Commissioner is not required to examine the application of income. All that
he may examine is whether the application is made in accordance with the
requirements of Section 12A read with rule 17A and whether Form No.10A
has been properly filled up. He has also to see whether the objects of the
trust are charitable or not. Our view finds support from the Division Bench
decision of the Allahabad High Court rendered in the case of Red Rose School
(supra) and the decisions in the cases of New Life in Christ Evangelistic
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Association (supra), Fifth Generation Education Society (supra) and
Shantagauri Ramniklal Trust (supra).

0. In the backdrop of aforesaid legal position, facts of the case may be
seen. Admittedly, the application submitted by the respondent was in
consonance with the procedural requirement prescribed in this regard. From
" the trust deed which was filed before the Commissioner of Income Tax, the
objects of the trust could be ascertained. From perusal of clause 3 of the
trust deed we find that the objects of the trust are charitable in nature and are
in tune with Section 2 (15) of the Act and, therefore, the tribunal rightly opined
that the order of the Commissioner of Income Tax rejecting the application
under Section 12-A was unjustified.

10.  Forthe aforementioned reasons, the substantial question of law framed )

by this court vide order dated 10.8.2006 has to be answered in the affirmative

1.e. in favour of the assessee and against the Revenue. In the result, the appeal

fails and is hereby dismissed.
Appeal dismissed

LL.R.[2012]M.P. 302
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
.+ Before Mr. Justice T.K.Kaushal
" M.Cr.C.No. 2113/2010 (Jabalpur) decided on 5 July, 2011 .

CHANDRA PAL SINGH ... Applicant
Vs. '
ASHOK LEYLAND LTD. ) " ... Non—applicant

Criminal Trial ~ Amendment in Complaint — Complaint under
Section 138 of NI Act —To provide full and effective opportunity to the
parties, application requesting for the amendment in the complaint

should be allowed. ‘(Para 10) .
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ORDER

T.K. KausnaL, J :- This petition has been directed under Section
482 of the Code of Criminal Procedure (hereinafter shall be referred as Code)
seeking relief to set aside the order dated 21/01/2010 passed by the Additional
Sessions Judge, Rewa in Criminal Revision No. 359/2009 and to dismiss the
complaint Case no. 277/2006 pending in the Court of JMFC, Rewa under
Section 138 of NI Act.

2. Facts giving rise to this petition, in short, are that on 16/10/2003
petitioner entered into a hire-purchase agreement with the respondent, to take
loan 0of Rs.11,92,264/- to purchase the Truck bearing Chassis no. 215461,
Engine No. 243151. On 30/04/2005, petitioner issued cheque no, 102457
of Rs.1,50,000/-, which was bounced on the ground of “ro sufficient -
balance”. Respondent filed complaint under Section 138 of NI Act against
the petitioner in JIMFC, Rewa.on 23/06/2005. On behalf of Ashok Lcjrland,
acomplainant was filed by Shri R.S. Chouhan, Manager.

3. At the stage of judgment i.e. on 25/08/2009, petitioner filed application
mentioning that Ashok Leyland Finance Limited Company is not in existence
and Manager Shri R.S. Chouhan was not authorized person to file the
complaint, hence any such complaint should not be permitted to continue and
should be dismissed.

4. The respondent also filed an apphcatlon before the Trial Court
requesting that w.e.f. 29/04/2004 Ashok Leyland Finance Limited Company
has been merged with Indusind Bank Limited by the order of the competent
court. Shri Praveen Chandra Mishra, has been authorized to continue the
complaint.-

5. Vide order dated 09/10/2009, holding that though this complaint has
been filed by Ashok Leyland Finance Limited on 23/06/2005, whereas it was
merged in the Indusind Bank Limited on 06/05/2005, complainant will be not
deemed to be non-existing company. It is merely a transfer of liabilities and

assets. At the same time, request of the respondent was also declined to

make amendment in the complaint by making reference of Indusind Bank
Limited and also reference of Shri Praveen Chandra Mishra, havmg authority
to file and continue the complaint.

6. Trial Court gave much emphasis on the fact that dunng trial, while
arrest warrant was issued against the petitioner, he deposited Rs.50,000/- in
Iieu of part payment of the cheque amount, hence, all above such objections
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are of technical nature. Above such order was assailed in the revision by the
petitioner, Court of Revision also declined by holding that these ob_] ections
-are of technical nature, and Trial Court has committed no error.

7. Fact that Ashok Leyland Finance Limited Company is not in existence
and Manager Shri R.S. Chouhan is not authorized by the Company to file this
complaint cannot be simply ignored because taking responsibility of the
aforesaid lapses, even respondent requested the Court to make amendments
in the complaint.

8. It is pertinent to note that whole trial was completed and case was
fixed at the stage of judgment. Considering the defence of the petitioner, as he
stated in his statement recorded under Section 313 of the Code that he
purchased the Truck on hire purchase from Ashok Leyland and delivered 10
cheques after signing them, though the blank cheques. Further in view of the
fact that for getting rid of the arrest warrant issued during Trial he agreed to
deposit Rs.50,000/- as part payment of the cheque amount, quashment of
complaint will amount to miscarriage of justice. Rather, interest of justice
demand that Trial should be continued, with full faimess and openness between
the parties.

9. While complainant himself, in view of the fact of the merger of the
Company, requested for amendment in the complaint, itshould have been
allowed because admittedly Ashok Leyland Finance Limited Company Rewa
is now not in existence in the same form as it existed at the time of the agreement.

10.  Withthe view to provide full and effective opportunity to the parties,

application requesting for the amendment in the complaint should be allowed.

Since Truck was purchased on hire purchase and petitioner is under the
obligation to owe the responsibility of payment through cheque signed and
issued by him in that regard.

11.  No case for quashment of complaint under Section 138 NI Act is
made out, Application of the respondent filed before the Trial Court (4nnexure
A-7), should have been allowed. In the result, this petition is allowed to the
extent that impugned order is set aside and Trial Court is directed to permit
the respondent to amend the complaint accordmgly and to proceed further in
the Trial according to law. '

This petition is allowed in part as mdlcated above.
Petition partly allowed
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